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FINANCIAL REPORT

Management report

Anheuser-Busch InBev is a publicly traded company (Euronext: ABl) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listings on the Mexico
(MEXBOL: ANB) and South Africa (JSE: ANH) stock exchanges and with American Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: BUD). Our Dream is to bring people logether for a better world. Beer, the original social network, has been bringing people together
for thousands of years. We are committed to building great brands that stand the test of time and to brewing the best beers using the finest
natural ingredients. Our diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella Artois®; multi-
country brands Beck's®, Hoegaarden®, Leffe® and Michelob Ultra®; and local champions such as Aguila®, Antarctica®, Bud Light®,
Brahma®, Cass®, Castie®, Castle Lite®, Cristal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Modelo Especial®, Quilmes®, Victoria®, Sedrin® and Skol®. Our
brewing heritage dates back more than 600 years, spanning continents and generations. From our European roots at the Den Hoorn brewery
in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneering spirit of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St. Louis, US. To the creation of the Castle Brewery in South
Africa during the Johannesburg gold rush. To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a balanced exposure to
developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 170 000 employees based in nearly 50 countries
worldwide. For 2019, our reported revenue was 52.3 billion US dollar {(excluding joint ventures and associates).

The following management report should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements.
In the rest of this document we refer to Anheuser-Busch InBev as “AB InBev”, “the company”, ‘we", “us” or “our”.

Recent events

On 19 July 2019, we announced the agreement lo divest Cariton & United Breweries ("CUB” or "Australian operations”}, our Australian
subsidiary, to Asahi Group Holdings, Ltd. ("Asahi") for a transaction vaiue of 16 billion AUD on a cash free/debt free basis. As part of this
transaction, we will grant Asahi rights to commercialize the portfolic of AB InBev’s global and intemational brands in Australia. The results of
the Australian operations will be presented as part of "Results from discontinued operations” until the completion of the disposal.

On 30 September 2019, we successfully completed the listing of a minority stake of our Asia Pacific subsidiary, Budweiser Brewing Company
APAC Limited (Budweiser APAC), on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for 5 750m US dollar (including the over-allotment option). By doing
s0, we created a superior regional champion in the consumer goods space, positioned to expand across the fastest growing markets in the
Asia Pacific region with best-in-class talent and an unmatched portfolio of local, international and global brands. We also believe a local listing
of Budweiser APAC provides an attractive platform for potential M&A in the region. Following the full exercise of the over-allotment option on
3 Cctober 2019, we control 87.22% of the issued share capital of Budweiser APAC. We used the net IPO proceeds to redeem the outstanding
principal amount of certain notes.

Selected financial figures

To facilitate the understanding of our underlying performance, the comments in this management report, unless otherwise indicated, are based
on organic and normalized numbers. “Organic” means the financials are analyzed eliminating the impact of changes in currencies on
translation of foreign operations, and scopes. Scopes represent the impact of acquisitions and divestitures, the start-up or termination ot
activities or the transfer of activities between segments, curtaiment gains and losses and year-over-year changes in accounting estimates
and other assumptions that management does not consider part of the underlying performance of the business.

We have restated our 2018 results consigering (i} the new company organizational structure effective 1 January 2019, (ii) the adoption of new
IFRS rules on lease accounting {IFRS 16 Leases) under the full retrospective approach on 1 January 2019 and (iii) the classification of our
Australian business as discontinued operations, as detailed below:

* Effective 1 January 2019, we reorganized our regional reporting structure. Our results are now reported under the following five regions:
North America, Middle Americas, South America, EMEA and Asia Pacific. We continue to separately report the results of Global Export
and Holding Companies, which includes our global headquarters and the export businesses which have not been aliocated to the
regions. The key changes in the company’s structure are as follows: (i) the new Middle Americas region combined the former Latin
America West region with the Dominican Republic, Panama, Costa Rica, Guatemala and the Caribbean, which were previously reported
in Latin America Notth region and (i) the new South America region combined the former Latin America South region with Brazit, which
was previocusly reported in Latin America North region. Our five geographic regions plus our Global Export and Holding Companies
comprise our six segments for all financial reporting purposes.

® Effective 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 Leases replaced the previous lease accounting requirements and introduced significant changes to
lessee accounting. It requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at lease commencement date, together with
a different recognition of lease costs. We have chosen the full retrospective application of IFRS 16 and, consequently, we have restated
the financial information for 2018.

* Effactive 30 September 2019, folfowing the announcement on 19 July 2019 of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, we classified the
assets and liabilities associated with the Australian operations as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. In addition, since the results of the Australian
operations represent a separate major line of business, these are now accounted for as disconlinued operations as required by IFRS 5
and presented in a separate line in the consolidated income statement (“profit from discontinued operations”). Consequently, the 2018
consolidated results have been restated as if the classification had been applied as of 1 January 2018 to exciude the results of the
Australian operations.

Accordingly, the profit, cash flow and balance sheet are presended as reported in 2018, adjusted to reflect (i} the new company organizational
structure, (i) the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 under the full retrospective application and (jii) the classification of Carlton & United Breweries
as discontinued operations. This presentation is referred to as “2018 restated”. As a result, all the presentations of our underlying performance
and organic growth figures do not reflect the results of the Australian operations.

The tables in this management report provide the segment information per region for the period ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in the
format up to Normalized EBIT level that is used by management to monitor performance.

Whenever used in this report, the term “normalized” refers to performance measures (EBITDA, EBIT, Profit, EPS, effective tax rate) before
non-recurring items and discontinued operations. Non-recurring items are either income or expenses which do not occur regularly as part of
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the normal activities of the company. They are presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying
sustainable performance of the company due to their size or nature. Normalized measures are additional measures used by management
and should not replace the measures determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the company's performance, but rather should
be used in conjunction with the most directly comparable IFRS measures.

The tables below set out the components of our cperating income and operating expenses, as well as the key cash flow figures.

2018

Miliion US doliar 2019 %o restated %
Revenue' 52 329 100% 53 041 100%
Cost of sales (20 362) 39% {19 933) 38%
Gross profit 31 967 61% 33108 62%
SG&A (16 421) 31% (16 807} 32%
Other operating income/(expenses) 875 2% 805 2%
Normalized profit from operations (Normalized EBIT) 16 421 31% 17 107 32%
Non-recurring items (323) 1% (692) 1%
Profit from operations {(EBIT) 16 098 3% 16 414 3%
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 4 657 9% 4 624 9%
Normalized EBITDA 21078 40% 21732 41%
EBITDA 20 755 40% 21038 40%
Normalized profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 8 086 15% 6 248 13%
Profit from continuing operations attributable o
to equity heolders of AB InBev 8748 17% 3838 7%
Profit from discontinued operations attributable o o
to equity holders of AB InBev 424 1% 531 1%
Profit attributable to equity hotders of AB InBev 9171 18% 4 370 8%

2018
Million US doliar 2019 restated
Operating activities
Profit from continuing operations 9990 5157
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit 11 029 16 070
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions 21019 21227
Change in working capital (5) 477
Pension contributions and use of provisions {715) (487)
Interest and taxes (paid Yreceived {7 063) (7177)
Dividends received 160 141
Cash flow from operating activities 13 396 14 181
Investing activities
Net capex (4 854) (4 568)
Acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of (252} 173
Proceeds from the sale/{(acquisition) of investment in short-term debt securities (9) 1296
Net of tax proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures - (430)
Qther 42 (328)
Gash flow from investing activities (5073) (3 857)
Financing activities
Dividends paid (5015) {7 761)
Net (payments on)/proceeds from borrowings (8 008) (4 707)
Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC 5575 -
Payment of lease liabilities (441) (423)
Other (including purchase of non-controlling interests) (623) (1436)
Cash flow from financing activities (8 512) (14 327)
Net increasel/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on continuing operations {189) {4 003)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on discontinued operations 539 755

! Turnover less excise taxes. In many jurisdictions, excise taxes make up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to the company’s customers
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Financial performance

The tables in this management report provide the segment information per regicn for the period ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in the
format down to Normalized EBIT level that is used by management to monitor perfformance. To facilitate the understanding of our underlying
performance, we are presenting in this management report the 2018 restated consolidated volumes and resufts up to Normalized EBIT. As
such, these financials are included in the organic growth calcufation. The profit, cash flow and balance sheet are presented as reported in
2018, adjusted to reflect (i} the new company organizational structure effective 1 January 2019, (ii) the adoption of new IFRS rules on lease
accounting (IFRS 16 Leases) under the full retrospective approach on 1 January 2019 and (i) the classification of our Australian business as
discontinued operations.

We are presenting our results under five regions: North America, Middle Americas, South America, EMEA and Asia Pacific.

The tables below provide a summary of our performance for the period ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 (in million US dollar, except
volumes in thousand hectoliters} and the related comments are based on organic numbers.

2018 Currency Organic Organic
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE restated p translation growth growth %
Volumes 559 819 (4 601} - 6208 561 427 1.1%
Revenue 53 041 (316) {2 664} 2268 52 329 4.3%
Cost of sales (19 933) 14 1030 (1474) (20 362) (7.4)%
Gross profit 33 108 {302) (1 634) 794 31967 2.4%
SG8A {16 807) 157 829 (599) (16 421} (3.6)%
Other operating income/{expenses) 805 -] (37) 100 875 12.2%
Normalized EBIT 17 107 (137) (843) 295 16 421 1.7%
Normalized EBITDA 21 732 (109) (1123) 578 21078 2.7%
Normalized EBITDA margin 41.0% 40.3% (65) bps

In 2019, we delivered normalized EBITDA growth of 2.7%, while our normalized EBITDA margin decreased 65 bps, reaching 40.3%
Consolidated volumes grew 1.1%, with own beer volumes growing 0.8% and non-beer volumes increasing 4.8%

Consolidated revenue grew 4.3% to 52 328m US dollar, with revenue per hectoliter increasing 3.1%. Combined revenues of our three global
brands, Budweiser, Stella Artois and Corona grew 5.2% and 8.0% outside of their respective home markets.

Consolidated Cost of Sales (CoB) increased 7.4%, of 5.9% on a per hectoliter basis.

VOLUMES

The table below summarizes the volume evolution per region and the related comments are based on organic numbers. Volumes include not
only brands that we own or license, but also third-party brands that we brew as a subcontractor and third-party products that we seli through
our distribution network, particularly in Europe. Volumes sold by the Global Export business, which includes our globa! headquarters and the
export businesses which have not been allocated to our regions, are shown separately.

2018 Organic Organic
Thousand hectoliters restated Scope growth 2019 growth %
North America 110 726 50 (2643) 108 133 (2.4)%
Middle Americas 128 803 (153) 4 888 133 538 38%
South America 135618 188 3858 139 664 2.8%
EMEA 87 135 {4 071) 2825 85 888 3.4%
Asia Pacific 96 116 (134) (2814) 93 168 (2.9%
Global Export and Holding Companies 1422 481 95 1038 10.1%
AB InBev Worldwide 559 819 (4 601} 6 209 561 427 1.1%

North America total volumes decreased 2.4%. In the United States, we continued to focus on our commercial strategy, putting consumers
first and rebalancing our portfalic through innovation and premiumization. We estimate that the United States industry beer sales-to-retailers
declined by 1.4% in 2019. Qur own sales-to-retailers were down by 2.4% in 2019, while our sales-to-wholesalers were down by 2.3%. Our
total market share declined an estimated 50 bps in 2019, predominantly driven by mix due to the growth of hard seltzer within the flavored
malt beverage category, in which we currently under-index. The hard seltzer segment is drawing new consumers to the malt beverage category
and we are increasing investment behind our brands to accelerate our growth in the segment. Bon Viv and Natural Light Seltzer are growing
at a strong rate. We are confident that we can leverage our strong portfolio, coupled with our best-in-class brewing capabilities and distribution
network, to accelerate our momentum in this fast-growing segment. In 2018, our market share excluding the flavored mait beverage category
declined by 10 bps, an improvement in trend of 20 bps from 2018. Our above core portfolic gained 90 bps of total share in 2019, due to strong
performances from Michelob Ultra, Michelob Ultra Pure Gold, our craft portfolio and our innovation pipeline. Micheiob Ulira continues to grow
by double-digits and is now the second largest brand in the country by retail sales, according to 'R1. Michelob Ultra Pure Gold grew by triple-
digits in 2018, while our craft portfolic grew by more than 20%, gaining share within the craft segment according to IRI. We estimate our
innovations contributed approximately half of the total innovation volume in the industry once again this year, led by Naturdays, Michelob Ultra
Infusions and Natural Light Seltzer, Our mainstream brands lost an estimated 140 bps of market share in 2019, as consumers continue to
trade-up to higher price tiers. Within the mainstream segment, our market share declined by 15 bps in 2019, which compares to a 35 bps
decline in 2018, a trend improvement of 20 bps. Share declines of Bud Light and Budweiser were pattially offset by share gains of our value
portfolio, led by the Natural Light family (excluding Natural Light Seltzer, which is not included in the mainstream segment).
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In Canada, our volumes declined primarily due to a weak beer industry. Our High End Company continues to gain share of the premium
segment, led by share gains from our premium import brands, including Corona and Hoegaarden, and strong volume growth from our craft
portfolio. In the core segment, Bud Light grew share for the 24th consecutive year in 2018, and in the core plus segment, Michelob Ultra
continued to be the fastest growing beer brand in the country.

Middle Americas total volumes increased 3.8%. In Mexico, we grew volumes by mid-single digit, ahead of the industry, resulting in continued
market share gains. We delivered growth across our brand portfclio, with a particularly strong performance in the above core segment. We
remain focused on developing our portfolic in line with the category expansion framework to clearly differentiate our brands. Our core brands
conlinue to grow supported by a strong innovation pipeline, consistent brand messaging and entrance intc new occasions. Qur premium
portfolio also contributed meaningfully to top-line growth, with double-digit volume growth of the Modelo family, Michelob Ultra, Stella Artois
and our local craft brand, Cucapa. In early 2018, we signed a contract with OXXO, the largest c-stere chain in Mexico, to begin selling our
portfclio of beers in their 17 000+ stores in order to reach more consumers in more occasions. We expanded in the regions of Guadalajara
and Mexico City in 2019, with our partfolio quickly reaching fair share in the 4 000+ stores in which we are now present. While the majority of
our growth was driven by existing channels, our entrance into OXX0 ailso made a meaningful contribution.

In Colombia, we had a very strong year with a healthy balance between volume and revenue per hectoliter growth, even in the context of a
more competitive environment. In 2019, our total volumes grew by mid-single digits, with consistent growth in both our beer and non-beer
pertfolios, leading to our highest annual volume growth in Colombia since the SAB combination. We continue to successfully expand the
premium segment, led by our global brand portfolio, which grew by more than 50% in 2019. At the other end of the price spectrum, we are
bringing new consumers into the category through smart affordability initiatives, such as the expansion of our 1-liter retumable glass baottle
sharing pack. Our local core portfolio delivered consistently strong results throughout the year, led by Aguita, which grew by double-digits and
ended the year with a powerful campaign focused on respansible drinking. Qur non-beer portfolio delivered mid-single digit velume growth for
2019, led by the expansion of Malta Leona and the launch of our new purpase-driven water brand, Zalva, from which the profits will contribute
to the recovery of Colombian wetlands.

In Peru, our volumes declined by low single digits. in light of the challenging consumer environment, we launched a new brand called Golden,
as part of our affordability strategy. Gelden is brewed using ingredients with strong cultural relevance to strengthen our ties to local farming
and is off to a very strong start. In Ecuador, our volumes declined by low single digits. While our giobat brands continued to perform well with
double-digit volume growth, a softer consumer environment impacted the beer category throughout the year. In response, we are enhancing
our core offerings across a variety of price points to ensure consumers have accessible options within the beer category.

South America total volumes increased 2.8%. In Brazil, our total volumes grew by 5.0%. Our beer volumes grew by 3.0% while our non-beer
volumes grew by 11.2%. According to Nielsen, the beer industry grew by 2.4% and the non-beer industry grew by 2.7%. We continue to utilize
a portfolio approach te win in the premium category as we can reach more consumers on more occasions through our complementary brand
portfolic. in 2019, our premium portfolio grew by double-digits, led by our global brands and local premium offerings, such as Original and our
craft brands. Qur global brand portfolic grew by double-digits off a meaningful base, with strong performances from all three brands. Beck's,
our prermium German pure malt brand, was also recently added to our portfolic. it is off to a very strong start in the regions where it has been
launched. In the core plus segment, Bohemia is accelerating its momentum, delivering four consecutive quarters of triple-digit growth. Qur
Skol Puro Malte innovation, which was rolled out nationally in the second quarter of 2019, continues to grow at rapid pace, enabling the Skol
family volumes to stabilize in the full year. Our smart affordability strategy continues to gain traction, with cur regional brands Nossa, Magnifica
and Legitima performing very well. Each has delivered meaningful share gains in the states in which it was lauched, and Magnifica is now the
leading brand in the value segment in the state of Maranhao. These brands, offered at an accessible price point and brewed with lccal crops,
deliver incremental volume and profitability by increasing our presence in relevant states.

in Argentina, volumes declined by mid-single digits in 2019, as we faced consumption contraction resulting from ongoing challenging
macroeconomic conditions. Qur premium brands performed well and gained share within the segment, led by our global brands and our local
premium brand, Patagonia. Our local champion in the core plus segment, Andes Origen, grew by double-digits. Our smart affordability
initiatives continue to gain traction, led by packaging innovations such as the 340ml returnable glass bottle.

EMEA total volumes increased 3.4%. Our business in South Africa delivered a mid-single digit volume growth. We continue to focus on
growing the beer category and estimate we gained more than 200 bps of share of total alcohol. The premium segment, where we under-index,
continues to grow faster than the total industry. We achieved our highest ever market share in this segment in 2019 as our premium brands
continue to outperform, led by Corona. Qur flavored mait beverages also performed very well this year, growing by double-digits, led by Brutal
Fruit and Flying Fish. We have enhanced our smart affordability strategy in South Africa to ensure our portfolio includes accessible offerings
for more consumers in light of the challenging macroeconomic environment.

In Europe, our volumes grew in 2019, and we estimate we gained market share on a full year basis in all of our markets, with particularly
strong gains in France and the Netherlands after successful Budweiser launches. Budweiser is now our fastest growing brand in Europe. The
UK continues to deliver volume-ied revenue growth fueled by the continued growth of our global brands, particularly the double-digit growth
of Corona. In addition, cur volumes in Europe were impacted by the formation of AB InBev Efes on 30 March 2018. This impact is presented
as a scope change.

In Africa excluding South Africa, volumes were iower in Tanzania and Mozambigue in 2019. In Zambia and Uganda, we delivered strong
volume growth. In Nigeria, we grew volumes by double-digits in 2019 as we continued to gain market share

Asia Pacific total volumes decreased 2.9%. In China, our volume declined by 3.0% in 2019. During 2019, we estimate we gained market
share in every channel. However, our overall market share declined by approximately 50 bps, resulting from channel mix shift given our
position in the nightlife channel. Our super premium brands continued to grow by strong double-digits in 2019, led by Corona, Blue Girl and
Hoegaarden. We estimate that Corona is the number one brand in the super premium segment. Blue Girl, which joined our portfolic in May
2019, is one of the fastest growing super premium brands with a meaningful base. Hoegaarden grew volumes significantly in 2019, as the
leading and fastest growing wheat beer in China. We also continue to lead the beer category in the e-commerce channel, which grew by
strong double-digits in 2019. During the Double-11 e-commerce campaign in November 2019, the largest e-commerce sales event in China,
Budweiser, was the #1 brand and Corona, Hoegaarden and Harbin were alsc among the top five beer brands by retail sales value on both
the Tmall and .JD platforms. Budweiser declined by mid-single digits in 2019, driven by the softness in the nightlife channel in the second half
of the year, as Budweiser is well-established as the leading brand of the nightlife occasion. Nevertheless, Budweiser remains the number one
brand in the premium segment and we have made additional commercial investments to accelerate the brand’s expansion into other channels.

QOur business in South Korea had a challenging year with declines in volume. This performance was primarily the result of an overall industry
decline in light of weaker consumer sentiment. In late October 2019, we rolled back our price increase previously implemented in April 2019
to revitalize the beer industry during the economic downturn. Our premium portfolio continued to grow throughout the year, led by Stella Artois
and Budweiser.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES BY REGION

The tables below provide a summary of the performance of each region, for the period ended 31 December 2019 (in million US dollar, except
velumes in thousand hectoliters) and the related comments are based on organic numbers.

2018 Currency Organic Organic
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE restated translation growth growth %
Volumes 559819 (4 601} - 6209 561427 1.1%
Revenue 53 o41 (316} (2 664) 2 268 52 329 4.3%
Cost of sales {19 933) 14 1030 (1474) (20 362) (7.4%
Gross profit 33 108 {302) {1 634) 794 31 967 2.4%
SG&A (16 807) 157 829 (599) (16 421) (3.6Y%
Other operating income/{expenses) 805 8 (37) 100 875 12.2%
Normalized EBIT 17 107 (137) (843) 295 16 421 1.7%
Normalized EBITDA 21732 {109) {1123) 578 21078 2.7%
Normalized EBITDA margin 41.0% 40.3% (65) bps

2018 Currency Organic Organic
NORTH AMERICA restated transiation growth growth %
Volumes 110 726 50 - (2 643) 108 133 (2.4)%
Revenue 15 504 B8 {49) 25 15 488 0.2%
Cost of sales (5 765) 13) 16 (27) (5 789) {0.5)%
Gross profit 9738 (5) (32) {2) 9 698 0.0%
SG&A (4 413) (9) 19 Y (4 372) 0.7%
Other operating income/{expenses) 40 - - (15) 26 (36.3)%
Normalized EBIT 5 365 {14) (13} 14 5352 0.3%
Normalized EBITDA 6 199 (12} {15) 13 6 185 0.2%
Normalized EBITDA margin 40.0% 39.9% 2 bps

2018 Currency Organic Organic
MIDDLE AMERICAS restated o translation growth growth %
Volumes 128 803 (153) - 4 588 133538 3.8%
Revenue 11 614 (146} {381) B24 11912 7.2%
Cost of sales (3 336) (39) 108 (283) (3 549) (8.4)%
Gross profit 8 278 (t84) (271) 541 8 363 6.7%
3G&A {3176) 56 96 (24} {3 049) (0.8)%
Other operating income/{expenses) 88 ] (3) 30 121 31.9%
Normalized EBIT 5189 (122) {179} 547 5435 10.7%
Normalized EBITDA 6033 {(127) {207} 657 % 356 11.1%
Normalized EBITDA margin 51.9% 53.4% 188 bps

2018 Currency Organic Organic
SOUTH AMERICA restated Scope  translation growth 2019 growth %
Volumes 135618 188 - 3858 139 664 2.8%
Revenue 10 238 11 (1383) 924 9790 9.0%
Cost of sales (3842} 26 529 (722} (4 009) (18.9Y%
Gross profit 6 396 37 {855) 203 5781 3.2%
5G&A (2 976) 43 401 (259) (2791) (8.9)%
Other operating income/{expenses) 267 (6) (13) (47) 201 (18.1)%
Normalized EBIT 3688 73 (467) (104) 3199 (2.8)%
Normaiized EBITDA 4 696 82 (614) {18} 4 145 (0.4)%
Normalized EBITDA margin 45.9% 42.3% (403) bps
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2018 Currency Organic Organic

restated E translation growth growth %

Volumes 87 135 (4 071) - 2825 85 888 3.4%
Revenue 8 368 (209) (528} 280 7911 3.4%
Cost of sales (3473) 100 224 (357} {3 506) {10.6)%
Gross profit 4894 (110) {304} (76) 4 404 (1.6)%
SG&A (2 878) 57 183 (224} (2 862) (8.0)%
Other operating income/(expenses) 232 14 (14) 32 264 13.0%
Normalized EBIT 2248 (39) (135) (268} 1807 {(12.1)%
Normalized EBITDA 3184 (36) {196} (171 2781 (5.4Y%
Normalized EBITDA margin 38.1% 35.2% (332) bps
2018 Currency Organic Organic

ASIA PACIFIC restiated translation growth growth %
Volumes 96 116 (134) - (2 814) 83 168 (2.9)%
Revenue 6735 (8) (314} 130 6 544 1.9%
Cost of sales {3 098) 3 137 40 {2919) 1.3%
Gross profit 3 637 (5) {(176) 170 3625 4. 7%
SG&A {2 347) 17 108 6 {2218) 0.2%
Other operating income/{expenses} 154 - (12} 88 230 57.1%
Normalized EBIT 1444 12 (80} 263 1639 18.0%
Normalized EBITDA 2178 12 (110) 208 2 287 9.5%
Normalized EBITDA margin 32.3% 35.0% 241 bps
GLOBAL EXPORT 2018 Currency Organic Organic
AND HOLDING COMPANIES restated translation growth growth %
Volumes 1422 (481) - 95 1036 10.1%
Revenue 582 28 {8) B4 685 14.2%
Cost of sales (418) (62) 15 (125) (590) (27.1)%
Gross profit 164 {34) 6 (41) 95 (31.5)%
SG8A (10186) (6) 21 (129) (1131) {(12.7)%
Other operating income/{expenses) 25 (6) 4 12 35 48.2%
Normalized EBIT (827) (46) 30 (158) {1001) (18.3)%
Normalized EBITDA (558} {26} 20 (111) (676) (19.1)%

REVENUE

Our consolidated revenue grew by 4.3% to 52 328m US dollar with revenue per hectoliter growth of 3.1% driven by global premiumization
and revenue management initiatives, although revenue per hectoliter growth decelerated as a result of advances in our smart affordability
strategy.

COST OF SALES

Our cost of Sales (CoS) increased by 7.4% or 5.9% on a per hectoliter basis driven by significant commodity and transactional currency
headwinds.

OPERATING EXPENSES
Our total operating expenses increased 3.1% in 2019:

® Selling, General & Administrative Expenses {SG&A) increased by 3.6% in 2019 in line with our revenue growth but slightly below
inflation.

®  Other operating income increased 12.2% in 2019 driven by higher gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION (NORMALIZED EBITDA)

Our normalized EBITDA increased 2.7% organically to 21 078m US dollar, with an EBITDA margin of 40.3%, and an organic decrease of 65
bps.

®* North America EBITDA increased 0.2% to 6 185m US doallar, with a margin enhancement of 2 bps to 39.8% driven by positive brand
mix and ongoing cost efficiencies.

®  Middle Americas EBITDA increased 11.1% to 6 356m US dollar, with a margin enhancement of 188 bps to 53.4% driven by the strong
top-line performance, continued cost discipline and additional capacity in Mexico, which drove efficiencies across our entire supply
chain.
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&  South America EBITDA decreased 0.4% to 4 145m US dollar, with a margin contraction of 403 bps to 42.3%, mainly driven by higher
CoS resulting from commodity prices and the devaluation of transactional currency, and by the increased weight of one-way bottles and
aluminum cans in cur package mix, as we aim to meet consumer needs across increasingly diversified and more premium occasions.

* EMEA EBITDA decreased 5.4% to 2 781m US dodiar, with a margin contraction of 332 bps to 35.2%, mainly driven by top-line growth
more than offset by higher CoS per hectoliter, significant increases in marketing investments behind our growing premium brand portfolio
and on-trade programs in South Africa and investments behind new brand launches and the impact of route to market changes across
Europe.

#® Asia Pacific EBITDA increased 9.5% to 2 287m US dollar, with a margin expansion of 241 bps to 35.0%, mainly driven by strong brand
mix, ongoing cost discipline and localization initiatives that helped to offset the declines in the nightlife channel, one of our most profitable
channels in China.

¢ Global Export and Holding Companies EBITDA of (676)m WS dollar in the period ended 31 December 2019 {(2018: (558)m US dollar).

Differences in normalized EBITDA margins by region are due to a number of factors such as different routes to market, share of returnable
packaging in the region’s sales and premium preduct mix.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NORMALIZED EBITDA AND PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are measures utilized by us to demonstrate the company’s underlying performance.

Normalized EBITDA is calculated excluding profit from discontinued operations and the following effects from profit from continuing operations
attributable to our equity holders: (i) Non-controlling interest, (i) Income tax expense, (i) Share of results of associates, (iv) Net finance cost,
(v) Non-recurring net finance cost, (vi} Non-recurring items above EBIT (including non-recurring impairment} and (vii) Depreciation,
amortization and impairment.

Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are not accounting measures under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an alternative to Profit
from continuing operations attributable to equity holders as a measure of operational performance or as an alternative to cash flow as a
measure of liquidity. Normalized EBITDA and EBIT do not have a standard calculation method and our definition of normalized EBITDA and
EBIT may not be comparable to that of other companies.

Million US dollar Notes 2019 2018 restated
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 9171 4 370
Non-controlling interest 1243 1318
Profit of the period 10 414 5688
Profit from discontinued operations 22 (424} (531}
Profit from continuing operations 9 990 5157
Income tax expense 12 2786 2 585
Share of result of associates 16 {152) (153)
Non-recurring net finance cost/{(income) 11 {882) 1982
Net finance cost 11 4 355 6 844
Non-recurring items above EBIT (including non-recurring impairment) 8 323 682
Normalized EBIT 16 421 17 107
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (excluding non-recurring impairment} 10 4 657 4 624
Normalized EBITDA 21078 21732

Non-recurring items are either income or expenses which de not occur regularly as part of the normal activities of the company. They are
presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying sustainable performance of the company due to their
size or nature. Details on the nature of the non-recurring items are disclosed in Note 8 Non-recurring items.

IMPACT OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency exchange rates have a significant impact on our financial statements. The following table sets forth the percentage of our
revenue realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

2019 2018 restated

US dollar 30.2% 26.7%
Brazilian real 14.1% 14.0%
Chinese yuan 9.1% 8.9%
Mexican peso 9.0% 8.3%
Euro 6.1% 6.2%
Cotombian peso 4.2% 4.4%
South African rand 4.1% 4.2%
Canadian dollar 3.4% 3.5%
Peruvian peso 3.1% 3.0%
South Korean won 2.5% 3.0%
Argentinean peso’ 2.3% 2.7%
Pound sterling 2.3% 22%
Dominican peso 1.9% 1.7%
Other T.7% 8.2%

! Hyperinftation acesunting was adopted in 20718 to report the company's Argentinian cperations,
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The following table sets forth the percentage of our normalized EBITDA realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018:

2019 2018 restated

US dollar 30.3% 27.9%
Brazitian real 14 5% 16.0%
Mexican peso 11.5% 10.0%
Chinese yuan 8.0% 6.5%
Euro 6.8% 8.5%
Colombian peso 5.3% 5.9%
Peruvian peso 4.6% 4.3%
South African rand 3.6% 4.3%
Argentinean peso' 2.6% 3.2%
Canadian dollar 2.6% 2.7%
Dominican peso 2.5% 1.9%
South Korean won 2.1% 2.6%
Pound sterling 0.3% 0.4%
Other 5.3% 5.8%

In 2018, the fluctuation of the foreign currency rates had a negative translation impact, including hyperinflation accounting impact, of 2 664m
US deliar on our revenue (2018: negative impact of 1 823m US dollar), of 1 123m US dollar on our normalized EBITDA (2018 negative impact
of 955m US dollar) and of 843m US dollar on our normalized EBIT (2018: negative impact of 823m US dollar).

Qur profit from continuing operations (after tax) has been negatively affected by the fluctuation of foreign currencies, including hyperinflation
accounting impact, for 582m US dollar (2018: negative impact of 684m US dollar), while the negalive translation impact, including
hyperinflation accounting impact, on our EPS (profit attributable to our equity holders) was 527m US dollar or 0.27 US dollar per share (2018:
negative impact of 505m US dollar or 0.26 US dollar per share).

The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on our net debt amounted to 444m US dollar (decrease of net debt) in 2018, as compared
to an impact of 932m US dollar {decrease of net debt) in 2018. The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on the equity attributable
to our equity holders amounted to 1 143m US dollar {increase of equity), as compared to an impact of 7 374m US dollar (decrease of equity)
in 2018.

PROFIT

Normalized profit attributable to our eguity holders was 8 086m US dollar (normalized EPS 4.08 US dollar) in 2019, compared to 6 248m US
doitar (normalized EPS 3.16 US dollar) in 2018 (see Note 23 Changes in equity and eamnings per share to the consolidated financial statements
for more details). Profit attributable to our equity holders for 2019 was 9 171m US dollar, compared to 4 370m US dollar for 2018 and includes
the following impacts:

®  Net finance costs (excluding non-recurring net finance items): 4 355m US dollar in 2019 compared to 6 844m US dollar in 2018. This
decrease was primarily due to mark-to-market adjustment linked to the hedging of our share-based payment programs amounted to a
gain of 898m USD dollar in 2019, compared to a loss of 1 774m USD dollar in 2018.

& Non-recurring net finance income: 882m US dollar income in 2019 compared to (1 982)m LS dellar cost in 2018. Non-recurring net
finance income in 2019 include mark-to-market gains of 878m US dollar {2018: {1 722}m US dollar loss) on derivative instruments
entered into to hedge the shares issued in relation to the combinations with Grupo Modelo and SAB, and 4m US dollar gain (2018:
{260)m US dollar 1oss) resulting from the early termination of certain bonds, income related to the reduction of deferred considerations
on acquisitions and foreign exchange translation gains on intragroup loans that were historically reported in equity and were recycled
to profit and loss account upen the reimbursement of these loans. This impact was partially offset by non-recurring finance cost in
relation to the write-off on our investment in Delta Corporation Ltd following the entry of Zimbabwe in a hyperinflation economy and
interest paid to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax (ICMS) Amnesty Program in Brazil in accordance
with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization.

*  Income tax expense: 2 786m US dollar in 2019 with an effective tax rate of 22.1% compared to 2 585m US dollar in 2018 with an
effective tax rate of 34.1%. The decrease in the effective tax rate is mainly due to non-taxable gains from derivatives related to hedging
of share-based payment programs and the hedging of the shares issued in a transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelo
and SAB. The normalized effective tax rate was 23.0% in 2019 compared to 27.5% in 2018. The nommalized effective tax rate excluding
mark-to-market gains or losses linked to the hedging of our share-based payment programs was 24.9% in 2018 compared to 23.4% in
2018.

®  Profit attributable to non-controlling interest. 1 243m US dollar in 2019 compared to 1 318m US dollar in 2018.

*  Profit from discontinued operations: 424m US dollar in 2019 compared to 531m US dollar in 2018 relate to the results of our Australian
business classified as discontinued operations following the announced disposal to Asahi.
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Liquidity position and capital resources

CASH FLOWS
Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Cash flow from operating activities 13 396 14 181
Cash flow from investing activities (5073) (3 857)
Cash flow from financing activilies (8 512) {14 327)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on continuing operations (189) (4 003)

Cash flow from operating activities

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Profit from continuing operations 9 980 5157
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit 11 029 16 070
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions 21019 21227
Change in working capital (5) 477
Pension contributions and use of provisions (715) (487)
Interest and taxes (paidYreceived (7 063} (717N
Dividends recefved 160 141
Cash flow from operating activities on continuing operations 13 396 14 181

Our cash flow from operating activities on continuing operations reached 13 396m US dollar in 2019 compared to 14 181m US dollar in 2018.
This decrease mainly results from lower changes in working capital and higher use of provisions in 2019 compared to 2018. The increased
use of provisions was mainly driven by 226m US dollar payment in 2019 in relation to the European Commission investigation announced in
2018 — see also Note 27 Provisions.

Cash fiow from investing activities

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Net capex (4 854} (4 568)
Acquisition and sate of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of (252) 173
Proceeds from the sale/(acquisition) of investment in short-term debt securities {9) 1296
Net of tax praceeds from SAB transaclion-related divestitures - {430}
Other 42 (328)
Cash flow from investing activities on continuing operations {5073) (3857)

Our cash flow used in investing activities from continuing operations was 5 073m US dollar in 2019 as compared to a cash outflow of 3 857m
US dollar in 2018. The increase in the cash outflow from investing activities was mainly due to lower proceeds from the sale of short-term debt
securnities. The 2018 cash flow used in investing activities was negatively impacted by the payments related to the recovery of the Budweiser
distribution rights in Argentina as well as payments on SAB-related divestitures which were not repeated in 2019.

Qur net capital expenditures amounted to 4 854m US dollar in 2019 and 4 568m US dollar in 2018. Out of the total 2019 capital expenditures
approximately 42% was used to improve the company’s production facilities while 43% was used for logistics and commercial investments
and 15% was used for improving administrative capabilities and for the purchase of hardware and software.

Cash flow from financing activities

Million US dellar 2019 2018 restated

Dividends paid (5 015) (7 761)
Net (payments on)/proceeds from borrowings (8 008) 4 707)
Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC 5575 -
Payment of lease liabilities (441) (423)
Other {inciuding purchase of non-controliing interests) {623} (1 436)
Cash flow from financing activities on continuing operations (8 512) {14 327)

Qur cash outflow from financing activities on continuing operations ameunted to 8 512m US dollar in 2019, as compared to a cash outflow of
14 327m US dollar in 2018. The net proceeds of 5 575m US dollar from the listing of a minority stake of our Asia Pacific business {Budweiser
APAC) were used 1o repay debt.

As of 31 December 2019, we had total liquidity of 16 260m US dollar, which consisted of 9 billion US doltar available under committed long-
term credit facilities and 7 260m US dollar of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments in debt securities less bank overdrafts.
Although we may borrow such amounts to meet our liquidity needs, we principally rely on cash flows from operating activities to fund the
company’s continuing operation.

Net increase in our cash flow from discontinued operations amounted to 539m US doliar in 2019 compared to 755m US dollar in 2018
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND EQUITY

Our net debt was restated to reflect the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 and amounted to 95.5 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019 as
compared to 104.2 billion US dallar as of 31 December 2018. When adjusted for the proceeds expected to be received from the divestment
of the Australian operations, cur net debt would be 84.6 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019.

Net debt is defined as non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts minus debt securities and cash.
Net debt is a financial performance indicator that is used by our management fo highlight changes in the company’s overall liquidity position.
We believe that net debt is meaningful for investors as it is one of the primary measures our management uses when evaluating our progress
towards deleveraging.

Aside from operating results net of capital expenditures, the net debt is impacted mainly by the payment of interests and taxes (7.1 hillion US
dollar), the settiernent of derivatives (0.8 billicn US doilar increase of net debt), dividend payments toc AB InBev shareholders of AB InBev and
Ambev (5.0 billion US dollar) and the net proceeds of the IPO of our Asia Pacific subsidiary of AB InBev (5.6 hillion US dollar}.

Net debt to normalized EBITDA decreased from 4.6x for the 12-month period ending 371 December 2018 {on a Restated base) to 4.0x for the
12-moenth period ending 31 December 2019 when acceunting for the proceeds expected to be received from the divestment of the Australian
operations, while excluding the last 12-month EBITDA from the Australian operations.

Consolidated equity attributable to our equity helders as at 31 December 2019 was 75 722m US doilar, compared to 64 485m US dcllar as at
31 December 2018. The combined effect of the strengthening of mainly the closing rates of Mexican pesos, South African rand, Canadian
dollar and weakening of Euro and Brazilian real resulted in a foreign exchange translation adjustment of 1 143m US dollar (increase of equity).

Further details on interest-bearing loans and borrowings, repayment schedules and liquidity risk, are disclosed in Note 24 Inferest-bearing
loans and borrowings and Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

As of 31 December 2019, the company’s credit rating from Standard & Poor's was A- for long-term obligations and A-2 for short-term
obligations, with a stable outlook, and the company’s credit rating from Moody's Investors Service was Baat for long-term obligaticns and P-
2 for short-term obligations, with a stable outlook.

Research and development

Given our focus on innovation, we place a high value on research and development. In 2019, we spent 291m US doflar in research and
development (2018: 276m US dollar). The spent focused on product innovations, market research, as well as process optimization and product
development.

Research and development in product innovation covers liquid, packaging and draft innovation. Product innovation consists of breakthrough
innovation, incremental innovation and renovation. The main goal for the innovation process is to provide consumers with better products and
experiences. This implies launching new liquid, new packaging and new draught products that deliver better performance both for the
consumer and in terms of top-line results, by increasing our competitiveness in the relevant markets. With consumers comparing products
and experiences offered across very different drink categories and the offering of beverages increasing, our research and development efforts
also require an understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of other beverage categories, spotting opportunities for beer and developing
consumer solutions (products) that better address consumer need and deliver better experience. This requires understanding consumer
emotions and expectations. Sensory experience, premiumization, convenience, sustainability and design are all central to our research and
development efforts.

Research and development in process optimization is primarily aimed at quality improvement, capacity increase (plant debottienecking and
addressing volume issues, while minimizing capital expenditure} and improving efficiency. Newly developed processes, materials and/or
equipment are documented in best practices and shared across business regions. Current projects range from malting to bottling of finished
products.

Knowledge management and leamning is also an integral part of research and development. We seek to continuously increase our knowledge
through collaborations with universities and other industries.

Our research and development team is briefed annually on the company's and the business regions' priorities and approves concepts which
are subsequently prioritized for development. The research & development teams invest in both short and long-term strategic projects for
future growth, with the launch time depending on complexity and prioritization. Launch time usually falls within the next calendar year.

The Global Innovation and Technology Center ("GITeC"), located in Leuven, accommodates the Packaging, Product, Process Development
teams and facilities such as Labs, Experimental Brewery and the European Central Lab, which also includes Sensory Analysis. In addition to
GITeC, we also have Product, Packaging and Process development teams located in each of our geographic regions focusing on the short-
temm needs of such regions.
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Risks and uncertainties

Under the explicit understanding that this is not an exhaustive list, AB InBev's major risk factors and uncertainties are listed below. There may
be additional risks which AB InBev is unaware of. There may also be risks AB InBev now believes to be immaterial, but which could turn out
to have a material adverse effect. Moreover, if and to the extent that any of the risks described below materialize, they may occur in
combination with other risks which would compound the adverse effect of such risks. The sequence in which the risk factors are presented
below is not indicative of their likelihood of occurrence or of the potential magnitude of their financial consequence.

AB InBev is exposed to the risk of a global recession or a recession in one or more of its key markets, and to ¢redit and capital market volatility
and an economic or financial crisis, or otherwise. These could result in reduced consumption or sales prices of AB InBev's products, which in
tum could result in lower revenue and reduced profit. AB InBev's financial condition and results of operations, as well as AB InBev's future
prospects, would likely be hindered by an economic downturn in any of its key markets. Consumption of beer and other alcohot and non-
alcohol beverages in many of the jurisdictions in which AB InBev operates is closely linked to general economic conditions and changes in
disposable income. A continuation or worsening of the levels of market disruption and volatility seen in the recent past could have an adverse
effect on AB InBev's ability to access capital, its business, results of operations and financial condition, and on the market price of its shares
and American Depositary Shares.

AB InBev's results of operations are affected by fluctuations in exchange rates. Any change in exchange rates between AB InBev's operating
companies’ functional currencies and the U.S. dollar will affect its consolidated income statement and balance sheet when the results of those
operating companies are translated into U.S. dollar for reporting purposes as translational exposures are not hedged. Also, there can be no
assurance that the policies in place to manage commaodity price and transactional foreign currency risks to protect AB InBev's exposure will
be able to successfully hedge against the effects of such foreign exchange exposure, especiafly over the long-term. Further, the use of financial
instruments to mitigate currency risk and any other efforts taken to better match the effective currencies of AB InBev’s liabilities to its cash
flows could result in increased costs.

Changes in the availability or price of raw matenals, commodities, energy and water, including as a result of unexpected increases in tariffs
on such raw materials and commodities, like aluminum, could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations to the extent that
AB inBev fails to adequately manage the risks inherent in such valatility, including if AB InBev's hedging and derivative arrangements do not
effectively or completely hedge changes in commodity prices

AB InBev may not be able to obtain the necessary funding for its future capital or refinancing needs and may face financial risks due to its
level of debt and uncertain market conditions. AB InBev may be required to raise additional funds for its fulure capital needs or to refinance
its current indebtedness through public or private financing, strategic relationships or other arrangements and there can be no assurance that
the funding, if needed, will be available or provided on attractive terms. AB InBev has incurred substantial indebtedness by entenng inte a
senior credit facility and accessing the bond markets from time to time based on its financial needs, including as a result of the acquisition of
SAB. The portion of AB InBev's consolidated balance sheet represented by debt will remain significantly higher as compared to its historical
position. AB InBev’s increased jevel of debt could have significant consequences for AB InBev, including (i) increasing its vulnerability to
general adverse economic and industry conditions, (ii) limiting its flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and the
industry in which AB InBev operates; (iil) impairing its ability to obtain additional financing in the future and limiting its ability to fund future
working capital and capital expenditures, to engage in future acquisitions or development activities or to otherwise realize the value of its
assels and opportunities fully, (iv) requiring AB InBev to issue additional equity (potentially under unfavorable market conditions), and (v)
placing AB InBev at a competitive disadvantage compared to its competitors that have less debt. AB InBev's ability to repay and renegotiate
its outstanding indebtedness will be dependent upon market conditions. Unfavorable conditions, including significant price volatility,
dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the global credit markets in recent years, as well as downward pressure on credit capacity for certain
issuers without regard to those issuers’ underlying financial strength, could increase costs beyond what is currently anticipated. Such costs
could have a material adverse impact on AB InBev's cash flows, results of operations or both. Further, AB InBev may restrict the amount of
dividends it will pay as a result of AB InBev's level of debt and its strategy to give priority to deleveraging. Also, a credit rating downgrade
could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's ability to finance its ongoing operations or to refinance its existing indebtedness. In
addition, a failure of AB InBev to refinance all or a substantial amount of its debt obligations when they become due, or more generally a
failure to raise additional equity capital or debt financing or to realize proceeds from asset sales when needed, would have a material adverse
effect on its financial condition and results of operations.

AB InBev's results could be negatively affected by increasing interest rates. Although AB InBev enters into interest rate swap agreemenits to
manage its interest rate risk and also enters inta cross-currency interest rate swap agreements to manage both its foreign currency risk and
interest-rate risk on interest-bearing financial liabilities, there can be no assurance that such instruments will be successful in reducing the
risks inherent in exposures to interest rate fluctuations.

Certain of AB InBev's operations depend on effective distribution networks to deliver its products to consumers, and distributors play an
important rolg in distributing a significant proportion of beer and other beverages. Generally, distributors purchase AB InBev's products from
AB InBev and then on-sell them either to other distributors or points of sale. Such distributors are elther government-controlled er privately
owned but independent wholesale distributors for distribution of AB InBev's products, and there can be no assurance that such distributors
will not give priority to AB InBev's competitors. Further, any inability of AB InBev to replace unpreductive or inefficient distributors, who could
engage in practices that harm AB InBev's reputation as consumers look to AB InBev for the quality and availability of its products, or any
limitations imposed on AB InBev 1o purchase or own any interest in distributors or wholesalers as a result of contractual restrictions, regulatory
changes, changes in legislation or the interpretations of legislation by regulators or courts could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results
of operations and financial condition.

The continued consolidation of retailers in markets in which AB InBev operates could resuilt in reduced profitability for the beer industry as a
whole and indirectly adversely affect AB InBev's financial results.

A portion of the company's global portfolio consists of assoctates in new or developing markets, including investments where the company
may have a lesser degree of control over the business operations. The company faces several challenges inherent to these various culturally
and geographically diverse business interests. Although the company works with its associates on the implementation of appropriate
processes and controls, the company also faces additional risks and uncertainties with respect to these minority investments because the
company may be dependent on systems, controls and personnel that are not under the company’s control, such as the risk that the company’'s
associates may violate applicable laws and regulations, which could have an adverse effect on the company’s business, reputation, resuits of
operations and financial condition.
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AB InBev may have a conflict of interest with i{s majority-owned subsidiaries. For example, a conflict of interest could arise if the subsidiary
brings a legal claim for an alleged contractual breach, which could materially and adversely affect AB InBev's financial condition. A conflict of
interest may also arise as a result of any dual roles played by AB InBev directors who may also be managers or senior officers in the subsidiary.
Notwithstanding policies and procedures to address the possibility of such conflicts of interest, AB InBev may not be able to resolve all such
cenflicts en terms favorable to AB InBev.

AB InBev relies on key third parties, including key suppliers, for a range of raw materials for its beer, alcoholic beverages and soft drinks, and
for packaging material. The termination of or any material change to arrangements with certain key suppliers or the failure of a key supplier
to meet its contractual obligations could have a material impact on AB InBev's production, distribution and sale of beer, alcoholic beverages
and soft drinks and have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, resulls of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Certain of
AB InBev's subsidiaries may purchase nearly all of their key packaging materials from scle suppliers under multi-year contracts. The loss of
or temporary discantinuity of supply from any of these suppliers without sufficient time to develop an alternative source could cause AB InBev
to spend increased amounts on such supplies in the future. In addition, a number of key brand names are both licensed to third-party brewers
ang used by companies over which AB InBev does not have control. Although AB InBev monitors brewing guality to ensure its high standards,
to the extent that one of these key brand names or joint ventures, companies in which AB InBev does not own a controlling interest and/or AB
InBev's licensees are subject to negative publicity, it could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev’s husiness, resulis of operations, cash
flows or financial condition.

The size of AB InBev, contractual limitations it is subject to and its position in the markets in which it operates may decrease its ability to
successfully carry out further acquisitions and business integrations. AB InBev cannot enter into further transactions unless it can identify
suitable candidates and agree on the terms with them. The size of AB InBev and its position in the markets in which it operates may make it
harder to identify suitable candidates, including because it may be harder for AB InBev to obtain regulatory approval for future transactions. If
appropriate opportunities do become available, AB InBev may seek o acquire or invest in other businesses; however, any future acquisition
may pose regulatory, antitrust and other risks.

The ability of AB InBev's subsidiaries to distribute cash upstream may be subject to various conditions and limitations. The inability to obtain
sufficient cash flows from its domestic and foreign subsidiaries and affiliated companies could adversely impact AB InBev's ability to pay
dividends and otherwise negatively impact its business, results of operations and financial condition.

An inability to reduce costs could affect AB inBev's profitability. Additionally, the Tax Matters Agreement AB InBev has entered into with Altria
Group Inc. imposes some limits on the ability of the Combined Group to effect some reorganizations which it may otherwise consider.

Failure to generate significant cost savings and margin improvement through initiatives for improving operational efficiencies could adversely
affect AB InBev's profitability and AB InBev's ability to achieve its financial goals. A number of AB InBev’s subsidiaries are in the process of
executing a major cost saving and efficiency program and AB InBeyv is pursuing a number of initiatives to improve operational efficiency. If AB
InBev fails for any reason to successfully complete these measures and programs as planned or to derive the expected benefits from these
measures and programs, there is a risk of increased costs associated with these efforts, delays in benefit realization, disruption to the business,
reputational damage or a reduced competitive advantage in the medium term.

A substantial portion of AB InBev’s operations are carried out in developing European, African, Asian and Latin American markets. AB InBev's
operations and equity investments in these markets are subject to the customary risks of operating in developing countries, which include,
amangst others, political instability or insurrection, human rights concerns, external interference, financial risks, changes in government policy,
political and economic changes, changes in the relations between countries, actions of governmental authorities affecting trade and foreign
investment, regulations on repatriation of funds, interpretation and application of local laws and regulations, enforceability of intellectual
property and contract rights, local labor conditions and regulations, lack of upkeep of public infrastructure, potential political and economic
uncertainty, application of exchange controls, nationalization or expropnration, empowerment legislation and policy, corrupt business
environments, crime and lack of law enforcement as well as financial risks, which include risk of illiquidity, inflation, devaluation, price volatility,
currency convertibility and country default. Moreover, the economies of developing countries are often affected by changes in other developing
market countries, and, accordingly, adverse changes in developing markets elsewhere in the world could have a negative impact on the
markets in which AB InBev operates. Such developing market risks could adversely impact AB InBev's business, resuits of operations and
financial condition. Furthermore, the global reach of AB InBev's operations exposes it to risks associated with doing business globally,
including changes in tariffs. The Office of the United States Trade Representative has enacted tariffs on certain imports into the United States
from China. If significant tariffs or other restrictions are placed on imports from China or any retaliatory trade measures are taken by China,
this could have a material adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, and may significantly
reduce global trade, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business in one or more of its key markets and results
of operations.

Following the categorization of Argentina in AB InBev’s results for the third quarter of 2018 as a country with a three-year cumulative inflation
rate greater than 100%, the country is considered as a hyperinflationary eccnomy in accordance with IFRS rules (IAS 29}, resulting in the
restatement of certain results for hyperinflation accounting. If the economic or political situation in Argentina further deteriorates, the South
America operations may be subject to additional restrictions under new Argentinean foreign exchange, export repatriation or expropriation
regimes that could adversely affect AB InBev's liquidity and operations, and ability to access funds from Argentina.

AB InBev relies on the reputation of its brands and its success depends on its ability to maintain and enhance the image and reputation of its
existing products and to develop a favorable image and reputation for new products. An event, or series of events, that materially damages
the reputation of one or meore of AB InBev's brands could have an adverse effect on the value of that brand and subsequent revenues from
that brand or business. Further, any restrictions on the permissible advertising style, media channels and messages used may constrain AB
InBev's brand building potential and thus reduce the value of its brands and related revenues.

Competition and changing consumer preferences in its various markets and increased purchasing power of players in AB InBev's distribution
channels could cause AB InBev to reduce prices of its products, increase capital investment, increase marketing and other expenditures or
prevent AB InBev from increasing prices to recover higher costs and thereby cause AB InBev to reduce margins or lose market share. Also,
innovation faces inherent risks, and the new products AB InBev introduces may not be successful, while competitors may be able to respond
more quickly to the emerging trends, such as the increasing consumer preference for “craft beers” produced by smaller microbreweries. In
recent years, many industries have seen disruption from non-traditional producers and distributors, in many cases, from digital only
competitors. AB InBev's business couid be negatively affected if it is unable to anticipate changing consumer preference for such platforms.
Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on AB inBev's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Labatt, the Canadian subsidiary of AB InBev's subsidiary Ambev, and Tilray have a joint venture not only to research non-alcohol beverages
containing tetrahydrocannabinol ('THC") and cannabidiol {("CBD"}, both derived from cannabis, but also to commaercialize a non-alcchol CBD
beverage in Canada only. This joint venture could lead to increased legal, reputational and financial risks as the laws and regulations governing
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recreational cannabis are stifl developing, including in ways that AB InBev may not foresee. For instance, the involvement in the legal cannabis
industry in Canada may invite new regulatory and enforcement scrutiny in other markets. Cannabis remains illegal in many markets in which
AB InBev operates, and violations of Law could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements arising
from civil proceedings or criminal charges. Furthermore, the political environment and popular support for cannabis legalization has changed
quickly and remains in flux.

If any of AB InBev's products is defective or found to contain contaminants, AB InBev may be subject to product recalls or other associated
liabilities. Although AB InBev maintains insurance against certain product liability (but not product recall) risks, it may not be able to enforce
its rights in respect of these policies ang, in the event that contamination or a defect occurs, any amounts it recovers may not be sufficient to
offset any damage it may suffer, which could adversely impact its business, reputation, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

In recent years, there has been increased public and political attention directed at the alcoholic beverage and food and soft drinks industries,
as a result of health care concerns related to the harmful use of alcohol (including drunk driving, drinking while pregnant and excessive,
abusive and underage drinking) and to health concerns such as diabetes and obesity related to the overconsumption of food and soft drinks.
Negative publicity regarding AB InBev's products and brands, publication of studies indicating a significant risk in using AB InBev's products
or changes in consumer perceptions in relation to AB InBev's products generally could adversely affect the sale and consumption of AB
InBev's products and could harm its business, results of operations, cash flows cr financial condition. Concemns over alcohol abuse and
underage drinking have also caused governments, including those in Argentina, Brazil, Spain, Russia, the United Kingdom, South Africa,
Australia and the United States, to consider measures such as increased taxation, implementation of minimum alcohol pricing regimes or
other changes to the regulatory framework governing AB InBev's marketing and other commercial practices. Also, public concern about beer,
alcohol beverages and soft drink consumption and any resulting restrictions may cause the social acceptability of beer, alcohol beverages
and soft drinks to decline significantly and consumption trends to shift away from these products, which would have a material adverse effect
on AB InBev's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Climate change or other environmentat concemns, or legal, regulatory or market measures to address climate change or other environmental
concerns, could have a long-term, material adverse impact on AB InBev's business and results of operations. Further, water scarcity or poor
water quality may affect AB InBev by increasing preduction costs and capacity constraints, which could adversely affect AB InBev's business
and results of operations. Additionally, AB InBev's inability to meet its compliance obligations under EU emissions trading reguiations may
also have an adverse impact on AB InBev's business and results of operations.

AB InBev's operations are subject to environmental regulations, which could expose it to significant compliance costs and litigation relating to
environmental issues.

AB InBev may not be able to protect its current and future brands and products and defend its intellectual property rights, including trademarks,
patents, domain names, trade secrets and know-how, which could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations, cash
flows or financial condition, and in particular, on AB InBev's ability to develop its business.

AB InBev could incur significant costs as a result of compliance with, and/or violations of or liabilities under, various regulations that govern
AB InBev's operations or the operations of its licensed third parties, including the General Data Protection Regulation adopted in the European
Union, which was fully implemented in May 2018.

AB InBev is now, and may in the future be, a party to legal proceedings and claims, including collective suits (class actions}, and significant
damages may be asserted against it. Given the inherent uncertainty of litigation, it is possible that AB InBev might incur liabilities as a
consequence of the proceedings and claims brought against it, including those that are not currently believed by it to be reasonably possible,
which could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial position. Important
contingencies are disclosed in Note 32 Contingencies of the 2019 consolidated financial statements.

AB InBev entered into a consent decree with the U.S. Department of Justice in relation to the combination with SAB, pursuant to which AB
InBev's subsidiary, Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC, agreed not to acquire control of a distributor if doing so would result in more than 10%
of its annual volume being distributed through distributorships controlled by AB InBev in the U.S. AB InBev's compliance with its obligations
under the settlement agreement is monitored by the U.S. Department of Justice and the Monitoring Trustee appointed by them. Were AB
InBev to fail 1o fulfill its obligations under the consent decree, whether intentionally or inadvertently, AB InBev couid be subject to monetary
fines or other penalties.

AB InBev may be subject to adverse changes in taxation, which makes up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to consumers in
many jurisdictions. Increases in excise and other indirect taxes applicable to AB InBev's products tend to adversely affect AB InBev's revenue
or margins, both by reducing overall consumption and by encouraging consumers to switch to other categories of beverages, including
unrecorded or informal alcohol products. Minimum pricing is another form of fiscal reguiation that can affect AB InBev's profitability.
Furthermore, AB InBev may be subject to increased taxation on its operations by national, local or foreign authorities, to higher corporate
income tax rates or to new or madified taxation regulations and requirements. For example, the work being carried out by the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development on base erasion and profit shifting and initiatives at the European Union level (including the anti-
tax-avoidance directive adopled by the Council of the European Union on 12 July 2016) as a response to increasing globalization of trade and
business operations could result in changes in tax treaties, the introduction of new legislation, updates to existing legislation, or changes to
regulatory interpretations of existing legislation, any of which could impose additional taxes on businesses. An increase in excise taxes or
other taxes could adversely affect the financial resulis of AB InBev as well as its results of operations. Furthermore, the U.S. tax reform signed
on 22 December 2017 (the “Tax Act") brings major tax legislation changes into law. While the Tax Act reduces the statutory rate of U.S. federal
corporate income tax to 21% and provides an exemption for certain dividends from 10%-owned foreign subsidiaries, the Tax Act expands the
tax base by introducing further limitations on deductibility of interest, the imposition of a “base erosion and anti-abuse tax” and the imposition
of minimum tax for “global intangible low-tax income”, among other changes, which could adversely impact the company’s resuits of
operations. The overall impact of the Tax Act also depends on the future interpretations and regulations that may be issued by U.S. tax
authorities, and it is possible that future guidance could adversely impact the financial results of the company.

Antitrust and competition laws and changes in such laws or in the interpretation and enforcement thereof, as well as being subject to reguiatory
scrutiny, could affect AB InBev's business or the businesses of its subsidiaries. For example, in connection with AB InBev's previous
acquisitions, various regulatory authorities have imposed (and may impose) conditions with which AB InBev is required to comply. The terms
and conditions of certain of such authorizations, approvals and/or clearances required, among other things, the divestiture of the company's
assets or businesses to third parties, changes to the company’s operations, or other restrictions on the company’s ability to operate in certain
jurisdictions. Such actions could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, financial congition and
prospects. In addition, such conditions could diminish substantially the synergies and advantages which the company expects to achieve from
such future transactions.
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AB InBev operates ils business and markets its products in emerging markets that, as a result of political and economic instability, a lack of
well-developed legal systerns and potentially corrupt business environments, present it with political, economic and operational risks. Although
AB InBev is committed to conducting business in a tegal and ethical manner in compliance with local and international statutory requirements
and standards applicable to its business, there is a risk that the employees or representalives of AB InBev's subsidiaries, affiliates, associates,
joint ventures/operations or other business interests may take actions that violate applicable laws and regulations that generally prohibit the
making of improper payments to foreign government officials for the purpose of obtaining or keeping business, including laws relating to the
1997 OECD Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in International Business Transactions such as the U.S. Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act and the UK. Bribery Act.

Although AB InBev's operations in Cuba are quantitatively immaterial, its overall business reputation may suffer or it may face additional
regulatory scrutiny as a result of Cuba being a target of U.S. economic and trade sanctions. If investors decide to liquidate or otherwise divest
their investments in companies that have operations of any magnitude in Cuba, the market in and value of AB InBev's securities could be
adversely impacted. In addition, Title ll of U.S. legislation known as the "Helms-Burton Act” autharizes private lawsuits for camages against
anyone who traffics in property confiscated without compensation by the Government of Cuba from persons who at the time were, or have
since become, nationals of the United States. Although this section of the Helms-Burton Act has been suspended by discretionary presidential
action since its inception in 1996, on 2 May 2019, the Trump Administration activated Title 11t of the Helms-Burton Act, thereby allowing
nationals of the United States that hold ciaims under the Helms-Burton Act to file suit in U.S. federal court against all persons trafficking in
property confiscated by the Cuban govermnment.

As a result of the activation of Title |1l of the Helms-Burton Act, AB InBev may be subject to potential U.S. litigation exposure beginning 2 May
2019, including claims accrued during the prior suspension of Title 1l of the Helms-Burton Act. Given the unprecedented activation of Title Il
of the Helms-Burton Act, there is substantial uncertainty as to how the statute will be interpreted by U.S. courts. AB InBev has received notice
of a claim purporting to be made under the Helms-Burton Act. It remains unclear how the activation of Title Ill of the MHelms-Burton Act will
impact AB InBev's U.S. litigation exposure with respect to this notice of claim.

AB InBev may not be able to recruit or retain key personnel and successfully manage them, which could disrupt AB InBev's business and
have an unfavorable material effect on AB InBev's financial position, its income from operations and its competitive position.

Further, AB InBev may be exposed to labor sirikes, disputes and work stoppages or slowdowns, within its operations or those of its suppliers,
or an interruption or shortage of raw materials for any other reason that could lead to a negative impact on AB InBev's costs, eamings, financial
condition, production level and ability to operate its business. AB InBev’s preduction may also be affected by work stoppages or slowdowns
that affect its suppliers, distributors and retail delivery/logistics providers as a result of disputes under existing collective labor agreements
with labor unions, in connection with negotiations of new collective labor agreements, as a result of supplier financial distress or for other
reascns. A work stoppage or slowdown at AB inBev's facilities could interrupt the transport of raw materials from its suppliers or the transport
of its products to its customers. Such disruptions could put a strain on AB InBev's relationships with suppliers and customers and may have
lasting effects on its business even after the disputes with its labor force have been resolved, including as a result of negative publicity.

AB InBev relies on information technology systems to process, transmit, and store electronic information. Althcugh AB InBev takes various
actions to prevent cyber-attacks and to minimize potential technology disruptions, such disruptions could impact AB InBev's business. For
example, if outside parties gained access to AB InBev's confidential data or strategic information and appropriated such information or made
such information public, this could harm AB InBev's reputation or its competitive advantage, or could expose AB InBev or its customers to a
risk of loss or misuse of information. More generally, technology disruptions can have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business,
results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

AB InBev's business and operating resuits could be negatively impacted by social, technical, natural, physical or other disasters.

Although AB InBev maintains insurance policies to cover various risks, it also uses self-insurance for most of its insurable risks. Shouid an
uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, this could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of operations and financial
condition.

If the business of AB InBev does not develop as expected, impairment charges on goodwill or other intangible assets may be incurred in the
future that could be significant and that could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations and financial condition.

The audit report included in AB InBev's annual report is prepared by an auditor who is not inspected by the U.S. Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (PCAOB). This lack of PCAOB inspections in Belgium prevents the PCAOB from regularly evaluating audits and guality
control procedures of any auditors operating in Belgium, including AB InBev's auditors. As a result, U.S. and other investors may be deprived
of the benefits of PCAOB inspections.

AB InBev's ordinary shares currently trade on Euronext Brussels in euros, the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in South African rand, the
Mexican Stock Exchange in Mexican pesos and ils ordinary shares represented by American Depositary Shares (the "ADSs") trade on the
New York Stock Exchange in U.S. dollars. Fluctuations in the exchange rates between the euro, the South African rand. the Mexican peso
and the U.S. dollar may result in temporary differences between the value of AB InBev's ordinary shares trading in different currencies, and
between its ordinary shares and its ADSs, which may resuit in heavy trading by investors seeking to exploit such differences.

Risks arising from financial instruments
Note 29 of the 2019 consolidated financial statements on Risks arising from financial instruments contain detailed infermation on the
company's exposures to financial risks and its risk management policies.

Events after the balance sheet date

Please refer to Note 35 Events after the balance sheet date of the consclidated financial statements.

Corporate governance

For information with respect to Corporate Governance, please refer to the Comporate Governance section, which forms an integral part of our
annual report.
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Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of AB InBev SA/NV certifies, on behalf and for the account of the company, that, to their knowledge, (a) the financial
statements which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the entities included in the consolidation as a whole and (b) the management
report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the entities included
in the consolidation as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face.
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STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING OF
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV NV/SA ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

We present to you our statutory auditer's report in the context of our statutory audit of the consolidated financial
statements of Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (jointly “the Group”). This report
includes our report on the consolidated financial statements, as well as the other legal and regulatory requirements.
This forms part of an integrated whole and is indivisible.

We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the general meeting d.d. 24 April 2019, following the proposal
formulated by the board of directors and following the recommendation by the audit committee and the proposal
formulated by the works' council. Qur mandate will expire on the date of the general meeting which will deliberate on
the annual accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021. We have performed the statutory audit of the consolidated
financial statements of Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA for one year.

Report on the consolidated financial statements
Unqualified opinion

We have performed the statutory audit of the Group's consclidated financial statements, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in egquity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and which is characterised
by a consolidated statement of financial position total of USD 236 648 million and a profit for the year of
USD 10 414 million.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair view of the Group's net equity and consolidated
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union and with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium.

Basis for unqualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Belgium.
Furthermere, we have applied the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as approved by the IAASB which are
applicable to the year-end and which are not yet approved at the national level. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Statutory auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consclidated financial statements in Belgium, including the
requirements related to independence.

We have obtained from the board of directors and Company officials the explanations and information necessary for
performing our audit.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful life — impairment testing

As described in Notes 3, 14 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has recorded
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
for an amount of USD 168 331 million as of
31 December 2019, which represents 71% of the
consolidated statement of financial position as of that
date. An annual impairment is conducted by
management, in accordance with IAS 36, in which
management applies a discounted free cash flow
approach based on current acgquisition valuation models
for its cash-generating units showing a high invested
capital to EBITDA multiple, and valuation multiples for
its other cash-generating units. The Company uses a
strategic plan based on external sources in respect of
macro-economic assumptions, industry, inflation and
foreign exchange rates, past experience and identified
initiatives in terms of market share, revenue, variable
and fixed cost, capital expenditure and working capital
assumgptions. Management's cash flow projections
include significant judgments and assumptions, such as
weighted average cost of capital and the terminal
growth rate.

The principal considerations for our determination that

performing procedures relating to the impairment of

goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
is a key audit matter are the following:

(i) the high degree of auditor judgment and
subjectivity in applying procedures relating to the
valuation of the cash-generating-units due to the
significant amount of judgment by management
when developing this estimate,

(i) the audit effort involved the use of professionals
with specialized skill and knowledge to assist in
evaluating the audit evidence obtained from
these procedures and

(i}  the significant audit effort necessary in evatuating
the significant assumptions relating to the
estimate, such as weighted average cost of
capital and the terminal growth rate

Addressing the matter involved performing procegures
and evaluating audit evidence in conneclion with
forming our cverall opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. These procedures included testing the
effectiveness of controls relating to management's
goodwill and indefinite-lived asset impairment testing,
including controls aver the identification and valuation
of the Company's cash-generating units. These
procedures also included, among others, testing
management's process for developing the fair value
estimates; evaluating the appropriateness of the
discounted cash flow model; testing the completeness,
accuracy, and relevance of underying data used in the
models; and evaluating the significant assumptions
used by management, such as weighted average cost
of capital and the terminal growth rate.

Evaluating management’s assumptions involved
evaluating whether the assumptions used by
management were reasonable considering (i) the
current and past performance of the reporting unit,
(i) the consistency with external market and industry
data, (i} whether these assumptions were consistent
with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit and
(iv) analysis of sensitivities in the Company's
discounted cash flow model. Professionals with
specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in
the evaluation of the Company's discounted cash flow
model and certain significant assumptions, including
weighted average cost of capital and the terminal
growth rate.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Uncertain tax positions

As described in Notes 4 and 32 to the consolidated
financial  statements, significant judgment by
management is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income tax. The estimate of the
Company’s tax liabilities relating to uncertain tax
positions requires management to assess uncertainties
and to make judgments about the application of
complex tax laws and regulations. The Company
operates on a global basis and, as management has
further disclosed, investigations and negotiations with
local tax authorities are ongoing in various jurisdictions
at the balance sheet date and, by their nature, these
can take considerable time to conclude. In assessing
the amount of any income tax provisions to be
recognized in the consolidated financial statements,
estimation is made of the expected successful
seltlement of these matters.

The principal considerations for our determination that
uncertain tax positions is a key audit matter are the
following:

(i} the high degree of auditor judgment and
subjectivity in applying procedures related to
uncertain tax positions due to the significant
amount of judgment by management when
developing this estimate, including a high degree
of estimation uncertainty relative to the numerous
and complex tax laws, frequency of tax audits,
and the considerable time to conclude
investigations and negotiations with local tax
authorities as a result of such audits,

the involvement of professionals with specialized
skill and knowiedge to assist in evaluating the
audit evidence obtained from these procedures.

(it}

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures
and evaluating audit evidence in connection with
forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. These procedures included testing the
effectiveness of controls relating to completeness of the
uncertain tax positions, as well as controls over
measurement of the liability. These procedures also
included, among others, (i) testing the information used
in the calculation of the income tax provisions, including
intercompany agreements, international, federal, and
state filing positions, and the related final tax retums;
(i1) testing the calculation of the income tax provision by
jurisdiction, including management's assessment of the
technical merits of tax positions and estimates of the
amount of tax benefit expected to be sustained; (iif)
testing the completeness of management's assessment
of both the identification of uncertain tax positions and
possible outcomes thereof, and (iv}) evaluating the
status and results of income tax audits with the relevant
tax authcrities.

Professionals with specialized skili and knowledge were
used to assist in the evaluation of the completeness and
measurement of the Company’s uncertain tax positions,
including  evaluating the reasonableness of
management’s assessment of whether tax positions are
more-likely-than-not of being sustained and the amount
of potential benefit to be realized, the application of
relevant tax laws, and estimated interest and penalties.

Emphasis of matter - change in accounting principle

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts
for leases in 2019. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other matter — predecessor auditor

The Cempany’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by ancther
auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on these consolidated financial statements in his report dated

27 February 2019.
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Responsibilities of the board of directors for the preparation of the consclidated financial statements

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with the
legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium, and for such internal control as the board of directors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consclidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for assessing the Group’'s
ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting uniess the board of directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Statutory auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated financial statements.

In performing our audit, we comply with the legal, regulatory and normative framework applicable to the audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Belgium. A statutory audit does not provide any assurance as to the Company's
future viability nor as to the efficiency or effectiveness of the board of directors’ current or future business management.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
threughout the audit.

We aiso:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

+» Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the board of directors;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our statutory auditor's report to the refated disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our statutory auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concemn;

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

» Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business

activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reascnably be
thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicabte, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

Other legal and regulatory requirements
Responsibilities of the board of directors

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and the content of the directors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements.

Statutory auditor’'s responsibilities

In the context of our mandate and in accerdance with the Belgian standard which is complementary to the Interational
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Belgium, our responsibility is to verify, in all material respects, the
directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements and to report on these matters.

Aspects related to the directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, after having performed specific procedures in relation to the directors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements, this report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements for the year under audit, and it
is prepared in accordance with articie 3:32 of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code.

In the context of our audit of the consclidated financial statements, we are also responsible for considering, in particular
based on the knowledge acquired resulting from the audit, whether the directors’ report is materially misstated or
contains information which is inadequately disclosed or otherwise misleading. In light of the procedures we have
performed, there are no material misstatements we have to report to you.

The non-financial infermation required by virtue of article 3:32, §2 of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code is included
in the directors’' report on the consclidated financial statements. The Company has prepared the non-financial
information, based on the reference framework Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards and relevant United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals

However, in accordance with article 3'80, §1. 5° of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code, we do not express an

opinion as to whether the non-financial information has been prepared in accordance with the said framework as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

79



FINANCIAL REPORT

&

pwec

Statement related to independence

*  Cur registered audit firm and our network did not provide services which are incompatible with the statutory audit
of the consolidated financial statements, and our registered audit firn remained independent of the Group in the
course of our mandate.

* The fees for addilional services which are compatible with the statutory audit of the consoclidated financial
statements referred to in article 3:65 of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code are correctly disclosed and
itemized in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Other statements

This report is consistent with the additionat report to the audit committee referred to in article 11 of the Regulation (EU)}
N° 537/2014.

Sint-Stevens-Woluwe, 27 February 2020
The statutory auditor

PwC Bedrijffsrevisaren BV / Reviseurs d'Entreprises SRL
Represented by

Gin..

Koen Hens
Statutory Auditor
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Million US dollar, except earnings per shares in US dollar restated’
Revenue 52 329 53 041
Cost of sales (20 362) (19 933)
Gross profit 31967 33 108
Distribution expenses (5 525) {5612}
Sales and marketing expenses (7 348) {7 774)
Administrative expenses (3 548) {3421}
Other operating income/(expenses) 7 875 805
Profit from operations before non-recurring items 16 421 17 107
Restructuring 8 (170) (363)
Acquisition costs business combinations 8 {23) (73)
Business and assel disposal 8 {50} (26)
Brazil state tax regularization program 8 {74) -
Cost related to public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC 8 (6) -
Provision for EU investigation 8 - (230)
Profit from operations 16 098 16 414
Finance cost " (4 873) (7 279}
Finance income 1 518 435
Non-recurring net finance income/(cost) 1" 882 {1982}
Net finance income/(cost} {3 473) (8 826)
Share of result of associates and joint ventures 16 152 153
Profit before tax 12776 T741
Income tax expense 12 (2 786) (2 585}
Profit from continuing operations 9980 5157
Profit from discontinued operations 22 424 531
Profit of the period 10 414 5 688
Profit from continuing operations attributable to:

Equity holders of AB InBev 8748 3839

Non-controliing interest 1243 1318
Profit of the period attributable to:

Equity holders of AB InBev 9171 4 370

Non-controlling interest 1243 1318
Basic earnings per share 23 4.62 2.21
Diluted eamings per share 23 4.53 217
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 23 4.41 1.94
Diluted earmnings per share from continuing cperations 23 4.32 1.81
Basic earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations? 23 4.08 3.16
Diluted eamings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations? 23 3.99 31
Underlying EPS? 23 363 4.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statemeants.

' The consolidated income statement for 2018 has been restated to reflect the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 under the full retrospective application and the
classification of the Australian operations as discontinued operations.

? Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, as well as Underlying EPS, are not defined
metrics in IFRS. Refer to Note 23 Changes in equify and eamings per share for more details
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Million US doliar 2019 restated’
Profit of the period 10 414 5688

Other comprehensive income: items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Re-measurements of post-employment benefits (182) 99
(182) 99

Other comprehensive income: items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 947 (7 916)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of net investment hedges (157) 114
Cash flow hedges recognized in equity 182 912
Cash flow hadges reclassified from equity to profit or loss (292) (565)
680 (7 855)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 498 (7 756)
Total comprehensive income 10912 (2 068)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of AB InBev 10 044 (2 998)
Non-controliing interest 867 930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

! The consolidated statement of comprehensive income for 2018 has been restated to reflect the impact of adoption of IFRS 16 under the full retrospective
application.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 31 December 1 January 2018
Million US doilar Notes 2019 2018 restated’ restated’
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 27 544 27 615 29233
Goodwill 14 128 114 133311 140 940
Intangible assets 15 42 452 44 831 45 B74
Investments in associates and joint ventures 16 5 861 6 136 5263
Investment securities 17 110 108 100
Deferred tax assets 18 1719 1517 1251
Employee benefits 25 14 16 22
Income tax receivabies 1081 992 708
Derivatives 29 132 291 25
Trade and other receivables 20 807 769 834
Total non-current assets 207 834 215 587 224 251
Current assets

Investment securities 17 92 87 1304
Inventories 19 4 427 4234 4 119
Income tax receivables 627 457 908
Derivatives 29 230 16 458
Trade and other receivables 20 6 187 6 375 6 566
Cash and cash equivalents 21 7 238 7074 10 472
Assets classified as held for sale 22 10 013 39 133
Total current assets 28 814 18 281 23 960
Total assets 236 648 233 868 248 208
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital 23 1736 1736 1736
Share premium 17 620 17 620 17 620
Reserves 24 882 19 061 24 833
Retained earnings 31484 26 068 28 387
Equity attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 75722 64 485 72 576
Non-controlling interests a3 8 831 7 404 7624
Totat equity 84 553 71 889 80 200
Non-current liabilities

Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 24 97 564 106 8897 110 637
Employee benefits 25 2848 2681 2983
Deferred tax liabilities 18 12 824 13 165 13107
Income tax payables 1022 576 732
Derivatives 29 352 766 937
Trade and other payables 28 1943 1816 1462
Provisions 27 701 1152 1515
Tetal non-current liabilities 117 254 127 153 131 383
Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts 21 68 114 117
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 24 5410 4 584 7 846
Income tax payables 1 346 1220 1558
Derivatives 29 3799 5574 1457
Trade and other payables 28 22 864 22 568 24762
Provisions 27 210 766 885
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 22 1145 - -
Total current liabilities 34 841 34 826 36 625
Total equity and liabilities 236 648 233 868 248 208

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

! The consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December 2048 and 1 January 2018 have been restated to reflect the impact of adoption of IFRS 16
under the fulf retrospective application. The Australian operations have been classified as assets held for sale as at 31 December 2018 without restatement of the
respeclive balances as at 31 Cecember 2018 as required by IFRS 5.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December

Million US dollar

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit from continuing operations

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Impairment losses on receivables, inventories and other assets
Additions/(reversals) in provisions and employee benefits

Net finance cost/(income)

Lass/(gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Loss/(gain} on sale of subsidiaries, associates and assets held for sale
Equity-setiled share-based payment expense

Income tax expense

Other non-cash items included in profit

Share of result of associates and joint ventures

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of
provisions

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Pension contributions and use of provisions

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Dividends received

income tax paid

Cash flow from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

Sale of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of

Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition) of investment in short-term debt securities
Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition} of other assets

Net repayments/(payments) of loans granted

Proceeds from assets held for sale

Proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures

Taxes on SAB transaction-related divestitures

Cash flow from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Purchase)sale of non-controtling interest

Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC
Proceeds from borrowings

Payments on borrowings

Cash net finance (cost)fincome other than interests

Payment of lease liabilities

Dividends paid

Cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on continuing operations
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents on discontinued operations

Cash and cash equivalents iess bank overdrafts at beginning of year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations
Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Note
Corporate information 1
Statement of compliance 2
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
Use of estimates and judgments 4
Segment reporting 5
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries 6
Cther operating income/(expenses) 7
Non-recurring items 8
Payroll and related benefits 9
Additional information on cperating expenses by nature 10
Finance cost and income 11
Income taxes 12
Property, plant and equipment 13
Goodwill 14
Intangible assets 15
Investments in asscciates 16
Investment securities 17
Deferred tax assets and liabilities 18
Inventeries 19
Trade and cther receivables 20
Cash and cash equivalents 21
Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with
assets held for sale and discontinued operations 22
Changes in equity and earnings per share 23
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 24
Employee benefits 25
Share-based payments 26
Provisions 27
Trade and other payables 28
Risks arising from financial instruments 29
Operating leases 30
Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, ptant and equipment, loans to customers and other 3
Contingencies 32
Non-controlling interests 33
Related parties 34
Events after the balance sheet date 35
AB InBev companies 36
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1. Corporate information

Anheuser-Busch InBev is a publicly traded company (Euronext: ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listings on the Mexico
(MEXBOL: ANB) and South Africa (JSE: ANH) stock exchanges and with American Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
{NYSE: BUD). Our Dream is to bring people together for a better world. Beer, the original social network, has been bringing people together
for thousands of years. We are committed to building great brands that stand the test of time and to brewing the best beers using the finest
natural ingredients. Qur diverse portfclio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella Artois®; multi-
courtry brands Beck's®, Hoegaarden®, Leffe® and Michelob Ultra®; and local champions such as Aguila®, Antarctica® Bud Light®,
Brahma®, Cass®, Castle®, Castle Lite®, Cristal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Modelo Especial®, Quimes®, Victoria®, Sedrin® and Skol®. Our
brewing heritage dates back more than 600 years, spanning continents and generations. From our European roots at the Den Hoorn brewery
in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneering spirit of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St. Louis, US. To the creation of the Castle Brewery in South
Africa during the Johannesburg gold rush. To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a balanced exposure to
developed and developing markets, we leverage the coliective strengths of approximately 170 D00 employees based in nearly 50 countries
worldwide. For 2019, AB InBev's reported revenue was 52.3 billion US dollar (excluding joint ventures and associates).

The consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2019 comprise the company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as "AB InBev” or the “company”) and the company’s interest in associates, joint ventures and operations.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2020

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and in confarmity with IFRS as adopted by the European Union up to 31 December 2019
(collectively “IFRS”). AB InBev did not early apply any new IFRS requirements that were not yet effective in 2019 and did not apply any
European carve-outs from IFRS.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements by
the company and its subsidiaries.

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

Depending on the applicable IFRS requirements, the measurement basis used in preparing the financiat statements is cost, net realizable
value, fair value or recoverable amount. Whenever IFRS provides an option between cost and another measurement hasis (e.9. systematic
re-measurement), the cost approach is applied.

{B) FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Unless otherwise specified, all financial information included in these financial statements has been stated in US dollar and has been rounded
10 the nearest million. As from 2009, following the combination with Anheuser-Bush, the company changed the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements from the euro to the US dollar to provide greater alignment of the presentation currency with AB InBev's
most significant operating currency and underlying financial performance. The functional currency of the parent company is the euro.

(C) USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

(D) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries are those entities controlied by AB InBev. AB InBev controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, potential
voting fights are taken into account. Control is presumed to exist where AB InBev owns, directly or indirectly, more than one half of the voting
rights (which does not always equate to economic ownership), unless it can be demonsirated that such ownership does not constitute control.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Associates are undertakings in which AB InBev has significant influence over the financial and operating policies, but which it does not control.
This is generally evidenced by ownership of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. A joint venture is an arrangement in which AB InBev
has joint control, whereby AB inBev has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for by the equity methed of accounting, from the date that significant influence or joint
control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. When AB InBev's share of losses exceeds the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture, the carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that AB InBev has incurred legal or constructive obligations on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

Joint operations arise when AB InBev has rights to the assets and obligations to the liabilities of a jeint arrangement. AB InBev accounts for
its share of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses as from the moment joint operation commences until the date that joint operation
ceases.
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The financial statements of the company’s subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations and associates are prepared for the same reporting
year as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. In exceptional cases when the financial statements of a subsidiary, joint
venture, joint operation or associate are prepared as of a different date from that of AB InBev, adjustments are made for the effects of
significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of AB InBev's financial statements. In such cases, the difference
between the end of the reporting period of these subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations or associates from AB InBev's reporting pericd
is no more than three months. Results from the company’s associates Anadolu Efes and Castel are reported on a three-month lag. Therefore,
estimates are made to reflect AB InBev's share in the result of these associates for the last quarter. Such estimates are revisitad when
required.

Transactions with non-controlling interests are treated as transactions with equity owners of the company. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controliing interests are also recorded in equity where there is no loss of control.

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between group companies have been eliminated.
Unrealized gains arising from transactions with joint ventures, joint operations and associates are eliminated to the extent of AB InBev's
interest in the entity. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

A listing of the company's mast important subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations and associates is set out in Note 36 AB inBev
companies.

(E) SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IFRS with effective application for annual periods beginning on 1% January 2019:
IFRS 16 Leases became effective on 1 January 2019 and was applied by the company for the first time as of that date, under the full
retrospective application, with an initial application date as of 1 January 2017.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces the current lease accounting requirements and introduces significant changes to lessee accounting, removing the distinction
between operating and finance leases under IAS 17 Leases and related interpretations and requiring a lessee to recognize a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability at lease commencement date. IFRS 16 also requires the recognition of depreciation charges relating to right-of-use
assets and interest expenses on lease liabilities, as compared to the recognition of operating lease expenses or rental costs on a straight-tine
basis over the lease term, as was the case under prior requirements. in addition, the company has amended the consolidated cash flow
statement presentation in order to segregate the payment of leases into a principal portion presented within financing activities and an interest
component presented within operating activities.

For short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the company continues to recognize a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted
by IFRS 16, and payments for these leases are presented in cash flow from operating activities. As a lessor, the company continues {o classify
leases as either finance leases or operating leases and accounts for those two types of leases differently.

The company has chosen the full retrospective application of IFRS 16 and, consequently, has restated the comparative information in these
financial statements. In addition, the company has applied the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 {o not reassess whether
a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease under 1AS 17 und ils 1elaled interpretations will continue to apply to the
leases entered or modified before 1 January 2019,

As a function of the transition to IFRS 16, the company recognized 1.7 billion US dollar of right-of-use assets and 1.8 billion US dollar of lease
liabilities. Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of future lease payments discounted using incremental borrowing rates that
consider the nature of the underlying assets and term of the leases

Additional information is presented in Note 13 Property, piant and equipment, Note 24 interest-bearing loans and borrowings and Note 29
Risks arising from financial instruments.

A number of other new standards, amendment to standards and new interpretations became mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2019 and have not been listed in these consolidated financial statemenis as they either do not apply or are immaterial
to AB InBev's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Effective 1 January 2019, AB InBev adopted IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments and has elected to apply IFRIC 23
retrospectively. The cumulative effect of the interpretation was recognized at the date of initial application and the company has not restated
comparative periods in the year of initial application. AB InBev reviewed the income tax treatments in order to determine whether the
interpretation could have an impact on the consolidated financial staternents. In that respect, as at 31 December 2019, the company
reclassified 573m US dollar of its existing income tax provisions into income tax liabilities, consistently with the current discussions held at the
IFRS Interpretation Committeg, which concluded that an entity is required to present assets and liabilities for uncertain tax treatments as
current tax assets/liabilities or deferred tax assets/liabilities.
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(F) FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the balance sheet. Gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and lizbilities denominated in fereign
currencies are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates the fair value was determined.

Translation of the results and financial position of foreign operations

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income
statements of foreign operations, excluding foreign entities in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to US dollar at exchange rates for
the year approximating the foreign exchange rales prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The components of shareholders’ equity are
translated at historical rates. Exchange differences arising from the translation of shareholders’ equity to US dollar at period-end exchange
rates are taken to other comprehensive income (translation reserves).

Financial Reporting in hyperinfiationary economies

In May 2018, the Argentinean pesc underwent a severe devaluation, leading Argentina’s three-year cumulative inflation to exceed 100% and
thus, triggering the requirement to transition to hyperinflation accounting as prescribed by 1AS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies. IAS 28 requires that the results of the company’s Argentinian operations be reported as if these were highly inflationary as of 1
January 2018.

Under IAS 29, non-monelary assels and liabilities stated at historical cost, equity and income statements of subsidiaries operating in
hyperinflationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency, applying a general price index.
These re-measured accounts are used for conversion into US dollar at the period closing exchange rate. As a result, the balance sheet and
net results of subsidiaries operating in hyperinflation economies are stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting
pericd.

Exchange rates
The most important exchange rates that have been used in preparing the financial statements are:

Closing rate Average rate

1 US dollar equals: 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Argentinean peso 59.890668 37.807879 - m S -
Australian dollar 1.423804 1.416593 1.438543 -~ 1,334300
Brazilian real 4.030696 3.874806 3.940998 . 3634827
Canadian dollar 1.299449 1.362882 1.329140 .. 1.293896
Colombian peso 327263 3246.70 3 305.84 _____g 967.36
Chinese yuan £.961481 6.877787 6.886265 ___(i§§~16_(_)1_
Euro 0.890155 0.873362 0.892577 0.845697
Mexican peso 18.845242 19.682728 19.334915 " 19.195084
Pound sterling 0.757344 0.781249 0.784062 __'0.750773
Peruvian nuevo sol 3.317006 3.369998 3.346670 ....3.284477
South Korean won 1 154.54 111540 1 160.69 + . 1095.46
South African rand 14.044287 14 374909 14.512975 1 3.105486

(G) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is
recognized in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, is capitalized if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable and the company has sufficient resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalized includes the cost of materials,
direct labor and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognized in the income statement as an expense
as incurred. Capitalized development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortization (see below) and impairment losses (refer
to accounting policy O).

Amortization related to research and development intangible assels is included within the cost of sates if production related and in sales and
marketing if related to commercial activities.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets.
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Supply and distribution rights

A supply right is the right for AB inBev to supply a customer and the commitrent by the customer to purchase from AB inBev. A distribution
right is the right to sell specified products in a certain territory. Acquired distribution rights are measured initially at cost or fair value when
obtained through a business combination. Amortization related to supply and distribution rights is inciuded within sales and marketing
expenses.

Brands

If part of the consideration paid in a business combination relates to trademarks, trade names, formulas, recipes or technological expertise
these intangible assets are considered as a group of complementary assets that is referred to as a brand for which one fair value is determined.
Expenditure on internally generated brands is expensed as incurred.

Software

Purchased software is measured at cost less accumulated amortization. Expenditure on internally developed software is capitalized when
the expenditure qualifies as development activities; otherwise, it is recognized in the income statement when incurred. Amertization related to
software is included in cost of sales, distribution expenses, sales and marketing expenses o administrative expenses based on the activity
the software supports.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, acquired by the company, are recognized at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment iosses. Other
intangible assets also include multi-year sponsorship rights acquired by the company. These are initially recognized at the present value of
the future payments and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asseat to which it relates. All other expenditures are expensed as incurred

Amortization

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Licenses, brewing, supply and
distribution rights are amortized over the period in which the rights exist. Brands are considered to have an indefinite life unless plans exist to
discontinue the brand. Discontinuance of a brand can be either through sale or termination of marketing support. When AB InBev purchases
distribution rights for its own products the life of thase rights is considered indefinite, unless the company have a plan to discontinue the related
brand or distribution. Software and capitalized development costs related 1o technology are amortized over 3 to 5 years.

Brands are deemed intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and, therefore, are not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual
basis (refer to accounting policy O).

Gains and tosses on sale

Net gains on sale of intangible assets are presented in the income statement as other operating income. Net losses on sale are included as
other operating expenses. Net gains and iosses are recognized in the income statement when the control has been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing managerial involvement
with the intangible assets.

(H) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The company applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for acquisitions of businesses. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given, liabilities incurred and equity instruments issued. ldentifiable
assels, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at their fair valie as of the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the company's interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

The allocation of fair values to the identifiable assets acquired and Yiabilities assumed is based on various assumpiions requiring management
judgment.

Acquisition-refated costs are expensed as incurred.

i the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of AB InBev's previously held interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acguisition date; any gains or losses arnising from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

() GOODWILL

Goodwill is determined as the excess of the consideration paid over AB inBev's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
ang contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate recognized at the date of acquisition. All busingss
combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

In conformity with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwill is stated at cost and not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual basis
and whenever there is an indicator that the cash generating unit to which goodwill has heen allocated, may be impaired (refer to accounting
policy Q). Goodwill is expressed in the currency of the subsidiary or jointly controtled entity to which it relates and is translated to US dollar
using the year-end exchange rate. In respect of associates and joint ventures, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment in the associate.

If AB InBev's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilties and contingent fiabilities recognized exceeds the cost of the
business combination such excess is recognized immediately in the income statement as required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Expenditure on intemally generated goodwill is expensed as incurred.
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(J} PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impaiment losses (refer to accounting policy O). Cost
incluges the purchase price and any costs directly atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management (e.g. nonrefundable tax and transport cost). The cost of a self-constructed asset is
determined using the same principles as for an acquired asset. The depreciation methods, residual value, as well as the useful lives are
reassessad and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets.

Subsequent expenditure

The company recognizes in the camying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when
that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Residual values, if not insignificant, are reassessed annually.
Depreciation is calculated from the date the asset is available for use, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

The estimated useful lives are defined in terms of the asset's expected utility to the company and can vary from one geographical area to
another. On average the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Industrial buildings — other real estate properties 20 - 50 years
Production plant and equipment:

Production equipment 10 - 15 years

Storage, packaging and handling equipment 5-7 years
Returnable packaging:

Kegs 2 - 10 years

Crates 2 - 10 years

Bottles 2 - 5 years
Point of sale furniture and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Information processing equipment 3-S5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant
and equipment

Land is not depreciated as il is deemed to have an indefinite life.

Gains and losses on sale

Net gains on sale of items of property, plant and equipment are presented in the income statement as other operating income. Net losses on
sale are presented as other operating expenses. Net gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the control has been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing
managerial involvement with the property, plant and equipment.

(K) LEASES

The company as lessee

The company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of a contract. The company recognizes a nght-of-use asset and
a corresponding tease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and payments for these leases are presented in cash flow from operating
aclivities.

The lease liability is initiaily measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by
using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate specific to the
country, term and currency of the contract. In addition, the company considers its recent debt issuances as well as publicly available data for
instruments with similar characteristics when calculating the incrementai borrowing rates.

Lease payments include fixed payments, less any lease incentives, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate known at the
commencement date, and purchase options or extension option payments if the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and right-cf-use
asset and are recognized as an expense in the income statement in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments
ocours.

A lease liability is remeasured upon a change in the lease term, changes in an index or rate used to determine the lease payments or
reassessment of exercise of a purchase option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the related right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The right-of-use assets are depreciated starting at the commencement date over the shorter period of useful life of the underlying
asset and lease term (refer to accounting policies J and Q).
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The lease liability is presented in the ‘Interest-bearing ioans and borrowings’ line and the right-of-use assets are presented in the ‘Property,
plant and equipment’ line in the consclidated statement of financial position. In addition, the principai portion of the lease payments is presented
within financing activities and the interest component is presented within operating activities in the consolidated cash flow statement.

The company as lessor

Leases where the company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Leases
of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially retained by the company are classified as operating leases.
Rental income is recognized in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(L) INVENTORIES

inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing
them to their existing location and condition. The weighted average method is used in assigning the cost of inventories.

The cost of finished products and work in progress comprises raw materials, other production materizls, direct labor, other direct cost and an
allocation of fixed and variable overhead based on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated completion and selling costs.

inventories are written down on a case-by-case basis if the anticipated net realizable value declines below the carrying amount of the
inventories. The calculation of the net realizable value takes into consideration specific characteristics of each inventory category, such as
expiration date, remaining shelf life, slow-moving indicators, amongst others.

{M) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and generally
due for settlement within 30 days. Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of the consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized at adjusted for the time value of money. The company helds trade
and other receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method

Trade and other receivables are carried at amortized cost less impairment losses. To determine the appropriate amount to be impaired factors
such as significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will default, enter into bankruptcy or financial reorganization,
or delinquency in payments are considered.

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any impairment losses and foreign
exchange results are directly recognized in profit or loss.

(N} CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition that are readily convertible into cash. They are stated at face value, which approximates their fair value. In the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafis.

(O) IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If there is an indicater of impairment, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangibles with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually at
the cash-generating unit level (that is a country or group of countries managed as a group below a reporting region). An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the related cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognized in the income statement.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is determined as the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For an asset
that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. The recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite useful life belong
is based on discounted future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiarnes or
other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units firstly reduce allocated goodwill and then the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment losses

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carmrying amount that wouid have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if ho impairment loss had been recognized.
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(P} FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
A number of AB InBev's accounting policies and notes require fair value measurement for both financial and non-financial iterns.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. When measuring fair value, AB InBev uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

& Level 1: inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
& level 2: inputs are observable either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
* |evel 3: fair value measurements incorporates significant inputs that are based on uncbservabie market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The company applies fair value measurement to the instruments listed below.

Derivatives

The fair value of exchange traded derivatives (e.g. exchange traded foreign currency futures) is determined by reference to the official prices
published by the respective exchanges (e.g. the New York Board of Trade). The fair value of over-the-counter derivatives is determined by
commonly used valuation techniques.

Debt securities

This category includes both debt securnities designated at FVOCI and FVPL. The fair value is measured using observable inputs such as
interest rates and foreign exchange rates. When it pertains to instruments that are publicly traded, the fair value is determined by reference
to observable quotes. In circumstances where debt securities are not publicly traded, the main valuation technigue is the discounted cash
flow. The company may apply other valuation techniques or combination of valuation techniques if the fair value results are more relevant.

Equity securities designated as at FVOCI
Investments in equity securities comprse quoted and ungucted securities. When liquid quoted prices are available, these are used to fair
value investments in quoted securities. The unquoted securities are fair valued using primarily the discounted cash flow method.

Nen-derivative financial liabilities

The fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities is generally determined using unobservable inputs and therefore fall into level 3. In these
circumstances, the valuation technique used is discounted cash flow, whereby the projected cash flows are discounted using a risk adjusted
rate.

{Q) SHARE CAPITAL

Repurchase of share capital
When AB InBev buys back its own shares, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly atiributable costs, is recognized as a
deduction from equity under treasury shares.

Dividends

Dividends paid are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on the date that the dividends are declared unless minimum statutory
dividends are required by local legislation or the bylaws of the company's subsidiaries. In such instances, statutory minimum dividends are
recognized as a liability.

Share issuance costs
Incremental costs directiy attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(R} PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when (i) the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, (ii) it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and (iii} a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognized when the company has approved a detailed and formali restructuring plan, and the restructuring has
either commenced or has been announced publicly. Costs relating to the ongoing activities of the company are not provided for. The provision
includes the benefit commitments in connection with early retirement and redundancy schemes.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its ebligations under the contract. Such provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

Disputes and Litigations

A provision for disputes and litigation is recognized when it is more likely than not that the company will be required to make future payments
as a result of past events, such items may include but are not limited to, several claims, suits and actions relating to antitrust laws, violations
of distribution and license agreements, environmental matters, employment related disputes, ¢laims from tax autherities, and alcohol industry
litigation matters.
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(S) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions, post-employment life insurance and post-employment medical benefits. The company operates
a number of defined benefit and defined contribution plans throughout the world, the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-
managed funds. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from employees and the company, and, for defined benefit pians taking
account of the recommendations of independent actuaries. AB InBev maintains funded and unfunded pensicn plans.

a) Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined centribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement when incurred. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which AB InBev pays fixed contributions into a fund. AB InBev has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay ali employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

b} Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
penefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
For defined benefit plans, the pension expenses are assessed separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method. The projected
unit credit method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement. Under this methed, the cost of
providing pensions is charged to the income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service fives of employees in accordance
with the advice of qualified actuaries who carry out a full valuation of the plans at least every three years. The amounts charged te the income
statement include current service cost, net interest cost (income), past service costs and the effect of any curtailments or settlements. Past
service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment / curtailment occurs or when the company recognizes related restructuring
or termination costs. The pension obligations recognized in the batance sheet are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates based on high quality corporate bond yields, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
liability. less the fair value of any plan assels. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets {excluding net interest} are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the
statement of comprehensive income. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or foss in subsequent periods.

Where the calculated amount of a defined benefit liability is negative (an asset), AB InBev recognizes such pension asset to the extent that
economic benefits are available to AB InBev either from refunds or reductions in future contributions.

Other post-employment obligations

Some of AB InBev's companies provide post-employment medical benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually based
on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
using an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense at the earlier when the company is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withcrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date and when the company recognizes costs
for a restructuring. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized if the company has made an offer encouraging voluntary
redundancy and when the company can no longer withdraw the offer of termination, which is the earlier of either when the employee accepts
the offer or when a legal, regulatory or contractual requirement or restriction on the company's ability lo withdraw the offer takes effect.

Bonuses

Bonuses received by company employees and management are based on pre-defined company and individual target achievement. The
estimated amount of the bonus is recognized as an expense in the period the bonus is eamed. To the extent that bonuses are settled in
shares of the company, they are accounted for as share-based payments.

(T) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Different share and share option programs allow company senior management and members of the board to acquire shares of the company
and some of its affiliates. The fair value of the share options is estimated at grant date, using an option pricing model that is most appropriate
for the respective option. Based on the expected number of options that will vest, the fair value of the options granted is expensed over the
vesting period. When the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds received.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the company obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

(U} INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount
being recognized in the income statement (in accretion expense) over the expected life of the instrument on an effective interest rate basis.

(V} TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
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(W) INCOME TAX

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is also recognized directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes deferred taxes are provided using the so-called balance sheet liability method. This means that, for
all taxable and deductible differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts in the balance sheet a deferred
tax liability or asset is recognized. Under this methed a provision for deferred taxes is alse made for differences between the fair values of
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination and their tax base. IAS 12 prescribes that no deferred taxes are recognized (i) on
initial recognition of goodwill, (i} at the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit and (iii} on differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not
reverse in the foreseeable future and to the extent that the company is able to control the timing of the reversal. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settiement of the carrying amount of assets and labilities, using currently or
substantively enacted tax rates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceabie right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The company recognizes defemred tax assets, including assets arising from losses carried forward, to the extent that future probable taxable
profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized. A deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Tax claims are recorded within provisions on the balance sheet (refer to accounting policy R).
(X) INCOME RECOGNITION

Goods sold

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied, meaning when
the company transfers controt of a product to a customer.

Specifically, revenue recognition foliows the following five-step approach:

* |dentification of the contracts with a customer

® |dentification of the performance obligations in the contracts

* Determination of the transaction price

*  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
* Revenue recognition when performance obligations are satisfied

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the amount that reflects the best estimate of the consideration expected to receive in exchange
for those goods. Contracts can include significant variable elements, such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions,
incentives, perfermance bonuses and penalties. Such trade incentives are treated as variable consideration. If the consideration includes a
variable amount, the company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer. Variable consideration is only included in the transaction price if it is highly probable that the amourt of
revenue recognized would not be subject to significant future reversals when the uncertainty is resolved.

Royalty income

The company recognizes the sales-based or usage-based royalties in other operating income when the later of the following events occurs:
{a) the customer’'s subsequent sales or usage; and {b) the performance obligation to which some or all of the sales-based or usage-based
royalty has been aliocated has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

Rental income
Rental income is recognized in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Government grants

A government grant is recognized in the balance sheet initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that it will be received
and that the company will comply with the conditions attached te it. Grants that compensate the company for expenses incurrad are recognized
as other operating income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the company
for the acquisition of an asset are presented by deducting them from the acquisition cost of the related asset.

Finance income

Finance income comprises interest received or receivable on funds invested, dividend income, foreign exchange gains, losses on currency
hedging instruments offsetting currency gains, gains on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, gains on
financial assets measured at FVPL as well as any gains from hedge ineffectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

Interest income is recognized as it accrues (taking into account the effective vield on the asset} unless collectability is in doubt.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in the income statement on the date that the dividend is declared.
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{(Y) EXPENSES

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise interest payable on borrowings, calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange losses, gains
on currency hedging instruments offsetting currency losses, resuits on interest rate hedging instruments, losses on hedging instruments that
are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, losses on financial assets classified as trading, impairment losses on financial assets as well
as any losses from hedge ineflectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

All interest costs incurred in connection with borrowings or financial transactions are expensed as incurred as part of finance costs. Any
difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount of interest-bearing loans and borrowings, such as transaction costs and fair
value adjustments, are recognized in the income statement (in accretion expense) over the expected life of the instrument on an effective
interest rate basis (refer to accounting policy V). The interest expense component of lease payments is also recognized in the income
statement {in accretion expense) using the effective interest rate method.

Research and development, advertising and promotional costs and systems development costs

Research, advertising and promotional costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred. Development costs and systems
development costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred if they do not meet the criteria for capitalization (refer to
accounting policy G}).

Purchasing, receiving and warehousing costs

Purchasing and receiving costs are included in the cost of sales, as well as the costs of storing and moving raw materials and packaging
materials. The costs of storing finished products at the brewery as well as costs incurred for subsequent storage in distribution centers are
included within distribution expenses.

{Z) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

AB InBev uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the transactional impact of foreign currencies, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices on the company’s performance. AB InBev's financial risk management policy prohibits the use of derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes and the company does therefore not hold or issue any such instruments for such purposes.

Classification and measurement

Except for certain trade receivables, the company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of the financial asset. Debt financial
instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVOCI or FVPL. The classification is based on two criteria: the objective of the
company’s business model for managing the assels; and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of
principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding (the ‘SPPI criterion’}.

The classification and measurement of the company's financial assets is as follows:

e Debt instruments at amortized cost: comprise investments in debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest and the company’s business modet is to collect contractual cash flows. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and any impairment charges for such instruments are recognized in profit or loss.

*  Debt instruments at FVOCI with gains or losses recycled to profit or loss on derecognition: comprise investments in debt securities
where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the company’'s business model is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and any impairment
charges on such instruments are recognized in profit or loss. All other fair value gains and lesses are recognized in other comprehensive
income. On disposal of these debt securities, any related balance within FVOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

®  Equity instruments designated at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition: these instruments are
undertakings in which the company does not have significant influence or control and is generally evidenced by ownership of less than
20% of the voting rights. The company designates these investments on an instrument by instrument basis as equity securities at FVOCI
because they represent investments held for long term strategic purposes. Investments in unquoted companies are subsequently
measured at cost, when appropriate. These investments are non-monetary items and gains or losses presented in the other
comprehensive income include any related foreign exchange component. Dividends received are recognized in the profit or loss. These
investments are not subject to impairment testing and upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss accumulated in other comprehensive
income are nat reclassified to profit or loss.

® Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL: comprise derivative instruments and equity instruments which were not designated as FVOCI.
This category also includes debt instruments which do not mest the cash flow or the business model tests.

Hedge accounting

The company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with highly probable
forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. To hedge changes in the fair value
of recognized assets, liabilities and firm commitments, the company designates certain derivatives as part of fair value hedge. The company
also designates certain derivatives and non-derivative financial liabilities as hedges of foreign exchange risk on a net investment in a foreign
operation.

At the inception of the hedging relationships, the company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.
Hedge effectiveness is measured at the inception of the hedge relationship and through pericdic prospective effectiveness assessments to
ensure that an economic relationship exists between hedged item and hedging instrument.

For the different type of hedges in place. the company generally enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging
instrument match exactly the terms of the hedged item. Therefore, the hedge ratio is typically 1:1. The company performs a qualitative
assessment of effectiveness. In circumstances where the terms of the hedged item no longer exactly match the critical terms of the hedging
instrument, the company uses a hypothetical derivative method to assess effectiveness. Possible sources of ineffectiveness are changes in
the timing of the forecasted transaction, changes in the guantity of the hedged item or changes in the credit risk of either parties to the
derivative contract.
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Cash flow hedge accounting
Cash flow hedge accounting is applied when a derivative hedges the variability in cash flows of a highly probable forecasted transaction,
foreign currency risk of a firm commitment or a recognized asset or liability (such as variable interest rate instrument).

When the hedged forecasted transaction or firm commitment subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserves is included directly in the initiai carrying amount of the non-financial item when il is recognized.

For all other hedged transactions, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserves is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period during
which the hedged item affects profit or loss (e.g. when the variable interest expense is recognized).

When a hedging instrument or hedge relationship is terminated but the hedged transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss (at that point) remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.

Any ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value hedge accounting

When a derivative hedges the variabitity in fair value of a recognized asset or liability (such as a fixed rate instrument} or a firm commitment,
any resulting gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in the profit or loss. The carrying amount of the hedged item is also adjusted
for fair value changes in respect of the risk being hedged, with any gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. The fair value adjustment to
the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortized to profit or loss from the date of discontinuation.

Net investment hedge accounting
When a non-derivative foreign currency liability hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, exchange differences arising on the translation
of the liability {o the functional currency are recognized directly in other comprehensive income {translation reserves).

When a derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, the portion of the gain or the loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be effective is recognized directly in other comprehensive income (translation reserves) and is reclassified to
profit or loss upon disposal of the foreign operation, while the ineffective portion is reported in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and cnly when,
the company has a currently legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

(AA) SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are components of the company's business activities about which separate financial information is available that is
evaluated regularly by senior management. The company has six operating segments.

AB InBev's operating segment reporting format is geographical because the company’s risks and rates of return are affected predominantly
by the fact that AB InBev operates in different geographical areas. The company’'s management structure and internal reporting system to the
Board of Directors is set up accordingly. The company’s five geographic regions are North America, Middle Americas, South America, EMEA
and Asia Pacific.

The aggregation criteria applied are based on similarities in the economic indicators (e.g. margins) that have been assessed in determining
that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic characteristics, as prescribed in IFRS 8. Furthermore, management assessed
additional factors such as management's views on the optimal number of reporting segments, AB InBev historical geographies, peer
comparison (e.g. Asia Pacific and EMEA being a commonly reported regions amongst the company’s peers), as well as management's view
on the optimal balance between practical and more granular information.

The results of Global Export and Holding Companies, which includes the company's global headquarters and the export businesses in
countries in which AB InBev has no operations are reported separately. The company's five geographic regions plus the Global Export and
Holding Companies comprise the company’s six reportable segments for financial reporiing purposes.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other
than goodwill.

(BB} NON-RECURRING ITEMS

Non-recurring items are those that in management’s judgment need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence. Such items
are disclosed on the face of the consolidated income statement or separately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Transactions
which may give rise to non-recurring items are principally restructuring activities, impairments, gains or losses on disposal of investments and
the effect of the accelerated repayment of certain debt facilities.

(CC) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

A discontinued operation is a component of the company that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations and is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

AB InBev classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its cammying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use if all of the conditions of IFRS 5 are met. A disposal group is defined as a group of assets to
be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that wilt
be transferred. immediately before classification as held for sale, the company measures the carrying amount of the asset (or all the assets
and liabilities in the disposal group} in accordance with applicable IFRS. Then, on initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets and
disposal groups are reccgnized at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as
held for sale are included in profit or loss. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent re-measurement. Non-current assets classified
as held for sale are no longer depreciated or amortized.
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(DD) RECENTLY ISSUED IFRS

To the extent that new IFRS requirements are expected lo be applicable in the future, they have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated restated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2019, and have not been discussed either
because of their non-applicability or immateriality to AB InBev's consolidated financial statements.

4. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The eslimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying vatues of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or, if the revision affects both current and future pericds, in the
peariod of the revision and future periods.

Although each of its significant accounting policies reflects judgments, assessments or gstimates, AB InBev believes that the following
accounting policies reflect the most critical judgments, estimates and assumptions that are important to its business operations and
understanding results: business combinations, intangible assets, goodwill, impairment, provisions, share-based payments, employee benefits
and accounting for current and deferred tax.

The fair values of acquired identifiable intangibles are based on an assessment of future cash flows. Impairment analyses of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are performed annually and whenever a triggering event has occurred, in order to determine whether the
carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. These calculations are based on estimates of future cash flows.

The company uses its judgment to select a variety of metheds including the discounted cash flow method and option valuation models and
makes assumptions about the fair value of financial instruments that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date.

Actuarial assumptions are established to anticipate future events and are used in calculating pension and other long-term employee benefit
expenses and liabilities. These factors include assumptions with respect to interest rates, rates of increase in health care costs, rates of future
compensation increases, tumover rates, and life expectancy.

The company is subject to income tax in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required to determine the worldwide provision for
income tax. There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Some subsidiaries within the
group are involved.in tax audits and local enquiries usually in telation to prior years. Investigations and negotiations with local tax authorities
are ongoing in varous jurisdictions at the balance sheet date and, by their nature, these can take considerabie time to conclude. In assessing
the amount of any income tax provisions to be recognized in the financial statements, estimates are made of the expected successful
settlement of these matters. Estimates of interest and penalties on tax habilities are also recorded. Where the final outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the currert and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period that such determination is made.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the following year are further discussed in the relevant notes hereafter.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the significant judgments made by management in applying the company’s accounting
policies and the key sources of uncertainty relate mainly to the following: the reporting of the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes'
existing Russia and Ukraine businesses into AB InBev Efes which closed on 30 March 2018; the adoption of hyperinflation accounting for the
company's Argentingan operations; the reporting of proceeds from the public offering of a minority stake in the company’s Asia Pacific
subsidiary. Budweiser Brewing Company APAC Limited (‘Budweiser APAC”); and the reporting of its Australian operations as assets held for
sale as discussed below.

(A) MERGER OF BUSINESSES IN RUSSIA AND UKRAINE WITH ANADOLU EFES

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev announced the completion of the 50:50 merger of its Russia and Ukraine businesses with those of Anadolu
Efes. Following completion, the company’s operations in Russia and Ukraine and those of Anadolu Efes are fully combined under a new
cofmpany called AB InBev Efes. The combined business is fully consolidates into Anadolu Efes financial accounts. AB InBev has stopped
consolidating the results of these operations as of the second quarter 2018 and account for its investment in AB inBev Efes under the equity
method. Refer to Note 6 Acquisitions and dispasals of Subsidiaries and Note 16 Investments in associates.
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(B) HYPERINFLATION IN ARGENTINA

In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation, resulting in Argentina’s three-year cumulative inflation exceeding 100%
in 2018, and thus requiring a transition to hyperinflation accounting as of 1 January 2018, as required by IAS 29 Firancial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies. The main principle in 1AS 29 is that the financial statements of an entity that reports in the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy must be stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, each of (1) the
non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost and (2) the equity and the income statement of subsidiaries operating in
hyperinflationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency applying a general price index.
Monetary items that are already stated at the measuring unit at the end of the reporting pericd are not restated. These re-measured accounts
are used for conversion into US dollar at the period closing exchange rate.

Consequently, the company applied hyperinflation acceunting for its Argentinean subsidiaries for the first time in the year-to-date September
2018 unaudited condensed interim financial statements, with effect as of 1 January 2018. The |IAS 29 rules are applied as follows:

® Non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost {e.g. property plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, etc.) and
equity of Argentina were restated using an inflation index. The hyperinflation accounting impacts resulting from changes in the general
purchasing power from 1 January 2018 are reported in the income statement in a dedicated account for hyperinflation monetary
adjustments in the finance line (see also Note 11 Finance cost and income);

® The income statement is adjusted at the end of each reporting period using the change in the general price index. Itis converted at the
closing exchange rate of each period (rather than the year-to-date average rate which is used for non-hypennflationary economies),
thereby restating the year-to-date income statement account for both inflation index and currency conversion.

The 2019 results, restated for purchasing power, were translated at the December 2019 closing rate of 59.890668 Argentinean pesos per US
dollar {2018 results - at 37.807879 Argentinean pesos per US dollar).

(C) ANNOUNCED DIVESTITURE OF AUSTRALIA BUSINESS TO ASAHI

On 19 July 2019, AB InBev announced an agreement to divest its Australia business (Carlton & United Breweries) to Asahi for AUD 16.0
billion, equivalent to approximately USD 11.2 billion'. As part of this fransaction, the company will grant Asahi rights to commercialize its
portfolio of global and international brands in Australia. The transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2020, subject to customary
closing conditions, including but not limited to regulatory approvals in Australia.

Effective 30 September 2019, AB InBev classified the assets and liabilities associated with the Australian operations as assets held for sale
and liabilities associated with assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
In addition, since the results of the Australian operations represent a separate major line of business, these are now accounted for as
discontinued operations as required by IFRS 5 and presented in a separate line in the consolidated income statement {“profit from discontinued
operations”). Refer to Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

(D} LISTING OF BUDWEISER APAC ON THE HCNG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

On 30 September 2019, the company successfully completed the listing of a minority stake of its Asia Pacific subsidiary, Budweiser APAC,
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for USD 5.75 billion {including the exercise of an over-allotment option). On 3 October 2019, the over-
allotment option in connection with the initial public offering of a minority stake of Budweiser APAC was fully exercised. Following the full
exercise of the over-allotment option, AB InBev controls 87.22% of the issued share capital of Budweiser APAC. Refer to Note 23 Changes
in equity and eamings per share.

! Converted into US dollars at the December 2019 closing rate of 1.423803.
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6. Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

The table below summarizes the impact of acquisitions and disposals on the statement of financial position and cash flows of AB InBev for 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

2019 2018 2019

Million US doliar Acquisitions Acquisitions Disposals

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 44 2 1) (310)
Intangible assets 128 24 {29) (17)
Deferred tax assets - 23 - -
Trade and other receivables - - - (86)
Investments in associates {15) - - -

Current assets

Inventories 43 17 (7) (84)
Income tax receivables - - - (2)
Trade and cther receivables 19 2 (1) 79)
Cash and cash equivalents 40 & - (6)
Assets held for sale - - - (27)

Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (11 3) - -
Trade and other payables (110) - - -
Deferred tax liabilities (33) - 9 4

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (65) (19) 2 406
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 40 54 {27) (201}
Non-controlling interest {12) - 2 1
Guoodwill on acquisitions and goodwill disposed of 682 107 (22} (652)
Loss/(gain} on disposal - - 21} (15)
Consideration to be {paid)/received (275) {(112) - 47
Net cash paid on prior years acquisitions 16 68 (65) -
Recycling of CTA in respect of net assets - - - (584)
Contribution in kind - - - 1150
Consideration paid/{received} 451 17 {133} {254)
Cash (acquired)/disposed of (40} (5) - 3)
Net cash outflow / {inflow) 411 112 (133) (257)
Net cash outflow / {(inflow) on continuing operations 385 84 (133) (257)
Net cash outflow / (inflow) on discontinued operations 26 28 - -

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes' existing Russia and Ukraine businesses as
discussed in Note 4 (A). This transaction involved the contribution by AB inBev of its existing Russia and Ukraine businesses to AB InBev
Efes in exchange for a 50% ownership in AB InBev Efes. In line with IFRS, the contribution by AB InBev of its exisling Russia and Ukraine
businesses to AB InBev Efes, with AB InBev losing control, is accounted for as a deemed disposal and the 50% non-controlling interest AB
InBev received in AB InBev Efes in exchange for such contribution is accounted for as a deemed acquisition of an investment in associate,
with both acquisition and disposal measured at their fair value estimated at 1.15 billion US doliar representing the estimated value of the 50%
investment AB InBev will hold in AB InBev Efes after adjustment for net debt. See also Note 16 Investments in associates.

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev derecognized 573m US dollar net assels related to its former Russia and Ukraine businesses and recycled
584m US dollar from other comprehensive income to the consolidated income statement, resulting in a net exceptional, non-cash loss of 7Tm
US dollar (see also Note 8 Non-recurring itemns).

The company undertook a series of additional acquisitions and disposals during 2018 and 2019, with no significant impact in the company’s
consolidated financial statements.
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7. Other operating income/(expenses)

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Government grants 280 317
License income 30 45
Net (additions to)reversals of provisions (10) (1M
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and assets held for sale 172 80
Net rental and other operating income 402 374
Other operating incomef(expenses} 875 805

The government grants relate primarily o fiscal incentives given by certain Brazilian states and Chinese provinces, based on the company's
operations and developments in those regions.

In 2019, the company expensed 291m US dollar in research, compared to 276m US dollar in 2018. The spend focused on product innovations,
market research, as well as process optimization and product development.

8. Non-recurring items

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements requires that material items of income and expense be disclosed separately. Non-recurring items
are items that in management's judgment, need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence so that a user can obtain a proper
understanding of the company’s financial information. The company considers these items to be significant and accerdingly, management
has excluded them from their segment measure of performance as noted in Note 5 Segment Reporting.

The non-recurring items included in the income statement are as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Restructuring {(170) (363)
Acquisition costs business combinations (23) (73)
Business and asset disposal! (including impairment losses} (50) (26)
Brazil State tax regularization program (74) -
Cost related to public offering of minarity stake in Budweiser APAC (6) -
Provision for EU investigation - (230)
Impact on profit from operations (323) (692)
Non-recurring net finance income/{cost) 882 (1982)
Non-recurring taxes (6) 240
Non-recurring non-controlling interest 108 32
Net impact on profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 661 (2 402)

The non-recurring restructuring charges for 2019 total (170)m US dollar {2018: (363)m US dollar). These charges primarily relate to
organizational alignments. These changes aim to eliminate overlapping organizations or duplicated processes, taking into account the
matching of employee profiles with new organizational requirements. These exceptional expenses provide the company with a lower cost
base ang bring a stronger focus to AB InBev's core activities, quicker decision-making and improvements to efficiency, service and quality.

The acquisition costs of business combinations amount to (23)m US dollar in 2019, primarily related to cost incurred to facilitate the
combination with SAB (2018: {73)m US doflar).

Business and asset disposals amount to (50)m US dollar in 2019, mainly comprising of costs incurred in relation to the announced divestiture
of the Australia business. Business and assel disposals amounted to (26)m US dollar in 2018, mainly related to the costs incurred related to
the IFRS treatment of the 50:50 merger of AB inBev's and Anadolu Efes' Russia and Ukraine businesses and the related transaction costs
(see also Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries).

In 2019, Ambev made a payment of (74)m US dollar to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax (ICMS) Amnesty
Program in Brazil in accordance with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization Program.

The company incumred 117m US dollar in fees related to the initial public offering of a minority stake of Budweiser APAC, its Asia Pacific
subsidiary, of which 6m US dollar were reported in the income statement and 111m US dollar were capitalized in equity. In addition, the
company has also reported 58m US doliar stamp duties in equity that are directly attributable to the public offering of Budweiser APAC.

In 2016, the European Commission anncunced an investigation into alleged abuse of a dominant position by AB InBev in Belgium through
certain practices aimed at restricting trade from other European Union member states to Belgium. In connection with these proceedings, a
provision of 230m US was recognized in 2018 and settled in 2019. Refer also to Note 27 Provisions.

The company incurred non-recurring net finance income of 882m US dollar for 2019 (2018: (1 982)m US dollar cost) — see Note 11 Finance
cost and income.

All the amounts referenced above are hefore income taxes. The non-recurring items as of 31 December 2019 increased income taxes by
6m US dollar and decreased income taxes by 240m US dollar in 2018. Nen-controlling interest on the non-recurring items amounts to 108m
US dollar in 2019 (2018: 32m US dollar).
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9. Payroll and related benefits

Wages and salaries (4 563) (4 638)
Social security contributions (683) (694)
Other personnel cost (678) (708)
Pension expense for defined benefit plans (193} (192}
Share-based payment expense (340) (353)
Contributions to defined contribution plans (101} {109}
Payroll and related benefits {6 558) {6 694)

The number of fuli time equivalents can be spiit as follows:

2019 2018

AB InBev NV (parent company) 204 180
Other subsidiaries 171711 172 596
Total number of FTE 171915 172776

10. Additional information on operating expenses by nature

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges are included in the following line items of the 2019 consolidated income statement:

Depreciation and
impairment of Amortization and Depreciation and

property, plant and impairment of impairment of Impairment of
Million US dollar equipment _intangible assets ight-of-use asset yoodwill
Cost of sales 2751 86 "
Distribution expenses 155 4 181 -
Sales and marketing expenses 379 247 160 -
Administrative expenses 277 290 98 -
Other operating expenses ] - - -

Depreciation, amortization

and impairment 3570 627 s B

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges are included in the following line items of the 2018 restated consolidated income statement:

Depreciation and
impairment of Amortization and Depreciation and

property, plant and impairment of impairment of Impairment of
Million US dollar (restated) equipment intangible assets  right-of-use asset goodwill
Cost of sales 2 807 67 - -
Distribution expenses 166 3 186 -
Sales and marketing expenses 414 165 153 -
Administrative expenses 285 254 116 -
Gther operating expenses 8 - - -

Depreciation, amortization

R . 3680 489 455 -
and impaimment

The depreciation, amortization and impairment of property, plant and equipment included a full-cost reallocation of 5m US dollar in 2019 from
the aggregate depreciation, amortization and impairment expense to cost of goods sold (2018: Tm US dollar).
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The finance costs included in the income statement are as follows:

Million US dollar

2019 2018 restated

Interest expense (4 168} (4 141)
Capitalization of borrowing costs 18 23
Net interest on net defined benefit liabilities (95) (94)
Accretion expense (650) (5%1)
Net losses on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship (393) (449)
Net foreign exchange results (net of the effect of foreign exchange derivative instruments) (180) 19
Tax on financial transactions (79) (110)
Net mark-to-market results on derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs 898 (1774)
Other financial costs, including bank fees (225) {242)
Finance costs, excluding non-recurring itermns {4 873) (7 279)
Non-recurring finance cost (222) (1982)
Finance costs {5 095) (9 261)

Finance income included in the income statement is as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated

Interest income 410 333
Hyperinflation menetary adjustments 86 46
Other financial income 21 56
Finance income, excluding non-recurring items 518 435
Mon-recurring finance income 1104 -
Finance income 1622 435

Finance costs, excluding non-recurring items, decreased by 2 406m US dollar compared to 2018 mainly as a result of mark-to-market on
certain derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs. In 2019, the mark-to-market on such derivatives amounted to a
gain of 898m US dollar (2018: 1 774m US dollar loss).

Borrowing costs capitalized relate to the capitalization of interest expenses directly attributable to the acquisitien and construclion of qualifying
assets mainly in China and Secuth Africa. Interest is capitalized at a borrowing rate ranging from 3% 10 4%.

In 2019, accretion expense includes interest on lease liabilities of 124m US dollar {2018: 111m US dollar).

Interest expenses is presented net of the effect of interest rate derivative instruments hadging AB InBev's intarest rate risk — see also Note 29
Risks arising from financial instruments.

Non-recurring finance cost for 2019 includes:

® 188m US dollar write-off on the company’s investment in Delta Corporation Ltd following the entry of Zimbabwe in a hyperinflation
economy;

*  34m US dollar of interest paid to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax ({CMS} Amnesty Program in Brazil
in accordance with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization Program.

Non-recurring finance income for 2019 includes:

®  445m US dollar resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on derivative instruments entered inte to hedge the shares issued in relation
to the combination with Grupo Modelo (2018: 873m US dollar loss). See also Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share;

®  433m US dollar resuiting from mark-to-market adjustments on derivatives entered into to hedge the restricted shares issued in
connection with the combination with SAB (2018: 849m US dollar loss);

® 226m US dollar gains resulting from the early termination of certain bonds, income related to the reduction of deferred considerations
on acquisitions and foreign exchange translation gains on intragroup loans that were historically reported in equity and were recycled
to profit and loss account upon the reimbursement of these loans (2018: 260m US dollar less).

Ne interest income was recognized on impaired financial assets.
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The interest income stems from the following financial assets:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 237 256
Investment debt securities held for trading 9 22
Other loans and receivables 164 55
Total 410 333

The interest income on other loans and receivables includes the interest accrued on cash deposits given as guarantees for cerain lega!
proceedings pending resolution
For further information on instruments hedging AB InBev's foreign exchange risk see Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

12. Income taxes

Income taxes recognized in the income statement can be detailed as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Current year {2 863} (2 704)
{(Underprovided)overprovided in prior years 58 101
Current tax expense {2 805) {2 603)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 21) (148)
(Utilization)/recognition of deferred tax assets on tax losses 13 120
Recaognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 27 46
Deferred tax (expense)/income 19 18
Total income tax expense (2 786) {2 585)
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The reconciliation of the effective tax rate with the aggregated weighted nominal tax rate can be summarized as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Profit before tax 12776 7741
Deduct share of result of associates and joint ventures 152 153
Profit before tax and before share of result of associates and joint ventures 12 624 7 588

Adjustments on taxable basis

Govemment incentives (709} (742)
Non-deductible/{(non-taxable ) marked to market on derivatives (1776) 3496
Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1223 1796
Other non-taxable income (282) (158)

11 080 11 980
Aggregated weighted nominal tax rate 28.2% 26.5%
Tax at aggregated weighted nominal tax rate {2 901) (3172)

Adjustments on tax expense

Utilization of tax losses not previously recognized 13 120
Recognition of deferred taxes assets on previous years' tax losses 27 46
I\I\Irile-down of deferred tax assets on tax Iosses~and current year (137) {125}
osses for which no deferred tax asset is recognized
(Underprovided }foverprovided in prior years 58 101
Deductions from interest on equity 666 47
Deductions from goodwill 20 17
Other tax deductions 259 400
US Tax reform (change in tax rate and other) - 116
Change in tax rate (95) 144
Withholding taxes (505) (403}
Other tax adjustments (191} (300)
(2 786) (2 585)
Effective tax rate 22.1% 34.1%

The total income tax expense for 2019 amounts to 2 786m US dollar compared to 2 585m US dollar for 2018. The effective tax rate decreased
from 34.1% for 2018 to 22.1% for 2019. The 2019 effective tax rate was positively impacted by non-taxable gains from derivatives related to
the hedging of share-based payment programs and the hedging of the shares issued in a transaction related to the combination with Grupo
Modelo and SAB. The 2018 effective tax rate was negatively impacted by non-deductible losses from these derivatives.

During 2018, the company finalized the re-measurement of current and deferred taxes resulting from the US Tax reform enacted on 22
December 2017, based on published regulation and guidance. Such remeasurement resulted in an adjustment of 116m US dollar in 2018 to
the reported current and deferred taxes.

The company benefits from tax exempted income and tax credits which are expected to continue in the future. The company does not have
significant benefits coming from low tax rates in any particular jurisdiction.

The normalized effective tax rate for the period ended 31 December 2019 is 23.0% (2018: 27.5%)}. Normalized effective tax rate is not an
accounting measure under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an alternative to the effective tax rate.

Normalized effective tax rate method does not have a standard calculation method and AB InBev's definition of normalized effective tax rate
may not be comparable to other companies.

Income taxes were directly recognized in other comprehensive income as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits 19 22
Cash flow and net investment hedges 88 108
Income tax (losses)/gains 107 130
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprises owned and leased assets, as follows:

31 Decernber 31 December

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Properly, pfant and equipment owned 25 515 25638
Property, plant and equipment leased (right-of-use assets) 2029 1977
Total property, plant and equipment 27 544 27 615

31 December
31 December 2019 e 2018 restated’
Plant and

egquipment,
Land and  fixtures and Under
Million US dollar buildings fittings construction

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of pravious year 12 155 33 540 2274 47 969 48 297
Effect of movemaents in foreign exchange (94} {374} {17 {485} (3 086;
Acquisitions 48 1236 3167 4 451 4 342
Acquisitions through business combinations - 22 2 24 2
Disposals (208) (77N 2) (1987) (1474)
Disposals through the sale of subsidgiaries (1) (3) - (4) (1128)

Transter (to)/from other asset categories

and other movements? 316 1737 (3 264) (1211} 1014
Balance at end of the period 12 218 34 381 2160 48 757 47 969
Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year {3 450) (18 881) - (22 331) (21 414)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 40 270 - 310 1392
Depreciation (409) (2961) - (3 370) {3530}
Disposals 119 1615 - 1734 i 248
Dispasals through the sale of subsidiaries 1 2 - 3 818
Impairment losses (1 (86) - (87} (91}
Z;?:gsgfgsd a(ggrgt)hc:? r‘:o?lsesn?:ants‘ %6 403 . 499 (755)
Balance at end of the period (3 604) (19 638) - (23 242) {22 331)
Carrying amount

at 31 December 2018 8704 14 659 2274 25 638 25 638
at 31 December 2019 8 612 14 743 2160 25 515 -

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 625m US dollar in property, plant and equipment to assets held
for sale as at 31 December 2019 — see Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, labilities associated with assets held for sale and
discontinued operations.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of praperty, plant and eguipment subject to restrictions on title amounted 1o 4m US dollar (31
December 2018: 8m US dollar).

Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment amounted to 457m US dollar as at 31 December 2019 compared to
416m US dollar as at 31 December 2018.

! The 2018 balances have been restated to reflect the impact of adoption of {FRS 16 under the full retrospective appiication. As required by IFRS §, the Australia
property, plant and equipment balances for the Australia operations were reciassified to assets held for sale as at 31 December 2019 without restatement of 2018
balances.

2 The transfer (to)from other asset categories and other movements relates mainly to transfers from assets under construetion to their respective asset categories,
to contributions of assets ta pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of property, plant and equipment held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations ang to the restatement of non-monetary assets under hyperinfiation accounting in iine with
|AS 29 Financial reporting in hyperinfiationary economies. Accordingly, the 2019 transfers inclyde the balances of Australian operations reclassified to assets held
for sale as at 31 December 2019.
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AR inBev's net capital expenditures in the statement of cash flow amounted to 4 854m US doilar in 2019 and 4 568m US dollar in 2018. Out
of the total 2019 capital expenditures approximately 42% was used to improve the company’s production facilities while 43% was used for
logistics and commercial investments and 15% for improving administrative capabilities and for the purchase of hardware and software.

Property, plant and equipment leased by the company (right-of-use assets)} is detailed as follows:

Machinery,

Land and equipment

Million US dollar buildings and other
Net carrying amount at 31 December 1723 306 2029
Depreciation for the period (329) (160} (489)

2018 restated

Machinery,

Land and equipment

Million US dollar buildings and other
Net carrying amount at 31 December 1624 353 1977
Depreciation for the period (318) {150} (4568}

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 84m US dollar right-of-use assets to assets held for sale — see
Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

Following the sale of Dutch and Belgian pub real estate to Cofinimmo in October 2007, AB InBev entered into lease agreements with a term
of 27 years. These lease agreements will mature in November 2034. Furthermore, the company leases a number of warehouses, lrucks,
factory facilities and other commercial buildings, which typically run for a period of five to ten years. Lease payments are increased annually
to reflect market rentals, if applicable. None of the leases include contingent rentals.

Additions to right-of-use assets during 2019 were 420m US dollar (2018: 215m US dollar). The expense related to short-term and low-value
leases and variable lease payments that are not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities is not significant. In 2019, AB InBev
recognized right-of-use assets on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 12m US dollar (2018: nil) — see also note 8 Acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries.

The company leases cut pub real estate for an average outstanding period of 6 to 8 years and part of its own property under operating leases.
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14. Goodwill
Miltion US doilar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Acquisition cost

Batance at end of previous year 133 316 140 980
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 53 (7 541)
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries (22) (652}
Acquisitions through business combinations 582 107
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments 171 435
Reclassified as held for sale {6 081) (13)
Balance at end of the period 128 119 133 316

Impairmert losses

Bafance at end of previous year (3} (40}
Impairment losses - -
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - 35
Balance at end of the period (3) %)

Carrying amount
at 31 December 2018 133 311 133 311
at 31 December 2019 128 114

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 6 081m US dollar goodwill to assels held for sale — see Note
22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

In 2019, AB InBev recognized goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 682m US dollar (2018: 107m US dollar) — see also Note 6 Acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries.

Effective 1% of January 2019 AB InBev adopted a new organizational structure resulting in a change in cash-generating units. Furthermore,
following the closing in 2019 of a new bottling agreement with the Coca-Cola Group in Honduras and El Salvador and changes in the operating
model of the soft drinks business acquired through the SAB combination, the company re-aliocated 3.0 Bio US dollar goodwill to the Rest of
Middle Americas CGU and reduced the amount of goodwill previously allocated to the South Africa and Rest of Africa CGUs by 2.2 biflion US
dollar and 0.8 billion US dollar, respectivaly.

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB inBev's and Anadolu Efes' existing Russia and Ukraine businesses. Following
this merger, the company derecognized ts Russian and Ukrainian el assuts including goodwill (scc MNote 6 Acquisitions and disposals nf
subsidiaries).

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the different cash-generating units as follows:

Million US dollar

Cash-generating unit 2019 2018’
United States 33451 33288
Rest of North America 1984 1881
Mexico 13175 12614
Colombia 18 647 18 796
Rest of Middle Americas 25 257 21969
Brazil 4539 4715
Rest of South America 111 1139
Europe 2277 2222
South Africa 13 500 15910
Rest of Africa 6 691 7701
China 3095 2758
Rest of Asia Pacific’ 4 397 10 308
Total carrying amount of goodwill 128 114 133 311

A significant portion of the goodwill was recorded in connection with the 2016 combination with SAB.

AB InBev completed its annual impairment test for goodwill and concluded that, based on the assumptions described below, no impairment
charge was warranted,

The company ¢annot predict whether an event that triggers impairment will occur, when it will occur or how it will affect the value of the asset
reported. Goodwill impairment testing relies on a number of critical judgments, estimates and assumptions. AB inBev believes that all of its

! The 2018 presentation has been restated following the change in cash-generating units effective as of 1 January 2018.
2 The balance attributable to the Rest of Asia Pacific CGU as at 31 December 2018 includes the Australia operations’ goodwill reclassified to assets held for sale
as at 31 December 2019.
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estimates are reasonable: they are consistent with the company's intemal reporting and reflect management’s best estimates. However,
inherent uncertainties exist that management may not be able to control. If the company's current assumptions and estimates, including
projected revenues growth rates, competitive and consumer trends, weighted average cost of capital, terminal growth rates, and other market
factors, are not met, or if valuation factors outside of the company’s control change unfavorably, the estimated fair value of goodwill could be
adversely affected, leading to a potential impairment in the future.

During its valuation, the company ran sensitivity analysis for key assumptions including the weighted average cost of capital and the terminal
growth rate, in particular for the valuations of Colombia, Rest of Middle Americas and South Africa cash-generating units that show the highest
invested capital to EBITDA multiple. While a change in the estimates used could have a material impact on the calculation of the fair values
and trigger an impairment charge, the company, based on the sensitivity analysis performed is not aware of any reasonably possible change
in a key assumption used that would cause a cash-generating unit's carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Goodwill, which accounted for approximately 54% of AB InBev total assets as at 31 December 2019, is tested for impairment at the cash-
generating unit level (that is cne level below the operating segments). The cash-generating unit level is the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Except in cases where the initial allocation of goodwill has not been concluded by the end of
the initial reporting period following the business combination, goodwill is allocated as from the acquisiticn date to each of AB InBev’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination whenever a business combination occurs.

AB InBev's impairment testing methodology is in accordance with IAS 36, in which fair-value-less-cost-to-sell and value in use approaches
are taken into consideration. This consists in applying a discounted free cash flow approach based on acquisition valuation models for the
cash-generating units showing an invested capital to EBITDA multiple above 8x angd valuation multiples for the other cash-generating units.

The key judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the discounted free cash flow calculations are generally as follows:

® In the first three years of the model, free cash flows are based on AB InBev's strategic plan as approved by key management. AB
InBev's strategic plan is prepared per cash-generating unit and is based on external sources in respect of macro-economic assumptions,
industry, inflation and foreign exchange rates, past experience and identified initiatives in terms of market share, revenue, variable and
fixed cost, capital expenditure and working capital assumptions;

* For the subsequent seven years of the model, data from the strategic plan is extrapolated generally using simplified assumptions such
as macro-economic and industry assumptions, variable cost per hectoliter and fixed cost linked to inflation, as obtained from external

sources,;

* Cash flows after the first ten-year period are exirapolated generally using expected annual long-term GDP growth rates, based on
external sources, in order to calculate the terminal value, considering sensitivities on this metric,

* Projections are discounted at the unit's weighted average cost of capital (WACC), considering sensitivities on this metric;
* Costto sell is assumed to reach 2% of the entity value based on historical precedents.
For the main cash generating units, the terminal growth rate applied generally ranged between 3% and 5%.

For the cash generating units subject to a discounted free cash flow approach, the WACC applied in US dollar nominal terms were as follows:

Cash-generating unit 2019 2018
Colombia 6% 7%
Rest of Middle Americas 9% 9%
South Africa 7% 8%
Rest of Africa 10% 11%

In the sensitivity analysis performed by management, an adverse change of 1% in WACC would not cause a cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The above calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly-traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators (i.e. recent market transactions from peers).
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15. Intangible assets

31 December
31 December 2019 2018’

Commercial
Million US dollar Brands intangibles Software Other

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 42 133 2949 2692 691 48 465 48 871
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (13} (34) (29) (3) {79) {1 765)
Acquisitions through business combinations 88 - 5 6 99 24
Acquisitions and expenditures - 200 13 228 631 668
Disposals - (120) (136) (3) (259) (96)
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries {29) - - - (29} {47}
l’tr:;s:::)‘%:ri::tr:zother asset categones and (2 105) (311} (51) (253) (2 720) 810
Balance at end of period 40074 2774 2594 666 46 108 48 465
Amortization and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (32j (1479) (2 002 (121§ (3 634) (2 997)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 24 16 1 41 164
Amortization - {239} (322) (61) (6522) (445)
Disposals - 117 135 2 254 14
Disposals through the saie of subsidiaries - - - - - 30
Transfer tol(from)‘other asset categories and ) (18) 322 1 305 (400)
other movements

Balance at end of period (32) {159%) (1851) {(178) (3 656) (3 634)
Carrying value

at 31 December 2018 42101 1470 690 570 44 831 44 831
at 31 December 2019 40 042 1179 743 488 42 452

As a result of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, the company reclassified 2 727m US dollar intangible assets to assets held for sale —
sge Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

During 2019, AB InBev recognized intangible assets on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 128m US dollar (2018: 24m US dollar) out of which
29m US dollar relates to acquisitions in Australia subsequently tranferred to assets held for sale - see also Note 6 Acquisitions and disposais
of subsidiaries.

On 2 May 2018, AB InBev recovered the Budweiser distribution rights in Argentina from CCU. The transaction involved the transfer of the
Isenbeck, iguana, Dicsa, Norte and Baltica brands, along with a cash payment of 306m US dollar and other commitments, to CCU Argentina.
The Budweiser distribution rights have been assigned an indefinite useful life.

AB InBev is the owner of some of the world's maost valuable brands in the beer industry. As a result, brands and certain distribution rights are
expected 1o generate positive cash flows for as long as the company owns the brands and distribution rights. Given AB InBev's more than
600-year history, brands and certain distribution rights have been assigned indefinite lives.

Acquisitions and expenditures of commercial intangibles mainly represent supply and distribution rights, exclusive multi-year sponsecrship
rights and other commercial intangibles.

Intangible assets with indefinite usefu! lives are comprised primarily of brands and certain distribution rights that AB InBev purchases for its
own products, and are tested for impairment during the fourth quarter of the year or whenever a triggering event has occurred.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the intangible assets amounted to 42 452m US dollar (31 December 2018: 44 831m US
dollar) of which 40 181m US dollar was assigned an indefinite useful life (31 December 2018: 42 435m US dollar} and 2 271m US dollar a
finite life (31 December 2018: 2 396m US dollar).

t As required by IFRS 5, the intangible assets balances of the Australia operations were reclassified to assets held for sale as at 31 December 2019 without
restatement of the 2018 balances.

2 The transfer (to)from other asset categories and other movements mainly relates ta transfers from assets under construction to their respective asset categories,
to contributions of assets to pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of intangible assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current assels held for sale and discontinued operations and to the restatement of non-menetary assets under hyperinflation accounting in line with 1AS 20
Financial repoiting in hyperinfiationary economies. Accordingly, the 2019 transfers include the balances of Australian operations reclassified to assets held for
sale as at 31 December 2019,
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The carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful tives was allocated to the cash-generating units as follows:
Million US dollar

Count 2019 2018
United States 22124 22 037
Rest of North America 66 63
Mexico 3243 3 068
Celombia 3488 3516
Rest of Middle Americas 3915 3915
Brazil 3 1
Rest of South America 714 741
Europe 489 535
South Africa 3417 3338
Rest of Africa 1228 1261
China 410 381
Rest of Asia Pacific 1120 3579
Total carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 40 217 42 435

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been tested for impairment using the same methedology and assumptiens as disclosed in
Note 14 Goodwill. Based on the assumptions described in that note, AB InBev concluded that no impairment charge is warranted. While a
change in the estimates used could have a material impact on the calculation of the fair values and trigger an impairment charge, the company
is not aware of any reasonably possible change in a key assumption used that would cause a cash-generating unit’s carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.

16. Investments in associates

A reconciliation of the summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the company’s interests in material associates is as follows:

2019 2018
Mitlion US doliar ABinBev Efes Caslel  Efes  ABInBevEfes  Castel  Efes
Balance at 1 January 1159 3279 479 - 3480 694
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (56) (59) - (213} (194)
Acquisitions - - - 11567 - -
Dividends received (13) (95) (11) - (98} {11)
Share of results of associates “n 11 42 2 110 (10
Balance at end of peried 1133 3239 451 1159 3279 479

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’ existing Russia and Ukraine businesses. Following
the closing of the transaction, the operations of AB InBev and Anadolu Efes in Russia and Ukraine are now combined under AB InBev Efes.
The combined business is fully consolidated in the Anadolu Efes financial accounts. As a result of the transaction, AB InBev stopped
consolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev Efes under the equity method as of that date.
See also Note & Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries.

In 2018, the share of results of associates reported for Castel was negatively impacted by a currency devaluation in Angola.

Summarized financial information of the company's material associates is as follows:

2019 2018
Million US dollar AB InBev Efes  Castel Efes AB InBev Efes Castel Efes
Current assets 377 4 044 2266 275 4193 2888
Non-current assets 767 4 255 5618 664 4 291 6 463
Current liabilities 652 1631 1859 556 1643 2233
Non-current liabilities 109 743 1986 - 635 2207
Non-controlling interests - 723 1909 - 939 2297
Net assets 383 5 201 2130 383 5267 2614
Revenue 1388 5107 4 015 1081 5786 3816
Profit (loss} 23 719 276 4 921 (43)
Cther comprehensive income (loss) - (372) (431) - (254} 1 536
Total comprehensive income (loss) 23 347 {155) 4 667 1493

In 2019, associates that are not individually material contributed 10m US dollar to the results of investment in associates (2018: 51m US
dollar).
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Following the entry of Zimbabwe in a hyperinflation economy in 2019, the company recorded an impairment of 188m US dollar on its
investment in Delta Corporation Lid. The impairment is recorded as a non-recurring net finance cost. Refer to Note 11 Finance cost and
income.

Additional information related to the significant asscciates is presented in Nate 36 AB InBev Companies.

17. Investment securities

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Investment in unquoted companies 86 84
Investment on debt securities 25 24
Non-current investments 111 108
Investment on debt securties 91 87
Current investments 91 ar

As of 31 December 2019, current debt securities of 39m US dollar mainly represented investments in government bonds (31 December 2018:
87m US dollar). The company's investments in such short-tenm debt securities are primarily to facilitate liquidity and for capital preservation.

18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities by type of temporary difference can be detaited as follows:

2019
Million US dollar Assets Liabilities Nat
Propenrty, plant and equipment 415 (2 550) (2 135)
Intangible assets 112 (10 327) (10 215)
Inventories 119 (67) 52
Trade and other receivables 52 [&))] 51
Interest-bearing leans and borrowings 706 (603) 103
Employee benefits 631 (3) 628
Provisions 467 (22} 445
Derivatives 23 (21) 2
Other items 311 {861) (550)
Loss carry forwards 515 - 515
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3350 {14 455) {11 105}
Netting by taxable entity (1631) 1631 -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1719 (12 824) (11 103)

2018 restated

Million US dolar Assets Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equipment 381 (2 665) (2 284)
Intangible assets 115 (10 665) (10 550)
Inventories 101 (67) 34
Trade and other receivables 142 (62) 80
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 535 (618) (83)
Employee benefits 673 5) 668
Provisions 483 {27} 456
Derivatives 33 (58) (25)
Other items 215 {7386) (521)
Loss carry forwards 577 - 577
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3255 (14 903) (11 648}
Netting by taxable entity {1738) 1738 -
Net deferred tax assets/(fiabilities) 1517 {13 165} (11 648)
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The change in net deferred taxes recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position can be detailed as follows:

2018
Million US dollar 2019 restated
Balance at 1 January (11 648) {11 857}
Recognized in profit or loss 19 95
Recognized in other comprehensive income 109 (130}
Acquisitions through business combinations (18) (23)
Reclassified as held for sale 363 -
Other movements and effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 70 267
Balance at 31 December (11 105) {11 648}

Most of the temporary differences are related to the fair value adjustment on intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and property, plant
and equipment acquired through business combinations. The realization of such temporary differences is unlikely to revert within 12 months.

Tax losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences on which no deferred tax asset is recognized amount to 4 734m US dollar
(2018: 5 280m US dollar). 728m US dollar of these tax losses and deductible temporary differences do not have an expiration date, 22m US
dollar, 737m US dollar ang 218m US dollar expire within respectively 1, 2 and 3 years, while 3 029m US dollar have an expiration date of
mere than 3 years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized on these items because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which these tax losses and deduclible temporary differences can be utilized and the company has no tax planning strategy
currently in place to ulilize these tax losses and deductible tempaorary differences.

19. Inventories

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Prepayments 105 123
Raw materials and consumables 2478 2387
Work in progress 405 363
Finished goods 1257 1215
Goods purchased for resale 182 146
Inventories 4427 4234

Inventories other than work in progress
Inventories stated at net realizable value 171 59

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense in 2019 amounts to 20 362m US dollar, included in cost of sales (2018 19 933m US dollar).

Impairment losses on inventories recognized in 2019 amount to 59m US dollar (2018: 72m US dollar).
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20. Trade and other receivables

NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Cash deposits for guarantees 219 197
Loans to customers 58 45
Deferred collection on disposals - 53
Tax regeivable, other than income tax 166 138
Trade and other receivables 363 335

807 769

For the nature of cash deposits for guarantees see Note 31 Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, loans to customers and other.

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Trade receivables and accrued income 4 048 4412
nterest receivable 21 19
Tax receivable, other than income tax 821 378
Loans to customers 119 143
Prepaid expenses 563 329
Other receivables 516 1 094

6 187 6 375

The carrying amount of trade and other receivabies is a good approximation of their fair value as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The ageing of the current trade receivables and accrued income, interest receivable, other receivables and current and non-current loans to
customers can be detailed as follows for 2019 and 2018 respectively:

Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting
neither date and past due
impaired nor

Net carrying  past due on

amount as of the Between Between
31 December reporting Less than 30 and 59 60 and 89 More than
2019 date 30 days days days 90 days
Trade receivables and accrued income 4 046 3690 261 44 44 7
Loans to customers 177 172 1 2 2 -
interest receivablie 21 21 - - - -
Cther receivables 616 582 ¢] 16 5
4 860 4 465 271 62 51 11

Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting
neither date and past due
impaired nor

Net carrying  past due on

amount as of the Between Between
31 December reporting Less than 30 and 59 60 and 89 More than
2018 date 30 days days days 90 days
Trade receivables and accrued income 4412 4092 239 52 20 9
Loans to customers 188 176 4 5 3 -
Interest receivable 19 19 - - - -
Other receivables 1094 1051 13 26 4
5713 5338 256 83 27 9

The above analysis of the age of financial assets that are past due as at the reporting date but not impaired also includes non-current loans
to customers. Past due amounts were not impaired when collection is stil considered likely, for instance because the amounts can be
recovered from the tax authorities or AB InBev has sufficient coliateral. impairment losses on trade and other receivables recognized in 2018
amount to 51m US dollar (2018; 43m US dollar).

AB InBev's exposure to credit, currency and interest rate risks is disclosed in Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.
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21. Cash and cash equivalents

Miltion US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Short-term bank deposits 2236 2233
Cash anc bank accounts 5002 4 841
Cash and cash equivalents 7 238 7074
Bank overdrafts (68) (114)

7169 6 960

The cash outstanding as at 31 December 2019 includes restricted cash for an amount of 78m US dollar (31 December 2018: 2m US doliar).
This restricted cash relates to an outstanding consideration payable to former Anheuser-Busch sharehclders that have not yet claimed the
proceeds from the 2008 combination (2m US dollar) and amounts deposited on a blocked account in respect to the state aid investigation into
the Belgian excess profit ruling system (76m US dollar) — see also Note 32 Contingencies.

22. Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Mijlion US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Balance at the end of previous year 39 133
Reclassified to assets held for sale in the period 9692 35
Disposals (59} (128}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 341 1
Balance at the end of year 10013 39

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Million US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Balance at the end of previous year - -

Reclassified to liabilities associated with assets helg for sale 1106 -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 39
Balance at the end of year 1145 -

On 19 July 2019, AB InBev announced the agreement to divest CUB, its Australian subsidiary, to Asahi for 16.0 billion AUD (11.2 billion' US
dollar before any price adjustments) on a cash free, debt free basis. Asahi has committed financing in place and the transaction is subject to
customary closing conditions, incluging but not limited to regulatory approvals in Australia. The transaction is expected te close by the first
quarter of 2020. The company will continue to manage these operations until the transaction completes.

Consequently, in accerdance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, assets and liabilities associated
with the Australian operations have been reclassified to assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale. Furthermore,
the resuits of the Australian operations are now accounted for as discontinued operations and presented in a separate line in the consolidated
income staternent ("profit from discontinued operations”). As required by IFRS 5, the 2018 consoclidated income statement and statement of
cash flows have been restated in these consolidated financial statements.

! Converted inta US dollars at the December 2019 closing rate of 1.423803.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

Assets and liabilities relating to the Australian operations have been classified as held for sale on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019. The relevant assets and liabilities are detailed in the table below:

Million US doltar 31 December 2019

Assets

Property. plant and equipment 625
Goodwill and intangible assets 9030
Other assets 310
Assets classified as held for saie 9 965
Liabilities

Trade and other payables 659
Deferred tax liabilities 380
Other liabilities . 106
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 1145

RESULTS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes the results of the Australian operations inciuded in the consolidated income statements and presented as
discontinued operations:

For the twelve-month period ended 31 December

Million US dollar 2018 restated
Revenue 1394 1577
Profit from operations 632 775
Profit from discontinued operations 424 531

The cumulative foreign exchange differences arising from translation of the consolidated net assets of Australian operations to the presentation
currency will be recycled upon the disposal of the subsidiary. The cumulative other comprehensive income / {loss) attributable to the Australian
operations amounted to {426)m US dollar as of 31 December 2019.

CASH FLOW FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Cash flows attributable to the operating, investing and financing activities of the Australian operations are summarized as follows:

For the twelve-month period ended 31 December

Milion US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Cash flow from operating activities 640 883
Cash flow from investing activities (77 (109)
Cash flow from financing activities (24) (19)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 539 755
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23. Changes in equity and earnings per share

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL
The tables below summarize the changes in issued capital and treasury shares during 2019:

Issued ;_:_apital

Issued capital 777 Million shares Million US dollar
At the end of the previous year 2019 1736
Changes during the period - -
2019 1736
Of which:
Ordinary shares 1693
Restricted shares 326

Result on the use of
treasury shares

Million
Million shares Us dollar Million US dollar
At the end of the previous year 62.5 (6 548) {2 383)
Changes during the period (2.7) 279 {173}
59.9 {6 270} {2 556)

As at 31 December 2019, the share capital of AB InBev amounts to 1 238 608 344.12 ewrc (1 736 million US dollar). It is represented by
2019 241 973 shares without nominal value, of which 59 862 847 are held in treasury by AB InBev and its subsidiaries. All shares are ordinary
shares, except for 325 999 817 restricted shares. As at 31 December 2019, the total of authorized, un-issued capital amounts to 37m euro.

The treasury shares held by the company are reported in equity in Treasury shares.

The holders of ardinary and restricted shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the company. In respect of the company's shares that are held by AB InBev, rights are suspended.

The restricted shares are unlisted, not admitted to trading on any stock exchange, and are subject to, among other things, restrictions on
transfer until converted into new ordinary shares. The restricted shares will be convertible at the election of the holder into new ordinary shares
on a one-for-one basis with effect from the fifth anniversary of compietion of the SAB combination. From compietion of the SAB combination,
such restricted shares will rank eqgually with the ordinary shares with respect to dividends and voting rights.

The shareholders’ structure is based on the notifications made to the company pursuant to the Belgian Law of 02 May 2007, which governs
the disclosure of significant shareholdings in listed companies. It is included in the Corporate Govemance section of AB InBev's annual report.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

In compliance with IFRS 10, the acquisition or disposal of additional shares in a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction with
owners.

On 30 September 2019, the initial public offering (the "IPO”} of a minority stake in Budweiser Brewing Company APAC Limited, AB InBev's
Asia Pacific subsidiary, was completed and Budweiser APAC commenced the listing of its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. In
addition, on 3 October 2019, the over-allotment option in connection with the IPO of Budweiser APAC was fully exercised by the international
underwriters.

The final number of shares issued in the IPQO was 1 669 459 000 shares comprising of 72 586 000 shares issued under the Hong Kong public
offering, 1 379 118 000 shares placed under the international offering, and 217 755 000 shares issued under the over-allotment option fully
exercised by the international underwriters.

Following the completion of the IPO and after the exercise of the over-allotment option, AB InBev retained an 87.22% controlling interest of
the issued share capital of Budweiser APAC. As presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the transaction resulted in a
4.4 billion US dollar increase in equity and a 1.2 billion US dollar increase in non-controlling interest representing 12.78% of the net assets of
Budweiser APAC.

The net proceeds of the offering {after deducting the underwriting commissions and other expenses in connection with the IPQ and the
issuance of the new shares) amount to 5.6 billion US dollar and were used to repay debt of AB InBev.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF OWN SHARES (REPORT ACCORDING TO ARTICLE 7:220 OF THE BELGIAN
COMPANIES CODE OF COMPANIES AND ASSOCIATIONS) AND BORROWINGS OF OWN SHARES— PURCHASE OF
OWN SHARES

During 2019, the company has not acquired any treasury shares in accordance with article 7:215 of the Belgian Code of Companies and
Associations (former article 620 of the Belgian Companies Code) and has proceeded with the following disposals of its own shares.

Treasury shares

The company has used 2 664 658 treasury shares to reimburse stock lending arrangements. As a result, as at 31 December 2019, the group
owned 59 862 847 own shares of which 42 158 420 were held directly by AB InBev. The par value of the share is 0.61 euro. As a consequence,
the treasury shares used to reimburse stock lending arrangements during 2019 represented 1 826 021 US dollar (1 625 441 euro) of the
subscribed capital and the shares that the company still owned at the end of 2019 represented 41 022 453 US dollar (36 516 337 euro) of the
subscribed capital.
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Borrowed shares

In order to fulfill AB InBev's commitments under various outstanding stock option plans, during the course of 2019, the company had stock
lending arrangements in place for up to 32 664 658 shares, of which 31 601 230 shares were used to fulfil stock option plan commitments
during 2019. As at 31 December 2019, given the repayment of 2 664 658 shares, the balance of borrowed shares still to be repaid amounted
to 30 million. Cn such date, an amount of 1 063 428 borrowed shares remained available for further use The company shall pay any dividend
equivalent after tax in respect of such borrowed shares. This payment will be reported through equity as dividend.

DIVIDENDS

On 24 October 2019, an interim dividend of 0.80 eurc per share or approximately 1 588m euro was approved by the Board of Directors. This
interim dividend was paid out on 21 November 2018. On 26 February 2020, in addition to the interim dividend paid on 21 November 2019, a
dividend of 1 euro per share or 1 998m euro was proposed by the Board of Directors, reflecting a tolal dividend payment for the 2019 fiscal
year of 1.80 euro per share or 3 586m euro,

On 24 Qctober 2018, an interim dividend of 0.80 euro per share or approximately 1 565m euro was approved by the Board of Directors, This
interim dividend was paid out on 29 November 2018. On 24 Aprit 2019, in addition to the interim dividend paid on 2% November 2018, a
dividend of 1.00 euro per share (or 1 878m eurc) was approved at the shareholder’ meeting, reflecting a total dividend payment for the 2018
fiscal year of 1.80 euro per share (or 3 557m euro). The dividend was paid out on 9 May 2019.

TRANSLATION RESERVES

The translation reserves comprise all foreign currency exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The translation reserves also comprise the portion of the gain or loss on the foreign currency liabilities and on the derivative
financial instruments determined to be effective net investment.

HEDGING RESERVES

The hedging reserves comprise the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges to the extent that the
hedged risk has not yet impacted profit or loss.

TRANSFERS FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amount of dividends payable to AB InBev by its operating subsidiaries is subject to, among other restrictions, general limitations imposed
by the comorate laws, capital transfer restrictions and exchange control restrictions of the respective jurisdictions where those subsidiaries
are organized and operate. Capital transfer restrictions are also common in certain emerging market countries, and may affect AB InBev's
flexibility in implementing a capital structure it believes to be efficient. As at 31 December 2018, the restrictions above mentioned were not
deemed significant on the company's ability to access or use the assets or settle the liabilities of its operating subsidiaries.

Dividends paid to AB InBev by certain of its subsidiaries are also subject to withholding taxes. Withholding taxes, if applicabie, generally do
not exceed 15%.

DEFERRED SHARE INSTRUMENT

In a transaction rclated to the combination with Grupe Modelo, selected Grupo Modelo shareholders committed, upon tender of their Grupo
Modelo shares, to acquire 23 076 922 AB InBav shares to be delivered within 5 years for a consideration of approximately 1.5 billion US dollar.
The consideration was paid on 5 June 2013

On 21 May 2018, AB InBev delivered the shares that were due under the deferred share instruments through the use of AB InBev treasury
shares.

Until the delivery of the AB InBev shares, AB InBev paid a coupon on each undelivered AB InBev share, so that the Deferred Share Instrument
holders were compensated on an after-tax basis, for dividends they would have received had the AB InBev shares begen delivered to them
prior to the record date for such dividend.

The deferred share instrument was classified as an equity instrument, in line with 1AS 32, because the number of shares and consideration
received are fixed. The coupon to compensate for the dividend equivalent is reported through equity. On 3 May 2018, the company paid a
coupon of 2.00 euro per share (approximately 56m US dollar).

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME RESERVES
The changes in the other comprehensive income reserves are as follows:

Post-
Translation Hedging employment Total OC|
Million US dollar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves
As per 1 January 2019 (21 079) 494 {1 567) {22 152)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (gains/(losses)) 1143 B B 1143
Cash flow hedges - 8N - 97y
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - (173) (173)
Total comprehensive income 1143 97) (173) 873
As per 31 December 2019 (19 936) 397 {1 740} (21 279)
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Post-
Transiation Hedging employment Total OC!
Million US dollar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves
As per 1 January 2018 {13 705) 586 {1 665) (14 784)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (gains/(losses)) (7 374) - - (7 374)
Cash flow hedges - (92) - (92)
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - 98 j:1.]
Total comprehensive income {7 374) {92} 98 (7 368)
As per 31 December 2018 (21 079} 494 {1 567) (22 152)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 is based on the profit attributable to the equity holders of
AB InBev of 8 171m US dollar (31 December 2018: 4 370m US dollar) and a weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
outstanding (including deferred share instruments and stock lending} per end of the period, calculated as follows:

Million shares 2019 2018
Issued ordinary and restricted shares at 1 January, net of treasury shares 1957 1934
Effect of stock lending 25 18
Effect of undelivered shares under the deferrec share instrument - 9
Effect of delivery of treasury shares 2 14
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares at 31 December 1 984 1975

The calculaticn of diluted eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 is based on the profit attributable to the equity holders of
AB InBev of 9 171m US dollar (31 December 2018: 4 370m US dollar) and the weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
(diluted) outstanding (including deferred share instruments and stock lending) at the end of the period, calculated as follows:

Million shares 2019 2018
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares at 31 December 1984 1975
Effect of share options, warrants and restricted stock units 42 36
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted} at 31 December 2026 29011

The calculation of earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations is based on the profit from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of AB InBev. A reconciliation of the profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, attributable to
equity holders of AB InBev to the profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev is calculated as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated

Profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations,

attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 8 086 6 248
Non-recurring items, before taxes (refer to Note 8) (323) (692)
Non-recurring finance income/(cost), before taxes (refer to Note 8) 882 {1982}
Non-recurring taxes (refer to Note 8) (6} 233
Non-recurring non-controlling interest (refer tc Note 8) 108 32
Profit from discontinued operations 424 531
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 9171 4370
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The calculation of the Underlying EPS' is based on the profit before non-recurring items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market gainsflosses
and hyperinflation impacts attributable to equity halders of AB InBev. A reconciliation of the profit before non-recurring items, discontinued
operations, mark-to-market gains/losses and hyperinflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev to the profit before non-recurring
items and discontinued operations, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev, is cailculated as follows:

Miilion US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Profit before non-recurring items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market gains/losses 7 196 8 099
and hyperinflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Mark-to-market (losses)/gains on certain derivatives related to the hedging 898 (1774)
of share-based payment programs (refer to Note 11}

Hyperinflation impacts (7) (77)
Profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, B 036 6 248

attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

The table below sets out the EPS calcuiation:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 9171 4 370
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1984 1875
Basic EPS from continuing and discontinued operations 4.62 2.21
Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of AB [nBev 8748 3839
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1984 1975
Basic EPS from continuing operations 4.41 1.94

Profit from continuing operations before non-recurring items and discontinued operations,

attributabie to equity holders of AB InBev 8 086 6248
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1984 1975
Basic EPS from continuing operations before non.recurring items 4.08 3.16
Profit befare non-recurring items, discontinued operations. mark-to-market gains/losses and 7196 8099
hyperinflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1984 1875
Underlying EPS 3.63 4.10
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 9171 4 370
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2026 2011
Diluted EPS from continuing and discontinued aperaticons 4.53 217
Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 8748 3839
Weighted average number of ordinary and resiricted shares (diluted) 2026 2011
Diluted EPS from continuing operations 4.32 1.91
Profit from continuing operations before non-recurring items, 8 086 6 248
attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2026 201
Diluted EPS from continuing operations before non-recurring items 3.99 311

The average market value of the company's shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share options and restricted stock units
was based on quoted market prices for the period that the options and restricted stock units were outstanding. 59m share options were anti-
ditutive and not included in the calculation of the dilutive effect as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:; 63m share options).

' See glossary.
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24, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information about the company's
exposure to interest rate and foreign exposure currency risk - refer to Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

Non-current liabilities 31 December 2018
Million US dollar 31 December 2019 restated
Secured bank loans 71 109
Unsecured bank loans 50 86
Unsecured bond issues 85 674 105 170
tUnsecured other loans 77 57
Lease liabilities 1692 1575
Non-current interest-bearing lcans and borrowings 97 564 106 997
Current liabilities 31 December 2018
Million US dollar 31 December 2019 restated
Secured bank loans 790 370
Commercial papers 1 599 1142
Unsecured bank loans 135 22
Unsecured bond issues 2532 2626
Unsecured cther loans 20 14
Lease liabilities 333 410
Current interest-bearing loans and horrowings 5410 4 584

The current and non-current interest-bearing joans and borrowings amount to 103.0 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019, compared to
111.6 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2018.

Commercial papers amount to 1.6 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2019 and include programs in US dollar and euro with a total authorized
issuance up to 5.0 billion US dollar and 3.0 billion euro, respectively.

During 2019, Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc.-(ABIWW) and Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA (ABISA) completed the issuance of the
following series of bongsi - L L

- x

)

Aggregate
Issuer principal amount
Issue date abbreviated Maturity date Currenc in millions Interest rate
23 Jan 2019 _ ABIWW - ".»234an 2025 uUsD 2500 4.150%
23 Jan 2019 _ABIWW. 23 Jan 2029. - usD 4 250 4.750%
23 Jan 2018 ABIWW." - .23 Jan 2031 uso 750 4.900%
23 Jan 2019 L ABIWW ', | - 23 Jajn 2039 7, uUsD 2 000 5.450%
23 Jan 2018 - <ABIWW -~ © 23 Jan’2049 ¢ UsD 4 000 5.550%
23 Jan 2019 i ] 23 Jant 2059 - usoD 2000 5.800%
29 Mar 2019 ~ -1 Jul 2027 - EUR 1250 1.125%
29 Mar 2018 ~_28:Mar 2031 " EUR 1 000 1.650%

-

On 11 February 2019, thé pof‘npaﬁy completed the tender. offers of twelve series of notes issued by Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance Inc.
(ABIF1), Anheuser-Busch Companies LLC (ABC}) and Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. (ABIWW) and repurchased 16.3 billion US dollar
aggregate principal amount of these notes. The total principal amount accepted in the tender offers is set out in the table below.

Original principal Principal amount
Date of Issuer Title of series of notes amount outstanding redeemed
redempticn abhreviated issued exchanged in million US dollar, in million US dollar]
11 Feb 2019 “ABIFI 2.650% Notes due 2021 uso 4 968 2519
11 Feb 2019 ABIFI Floating Rate Notes due 2021 uso 500 189
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW 4.375% Notes due 2021 usD 500 215
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW 3.750% Notes due 2022 usp 2 350 1101
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW 2.500% Notes due 2022 uso 3000 1296
11 Feb 2019 ABIFI 2.625% Notes due 2023 uso 1250 607
11 Feb 2019 ABIFI 3.300% Notes due 2023 uso 6000 2 886
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW Floating Rate Notes due 2024 uso 500 271
11 Feb 2019 ABIWW 3.500% Notes due 2024 uso 1500 846
11 Feb 20189 ABIFI 3.700% Notes due 2024 uso 1400 535
11 Feb 2019 ABIFI 3.650% Notes due 2026 usb 2 445 812
11 Feb 2019 ABC 3.650% Notes due 2026 usD 8 555 5064
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Furthermore, in 2019, the company redeemed the outstanding principal amounts indicated in the table below of the following series of notes
issued by Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA (ABISA), Anheuser-Busch inBev Finance Inc. (ABIFI) and Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc.
(ABIWW}:

Aggregate principal Principal
Date of Issuer Title of series of notes issued amount outstanding amount redeemed
redemption abbreviated exchanged i illi in miilions
25 Apr 2019 ABISA 2.25% Notes cue 2020 EUR 750 750
25 Apr 2019 ABIWW 3.750% Notes due 2022 usD 1249 1249
25 Apr 2019 ABIFI 3.300% Notes due 2023 usb 3114 315
29 Oct 2019 ABISA 0.625% Notes due 2020 EUR 1750 1750
29 Oct 2019 ABIFI 2.650% Notes due 2021 us 2449 2 449
29 Qct 2019 ABIWW 2.500% Notes due 2022 uso 1704 525
12 Nov 2019 ABIWW 2.500% Notes due 2022 usoD 1179 725

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 December 2019 1 year More than
Million US dollar Total or less 1-2 years 2-3 years 3.5 years 5 years
Secured bank loans 861 790 14 14 16 27
Commercial papers 1599 1599 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 185 135 50 - - -
Unsecured bond issues 98 206 2 532 2 506 2 760 11435 78973
Unsecured other loans 98 21 13 8 4 52
Lease liabilities 2025 333 290 198 225 979

102 974 5410 2873 2980 11 680 80 031

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 December 2018 1 year or More than
Million US dollar (restated Total lass 1-2 years 2.3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Secured bank loans 479 370 38 14 26 31
Commercial papers 1142 1142 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 108 22 - 86 - -
Unsecured bond issues 107 796 2 626 5259 8039 17 180 74 692
Unsecured other loans 71 14 18 7 9 23
Lease liabilities 1985 410 312 255 357 650

111 581 4 584 5 627 8 401 17 572 75 396

2018 2018 2018

Lease liabilities 2019 Payments Interests Principal
Million US dollar Interests inci restated restated restated
Less than one year 404 71 333 508 98 410
Between one and two years 350 60 2980 391 79 312
Between two and three years 243 45 198 325 70 255
Between three and five years 285 60 225 467 110 357
More than 5 years 1056 77 979 900 250 650
2338 33 2025 2591 606 1985

Net debt is defined as non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts minus debt securities and cash and
cash equivatents. Net debt is a financial performance indicator that is used by AB InBev's management to highlight changes in the company's
overall fiquidity position. The company believes that net debt is meaningful for investors because it is one of the primary measures that AB
InBev's management uses when evaluating its progress towards deleveraging.

AB InBev's net debt decreased to 95.5 billion US doltar as of 31 December 2019, from 104.2 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2018 after
restatement for adoption of IFRS 16 on lease accounting and inclusion of the lease liability. Aside from operating results that are net of capital
expenditures, the net debt is impacted mainly by the payment of interests and taxes (7.1 billion US dollar}, the settiement of derivatives (0.8
billion US dollar increase of net debt), dividend payments to AB InBev's shareholders (5.0 billion US dollar), foreign exchange impact on debt
(0.4 billion US dollar) and the proceeds of the IPC of AB InBev's Asia Pacific subsidiary (5.6 billion US dollar proceeds net of expenses).
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The following table provides a reconciliation of AB InBev's net debt as at 31 December:
31 December 2018

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 restated
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 97 564 106 997
Current interest-bearing [oans and borrowings 5410 4 584
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 102 974 111 581
Bank overdrafis 68 114
Cash and cash equivalents (7 238) (7 074)
Ipterest bea_n'ljg loans granted and other deposits (146) (268)
(included within Trade and other seceivables)

Debt securities (included within Investment securities) {(117) (111)
Net debt 95 542 104 242

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the company's fiabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in the company’s
consolidated cash flow statement from finanging activities.

Short-term debt and

Long-term debt, net current portion of long-

Million US dollar of current portion term debt
Balance at 1 January 2019 106 997 4 584
Proceeds from borrowings 17 939 4 645
Payments on borrowings (22 339) (8 253)
Capitalization / (payment} of lease liabilities 420 (441)
Amortized cost 75 13
Unrealized foreign exchange effects (538) (39)
Current portion of long-term debt {4 769) 4 769
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale (69) (15)
Other movements (152) 147
Balance at 31 December 2019 97 564 5410

Short-term debt and

Long-term debt, net current portion of long-

Million US dollar {restated of current portion term debt
Balance at 1 January 2018 110 637 7 846
Proceeds from borrowings 15111 2672
Payments on barrowings (13 925) (8 564)
Capitalization / (payment) of lease liabilities 215 {423)
Amortized cost 47 17
Unrealized foreign exchange effects (1951) (316)
Current portion of long-term debt (3 114) 3114
Other movements (22) 238
Balance at 31 December 2018 106 997 4 584
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25. Employee benefits

AB \nBev sponsors various post-employment benefit plans woridwide. These include pension plans, both defined contribution plans, and
defined benefit plans, and other post-employment benefits. In accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits post-employment benefit plans are
classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

For defined contribution plans, AB InBev pays contributions to pubiicty or privately administered pension funds or insurance contracts. Once
the contributions have been paid, the group has no further payment obligation. The regular contributions constitute an expense for the year in
which they are due. For 2019, contributions paid into defined contribution ptans for the company amounted to 101m US dollar compared to
109m US dollar for 2018,

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

During 2019, the company contributed to 82 defined benefit plans, of which 61 are retirement or leaving service plans, 17 are medical cost
plans and 4 other long-term employee benefit plans. Most plans provide retirement and leaving service benefits related to pay and years of
service. In many of the countries the plans are partially funded. When plans are funded, the assets are held in legally separate funds set up
in accordance with applicable legal requirements and commen practice in each country. The medical cost plans in Brazit, Canada, Colombia,
South Africa and US provide medical benefits to employees and their families after retirement. Many of the defined benefit plans are closed
to new entrants.

The present value of funded obiligations includes a 161m US dollar liability related to two megical plans in Brazil, for which the benefits are
provided through the Fundagic Antonio Helena Zerrenner (‘FAHZ"). The FAHZ is a legally distinct entity which provides medical, dental,
educational and social assistance to current and retired employees of Ambev. On 31 December 2019, the actuarial liabilities related to the
benefits provided by the FAHZ are fully offset by an equivalent amount of assets existing in the fund. The net liability recognized in the balance
sheet is nil.

The employee benefit net liability amounts to 2 834m US dollar as of 31 December 2019 compared to 2 665m US dollar as of 31 December
2018. In 2019, the fair value of the plan assets increased by 383m US dollar and the defined benefit obligations increased by 575m US dollar.
The increase in the employee benefit net liability is mainly driven by decreases in discount rates and unfavorable foreign exchange
movements.

The company's net liability for post-employment and long-term employee benefit plans comprises the following at 31 December:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Present value of funded obligations {7 333) (6 762)
Fair value of plan assets 5442 50589
Present value of net obligations for funded plans {1891) {1 703)
Present value of unfunded obligations (810) (8086}
Present value of net obligations (2701) (2 509)
Unrecognized asset (74) (77)
Net liability (2 775) (2 586}
Other long-term employee benefits (59) (79)
Total employee benefits (2 834} {2 665)

Employee benefits amounts in the balance sheet:

Liabilities (2 848} (2 681)
Assets 14 16
Net liability (2834) {2 665)

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Defined benefit obligation at 1 January (7 568) (8 410)
Current service costs (67) (72}
Interest cost {326) (322)
Past service gain/(cost)} 9) {3)
Settlements 109 45
Benefits paid 596 493
Contribution by plan participants 2) (3)
Actuarial gains/{losses) — demographic assumptions 61 27
Actuarial gains/(losses) — financial assumptions (912) 350
Experience adjustments 29 14
Exchange differences {86} 313
Transfers and other movements 32 -
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December (8 143) {7 568)
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As at the last valuation date, the present value of the defined benefit obligation was comprised of approximately 1.7 billion US dollar relating
to active employees, 1.7 billion US doltar relating to deferred members and 4.8 billion US dollar relating to members in retirement.

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Miltion US doliar 2019 2018
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 5059 5623
Interest income 218 225
Administration costs {23) (14)
Return on plan assets exceeding interest income 579 (333)
Contributions by AB InBev 294 307
Contributions by plan participants 2 3
Benefits paid net of administration costs (596) (493)
Assets distributed on settlements (107} (45)
Exchange differences 46 (214)
Transfers and other movements 30) -
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 5442 5059

Actual return on plans assets amounted to a gain of 797m US doilar in 2019 compared to a loss of 108m US dollar in 2018.

The changes in the unrecognized asset are as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Irrecoverable surplus impact at 1 January (T7) {111}
Interest expense (7) {10)
Changes excluding amounts included in interest expense 9 44
irrecoverable surplus impact at 31 December (74) an
The expense recognized in the income statement with regard to defined benefit plans can be detailed as follows:
Million US dollar 2019 2018
Current service costs {67) {(72)
Administration costs (23) (14)
Past service cost due to plan amendments and curtailments 66 3)
(Losses)/gains due to experience and demographic assumption changes 1 3
Profit from operations {23) (86)
Net finance cost (114) (107)
Total employee benefit expense (137) (193)

The employee benefit expense is included in the following line items of the income statement:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Cost of sales (17} {26)
Distribution expenses (5) {11}
Sales and marketing expenses (4) (16}
Administrative expenses 3 (28)
QOther operating (expense)income - (6}
Non-recurring items - 1
Net finance cost (114} (107)

(137) {193}
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Weighted average assumptions used in computing the benefit obligations of the company’s significant plans at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

2019
United
States Mexico Brazil
Discount rate 3.3% 3.1% 7.5% 7.2% 2.0% 3.3%
Price inflation 2.5% 2.0% 3.5% 3.8% 3.1% 2.7%
Future salary increases - 1.0% 43% 7.4%-54% - 3.8%
Future pension increases - 2.0% 3.5% 3.8% 2.9% 2.7%
Medical cost trend rate 8.5%-4.5% 4.5% - 7.4% - 6.6%61%
Life expectation for a 65 year old male 85 87 82 85 87 85
Life expectation for a 65 year old female 87 89 85 88 89 87
United United
States Canada Mexico Brazil Kingdom AB InBev
Discount rate 4.3% 3.9% 9.0% 8.9% 2.8% 4.3%
Frice inflation 2.5% 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 3.4% 27%
Future salary increases - 1.0% 4.3% 7.6%-56% - 3.8%
Future pension increases - 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 3.0% 2.8%
Medical cost trend rate 6.5%-4.5% 4.5% - 7.6% - 6.8%-6.0%
Life expectation for a 65 year old male 85 87 82 85 87 85
Life expectation for a 65 year old female 87 89 85 88 89 87

Through its defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medical plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most
significant are detailed below:

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

In case of funded plans, the company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching {ALM) framework
that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the pension schemes. Within this
framework, the company’'s ALM objective is to match assets to the pension obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with
maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency. The company actively monitors how the duration
and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the pension obligation.

ASSET VOLATILITY

In general, the company's funded plans are invested in a combination of equities and bonds, generating high but volatile returns from equities
and at the same time stable and liability-matching returns from bonds. As the plans mature, the company usually reduces the level of
investment risk by investing more in assets that better match the liabilities. Since 2015, the company started the implementation of a pension
de-risking strategy to reduce the risk profile of certain plans by reducing gradually the current exposure to equities and shifting those assets
to fixed income securities.

CHANGES IN BOND YIEL.DS

A decrease in corporate bond Yiekds will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’
bond holdings.

INFLATION RISK

Some of the company’s pension obligations, mainly in the UK, are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilitiss. The
majority of the plan’s assets are either unaffected by or loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation could potentially
increase the company’s net benefit cbligation.

LIFE EXPECTANCY

The maijority of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase
in the plans’ liabilities.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13.8 years (2018: 13.3 years).

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Miilion US dollar

Increase in Decrease in

tion assumption

Discount rate 0.5% (523} 565
Price inflation 0.5% 171 (182)
Future salary increase 0.5% 32 (ki)
Medical cost trend rate 1.0% 45 (39)
Longevity One year 251 (252)
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The above are purely hypothetical changes in individual assumptions holding all other assumptions constant: economic conditions and
changes therein will often affect multiple assumptions at the same time and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not linear.

Sensitivities are reasonably possible changes in assumptions and they are calculated using the same approach as was used to determine
the defined benefit obligation. Therefore, the abave information is not necessarily a reasonabie representation of future results.

The fair value of plan assets at 31 December consists of the following:

2019 2018

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

Govemment bonds 33% - 33% 32% - 32%
Corporate bonds I5% - 5% 36% - 36%
Equity instruments 23% - 23% 22% - 22%
Property - 4% 4% - 4% 4%
Insurance centracts and others 4% 1% 5% 4% 2% 6%
95% 5% 100% 94% 6% 100%

AB InBev expects to contribute approximately 325m US doilar for its funded defined benefit plans and 81m US doliar in benefit payments to
its unfunded defined benefit plans and post-retirement medical plans in 2020,

26. Share-based payments'

Different share and share option programs aflow the company’s senior management and members of the board of directors to receive or
acquire shares of AB InBev or Ambev. AB InBev has three primary share-based compensation plans, the share-based compensation plan
("Share-Based Compensation Plan"), the long-term restricted stock unit plan for directors (*Restricted Stock Units Plan for Directors), and the
long-term incentive stock-option plan for executives (“LT! Stock Option Plan Executives”). For all option plans, the fair value of share-based
payment compensation is estimated at the grant date, using a binomial Hull model, which has been modified to reflect the IFRS 2 share-based
payment requirement that assumptions about forfeiture before the end of the vesting period cannot impact the fair value of the option. All of
the company’s share-based payment plans are equity-settied.

Share-based payment transactions resulted in a total expense of 340m US dollar for the year 2019, as compared to 353m US dollar for the
year 2018.

AB INBEV SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Share-Based Compensation Plan

As from 1 January 2010, the struclure of the Share-Based Compensation Plan for certain executives in the general headquarters, has been
moedified. From 1 January 2011, the new plan structure applies to all cther senior management. Under this plan, members of the Executive
Committee and other senior employees receive their bonus in cash but have the choice to invest some or all of the value of their bonus in AB
InBev shares with a five-year vesting period, referred to as bonus shares. Such voluntary investment leads to a 10% discount to the market
price of the shares. The company alse matches such voluntary investment by granting three matching shares for each banus share voluntarily
invested in, up to a limited total percentage of each participant's bonus. The percentage of the variable compensation that is entitled to get
matching shares varies depending on the position of the executive. The matching is based on the gross amount of the variable compensation
invested. The discount shares and matching shares are granted in the form of restricted stock units which have a five-year vesting period.
Additionally, the holders of the restricted stock units may be entitled to receive from AB InBev additional restricted stock units equal to the
dividends declared since the restricted stock units were granted.

During 2019, AB InBev issued 1.6m of matching restricted stock units in relation to bonus granted to company employees and management
{2018: 1.5m of matching restricted stock units}. These matching restricted stock units are valued at the share price at the grant date, and
representing a fair value of approximately 153m US dollar and cliff vest after five years (2018: 158m US dollar).

Restricted Stock Units Plan for Directors

Since the annual shareholder meeting of 24 April 2019, the share-based portion of the remuneration of the directors of the company has been
granted in the form of restricted stock units and will no longer be granted in the form of stock options as was previously the case. Such
restricted stock units vest after 5 years and, upon vesting, entitte their holders to one AB InBev share per restricted stock unit.

During 2019, approximately 0.1m restricted stock units were granted to directors with an estimated fair value of 4m US dollar.
LT! Stock Option Plan for Executives

As from 1 July 2009, senior employees are eligible for an annual long-term incentive to be paid out in LTI stock options {or, in future, similar
share-based instruments), depending on management’s assessment of the employee's performance and future potential.

During 2019, AB InBev issued 8.1m LTI stock options with an estimated fair value of 91m US dollar (2018: 7.2m LTI stock options with an
estimated fair value of 102m US dollar}). Out of these, 0.4m stock options were granted to members of the Executive Committee.

" Amounts have been converted to US doilar at the average rate of the period, unless otherwise indicated.
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Performance related incentive plan for Disruptive Growth Function {ZX Ventures)

In 2016 the company implemented a new performance related incentive plan which substitutes the long-termt incentive stock aption plan for
executives of the Disruptive Growth Function. This function was created in 2015 {o accelerate new business development opportunities,
focusing on initjiatives such as e.g. e-commerce, adjacencies, mobile, craft and branded experiences such as brew pubs.

During 2019, approximately 3.8m performance units were granted to senior management of the Disruptive Growth Function (2018 2.7m
performance units). The value of the performance units will depend on the return of the Disruptive Growth business area.

These units vest after 5 years provided that a performance test is met. Specific forfeiture rules apply in the event that the executive leaves the
company.

Qther Grants
AB InBev has in place three specific long-term incentive programs.

One program allows for the offer of restricted stock units to certain employees in certain specific circumstances, at the discretion of the CEQ,
e.g. as a special retention incentive or to compensate for assignments of expatriates in countries with difficuit living conditions. The restricted
stock units vest after five years and in the event that an employee's service is terminated before the vesting date, special forfeiture rules apply.
In 2018, 0.9m restricted stock units with an estimated fair value of 74m US dollar were granted under this program to a selected number of
employees (2018: 2.3m restricted stock units with an estimated fair value of 184m US dollar).

A secend program allows for the exceptional offer of restricted stock units to certain employees at the discretion of the Remuneration
Coemmittee of AB InBev, in order to provide a long-term retention incentive for key employees of the company. Employees eligible to receive
a grant under this program receive two series of restricted stock units, with the first series of the restricted stock units vesting after five years,
and the second series vesting after ten years. Alternatively, under this program, the restricted stock units may be granted with a shorter vesting
period of 2.5 to 3 years for the first series and 5 years for the second series of the restricted stock units. In the avent that an employee's
sefvice is terminated before the vesting date, special forfeiture rules apply. As of 2017, instead of restricted stock units, stock options may be
granted under the program with similar vesting and forfeiture rules. Each option gives the grantee the right to purchase one existing AB InBev
shave. During 2018, approximately 0.1m restricted stock units were granted with an estimated fair value of 2m US doltar (2018: 0.4m stock
options with an estimated fair value of 35m US dollar).

A third program allows certain employees to purchase company shares at a discount and is aimed at providing a long-term retention incentive
far (i) high-potential employees of the company, who are at a mid-manager level ("Peaple bet share purchase program”) or (i} newly hired
employees. The voluntary investment in company shares leads to the grant of an amount of matching restricted stock units or stock options
which vest after 5 years. in the event that an employee's service is terminated before the vesting date, special forfeiture rules apply. In 2019,
employees purchased 0.1m shares under this program for the equivalent of 1m US dollar (2018: 0.1m shares for the equivalent of 1m US
dollar).

In 2018, a new program was implemented allowing for the offer of performance based restricted stock units (“Performance RSUs”) to certain
members of the company’s senior management. Upen vesting, each RSU gives the executive the right to receive one existing AB InBev share.
The Performance RSUs can have a vesting period of 5 years or of 10 years. The shares resulting from the vesting of the Performance RSUs
will only be delivered provided a performance test is met Dy the company. This performance test is based on an organic EBITDA compounded
annual growth rate target which must be achieved by 31 Necember 2024 at the latest. Specifiv fuleilure rules apply it the em ployee leaves
the company before the performance test is achieved or the vesting date. In 2019, no new Performance R5Us were granted under this
program (2018: 0.5 m shares for the equivalent of 46m US dollar).

In order to maintain the consistency of benefits granted to executives and to encourage the international mobility of executives, an option
exchange program can be executed whereby unvested options are exchanged for restricted shares that remain locked-up until 5 years after
the end of the initial vesting period. The shares that result from the exercise of the options must in principle remain locked-up until 31 Decermnber
2023. in 2019, no options were exchanged for ordinary blocked shares (2018: nil).

The Board has also approved the early release of vesting conditions of unvested stock options or restricted stock units that are vesting within
6 manths of the executives’ relocation. The shares that result from the earty exercise of the options or the early vesting of the restricted stock
units must remain blocked until the end of the initial vesting period. In 2019, the vesting of 0.1m stock options and restricted stock units was
accelerated under this program for members of the senior management (2018: 0.3m options).

The weighted average fair value of the options and assumptions used in applying the AB inBev opticn pricing model for the 2019 grants of
awards described above are as follows:

Amounts in US dollar uniess otherwise indicated’ 2019 2018 2017
Fair value of options granted 11.79 16.82 19.84
Share price 78.46 98.66 117.77
Exercise price 78.46 98.66 M7I7
Expected volatility 23% 23% 23%
Expected dividends 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Risk-free interest rate 0.43% 0.39% 0.72%

Expected volatility is based on historical volatility calculated over 10-years period. The binomial Hull model assumes that all employees would
immediately exercise their options if the AB InBev share price is 2.5 times above the exercise price. As a resuit, no single expected option life
applies

' Amounts have been cenverted to US dollar at the closing rate of the respective period.
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The total number of outstanding AB InBev options developed as follows:

Million options 2019 2018 2017
Options outstanding at 1 January 926 83.0 64.9
Options issued during the year 13.8 5.2 35.0
Options exercised during the year (10.7) (1.7) (3.0)
Options forfeited during the year {7.0) (4.0) (3.9)
Options outstanding at the end of December 88.7 92.6 83.0

The range of exercise prices of the outstanding options is between 10.32 eurc (11.59 US dollar)' and 121.95 eurc (137.00 US dollar) while
the weighted average remaining contractual life is 8.64 years.

Of the 88.7m outstanding options 18.6m are vested at 31 December 2018.

The weighted average exercise price of the AB InBev cptions is as follows:

Amounts in US dollar’ 2018 2018 2017
Options outstanding at 1 January 94.74 98.32 76.25
Granted during the year 83.33 104.77 117.24
Exercised during the year 29.27 44 96 38.94
Forfeited during the year 108.44 113.19 108.26
Qutstanding at the end of December 79.66 94.74 98.32
Exercisable at the end of December 65.33 21.40 59.66

For share options exercised during 2019, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 78.24 euro (87.89 US dellar).

The total number of outstanding AB InBev restricted stock units developed as follows:

Million restricted stock units 2019 2018 2017
Restricted stock units outstanding at 1 January 6.0 54 5.8
Restricted stock units issued during the year 55 23 0.7
Restricted stock units exercised during the year (1.0} (0.5) (0.7)
Restricted stock units forfeited during the year 0.7) {(1.2) (0.4)
Restricted stock units outstanding at the end of December 9.9 6.0 5.4

AMBEV SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Since 2005, Ambev has had in place a plan which is substantially similar to the Share-based compensation plan under which bonuses granted
to company employees and management are partially settled in shares. Under the Share-based compensation plan, Ambev issued 0.2m
deferred stock units in 2019 with an estimated fair value of 1m US dollar (2018: 4m deferred stock units in 2018 with an estimated fair value
of 2m US dollar).

Since 2018, Ambev has had in place a plan which is substantially similar to the Share-based compensation plan under which bonuses granted
to company employees ancd management are partially settled in shares. Under the Share-based compensation plan, Ambeyv issued 11.8m
restricted stock units in 2049 with an estimated fair value of 54m US dollar (2018: 13.1m restricted stock units with an estimated fair value of
66m US doltar).

As of 2010, senior employees are eligible for an annual long-term incentive to be paid out in Ambev LTI stock options (or, in the future, simitar
share-based instruments), depending on management's assessment of the employee’s performance and future potential. In 2018, Ambev
grantec 24 .6m LTI stock options with an estimated fair value of 28m US dollar (2018: 19.5m LTI stock options with an estimated fair value of
30m US dollar).

The weighted fair value of the options and assumptions used in applying a binomial option pricing moael for the 2018 Ambev grants are as
follows:

Ampounts in US doltar unless otherwise indicated’ 2019 2018 2017
Fair value of options granted 1.12 1.47 1.97
Share price 4.38 4.66 5.99
Exercise price 4.38 4.66 5.99
Expected volatility 24% 26% 27%
Expecled dividends 0.00% - 5.00% 0.00% - 5.00% 0.00% - 5.00%
Risk-free interest rate 7.8% 9.6% 10.10%

! Amounts have been converted to US dollar at the closing rate of the respective period.
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The total number of outstanding Ambev options developed as follows:

Million options 2019 2018 2017
Options outstanding at 1 January 1413 135.2 131.3
Options issued during the year 246 19.9 20.4
Opticns exercised during the year (7.8) (10.0% (13.5)
Options forfeited during the year (16.3) (3.8) {2.9)
Options outstanding at the end of December 141.8 141.3 135.2

The range of exercise prices of the outstanding options is between 0.001 Brazilian real (0.00 US dollar) and 34.37 Brazilian real (8.53 US
dollar) while the weighted average remaining contractual life is 6.33 years.

Of the 141.8m outstanding options 46.6m options are vested at 31 December 2019.

The weighted average exercise price of the Ambev options is as follows:

Amounts in US dollar’ 2019 2018 2017
Options outstanding at 1 January 417 3.94 419
Granted during the year 4.48 4.66 599
Exercised during the year 2.25 1.83 1.76
Forfeited during the year 5.27 479 541
Outstanding at the end of December 4.60 4.17 492
Exercisable at the end of December 4.74 0.58 1.14

For share oplions exercised during 2019, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 18.68 Brazilian real (4.63 US dollar).
The total number of outstanding Ambev deferred and restricted stock units developed as follows:
Million restricted stock units 2019 2018 2017

Restricted stock units outstanding at 1 January 25.0 16.3 19.3
Restricted stock units issued during the year 12.0 13.5 0.8
Restricted stock units vested during the year (4.2} 3.7) 2.9)
Restricted stock units forfeited during the year (1.1) {1.1) (0.9)
Restricted stock units outstanding at the end of December 31.7 25.0 16.3

Additionally, as a means of creating a long term incentive (wealth incentive) for certain senior employees and members of management
considered as having "high potential”, share appreciation rights in the form of phantomn stocks have been granted to those employees, pursuant
to which the beneficiary shall receive two separate lots — Lot A and Lot B — subject to lockup pericds of five and ten years, respectively. In
2019, Ambev did not issue any share appreciation rights.

During 20189, a limited number of Ambev shareholders who are part of the senior management of AB InBev were given the opportunity to
exchange Ambev shares against a total of 0.1m AB InBev shares {2018: 0.1m AB InBev shares) at a discount of 16.66% provided that they
stay in service for another five years. The fair value of this transaction amounts to approximately 1m US dollar {2018: 1m US dollar) and is
expensed over the five years’ service period. The fair values of the Ambev and AB InBev shares were determined based on the market price.

BUD APAC SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAM

In December 2019, Budweiser APAC setup a new long term incentive plan in which senior employees are eligible for an annual long-term
incentive to be paid out in Budweiser APAC stock options (or, in the future, similar share-based instruments), depending on management's
assessment of the employee's performance and future potential. In 2019, Budweiser APAC granted 9m stock options with an estimated fair
value of 10m US dollar.

Additionally, Budweiser APAC setup a new discrationary restricted stock units plan which allows for the offer of restricted stock units to certain
employees in certain specific circumstances, at the discretion of the Board, e.g. as a special retention incentive. The restricted stock units
vest after five years and in the event that an employee’'s service is terminated before the vesting date, special forfeiture rules apply. In 2019,
4m restricted stock units with an estimated fair value of 13m US dollar were granted under this program to a selected number of employees.
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27. Provisions

Miliion US doliar Restructuring Disputes Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2019 130 1077 711 1918
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (2) (13) - (15)
Provisions made B89 234 2 305
Provisions used (78) (128) (293) (499)
Provisions reversed (16} (92) {38) (148)
Cther movements - (642) {10) (652)
Balance at 31 December 2019 103 436 372 911

The restructuring provisicns are primarily explained by the organizational alignments - see also Nole 8 Non-recurring items. Provisions for
disputes mainly relate to various disputed direct and indirect taxes and to claims from former employees.

In 2016, the European Commission announced an investigation into the alleged abuse of a dominant pesition by AB InBev in Belgium through
certain practices aimed at restricting trade from other European Union member states to Belgium. In connection with these ongoing
proceedings, AB InBev recognhized a provision of 230m US dollar in 2018. On 13 May 2019, the European Commission announced that it had
fined AB InBev a total of 200m euro (226m US dollar) for breaching EU antitrust rules. The fine was paid in August 2018.

Effective 1 January 2019, AB {nBev adopted IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments and has elected to apply IFRIC 23
retrospectively. The cumulative effect of the interpretation was recognized at the date of initial application and the company has not restated
comparative periods in the year of initial application. AB InBev reviewed the income tax freatments in order to determine whether the
interpretation could have an impact on the consolidated financial statements. In that respect, as at 31 December 2019, the company
reclassified 573m US dollar of its existing income tax provisions into income tax liabilities, consistently with the current discussions held at the
IFRS Interpretation Committee, which concluded that an entity is required to present assets and liabilities for uncertain tax treatments as
current tax assets/liabilities or deferred tax assets/iabilities.

The provisions are expected to be settled within the following time windows:

Million US dollar Tota! <1 year 1.2 years 2-5 years > 5 years
Restructuring 103 39 22 23 19
Indirect taxes 107 11 37 8 51
Labor 133 30 18 77

Commercial 20 8 10 1 1
Envirpnmentai 1 1 - - -
Excise duties 12 - 10 2 -
Other disputes 163 53 98 12 -
Disputes 436 103 173 100 60
Other provisions 372 68 134 170 -
Total provisions 911 210 329 293 79

AB InBev is subject to the greenhouse gas emission allowance trading scheme in force in the European Union and a similar scheme in Scuth
Korea. Acquired emission allowances are recognized at cost as inlangible assets, To the extent that it is expected that the number of
allowances needed to settte the CO; emissions exceeds the number of emission allowances owned, a provision is recognized. Such provision
is measured at the estimated amount of the expenditure required to settle the obligation.
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28. Trade and other payables

NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
indirect taxes payable 174 194
Trade payables 237 238
Deferred consideration an acquisitions 1418 1247
Other payables 113 138
Non-current trade and other payables 1943 1816

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Trade payables and accrued expenses 15876 15 512
Payroll and social security payables 736 900
Indirect taxes payable 2708 2833
interest payable 1679 1616
Consigned packaging 1106 1093
Dividends payable 338 331
Deferred income 21 32
Deferred consideration on acquisitions 221 163
Other payables 179 289
Current trade and other payables 22 864 22 568

As at 3t December 2019, deferred consideration on acquisitions is mainly comprised of 0.7 billion US dollar for the put option included in the
2012 shareholders’ agreement between Ambev and ELJ, which may result in Ambev acquiring additional shares in Cerveceria Nacional
Dominicana S.A. ("CND").
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29. Risks arising from financial instruments

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Set out below is an overview of financial assets’ held by the company at year-end:

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Debt instruments at amortized cost
Trade and other receivables 5444 6 298

Debt instruments at fair vaiue through OCI
Unguoted debt 25 24

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted debt H 87

Equity instruments at fair value through OCi
Unguoted companies 85 84

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives not designated in hedge accounting relationships:

Equity swaps 17 -
Interest rate swaps 18 9
Cross currency interest rate swaps 157 32
Other derivatives - 20

Derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships:

Foreign exchange forward contracts 112 191

Foreign currency futures 7 -

Commodities 52 54
6 009 6799

Of which:

Non-current 883 1 068

Current 5126 5731

' Cash and short term depaosits are not included in this overview.
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Set out below is an overview of financial liabilities held by the company at year-end:

31 December 2013
Million US dollar 31 December 2019 restated

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives not designated in hedge accounting relationships:

Equity swaps 3146 4 816
Cross currency interest rate swaps 140 387
Other derivatives 156 456

Derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships:

Foreign exchange forward contracts 435 132
Cross currency interest rate swaps 35 103
Interest rate swaps 4 56
Commodities 97 273
Equity swaps 31 61
Other derivatives 107 56

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Trade and other payables 21189 20 658

Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings:

Secured bank loans 71 109
Unsecured bank loans 50 86
Unsecured bond issues 95 674 105 170
Unsecured other loans 7 57
Lease liabilities 1692 1575

Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings:

Secured bank loans 790 370
Unsecured bank loans 135 22
Unsecured bond issues 2532 2626
Unsecured other loans 20 14
Commercial paper 1599 1142
Bank overdrafts 68 114
Lease liabilities 333 410
128 381 138 693
Of which:
Non-current 99 684 109 385
Current 28 696 29 308
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DERIVATIVES

AB InBev's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest
risk, commodity risk and equity risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company analyses each of these risks individually as well as on a
combined basis and defines strategies to manage the economic impacl on the company’s performance in line with its financial nisk
management policy.

AB InBev's primarily uses the following derivative instruments: foreign currency rate agreements, exchange traded foreign currency futures
and options, interest rate swaps and forwards, cross currency interest rate swaps ("CCIRS"), exchange traded interest rate futures, commodity
swaps, exchange traded commoedity futures and equity swaps.

The table below provides an overview of the notional amounts of derivatives outstanding at year-end by maturity bucket.

31 December 2019 ] 31 December 2(!7178

2-3

Million US dollar
Foreign currency
Forward exchange contracts 21 216 36 - - - 11423 190 - - -
Foreign currency futures 1359 723 - - - 648 - - - -

interest rate

Interest rate swaps 750 - 1 500 1 000 - 2250 750 28 1873 36
Cross currency interest rate swaps 15 513 5445 500 668 1807 51 16 6 464 681
Other interest rate derivatives - - - - 565 4 - - - 565

Commodities

Aluminum swaps 1411 22 - - - 1597 73 - - -
Other commodity derivatives 771 20 - - - 1241 32 - - -
Equity

Equity derivatives 11 638 - - - - 11347 - - - -

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

AB InBev is subject to foreign currency risk when contracts are dencminated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity.
This includes borrowings, investments, (forecasted) sales, (forecasted) purchases, rovalties, dividends, licenses, management fees and
interest expensef/income. To manage foreign currency risk the company uses mainly foreign currency rate agreements, exchange traded
foreign currency futures and cross currency interest rate swaps.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK ON THE DISPOSAL OF AUSTRALIAN OPERATIONS

During 2019, AB InBev entered into derivative foreign exchange forward contracts in order to economically hedge against the exposure to
changes in the US dollar against the proceeds denominated in Australian dollar. These derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting
under IFRS 9. As of 31 December 19, 22m US dollar positive mark-to-market adjustment (including 219m US dollars mark-to-market received
in cash) related to this hedging is recognized under cash flow hedge reserve. Once the disposal is completed, the effective component of the
hedge will adjust the results on disposal of subsidiaries.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK ON OPERATING ACTIVITIES

AB InBev's policy is to hedge operating transactions which are reasonably expected to cccur (e.g. cost of goods sold and selling, general &
administrative expenses) within the forecast period determined in the financial risk management policy. Operaling transactions that are
considered certain to ocour are hedged without any time limits. Non-operating transactions (such as acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries)
are hedged as soon as they are highly probable.

The table below shows the company's main net foreign currency positions for firm commitments and forecasted transactions for the most
important currency pairs. The cpen positions are the resuit of the application of AB InBev's risk management policy. Positive amounts indicate
that the company is long (net future cash inflows) in the first currency of the currency pair while negative amounts indicate that the company
is short (net future cash outflows) in the first currency of the currency pair. The second currency of the currency pairs listed is the functional
currency of the related subsidiary.

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Open Total Totai Open
Million US dollar position  exposure hedges position
Euro/Canadian dollar {52) 39 (13) (39} 39 -
Euro/Mexican peso {151} 156 5 (187} 182 (5}
Euro/Pound sterling (126} 124 (2} (239} 213 {26)
Euro/South African rand (99) 85 (4) (90) 52 (38)
Euro/South Korean won 49 46 (3} (51) 59 8
Euro/US dollar (408) 337 (72) (415) 404 {(11)
Mexican pesc/Chinese yuan - - - {216) 198 (17)
Mexican pesofEuro (178} 161 (17} {300) 30 1
Pound sterling/Euro (39} 40 1 (34) 34 -
US dollarfArgentinian peso (531) 510 (21} {573) 484 (89)
US gollar/Australian dollar (216} 204 (12) (209) 209 -
US dollar/Bolivian boliviano (69} 70 1 (76) 76 -
US dollar/Brazilian real (1443) 1447 4 (1303} 1223 (80}
US dollar/Canadian dollar (287} 295 8 (362) 286 (78}
US dollar/Chilean peso (109) 102 (7} (1586) 155 1
US dollar/Chinese yuan (230) 191 (39) (201} 249 48
US dollar/Colombian peso (278) 272 {6) (287} 219 (68)
US dollar/Euro (108) 113 5 (80} 78 (2}
US dollar/Mexican peso (1105} 903 (202) (1159 1082 (69)
US dollar/Paraguayan guarani (124) 130 6 (177} 166 (1)
US dollar/Peruvian nuevo sol (243) 205 (38) (157) 149 (8}
US doilar/South African rand (28) 31 3 (80} 83 3
US dollar/South Korean won (88) 99 1M1 (114) 128 14
US dollar/Uruguayan peso (41) 41 - (40) 41 1
Others (317) 250 (67} (321) 264 (57)

Further analysis on the impact of open currency exposures is performed in the curency sensitivity analysis below.

Hedges of firm commitments and highly probable forecasted transactions denominated in foreign currency are designated as cash flow
hedges.

Foreign exchange risk on foreign currency denominated debt

It is AB InBev's policy to have the debt in the subsidiaries as much as possible linked to the functional currency of the subsidiary. To the extent
this is not the case, foreign exchange risk is managed through the use of derivatives unless the cost to hedge cutweighs the benefits. Interest
rate decisions and currency mix of debt and cash are decided on a global basis and take inte consideration the holistic risk management
approach.

A description of the foreign currency risk hedging of debt instruments issued in a currency other than the functional currency of the subsidiary
is further detailed in the Interest Rate Risk section below.
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Currency sensitivity analysis

Currency transactional risk

Most of AB InBev’'s non-derivative financial instruments are either denominated in the functional currency of the subsidiary or are converted
into the functional currency through the use of derivatives. Where illiquidity in the local market prevents hedging at a reasonable cost, the
company can have open positions. The transactional foreign currency risk mainly arises from open positions in Mexican peso, Chinese yuan
and Peruvian nuevo sol against the US dollar and the suro. AB InBev estimated the reasonably possible change of exchange rate, on the
basis of the average volatility on the open currency pairs, as follows:

2019 U

Closing rate Possible

31 December 2019 closing rate’
Euro/Mexican peso 21.17 19.28 — 23.06 8.92%
Euro/Pound sterling 0.85 0.79-0.91 7.35%
Euro/South Korean won 1297.02 121694 -1377.10 8.17%
Euro/US dollar 1.12 1.07-1.18 4.69%
Pound sterling/US dollar 1.32 1.21 143 B.08%
US dollar/Austrafian dollar 1.42 1.33-1.562 §.70%
US dollar/Chinese yuan 6.96 6.62—7.30 4.86%
US dellar/Colombian peso 3272.63 2935.33 -3609.92 10.31%
US dollar/Euro 0.89 0.85-0.93 4.69%
US dellar/Mexican peso 18.85 17.25 - 20.44 8.48%
US dollar/Nigerian naira 362.59 350.58 — 374.60 3.31%
US dollar/Peruvian nueve sol 3.32 317 - 347 4.50%
US dollar/South African rand 14.04 12.26 — 15.83 12.74%
US doliar/South Korean won 1154.55 1064.67 — 1244 42 7.78%
US dollar/Tanzanian shilling 2 300.14 2 186.57 — 2 413.71 4.94%
US dollar/Zambian kwacha 14.02 11.24 — 16,81 19.85%

Closing rate Possible Volatility

31 December 2018 closing rate” of rates in %

Euro/Mexican peso 22.54 19.21 — 25.86 14.75%
Euro/Pound sterling 0.89 0.84 — 0.95 6.03%
Euro/South Korean won 127714 1181.98 -13723 7.45%
Euro/US dollar 1.15 1.06 -123 7.32%
Pound sterling/US dollar 1.28 1.17 - 1.39 8.45%
US dollar/Australian dollar 1.42 1.30-1.54 B8.50%
US dollar/Chinese yuan 6.88 6.57 - 7.18 4.45%
US dollar/Colombian peso 3 246.70 28689-36245 11.64%
US dollar/Euro 0.87 0.81 -0.94 7.32%
US dollar/Mexican peso 19.68 17.12 = 22.24 13.00%
US dollar/Nigerian naira 362.54 354.9 - 370.18 2.11%
US dollar/Peruvian nuevo sol 3.37 3.24 - 3.50 3.90%
US dollar/South African rand 14.37 1196 — 16.79 16.82%
US dollar/South Korean won 1115.40 1029.1 -1 201.71 7.74%
US dollar/Tanzanian shilling 2 298.32 2211.95 -2 384.69 3.76%
US dollar/”Zambian kwacha 11.88 10.28 — 13.47 13.41%

Had the Mexican peso, Chinese yuan, Peruvian nuevo sol and South Korean won weakened/strengthened during 2019 by the above estimated
changes against the eurc or the US dollar, with all other variables held constant, the 2019 impact on consoclidated profit before taxes from
continuing operations would have been approximately 35m US dollar (76m US dollar in 2018} higher/lower.

Additionally, the AB InBev sensitivity analysis' to the foreign exchange rates on its total derivatives positions as of 31 December 2019, shows
a positive/negative pre-tax impact on equity reserves of 548m US dollar (587m US dollar in 2018).

! Sensitivity analysis is assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily observabie market data during 250 days at 31 December 2019.
2 Sensitivity analysis is assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily observable market data during 250 days at 31 December 2018.
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Foreign exchange risk on net investments in foreign operations
AB [nBev mitigates exposures of its investments in foreign operations using both denvative and non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instrurments,

As of 31 December 2019, designated derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in net investment hedges amount to 15 522m US
doliar equivalent (31 December 2018: 9 773m US dollar) in Holding companies and approximately 732m US dollar equivalent at Ambev level
(31 December 2018: 632m US doliar}. These instruments hedge foreign operations with Canadian doliar, Chinese yuan, Domihican peso,
euro, Mexican pese, pound sterling, South African rand, South Korean won and US dollar functional currencies.

Net foreign exchange results
Foreign exchange results recognized on unhedged and hedged exposures are as follows:

Million US daollar 2019 2018 restated
Economic hedges 6 (210)
Other results - not hedged (186) 230

{180) 19

INTEREST RATE RISK

The company applies a dynamic interest rate hedging approach whereby the target mix between fixed and floating rate debt is reviewed
periodically. The purpose of AB InBev's policy is to achieve an optimal balance between the cost of funding and the volatility of financial
results, while taking into account market conditions as well as AB InBev's overall business strategy.

Fair value hedges
US dollar fixed rate bond hedges (interest rate risk on borrowings in US dollar)

The company manages and reduces the impac! of changes in the US dollar interest rates on the fair value of certain fixed rate bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of 1.0 billicn US dollar through fixedffloating interest rate swaps. These derivative instruments have been
designated in a fair value hedge accounting relationship.

Cash flow hedges
Pound sterling bond hedges (foreign currency risk + interest rate risk on borrowings in pound sterling}

In September 2013, the company issued a pound sterling bond for 500m pound sterling at a rate of 4.00% per year and maturing in September
2025. The impact of changes in the pound sterling exchange rate and interest rate on this bond is managed and reduced through pound
sterling fixed/euro fixed cross currency interest rate swaps. These derivative instruments have been designated in a cash flow hedge
accounting.

Economic Hedges
Marketable debt security hedges (interest rate risk on Brazilian real)

During 2019 and 2018, Ambev invested in highly liquid Brazilian real denominated government debt securities. The company also entered
into interest rate future contracts in order to offset the Brazilian real interest rate exposure of these government bonds. Both instruments are
measured at fair value with changes recorded into profit or loss and no hedge accounting is tequired.
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The table below reflects the effective interest rates of interest-bearing financial liabilities at balance sheet date as well as the currency in which
the debt is denominated.

31 December 2019 Before hedging

Interest-bearing financial liabilities Effective Effective
Million US dollar inferest rate Amount interest rate Amount

Floating rate

Australian dollar 1.87% 210 1.87% 210
Brazilian real 9.33% 43 9.33% 43
Euro 0.08% 4214 0.08% 4214
US dollar 2.36% 1749 2.85% 4 269
Other 9.82% 225 4.46% 954
6 441 9 690

Fixed rate
Australian dollar 3.71% 1647 3.71% 1647
Brazilian real 9.00% 544 9.00% 544
Canadian dollar 3.16% 2 055 3.16% 2 055
Euro 1.82% 25 346 1.82% 29 338
Pound sterling 3.82% 4 373 3.79% 3713
South Korean won 3.37% 15 2.46% 1015
US dollar 4.83% 62 205 5.02% 54 551
Other 7.31% 416 6.95% 489
96 601 93 352

31 December 2018 Before hedging After hedging
Interest-bearing financial liabilities Effective Effective

Million US dollar Restated interest rate Amount interest rate Amount

Floating rate

Australian dollar 2.95% 214 2.95% 214
Brazilian real 9.13% 61 6.86% 133
Canadian dollar 366% 190 3.38% 206
Euro 0.24% 3138 0.24% 3138
US dollar 1.94% 1399 2.21% 2638
Other 7.19% 709 7.19% 709
5711 7038

Fixed rate
Australian dollar 3.22% 1951 3.22% 1 951
Brazilian real 11.51% 525 12.13% 453
Canadian dollar 3.23% 1942 3.23% 1942
Euro 1.80% 28 217 1.65% 36 044
Pound sterling 3.82% 4218 3.79% 3 586
South Korean won - - 2.45% 1000
US dollar 4.28% 68 820 4. 66% 59 370
Other 8.43% 311 8.43% 311
105 984 104 656

At 31 December 20189, the total carrying amount of the floating and fixed rate interest-bearing financial liabilities before hedging as listed above
includes bank overdrafts of 68m US dollar (31 December 2018: 114m US dollar).
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As disclosed in the above table, 9 690m US dollar or 9.41% of the company's interest-bearing financial liabilities bears interest at a variable
rate. The company estimated that the reasonably possible change of the market interest rates applicable to its floating rate debt after hedging
is as follows:

2018 . —_—

Possible Volatiity

31 December 2019’ interest rate? of rates in %

Brazilian real 4.42% 3.32% - 5.52% 24 88%
Euroc - - 6.43%
US dollar 1.91% 1.51% - 2.30% 20.66%

interestrate _ Possible  Volatility

31 December 2018’ interest rate? of rates in %

Brazilian real 6.44% 6.12% - 6.76% 5.00%
Canadian dollar 2.29% 2.15% - 2.42% 591%
Eurg - - 2.45%
US dollar 2.78% 261% - 2.94% 5.97%

When AB inBev applies the reasonably possible increase/decrease in the market interest rates mentioned above on its floating rate debt at
31 December 2019, with all other variables held constant, 2019 interest expense would have been 16m US dollar higher/lower (2018: 8m US
doliar). This effect would be mare than offset by (22m) US doliar higher/lower interest income on AB InBev's interest-bearing financial assets
(2018: (60)m US dollar}.

Interest expense
Interest expense recognized on unhedged and hedged financial liabilities are as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost - not hedged (4 284) {4 053)
Fair value hedges (48) (78)
Cash flow hedges 15 21
Net investrment hedges - hedging instruments (interest component) 2 35
Economic hedges 129 100

(4 164) (3973

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The commodity markets have experienced and are expected to continue to experience price fluctuations. AB InBev therefore uses both fixed
price purchasing contracts and commodity derivatives 1o manage the exposure to the price volatility. The most significant commodity
exposures as at 31 December 2019 are included in the table below {expressed in outstanding notional amounts):

Million US dollar 2018 20618
Aluminum swaps 1448 1670
Exchange traded sugar futures 54 62
Natural gas and energy derivatives 258 313
Corn swaps 195 196
Exchange traded wheat futures 20 424
Rice swaps 328 194
Plastic derivatives 59 84

2 360 2943

* Appticable 3-month InterBank Offered Rates as of 31 December 2019 and as of 31 December 2018.

2 Sensitivity analysis is assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily observable market data during 250 days at 31 December 2019 and at December 2018.
For the Brazilian real floating rate debt, the estimated market interest rate is compoesed of the InterBank Deposit Certificate (COI') and the Long-Term Interest
Rate ('T.JLP'). With regard to other market interest rates, the company’s analysis is based on the 3-month InterBank Offered Rates applicable for the currencies
concerped {e.g. EURIBOR 3M, LIBOR 3M).
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Commodity price sensitivity analysis
The impact of changes in the commedity prices would have an immaterial impact on AB InBev's profitin 2019 profits as most of the company’s
exposure is hedged using derivative contracts and designated in hedge accounting in accordance with IFRS 9 rules.

The tables below show the estimated impact that changes in the price of the commodities, for which AB InBev held material derivative
exposures at 31 December 2019 and 2018, would have on the equity reserves.

Volatility of Pre-tax impact on equity
Million US dollar prices in %' Prices increase  Prices decrease
Aluminum 21.78% 312 (312}
Sugar 29.73% 16 (16)
Wheat 30.30% <] {(6)
Energy 25.86% 66 (66)
Rice 22.64% 47 (47)
Comn 21.74% 42 (42)
Plastic 24.03% 14 {14)

Voiatility of Pre-tax impact on equity
Million US dollar prices in %°  Prices increase  Prices decrease
Aluminum 22.16% 370 {370}
Sugar 29.60% 18 (18}
Wheat 29.31% 124 (124)
Energy 23.83% 74 (74)
Rice 22.08% 43 (43)
Corn 23.85% 47 47)
Plastic 20.54% 17 (17)

EQUITY PRICE RISK

AB InBev enters into derivatives to hedge the price risk on its shares when such risk could negatively impact future cash flows related to the
share-based payments programs. AB InBev alsc hedges its exposure arising from shares issued in connection with the Modelo and SAB
combination (see alsc Note 11 Finance cost and income and Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share). These derivatives do not
qualify for hedge accounting and the changes in fair valug are recorded in the profit or loss.

As of 31 December 2019, an exposure for an equivalent of 99.5m of AB InBev shares was hedged, resulting in a total gain of 1.8 billion US
dollar recognized in the profit or loss account for the period, of which 838m US dollar related to the company’s share-based payment programs,
445m US dollar and 433m US dollar related to the Modelo and SAB transactions, respectively.

Between 2012 and 2018, AB InBev reset certain equity derivatives to market price with counterparties. This resulted in a net cash inflow of
2.9 billion US doliar between 2012 and 2018 and, accordingly, a decrease of counterparty risk.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on the share-based payments hedging program, calculated based on a 25.20% (2018: 22.03%) reasonably possible
volatility of the AB InBev share price, with all the other variables held constant, would show 2 066m US dollar positive/negative impact on the
2019 profit before tax (2018: 1 345m US dollar).

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk encompasses all forms of counterparty exposure, i.e. where counterparties may default on their obligations to AB InBev in relation
to lending, hedging, settlement and other financial activities. The company has a credit policy in place and the exposure to counterparty credit
risk is monitored.

AB inBev mitigates its exposure through a variety of mechanisms. It has established minimum counterparty credit ratings and enters into
transactions only with financial institutions of investment grade rating. The company monitors counterparty credit exposures closely and
reviews any external downgrade in credit rating immediately. To mitigate pre-settlement risk, counterparty minimum credit standards become
maore stringent with increases in the duration of the derivatives. To minimize the concentration of counterparty credit risk, the company enters
into derivative transactions with different financial institutions.

The company also has master netting agreements with all of the financial institutions thal are counterparties to over the counter (OTC)
derivatives. These agreements allow for the net settlement of assets and liabilities arising from different transactions with the same
counterparty. Based on these factors, AB InBev considers the impact of the risk of counterparty default as at 31 December 2019 to be limited.

' Sensitivity analysis is assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily observable market data during 250 days at 31 December 2019,
? Sensitivity analysis is assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily observable market data during 250 days at 31 December 2018.
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Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure of the company. The carrying amount is presented net of
the impairment losses recognized. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2018
Net N Net
carrying carrying
Million US dollar Impairment amount impairment amount
Investment in unguoted companies 92 (7 85 N (7} 84
Investment in debt securities "7 - 117 111 - 111
Trade receivables 4219 (173) 4 046 4 400 (160) 4 240
Cash deposits for guarantees 219 - 219 197 - 197
Loans to customers 177 - 177 188 - 188
Other receivables 1666 (103) 1563 2 359 {106) 2 253
Derivatives 362 - 362 307 - 307
Cash and cash equivalents 7 238 - 7238 7074 - 7074
14 090 (283) 13 807 14 727 273) 14 454

There was no significant concentration of credit risks with any single counterparty per 31 December 2018 and no single customer represented
more than 10% of the total revenue of the group in 2019.

Impairment losses
The allowance for impairment recognized during the period per classes of financial assels was as follows:

Trade Loans to Other
Miflion US dollar receivables customers receivables
Baiance at 1 January (160} - {7) (106) {273)
impairment losses 51} - - (30) (81}
Derecognition 26 - - 31 57
Currency translation and other 12 - - 2 14
Balance at 31 December (173) - N {103} (283)

Trade Loans to
Million US dollar receivables cusiomers receivables
Balance at 1 January (194) - (7) (117) (318)
Impairment losses (40) - - (3 {43)
Derecognition 28 - - 6 35
Currency transiation and other 44 - - 9 53
Balance at 31 December (160) . N {106) (273)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Historically, AB inBev's primary sources of cash flow have been cash flows from operating activities, the issuance of debt, bank borrowings
and equity securities. AB InBev's material cash requirements have included the following:

®  Debt servicing;

* Capital expenditures;

*  |nvestments in companies,;

Increases in ownership of AB InBev's subsidiaries or companies in which it holds equity investments;
Share buyback programs; and

Payments of dividends and interest on shareholders’ equity.

The company believes that cash flows from operating activities, available cash and cash equivalents as well as short term investments, along
with related derivatives and access to borrowing facilities, will be sufficient to fund capital expenditures, financial instrument liabilities and
dividend payments going forward. It is the intention of the company to continue to reduce its financial indebtedness through a combination of
strong operating cash flow generation and continued refinancing.
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The following are the nominal contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities including interest payments and derivative liabilities:
31 December 2019

Million US dollar Carrying Contractual More than
amount’ cash flows 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Secured bank loans (861) (890) (795) (18) (18) (22) (37)
Commercial papers (1 599) (1 599) {1 599) - - - -
Unsecured bank loans {185) (188) (140) 47) (1} - -
Unsecured bond issues (98 206) (165 424) (5513) (6 415) {6 518) {18 605) (128 373)
Unsecured other loans (98} (131) (27) n (9} (5) (73)
Lease liahilities (2 025) (2 338) (404) (350) {243) (285) (1 056)
Bank overdraft (68) (68) (68) - - - -
Trade and other payables (24 806) (25 152) (22 861) (1227) 472) (165) (427}

(127 848} (195 790} (31 407) (8 074} (7 281) {19 082) {129 966)

Berivative financial liabilities

Interest rate derivatives (102) {103} (7) 4] (1) 3 (97)
Foreign exchange derivatives (600) {600} (600} - - - -
Cross currency interest rate swaps {175) (187} 75 (285) 6 75 (58)
Commodity derivatives 97) (97) {97) - - - -
Equity derivatives (3177) 3177) (3177) - - -

{4 151) (4 164) {3 806) {286) 5 78 (155}
Of which: related to cash flow hedges (448) (448) (408) 5 3 5 (53)

31 December 2018 restated

. Carrying [of LIETTE]] More than
Million US dollar amount’ cash flows 5 years

Non-derivative financiat liabilities

Secured bank loans (479} (496) (383) (39) {15} (27} (32)
Commercial papers (1142) (1142) (1142) - - - -
Unsecured bank loans {108} (135) (33) (6) (96) - -
Unsecured bond issues (107 796) (165 979) (6 410) (9 146) {11 636) (23672) (115 115)
Unsecured other loans (71} (110) (19} (22) (12) (12} (45)
Lease liabilities {1985) (2 591) (508} (391) (325) (467) (900}
Bank overdraft {114) (114) (114} - - - -
Trade and other payables (24 345) (24 722) (22 557) (260) (1 060) (333) (512)

(136 040) (195 289) (31 166} (9 864) {13 144) (24 511) {116 604}

Derivative financial liabilities

interest rate derivatives {(112) (142) (125} (19) (13) 15 -
Foreign exchange derivatives (589) (589) (589} - - - -
Cross currency interest rate swaps (489} (515) (29} 72 71 (850} (79}
Commodity derivatives (273) (273) (273} - - - -
Equity derivatives (4 877) (4 BT7) (4 877) - - - -

(6 340) (6 396) (5893} 53 58 (535) {79}
Of which: related to cash flow hedges {486) (490) (416} 2 1 2 (79)

' “Carrying amount” refers to net book value as recognized in the balance sheet at each reporting date
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AB InBev continuously optimizes its capital structure to maximize sharehoider value whila keeping the financial Rexibility to axecute strategic
projects. AB InBev's capital structure policy and framework aims to optimize shareholder value through cash flow distribution to the company
from its subsidiaries, while maintaining an investment-grade rating and minimizing investments with returns below AB InBev's weighted
average cost of capital. Besides the statutory minimum equity funding requirements that apply to the company's subsidiaries in the different
countries, AB InBev is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements. The management uses the same debt/equity classifications
as applied in the company’s IFRS reporting to analyze the capital structure.

FAIR VALUE
The following table summarizes for each type of derivative the fair values recognized as assets or labilities in the balance sheet:

Assets Liabilities

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Mitlion US dollar 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Foreign currency
Forward exchange contracts 112 191 (590) (586} (478) (395)
Foreign cumrency futures 7 7 9) 3 (2} 4

interest rate

Interest rate swaps 18 9 {6) 27) 12 {18)
Cross currency interest rate swaps 157 32 {175) (489} (18) (457)
Qther interest rate derivatives - 20 (97) (86) (97} (66)

Commodities

Aluminum swaps 15 23 (61) {(172) (46) {149)
Sugar futures 2 - (2} (8) - (8)
Wheat futures 14 13 9 [AD] 5 2
Energy 8 4 {(11) (54) (3) (50)
Other commodity derivatives 13 8 (14) (28) (1} {20}
Equity
Equity derivatives 17 - (317N (4 877) (3 180) (4 877)
362 307 (4 151) (6 340) (3 789) (6033}
Of which:
Non-current 132 10 (352) (805) (220) (795)
Current 230 297 (3 799) {5 535) (3 569) (5238)

The following table summarizes the carrying amount and the fair value of the fixed rate interest-bearing financial liabilities as recognized at
the balance sheet. Floaling rate interest-bearing financial fiabilities, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, including
derivatives financial instruments, have been excluded from the analysis as their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of their fair
value:

i : . 2019 2018 restated

Interest-bearing financial liabilities Carrying 2019 Carrying 2018 restated
Million US dollar amount’ Fair value amount’ Fair value
Fixed rate

Australian dollar (1647) (1748) {1 951) {1977}
Brazilian real (544} (542) (525) (525)
Canadian dollar (2 055} (2 046) (1942} (1 855}
Euro (25 346) (30 365) {28 217) (27 551)
Pound sterling (4 373) (4 818) (4 218} (4 365)
USs dollar (62 205) (74 035) (68 820) (66 123)
Other (431) (431) 311) 311)

{96 601) (113 983) (105 984) {102 707)

1 “Carrying amount® refers to net book value as recognized in the balance sheet at each reporting date.
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The table sets out the fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which significant market inputs are observable:

Fair value hierarchy 31 December 2019 Quoted (unadjusted} Observable market Unobservable market

Million US doHar prices - level 1 inputs - level 2 inputs - level 3

Financial Assets

Held for trading (non-derivatives) 2 9 -
Derivatives at fair value through prefit and loss - 119 -
Derivatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 17 153 -
Derivatives in a fair value hedge relationship - 19 -
Derivatives in a net investment hedge relationship - 54 -
19 354
Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration on acquisitions at fair value - - 1639
Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss - 3441 -
Derivatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 21 586 -
Derivatives in a fair value hedge relationship - 103 -
21 4 130 1639

Unobservable market
inputs - fevel 3

Observable market
inputs - level 2

Quoted (unadjusted}
prices - level 1

Fair value hierarchy 31 December 2018
Million US dollar

Financial Assets

Held for trading (non-derivatives) 3 9 -
Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss - 67 -
Derivatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 7 225 -
Derivatives in a fair value hedge relationship - 33 -
Derivatives in a net investment hedge relationship - 14 -
10 348 .
Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration on acquisitions at fair value - - 1409
Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss - 5699 -
Derivatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 18 507 -
Derivatives in a fair value hedge relationship - 125 -
Derivatives in a net investment hedge relationship - 31 -
18 6 362 1409

Non-derivative financial liabilities

As part of the 2012 shareholders agreement between Ambev and ELJ, following the acquisition of Cerveceria Nacional Dominicana S.A.
(*CND"), a forward-purchase contract (i.e. combination of a written put option and purchased call option) was put in place which may result in
Ambev acquiring additional shares in CND. In January 2018, ELJ partially exetcised its option to sell approximately 30% of the shares of CND
for an amount of 0.9 billion US doilar, resulting in Ambev’s participation in CND increasing frorn 55% to 85%. As of 31 December 2019, the
put option on the remaining shares held by ELJ was valued at 0.7 billion US dollar {31 December 2018: 0.6 billion US dollar after the exercise
of the put option by ELJ} and recognized as a deferred consideration on acquisitions at fair value in the “level 3" category above. The fair
value of such deferred consideration is calculated using present value technigues, namely by discounting futures cash flows at the appropriate
rate.
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HEDGING RESERVES
The company's hedging reserves disclosed in Note 23 relate to the following instruments:

Foreign Total hedging

Million US dollar currency Commodities Others reserves
As per 1 January 2019 480 {60) 76 494
Change in fair value of hedging instrument recognized in OCI 52 16 - 107
Reclassified to profit or loss / cost of inventory (398) 162 32 (204)
Deferred tax - - - R
As per 31 December 2019 174 117 107 397
Foreign Total hedging

Million US dollar currency Commodities Others reserves
As per 1 January 2018 559 {20) a7 586
Change in fair value of hedging instrument recognized in OC{ 262 97 - 358
Reclassified to profit or loss / cost of inventory (341) (137} 26 (452)
Deferred tax - - 2 2
As per 31 December 2018 430 {60} 76 494

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following financial assets and liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements:

31 December 2019
Net amount recognized

in the statement of Other offsetting

Million US dollar financial position’ agreements?  Total net amount
Derivative assets g2 362 (352) 10
Derivative liabilities (4 151) {4 151) 352 (3 799)

31 December 2018
Net amount recognized

) Gross in the statement of Other offsetting
Million US dollar amount financial position’ agreements’  Total net amount
Derivative assets 307 307 {293) 13
Derivative liabilities (6 340} (6 340) 293 (6 046}

30. Operating leases

The company leases out pub real estate for an average outstanding period of 6 to 8 years and part of its own property under operating leases.
The following table sets out the maturity analysis of the non-cancelable lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be
received:

31 December 2018

Million US dollar 31 December 2019 restated
Within ong year 155 152
Between one and five years 518 460
After five years 215 217
Total 888 829

1n 2019, 152m US dollar was recognized as income in the income statement in respect of subleasing of right-of-use assets (2018: 133m US
dollar).

' Net amount recognized in the slatement of financial posilion after taking into account offsetting agreements that meet the offsetting criteria as per IFRS rules
? Other offselting agreemants include collateral and ather guarantee instruments, as well as offsetting agreements that do not meet the offsetting criteria as per
IFRS rules
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31. Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, loans to customers and other

Million US dollar 2019 2018 restated
Collateral given for own liabilities 372 404
Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment 457 416
Contractual commitments to acquire loans to customers 151 171
Other commitments 1911 1973

The collateral given for own liabilities of 372m US dollar at 31 December 2019 contains 219m US dollar cash guarantees. Such cash deposits
are a customary feature associated with litigations in Brazil: in accordance with Brazilian laws and regulations a company may or must
(depending on the circumstances) ptace a deposit with a bank designated by the court or provide other security such as collateral on property,
plant and equipment. With regard to judicial cases, AB InBev has made the appropriate provisions in accordance with |1AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — see also Note 27 Provisions. In the company’s balance sheet the cash guarantees are
presented as part of other receivables — see Note 20 Trade and other receivables. The remaining part of collateral given for own liabilities
(153m US dollar) contains collateral on AB InBev's property in favor of the excise tax authorities, the amount of which is determined by the
level of the monthiy excise taxes due, inventory levels and transportation risk, and collateral on its property, plant and equipment with regard
to outstanding loans. To the extent that AB InBev would not respect its obligations under the related outstanding contracts or would lose the
pending iudicial cases, the collateralized assets would be used to settle AB InBev's obligations.

AB InBev has entered into commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment for an amount of 457m US dollar at 31 December 2019.

In a limited number of countries AB InBev has committed itself to acquire loans to customers from banks at their notional amount if the
customers do not respect their reimbursement commitments towards the banks. The total outstanding amount of such loans is 151m US dollar
at 31 December 2019,

As at 31 December 2019, the following M&A related commitments existed:

* As part of the 2012 shareholders agreement between Ambev and E. Ledn Jimenes S.A.("ELJ"), following the acquisition of Cerveceria
Nacional Deminicana S A. {"CND™}, a put and call option is in place which may result in Ambeyv acquiring additional shares in CND. In
January 2018 Ambev increased its participation in CND from 55% to 85%. As of 31 December 2019, the put option for the remaining
shares held by ELJ was valued 732 million US dollar (2018: 632 million US dollar). The corresponding liability is presented as a current
liability and recognized as a deferred consideration on acquisitions at fair value in “level 3" category above. See also note 29 Risks
arising from financial instruments.

® Upon the combination with SAB, AB InBev maintained South African Breweries’ Zenzele share-scheme which supports broad-based
black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) and provides opportunities for black South Africans (including employees and SAB retailers)
to participate as shareholders. The Zenzele share-scheme originally implemented by SAB in 2010, was amended at the time of the SAB
combination and will expire in April 2020. The obligations that arise under the Zenzele share-scheme upon its expiration will be settled
using AB InBev Treasury shares. The obligation is estimated to be approximately 9.8 billion ZAR (0.7 billion USD'). The number of AB
inBev shares required to settte the obligation will depend on the AB InBev share price and ZAR to Euro exchange rate at the time of the
settiement. The settlement wouid be equivalent to 8.5 million AB InBev shares assuming AB InBev share price and the ZAR Eurmo
exchange rate as at 31 December 20192.

® As part of the SAB transaction, AB InBev made a commitment to the Scuth African Government and Competiticn Authorities to create
a new B-BBEE scheme upon maturity in 2020 of SAB’s current Zenzele Scheme. In order to create the new B-BBEE scheme the
following steps will be undertaken:

. The new scheme will be implemented through the listing of a NewCo (which will be called Zenzele Kabili) on the
Johannesburg Stock Exchange B-BBEE Exchange;

. The NewCo will hold unencumbered AB InBev shares;

- Existing Zenzele participanis (employees, retailers and the SAB Foundation} will be given an option to reinvest a portion
of their Zenzele payout into the Newco;

=  Anew Employee Share Plan, funded by AB InBev, will subscribe for NewCo shares.

®  The new scheme is estimated to require 4.4 billion ZAR (0.3 billion USD") in facilitation and noticnal vendor funding. The settlement
would be equivalent to 3.8 milion AB InBev shares assuming AB InBev share price and the ZAR Euro exchange rate as at 31
December 20192 and it will be funded with AB InBev Treasury shares. This scheme arrangement meets the criteria under IFRS 2
to be classified as equity settied.

Other commitments amount to 1 911m US dollar at 31 December 2019 and mainly cover guarantees given to pension funds, rental and other
guarantees.

In order to fulfil AB InBev's commitments under various outstanding stock option plans, AB InBev entered into stock lending arrangements for
up to 30 million of its own ordinary shares. AB InBev shail pay any dividend equivalent, after tax in respect of the loaned securities. This
payment will be reported through equity as dividend. As of 31 December 2019, 28.9 million loaned securities were used to fulfil stock option
plan commitments.

! Converted at the December 2019 closing rate.
2 Assuming the December 2018 closing share price of 72.71 eura per share and 31 December 2019 ZAR per Euro exchange rate of 15.777300.
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32. Contingencies’

The company has contingencies for which, in the apinion of management and its legal counsel, the risk of loss is possible but not probable
and therefore no provisions have been recorded. Due to their nature, such legal proceedings and tax matters involve inherent uncertainties
including, but not limited 1o, court rulings, negotiations between affected parties and governmental actions, and as a consequence AB InBev's
management cannot at this stage estimate the likely timing of resolution of these matters. The most significant contingencies are discussed
below.

AMBEV TAX MATTERS

As of 31 December 2019, AB InBev's material tax proceedings are related to Ambev and its subsidiaries. Estimates of amounts of possible
loss are as follows:

Million US dollar

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Income tax and social contribution 10781 9773

Value-added and excise taxes 5514 6 166
Other taxes 1018 1434
17 313 17 373

The most significant tax proceedings of Ambev are discussed below.

INCOME TAX AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
Foreign Earnings

Since 2005, Ambev and certain of its subsidiaries have been receiving assessments from the Brazilian Federal Tax Authorities relating to the
profits of its foreign subsidiaries. The cases are being challenged at both the administrative and judicial levels of the courts in Brazil.

The administrative proceedings have resulted in partially favorable decisions, which are still subject to review by the administrative court. In
the judicial proceedings, Ambev has received favorable injunctions that suspend the enforceability of the tax credit, as well as favorable first
level decisions, which remain subject to review by the second-level judicial court.

As of 31 December 2019, Ambev management estimates the exposure of approximately 7.2 billion Brazilian real (1.8 billion US dollar) as a
possible risk and approximately 52m Brazilian real (13m US dollar} as a probable loss.

Goodwill InBev Holding

In December 2011, Ambev received a tax assessment related to the goodwill amortization resulting from the InBev Holding Brasil S.A. merger
with Ambev. The decision rendered by the Lower Administrative Court was partially favorable to Ambev. Ambev filed a judicial proceeding to
discuss the unfavorable portion of the decision and requested an injunction which was granted to Ambev to suspend enforceability. Regarding
the portion of the decision subject to review at the administrative level, in August 2019 the Upper Administrative House rendered a partially
favorable decision to Ambev. Ambev is awaiting the issuance of the decision in order to file the applicable appeal.

In June 2016, Ambev received a new tax assessment charging the remaining value of the goodwill amortization and filed a defense. In March
2017, Ambev was notified of a partially favorable first level agministrative decision and filed an appeal to the Lower Administrative Court. In
May 2018, Ambev received a partially favorable decision at the Lower Administrative Court. In May 2019, Ambev fited a Special Appeat for
analysis of the case by the Upper Administrative House. In Novermnber 2019, the Special Appeal was partially admitled by the Upper
Administrative House and Ambev filed an appeal related to the portion that was not admitted.

Ambev management estimates possible losses in relation lo these assessments to be approximately 10 bilfion Brazilian real (2.5 billion US
doliar} as of 31 December 2019. In the event Ambev is required to pay these amounts, AB InBev will reimburse the amount proporticnal to
the benefit received by AB InBev pursuant to the merger protocol as well as the related costs.

Goodwill Beverage Associate Holding (BAH)

in October 2013, Ambev received a tax assessment related to the goodwill amortization resulting from the merger of Beverage Associates
Holding Limited (“BAH" into Ambev. The decision from the first level administrative court was unfavorable to Ambev. Ambev filed an appeal
to the Lower Administrative Court against the decision. In November 2018, Ambev received a partially favorable decision at the Lower
Administrative Court. Ambev submitted counterarguments responding to the special appeal filed by the tax authorities and, regarding the
unfavorable part of the decision, filed a special appeal to the Administrative Upper House. in December 2019, the Special Appeal was partially
admitted by the Administrative Upper House and Ambev filed an appeal related to the portion that was not admitted.

In April and August 2018, Ambev received new tax assessments charging the remaining value of the goodwill amortization and filed defenses.
In April 2019, the First Administrative Court rendered unfavorable decisions to Ambev. As a result thereof, Ambev appealed to the Lower
Administrative Court. In November and December 2019, Ambev received partially favorable decisions at the Lower Administrative Court.
Ambev is awaiting the results of the remaining decisions in order to file the applicable appeals.

Ambev management estimates the amount of possible losses in relation to this assessment to be approximately 2.2 biltion Brazilian real (0.6
billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewith.

Goodwill CND Holdings

In November 2047, Ambev received a tax assessment related to the goodwill amertization resulting from the merger of CND Holdings into
Ambev. The decision from the first-level administrative court was unfavorable to Ambev. Ambev filed an appeal to the Lower Administrative
Court which is currently pending analysis. Ambev management estimates the amount of possible losses in relation to this assessment to be
approximately 1.1 billion Brazilian real (0.3 billion US dollar} as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection
therewith.

' Amounts have been converted to US dollar at the closing rate of the respective period.
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Tax Loss Offset

Ambev and certain of its subsidiaries received a number of assessments from the Brazilian federal tax authorities relating to the offset of tax
losses camry forward in the context of business combinations.

In February 2016, the Administrative Upper House ruled unfavorably to Ambev in two cases. Ambev filed judicial proceedings to discuss the
matter. In September 2016, Ambev received a favorable first level decision in cne of the judicial claims, and in March 2017, an unfavorable
firstlevel decision in the other case. Both cases are now awaiting analysis by the second-level judicial court. The other cases are being
challenged at the administrative level and are still awaiting final decisions.

Ambev management estimates the totat exposure of possible losses in relation to these assessments to be approximately 0.5 billion Brazilian
real (0.1 billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2019,

Disallowance of financial expenses

In 2015 and 2016, Ambev received tax assessments related to the disallowance of alleged non-deductible expenses and the deduction of
certain losses mainly associated to financial investments and loans. Ambev presented defenses and, in November 2019, received a favorable
decision at the first-level administrative court regarding the 2016 case. The 2015 case is still pending degcision by the first-level administrative
court.

Ambev management estimates the amount of possible losses in relation to these assessments to be approximately 4.8 billion Brazilian real
(1.2 billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection with these assessments.

Disaliowance of tax paid abroad

Since 2014, Ambev has been receiving tax assessments from the Brazilian Federal Tax Authorities related to the disallowance of deductions
associated with alleged unproven taxes paid abroad by its subsidiaries and has been filing defenses. The cases are being challenged at the
administrative level. in November 2019, the Lower Administrative Court rendered a favorable decision to Ambev in one of the cases, which
became definitive. In January 2020, the Lower Administrative Court rendered unfavorable decisions regarding four of these assessments
(from 2015 and 2016). Ambev management estimates the total amount of possible losses in relation to these four assessments to be
approximately 3.6 billion Brazilian real (0.9 billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2019. Ambev is awaiting for formal notification of these
decisions to file the applicable appeals. The other cases are still waiting final decisions. In September 2017, Ambev decided to include part of
these tax assessments in the Brazilian Federal Tax Regularization Program of the Provisional Measure No 783.

As of 31 December 2019, Ambev management estimates the exposure of approximately 10.1 billion Brazilian real (2.5 billion US dollar) as a
possible risk, and accordingly has not recorded a provision for such amount.

Presumed Profit

In April 2016, Arosuco (a subsidiary of Ambev) received a tax assessment regarding the use of the “presumed profit” method for the calculation
of income tax and the social contribution on net profits instead of the “real profit” method. In September 2017, Arosuco received an unfavorable
first level administrative decision and filed an appeal. In January 2019, the Lower Administrative Court rendered a favorable decision to
Arosuco, which became definitive.

In March 2019, Ambev received a new tax assessment regarding the same subject and filed a defense. In October 2019, Arosuco received
an unfavorable first level administrative decision and filed an appeal. Arosuco management estimates the amount of possible losses in relation
to this assessment to be approximately 0.5 billion Brazilian real (0.1 billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2018. Arasuco has not recorded any
provision in connection therewith.

Deductibility of IOC expenses

In November 2019, Ambev received a tax assessment from the Brazilian Federal Tax Authorities related to the interest on capital ("IOC")
deduction in 2014. The guestions refer primarily to the accounting and effects of the corporate restructuring carried out by the company in
2013 and its impact on the increase in the deductibility of I0C expenses. Ambey filed an administrative defense and is awaiting a decision by
the first-level administrative court.

The company distributec 10C in the years following the assessed period. Accordingly, if the 1OC deductibility is also questioned in the future,
on the same basis as the aforementioned tax assessment notice, the company estimates that the conclusion of the discussion is similar to
the present case, and therefore maintained the effect of the deductibility of 10C expenses in the effective income tax rate.

As of 31 December 2019, Ambev management estimates the exposure of approximately 3.9 billion Brazilian real (1 billion US dollar) as a
possible risk, and accordingly has not recorded a provision for such amount.

ICMS VALUE ADDED TAX, EXCISE TAX (“IP1”) AND TAXES ON NET SALES

Manaus Free Trade Zone — IP! / Social contributions

In Brazil, goods manufactured within the Manaus Free Trade Zone intended for remittance elsewhere in Brazil are exempt and/ or zero-rated
from excise tax (“IP1"} and sacial contributions. With respect to IPI, Ambev's subsidiaries have been registering IP| excise tax presumed credits
upon the acquisition of exempted goods manufactured therein. Since 2009, Ambev has been receiving a number of tax assessments from
the Brazilian Federal Tax Authorities relating 1o the disallowance of such credits.

Ambev has also been receiving charges from the Brazilian Federal Tax Autherities in relation to (i} federal taxes allegedly unduly offset with
the disallowed presumed IP| excise tax credits that are under discussion in these proceedings and (i} amounts allegedly due under social
contribution over Arosuco's remittance,

In April 2019, the Federal Supreme Court (“STF") announced its judgment on Extraordinary Appeal No. 592.851/SP, with binding effects,
deciding on the rights of taxpayers registering IP| excise tax presumed credits on acquisitions of raw materials and exempted inputs originating
from the Manaus Free Trade Zone. As a result of this decision, Ambev reclassified part of the amounts related to the IFI cases as remote
losses maintaining as possible losses only issues related to other additional discussions that were not included in the analysis of the STF.
The cases are being challenged at both the administrative and judicial levels.

Ambev management estimates the possible loss related to these assessments to be approximately 4.2 billion Brazitian real (1.0 billion US
dollar) as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewith.
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IPI Suspension

In 2014 and 2015, Ambev received tax assessments from the Brazilian Federal Tax Authorities relating to excise tax (*IPI"} allegedly due over
remittances of manufactured goods to other related faclories. The cases are being challenged at both the administrative and judicial levels.

Ambev management estimates the possible loss related to these assessments to be approximately 1.7 billion Brazilian real {0.4 billion US
dollar) as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection thergwith.

{CMS lax credits

Ambev is currently challenging tax assessments issued by the states of Sao Paulo, Rio de Janeiro, Minas Gerais, among others, questioning
the legality of ICMS tax credits arising from transactions with companises that have tax incentives granted by other states. The cases are being
challenged at both the administrative and judicial level of the courts.

Ambev management estimales the possible losses related to these assessments to be approximately 2 billion Brazilian real (0.5 billion US
dofiar) as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewith.

ICMS-ST Trigger

Over the years, Ambev has received tax assessments lo charge supposed ICMS differences considered due when the price of the products
sold by Ambeyv is above the fixed price table basis established by the relevant States, cases in which the State tax authorities understand that
the calculation basis should be based on a value-added percentage over the actual prices and not the fixed table price. Ambev is cumently
challenging those charges before the courts. The cases are being challenged at both the administrative and judicial leveis.

Ambev management estimates the lotal possible loss related to this issue to be approximately 7.7 billion Brazilian real {1.9 billion US dollar)
as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has recorded provisions in the total amount of 8m Brazilian real (2m US doltar) in refation to certain
proceedings for which it considers the chances of loss to be probable due to specific procedural issues.

ICMS - PRODEPE

in 2015, Ambev received a tax assessment issued by the Slate of Pemambuco to charge ICMS differences due to an alleged non-compliance
with the state tax incentive agreement (“PRODEPE") as a result of the rectification of its monthly reports. The state tax authorities understood
that Ambev was not able to use the incentive due to this rectification. In 2017, Ambev had a final favorable decision in the sense that such
assessment was null due to formal mistakes of the tax auditor However, in September 2018, Ambev received a new tax assessment to
discuss the same matter. There are other assessments related to PRODEPE. Ambev management estimates the possible losses related to
this issue to be approximately 0.6 billion Brazilian real (0.1 billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2019. Ambev has recorded a provision in the
total amount of 5m Brazilian real {(1m US dollar) in relation to one proceeding it considers the chances of loss to be partially probable.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Since 2015, Ambev has received tax assessments issued by the Brazilian Federal Tax Authorities relating to amounts allegedly due under
Integration Program / Social Security Financing Levy {PIS / COFINS) over borus products granted to its customers. The cases are being
challenged at both the administrative and judicial levels of the courts. In 2019, Ambev received final favorable decisions at the administrative
level in some of these cases and favorable decisions in other casese that are still subject to review. At the judicial level, the case is still in the
initial stage.

Ambev management estimates the possible loss related to these assessments to be approximately 2.3 billion Brazilian real (0.6 billion US
dollar}) as of 31 December 2019. No related provision has been made.

GRUPO MODELO TAX MATTERS

Direcciéon de Fabricas (“DIFA”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Cerveceria Madelo de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V., received a tax assessment
related to alleged taxable income for some intercompany transactions. DIFA presented defenses which are pending 1o be reviewed by the tax
authorities. The company estimates the amount of possible loss in relation 1o this assessment to be approximately 0.3 billion US dollar. The
company has not recorded any provision in connection therewith as of 31 December 2019,

AB INBEV'S AUSTRALIAN BUSINESS TAX MATTERS

AB InBev's subsidiary SAB Australia Pty Limired received a tax assessment for the 2012 to 2014 income tax years for 0.3 billion Australian
dollar (0.2 billion US dollar) related to the interest deductions of SAB's acquisition of the Fosters group (the “Foster's acquisition®). The
subsidiary is disputing the 2012 to 2014 assessment and remains confident of the positions it has adopted. The company paid 47 million US
dollar related to the tax assessment pending conclusion of the matter and recorded a provision of 0.1 billion US dollar in connection therewith
as of 31 December 2019.

The Australian tax authorities have also notified the company that it has commenced an audit of the 2015 to 2020 income tax years. The focus
of the audit is the tax treatment of the ongoing funding arrangements associated with the Foster's acquisition.

OTHER TAX MATTERS

In February 2015, the European Commission opened an in-depth state aid investigation into the Belgian excess profit ruling system. On 11
January 20186, the European Commission adopted a negative decision finding that the Belgian excess profit ruling system constitutes an aid
scheme incompatible with the internal market and ordering Belgium to recover the incompatible aid fram a number of aid beneficiaries. The
Belgian authorities have contacled the companies that have benefitted from the system and have advised each company of the amount of
incompatibie aid that is potentially subject to recovery. The European Commission decision was appealed to the European Union’s General
Court by Belgium on 22 March 2016 and by AB InBev on 12 July 2016. On 14 February 2019, the European General Court concluded that
the Belgian excess profit ruling system does not constitute illegal state aid. The European Commission has appealed the judgment to the
European Court of Justice. Pending the outcome of that appeal, the European Commission opened new state aid investigations into the
individual Belgian tax rulings, including the one issued to AB inBev in September 2019, to remedy the concerns that led to annulment of its
earlier decision by the General Court. These investigations retate to the same rulings that were subject lo the European Commission decision
issued on 11 January 2016. AB InBev cannot at this stage estimate the final outcome of such legal proceedings. Based on the estimated
exposure related to the excess profit ruling applicable to AB InBev, the different elements referred to above, as well as the possibility that
taxes paid abroad and non-recognized tax loss carryforwards could eventually partly or fully offset amounts subject to recovery, if any, AB
InBev has not recorded any provisions in connection therewith as of 31 December 2019.
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In addition, the Belgian tax authorities have also questioned the validity and the actual application of the excess profit ruling that was issued
in favar of AB InBev and have refused the actual tax exemption which it confers. Against such decision AB InBev has filed a court claim before
the Brussels court of first instance which ruled in favor of AB InBev on 21 June 2019. The Beigian tax authorities appealed this judgment.
Also, in respect of this aspect of the excess profit ruling matter, considering the company's and its counsel assessment, as well as the position
taken by the tax authorities’ mediation services, in respect of the merits of the case, AB InBev has not recorded any provisions as of 31
December 2019.

In January 2019, AB InBev deposited 68m euro (76m US dollar) on a blocked account. Depending on the final outcome of the European Court
procedures on the Belgian excess profit ruling system, as well as the pending Belgian court case, this amount will either be slightly modified,
or released back to the company or paid over to the Belgian State.

WARRANTS

Certain holders of warrants issued by Ambev in 1996 for exercise in 2003 proposed lawsuits to subscribe comespondent shares for an amount
lower than Ambev considers as established upon the warrant issuance. In case Ambev loses the totality of these lawsuits, the issuance of
172,831,574 shares would be necessary. Amhev would receive in consideration funds that are materially lower than the current market value.
This could result in a dilution of about 1% to all Ambev shareholders. Furthermore, the holders of these warrants are claiming that they should
receive the dividends relalive to these shares since 2003, approximately 1.0 billion Brazilian real (0.25 billion US dollar} in addition to legal
fees. Ambev disputes these claims and intends to continue to vigorously defend its case. Five of the six lawsuits were ruled favorable to
Ambev by the Superior Court of Justice (STJ). These five cases are pending final judgment by STJ's Special Court and the Federal Public
Prasecutor has filed a motion favorable to Ambev’s position in all five cases. Considering all of these facts, Ambev and its extenal counsels
strongly believe that the chance of loss in these cases is remote.

UNITED STATES CLASS ACTION SUIT

On 21 June 2019, a proposed class action was filed in the United States District Court for the Southem District of New York against AB InBev
and three of its officers. The complaint alleges claims under Sections 10(b} and 20(a) cf the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-
5 thereunder on behalf of a proposed class of purchasers of AB InBev American Depoesitary Shares between 1 March 2018 and 24 Oclober
2018. The plaintiff alleges that defendants misstated or omitted material facts regarding, among other things, the company's financial condition,
its dividend paolicy and the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures. The complaint seeks unspecified compensatory damages
and reimbursement for litigation expenses. An amended complaint filed on 12 December 2019 contained substantially the same allegations,
but reduced the number of defendant officers to two. The company has not recorded any provision.
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33. Non-controlling interests

As af 31 December 2019 and 2018, material non-controlling interests relate to Ambev, a Brazilian listed subsidiary in which AB InBev has
61.85% ownership, and Budweiser APAC, an Asia Pacific listed subsidiary in which AB InBev has 87.22% ownership. The tables below
provide summarized information derived from the consolidated financial statements of Ambev and Budweiser APAC as of 31 December 2019
and 2018, in accordance with IFRS.

Summarized financial information of Ambev and Budweiser APAC, in which the company has material non-controlling interests, is as follows:

Budweiser APAC

2018
Million US dollar restated 2018'

Summarized balance sheet information

Current assets 6 853 6 537 2108 2 680
Non-current assets 18 389 18 165 13 200 13 182
Current liabilities 6 205 6 508 4 493 4 468
Non-current liabilities 34517 3368 931 1222
Equity attributable to equity holders 15 203 14 516 9 836 10153
Non-controlling interests 317 311 48 19

Summarized income statement and comprehensive income information

Revenue 13 347 13819 6 546 6 740
Net income 3093 3122 908 959
Atiributable to:

Equity holders 2 989 3025 898 958
Nen-controlling interests 104 o7 10 1
Net income 3093 3122 908 959
Other comprehensive income (183) 629 (229) (500)
Total comprehensive income 2 900 3751 679 459
Attributable to:

Equity holders 2 801 3620 665 458
Non-controlling interests 99 130 14 1

Summarized cash flow information

Cash flow from operating activities 4 664 5089 1338 1684
Cash flow from investing activities (1 228) (1011) (693) (472)
Cash flow from financing activities (3117) (3 799) {1358) {1237)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 319 279 (713) (25)

Dividends paid by Ambev {0 non-controlling interests (i.e. to entities outside the AB InBev Group) ameunted to 0.7 billion US dollar and 0.8
billion US dollar for 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Other non-contralling interests not deemed individuaily material by the company mainly related to the company’s operations fn Africa in
association with the Castel Group (e.g., Botswana, Ghana, Mozambique, Nigeria, Tanzamia, Uganda, and Zambia), as weli as non-controlling
interests recognized in respect of the company's subsidiaries in Colombia, Ecuador and Peru.

2018 reflects the combined financial information that presents the historicat financial information of the business of the Asia Pacific region of AB InBev, excluding
Australia, and includes the assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and cash flows attributable to all entities in the region, which are primarily in China, South Kerea,
India, Vietnam and Japan.
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34. Related parties

TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS (KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL)

in addition to short-term employee benefits (primarily salaries) AB InBev's Executive Committee members were entitled in 2019 to post-
employment benefits. In particular, members of the Executive Commitiee participated in the pension plan of their respective country — see
alsc Note 25 Employee Benefits. Finally, key management personnel are eligible for the company's share option; restricted stock and/or share
swap program (see Note 26 Share-based Payments). Total directors and Executive Committee compensation included in the income
statement can be detailed as follows:

2018
"~ Executive " Executive
Million US doltar Directors Committee Directors Commitiee
Short-term employee benefits 2 17 2 27
Termination benefits - 1 - -
Share-based payments - 22 - 24
2 40 2 52

Directors’ compensation consists mainly of directors' fees.

During 2019, AB InBev entered into the following transactions:

® The acquisition, through Grupo Modelo and its subsidiaries, of information technology and infrastructure services for a consideration of
approximately 2m US dollar from a company in which one of the company's Board Member had significant influence as of 31 December
2018.

® The acqguisition, mainly through its subsidiary Bavaria S.A., of transportation services, lease agreements and advertising services for an
aggregated consideration of 11m US dollar from companies in which one of the company’s Board Member had a significant influence
as of 31 December 2019. The outstanding balance of these transactions as of 31 December 2019 amounts to 1m US dollar.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Significant interests in joint ventures include three entities in Brazil, one in Mexico and two in Canada. None of these joint ventures are material
to the company. Aggregate amounts of AB InBev's interest are as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Non-current assets 10 11

Current assets 3 5
Non-current liabilities 11 9
Current liabilities 10 12
Result from operations 3 4
Profit attributable to equity hclders of AB InBev 3 3

TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATES

Significant interests in associates are shown in note 16 /nvestments in associates. AB InBev's transactions with associates were as follows:

Million US dollar 2019 2018
Gross profit 76 74
Current assets 41 152
Current liabilities 119 130

TRANSACTIONS WITH PENSION PLANS
AB inBev's transactions with pension plans mainly comprise 12m US dollar other income from pension plans in the US (2018: 12m US doilar).
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35. Events after the balance sheet date

None.

36. AB InBev companies

Listed below are the most important AB inBev companies. A complete list of the company's investments is available at AB InBev NV,
Brouwerijplein 1, B-3000 Leuven, Belgium.

LIST OF MOST IMPORTANT FULLY CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

% of economic

interest as at

Name and registerad office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2019
ARGENTINA
CERVECERIA Y MALTERIA QUILMES SAICA vy G - Charcas 5160 - C1425BOF - Buenos Aires 61.85
AUSTRALIA
FOSTER'S GROUP PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victoria 100.00
CUB PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victoria 100.00
FBG FINANCE PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victoria 100.00
FBG TREASURY (AUST) PTY LTD - Scuthbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Scuthbank — Victoria 100.00
BELGIUM
AB INBEV N.V. — Grand Place 1 - 1000 — Brussel Consolidating
BRASSERIE DE L'ABBAYE DE LEFFE S.A. - Place de I'Abbaye 1 - 5500 — Dinant 88.54
BROUWERIJ VAN HOEGAARDEN N.V. - Stoopkensstraat 46 - 3320 — Hoegaarden 100.00
COBREW N.V. - Brouwerijplein 1 - 3000 — Leuven 100.00
INBEV BELGIUM BV/SRL - Industrielaan 21 - 1070 — Brussel 100.00
BOTSWANA
KGALAGAD| BREWERIES (PTY) LTD - Piot 20768, Broadhurst industrial estate - Gaborone’ 31.00
BOLIVIA
CERVECERIA BOLIVIANA NACIONAL S.A. - Av. Montes 400 and Chuquisaca No. 121, Zona Challapampa - 52.97
BRAZIL
AMBEY S.A. - Rua Dr Renato Paes de Barros, 1017, 3° andar, Itaim Bibi - CEP 04530-001 - Sao Paulo 61.85
CANADA
LABATT BREWING COMPANY LIMITED - 207 Queen’s Quay West, Suite 299 - M6J 1A7 - Toronto 61.85
CHILE
CERVECERIA CHILE $.A. - Av. Presidente Eduardo Frei Montalva 9600 - 8700000 — Quilicura 61.85
CHINA
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (CHINA} SALES CO LTD. - Shangshou, Qin Duan Kou, Hanyang Area - 430051

A . ) 87.22
- Wuhan City, Hubei Province
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (WUHAN) BREWERY CO. LTD. - $hangshou, Qin Duan Kou, Hanyang Area - 84 66
430051 - Wuhan City, Hubei Province
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV {(FOSHAN) BREWERY COQ. LTD. - 1 Budweiser Avenue, Southwest St., Sanshui 87 27
District - 528132 - Foshan City, Guangdong
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV HARBIN BREWERY CO. LTD. - 9 HaPi Road Pingfang District - 150066 - a7.22
Harbin City, Heilongijang Province
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (TANGSHAN)} BREWERY CO. LTD. - 18, Yingbin Road - 063300 - Tangshan 87.22
City, Hebei Province
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV SEDRIN BREWERY CO. LTD. - 660 Gong Ye Road, Hanjiang District - 351411 - a7 27
Putian City, Fujian Provinge
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV SEDRIN (ZHANGZHOU) BREWERY CQ. LTD. - Lantian Econemic District - 87.22
363005 - Zhangzhou City, Fujian Province
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV {TAIZHOU)} BREWERY CO. LTD. - 159 Qi Xia East Road, Chengguan Town, 8792

Tiantai County - 317200 - Taizhou Cithy, Zhejiang Province

' The group’s shares entitle the hoider to twice the voting rights
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% of economic

interest as at
Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2019

NANCHANG ASIA BREWERY CO. LTD. - 1188 Jinsha Avenue, Economic District - Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province

SIPING GINSBER DRAFT BEER CO. LTD. - Xianmaquan, Tiedong Area - Siping City, Jilin Province 87.22
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (NANTONG) BREWERY CO. LTD. - 666 Zhaoxia Road - Nantong City, Jiangsu

87.22

Province 87.22
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (SICHUAN) BREWERY COQ. LTD. - No. 1, AB InBev Avenue, Cheng Nan 87.22
Industry Park, Economic Development Area - 641300 - Ziyang City, Sichuan Province .
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (HENAN} BREWERY CO. LTD. - No. 1 Budweiser Avenue, Industry Park, 87 92
Tangzhuang Town - 453100 - Weihui City, Henan Province )

INBEV JINLONGQUAN (HUBEI) BREWERY CQ. LTD. - 89 Jin Long Quan Avenue - Jingmen City, Hubei 52.33
Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (SUQIANY BREWERY CQ. LTD. - No 1 Qujiang Road, Suyu Industry Park - 87.92
Sugian City, Jiangsu Province ’
COLOMBIA

ZX VENTURES COLOMBIA S A.S. - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 — Bogota 100.00
BAVARIA & CIA S.C.A. - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 — Bogota 94.90
KOPPS COMERCIAL S.A.S - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 — Bogota 100.00
CZECH REPUBLIC

PIVOVAR SAMSON A.S. - V parku 2326/18, Chodov, 148 00 Praha 4 100.00
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

CERVECERIA NACIONAL DOMINICANA S A. - Autopista 30 de Mayo Km 61/2, Distrito Nacional - A.P. 1086 52 42
- Santo Domingo’ '
ECUADOR

CERVECERIA NACIONAL (CN} SA - Via a daule km 16,5 y calle cobre s/n — Guayagquit, Guayas 95.58
EL SALVADOR

INDUSTRIAS LA CONSTANCIA, SA DE CV - 526 Av. Independencia, San Salvador 100.00
FRANCE

AB INBEV FRANCE S.A.S. - immeuble Crystal, 38, Place Vauban - C.P. 58110 - La Madeieine 100.00
GERMANY

BRAUEREI BECK GmbH & CO. KG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 100.00
BRAUEREI DIEBELS GmbH & CO.KG - Brauerei-Diebels-Strasse 1 - 47661 — [ssum 100.00
HAAKE-BECK AG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 99.96
HASSERODER BRAUEREI GmbH - Auerhahnring 1 - 38855 — Wemigercde 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV GERMANY HOLDING GmbH - Am Deich 18/18 - 28199 — Bremen 100.00
SPATEN - FRANZISKANER - BRAU GmbH - Marsstrasse 46 + 48 - 80335 — Munchen 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV Deutschland GmbH & Co KG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 100.00
LOEWENBRAEU AG - Nymphenburger Str. 7 - 80335 — Minchen 100.00
GHANA

ACCRA BREWERY LTD - Farra Avenue 20 1st Floor, Pkf Building, P.O. Box Gp1219 — Accra 60.00
GRAND DUCHY OF LUXEMBOURG

BRASSERIE DE LUXEMBOURG MOUSEL - DIEKIRCH - 1, Rue de la Brasserie - L-9214 — Diekirch 95.82
HONDURAS

CERVECERIA HONDURENA, SA DE CV - Blvd. Del Norte, Carretera Salida a Puerto Cortes - San Pedro 99.00
Sula, Cortes

HONG KONG

BUDWEISER BREWING CO APACT LTD - Flat Room 1823 18F Soundwilt Plaza 11-Middle Town Heng Kong 87.22

' 85% owned by Ambev 5.A
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% of economic

interest as at
Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2013

INDIA
CROWN BEERS INDIA LIMITED - #8-2-684/A, Road No. 12 - Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500034 - Andhra

Fradesh 100.00
ANHEUSER BUSCH INBEV INDIA LIMITED. - Unit No.301-302, Dynasty Business Park, 3rd Floor - Andheri - 99.60
Kurla Road, Andheri (East) - 400059 - Mumbai, Maharashtra ’
{TALY

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV ITALIA SPA - Piazza Buffoni 3, 21013 Gallarate 100.00
MEXICO

CERVECERIA MODELO DE MEXICO 5. DE R.L. DE C.V - Javier Barros Sierra 555 Piso 3 - Zedec Ed Plaza 10000
Santa Fe - 01210 Mexico City '
MOZAMBIQUE

CERVEJAS DE MOGAMBIQUE SA - Rua do Jardim 1329 - Maputo’ 49.00
THE NETHERLANDS

INBEV NEDERLAND N.V. - Ceresstraat 1 - 4811 CA — Breda 100.00
INTERBREW INTERNATIONAL B.V. - Ceresstraat 1 - 4811 CA - Breda 100.00
AB INBEV AFRICA B.V - Ceresstraat 1, 4811 CA — Breda 62.00
AB INBEV BOTSWANA B.V. - Ceresstraat 1, 4811 CA — Breda 62.00
NIGERIA

BEVERAGE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS LIMITED LTD. - 58 Akanbi Onitiri Close, Off Eric Mocre Road, 50.00
Surelere — Lagos ’
INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC - Lawrence Omole Way, Omi Osoro Road, Imo llesha, Osun State’ 37.50
PANAMA

CERVECERIA NACIONAL HOLDING SA - Costa del Este Business Park, torre Oeste Piso 2 - Ciudad de 60.00
Panama ’
PARAGUAY

CERVECERIA PARAGUAYA S A. - Ruta Villeta km 30 N 3045 - 2660 — Ypané §1.85
PERU

COMPANIA CERVECERA AMBEV PERLU S.AC. - Av. Los Laureles Mza. A Lt 4 del Centro Peblado Menor 97 22
Santa Maria de Huachipa - Lurigancho (Chosica) - Lima 15 ’
UNION DE CERVECERIAS PERUANAS BACKUS Y JOHNSTON SAA - 3986 Av. Nicolas Ayllon, Ate, Lima 3 93.65

SOUTH AFRICA
SABSA HOLDINGS LTD PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY - 65 Park Lane, Sandown - 2001 — Johannesburg 100.00
THE SOUTH AFRICAN BREWERIES (PTY) LTD LIMITED BY SHARES - 85 Park Lane, Sandown - 2145 —

Johannesburg 91.55
SOUTH KQREA

ORIENTAL BREWERY CO., LTD - 8F, ASEM Tower, 517, Yeongdong-daero, Gangnam-gu, Seout, 06164, S. 87.22
SWITZERLAND

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV PROCUREMENT GMBH GESELLSCHAFT MIT BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG 10000
(GMBH} - Suurstoffi 22 - 6343 - Rotkreuz ’
TANZANIA

KIBO BREWERIES LTD PRIVATE COMPANY - Lihuru Street, Plot No 79, Block AA, Mchikichini, llala District 36,00
- Dar es Salaam' ’
UGANDA

NILE BREWERIES LTD - Plot M90 Yusuf Lule Roa, Njeru, Jinja - Eastern Uganda 61.64

T The company is consclidated due 1o the group's majerity shareholdings and ability to control the operations.
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% of economic

interest as at
Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2019

UNITED KINGDOM

ABI| SAB GROUP HOLDING LIMITED - Bureau, 90 Fetter Lane, London, United Kingdom, EC4A 1EN 100.00
AB| UK HOLDINGS 1 LIMITED - Porter Tun House, 500 Capability Green - LU1 3LS — Luton 100.00
AB INBEV UK LIMITED - Porter Tun House, 500 Capability Green - LU% 3LS — Luton 100.00
AB INBEV HOLDINGS LIMITED - Bureau, 90 Fetter Lane, London, United Kingdom, EC4A 1EN 100.00
AB INBEV INTERNATIONAL BRANDS LIMITED - Bureau, 90 Fetter Lane, London, United Kingdom, EC4A 100.00
1EN )
ZX VENTURES LIMITED - Porter Tun House, 500 Capability Green - LU1 3LS - Luton 100.00
UNITED STATES

ANHEUSER-BUSCH COMPANIES, LLC. - One Busch Place - St. Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INTERNATIONAL, INC. - One Busch Place - St. Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH PACKAGING GROUP, INC. - One Busch Place - St. Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH, LLC — One Busch Place, St. Louis, MO. 63118 100.00
METAL CONTAINER CORPORATION, INC. — One Busch Place, 5t. Louis, MO. 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH NORTH AMERICAN HOLDING CORPORATION - C/O THE CCRPORATION TRUST 100.00
URUGUAY

CERVECERIA Y MALTERIA PAYSANDU S.A. - Cesar Cortinas, 2037 - C.P. 11500 - Montevideo 61.85
VIETNAM

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV VIETNAM BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED/NG.2 VSIP II-A, Street no. 28, 87.22
Vietnam - Singapore 11-A Industrial Park, Tan Uyen District, Binh Duong Province '
ZAMBIA

ZAMBIAN BREWERIES PLC - Mungwi Road, Plot Number 6438, Lusaka 54.00

LIST OF MOST IMPORTANT ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

% of economic
interest as at

Name and registered office of associates and joint ventures 31 december 2019
FRANCE

SOCIETE DES BRASSERIES ET GLACIERES INTERNATIONALES SA - 49 Rue Frangois 1er, Paris 20.00
GIBRALTAR

BIH BRASSERIES INTERNATIONALES HOLDING LTD - CC Building, 10th Floor, Main Street 20.00
BIH BRASSERIES INTERNATIONALES HOLDING (ANGOLA) LTD - Suite 10/3, International Commercial 27.00
TURKEY

ANADQOLU EFES BIRACILIK VE MALT SANAYII AS - Bahgelievier Mahallesi, Sehit Ibrahim Koparir Caddesi 24.00
ZIMBABWE

DELTA CORPORATION LTD - Sable house, P.O. Box BW 343, Northridge Close, Borrowdale, Harare 25.00
RUSSIA

AB INBEV EFES - 28 Moscovskaya Street, Moscow region - 141607 — Klin 50.00
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Information to our shareholders

Earnings, dividends, share and share price

Cash flow from operating activities (US dollar per share)
Normalized earnings per share (US dollar per share)
Dividend (euro per share)

Share price high (euro per share}
Share price low (euro per share)
Year-end share price {euro per share)

Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
{million shares}

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
(milhon shares)

Volume of shares traded (million shares)

162

2019

8.75
4.08
1.80

92.71

57.47
72.71

1984

2 026
452

2018
restated

7.18
3.16
1.80

96.70

56.84
57.70

1975

2014
496

2017
restated

7.56
375
3.60

110.10

92.88
93.13

1871

2010
349

2018

5.89
283
3.60

119.60

92.13
100.55

1717

1755
445

2015

8.82
5.20
360

124.20

87.73
114.40

1638

1668
449
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Information on the auditors’ assignments
and related fees

AB InBev's Statutory auditor is PwC Bedrijfsrevisoren BV, represented by Koen Hens, audit partner.

Base fees for auditing the annual financial statements of AB inBev and its subsidiaries are determined by the shareholders meeting after
review and approval by the company’s Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

Fees' for 2019 in relation to services provided by PwC Bedrijfsrevisoren BV amounted to 2 432k US dollar (2018 fees for services provided
by Deloitte Bedrijfsrevisoren/Reéviseurs d’Entreprises CVBA/SCRL: 2 848k US dollar), which was composed of audit services for the annual
financial statements of 2 389k US dollar (2018: 2 086k US dollar), tax services of Ok US dollar (2018: 521k US dollar) and audit related
services of 43k US dollar (2018: 241k US doliar).

Fees for 2012 in relation to services provided by other offices in the PwC network {(and by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu network in 2018)
amounted to 37 605k US dollar (2018: 7 174k US dollar}, which was composed of audit services for the annual financial statements of 13
997k US dollar (2018: 6 599k US dollar), tax services of 4 851k US dollar (2018: 520k US dollar}, audit and tax services rendered for the IPO
of Budweiser APAC of 18 066k US dollar (13 300k US dollar for audit and 4 766k US dollar for tax services) and other audit related services
amounting to 691k {2018: 55k LIS dollar), all of which have been pre-approved by the company’'s Audit Committee.

Financial calendar

Publication of 2019 results 27 February 2020
Annual report 2019 available on www.ab-inbev.com 27 February 2020
General shareholders meeting 28 April 2020
Dividend: ex-coupon date 5 May 2020
Publication of first quarter results 7 May 2020
Publication of half year results 30 July 2020
Publication of third quarter results 29 Qctober 2020

Investor relations contact

Pablo Jimenez Lauren Abbott

Tel: +1 212 573 9289 Tel: +1 212 573 9287

E-maii: pablg.jimenez@gmodelo.com.mx E-mail: Jauren.abbott@ab-inbev.com
Ingvild Van Lysebetten Marya Glukhova

Tel: + 3216 27 66 08 Tel: +32 16 27 68 88

E-mail: ingvitd. vanlysebetten@ab-inbev.com E-mail: mariya.glukhova@ab-inbev.com
Fallon Buckelew Jency John

Tel: +1 310 592 6319 Tel: +1 646 746 9673

E-mail: fallon . buckelew@ab-inbev.com E-mail: jency.john@ab-inbey.com

! Fees Deloitte Bedrijfsrevisoren/Réviseurs d'Entreprises CVBA/SCRL acted as the company's independent auditor in 2018. Accordingly, the 2018 fees do not
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Excerpt from the AB InBev NV separate (non-
consolidated) financial statements prepared in
accordance with Belgian GAAP

The following information is extracted from the separate Belgian GAAP financial statements of AB InBev NV per 31 December 2019. These
separate financial statements, together with the management report of the Board of Directors to the general assembly of shareholders as well
as the auditor's repoert, will be filed with the National Bank of Belgium within the legally foraseen time limits. These documents are alse available
on request from: AB InBev NV, Brouwerijplein 1, 3000 Leuven.

It should be noted that only the consolidated financial statements as set forth above present a true and fair view of the financial position and
performance of the AB InBev group.

Since AB InBev NV is essentially a holding company, which recognizes its investments at cost in its non-consolidated financial statements,
these separate financial statements present no more than a limited view of the financial position of AB InBev NV. For this reason, the Board
of Directors deemed it appropriate to publish only an abbreviated version of the non-consolidated balance sheet and income statement
prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The statutory auditor has confirmed that his audit procedures are substantially complete and that the abbreviated non-consolidated balance
sheet and income statement of AB InBev NV prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2018 are consistent,
in all material respects, with the accounts from which they have been derived.

164



AB INBEV ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Abbreviated non-consolidated balance sheet

Million euro

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets

Current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Issued capital

Share premium

Legal reserve

Reserves not availabie for distribution
Reserves available for distribution
Profit carried forward
Provisions and deferred taxes
Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Abbreviated non-consolidated income statement

Million euro
Operating income
Operating expenses

Operating result

Financial result

Result for the year available for appropriation
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2019

586

58

117 894
118 538
26 216

144 754

1239
13 186
124

4 386
33 008
18 671
70 615
42

53 257
20 840

144 754

2019
1318
(1254)
54

10 329

10 392

2018

597

39

115 156
115791
38 067

153 858

1239
13186
124
3585
33008
12 607
63 760
46

63 758
26 293

153 858

2018
1369
(995)

373
2482

2 856
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Glossary

AGGREGATED WEIGHTED NOMINAL TAX RATE
The aggregated weighted nominal tax rate is based on the statutory corporate income tax rates applicable in the various countries.

DILUTED EPS
Profit attributable to eguity holders of AB InBev divided by the fully diluted weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares.

DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY AND RESTRICTED SHARES
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares, adjusted by the effect of dilutive share options and restricted stock units.

EBIT
Profit from operations.

EBITDA
Profit from operations plus depreciation, amortization and impairment.

EMEA
Europe and Africa.

EPS
Profit attributable to equity halders of AB InBev divided by the weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares.

FVOCI
Fair value through other comprehensive income.

FVPLI

Fair value through profit or loss.

FTE's

Full-time eguivalent on a permanent or temporary basis, excluding outsourced personnel.

INVESTED CAPITAL
Includes property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, investments in associates and equity securities, working capital,
provisions, employee benefits and deferred taxes.

MARKETING EXPENSES
Include all costs relating to the support and promotion of the brands. They include among others operating costs (payroll, office costs, elc.) of
the marketing depariment, advertising costs (agency costs, medgia costs, efc.}, sponsoring and events, and surveys and market research.

NET CAPEX
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets, minus proceeds from sale.

NET DEBT
Non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts, minus debt securities and cash and cash equivalents.

NON-RECURRING ITEMS
Items of income or expense which do not occur regularly as part of the normal activities of the company.

NORMALIZED

The term "normalized” refers to performance measures (EBITDA, EBIT, Profit, EPS, effective tax rate) before non-recurring items and profit
from discontinued operations. Non-recurring items are items of income or expense which do not occur regularly as part of the normal activities
of the company and which warrant separate disclosure because they are important for the understanding of the underlying results of the
company due to their size or nature. AB InBev believes that the communication and explanation of normalized measures is essential for
readers of its financial statements to understand fully the sustainable performance of the company. Normalized measures are additional
measures used by management and should not replace the measures determined in accordance with iFRS as an indicator of the company's
performance.

NORMALIZED DILUTED EPS
Diluted EPS adjusted for non-recurring items and profit from discontinued operations.

NORMALIZED ESIT
Profit from operations adjusted for non-recurring items.

NORMALIZED EBITDA
Profit from operations adjusted for non-recurring items, plus depreciation, amortization and impairment.

NORMALIZED EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
Effective tax rate adjusted for non-recurring items.

NORMALIZED £PS
EPS adjusted for non-recurring items and profit from discontinued operations.
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NORMALIZED PROFIT
Profit adjusted for non-recurring items and profit from discontinued operations.

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Profit from operaticns adjusted for non-recurring items.

PAY OUT RATIO
Gross dividend per share multiplied by the estimated number of ordinary shares outstanding at the dividend record date, divided by normalized
profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev.

RE-MEASUREMENTS OF POST-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Comprised of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest).

REVENUE
Gross revenue less excise taxes and discounts.

SALES EXPENSES
Include all costs relating to the selling of the products. They include among others the operating costs (payroll, office costs, etc.) of the sales
department and the sales force.

SG&A AND SELLING. GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Sales, marketing, distribution and administrative expenses

SCOPE

Financials are analyzed eliminating the impact of changes in cumencies on translation of foreign operations, and scopes. A scope represents
the impact of acquisitions and divestitures, the start-up or termination of activities or the transfer of activities between segments, curtailment
gains and losses and year-over-year changes in accounting estimates and other assumptions that management does not consider as part of
the underlying performance of the business.

UNDERLYING EPS

Profit before non-recurring items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market gains/losses on certain derivatives related to the hedging of share-
based payment programs and hyperinflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary and restricted shares.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY AND RESTRICTED SHARES
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period, adjusted by the number of shares cancelled, repurchased or issued during the
period multiplied by a time-weighing factor.

WORKING CAPITAL
Includes inventories, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, both current and non-current.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

1. Introduction

1.1. The Belgian Code on Corporate Governance

The corporate governance practices of Anheuser-Busch InBev are reflected in its Corporate Governance Charter, which is available on
hitps ./iwww . ab-inbey com/investors/corporate-govemance/corporale-governance-documents htmi. The Charter is regularly updated.

Anheuser-Busch InBev is & company incorporated under Belgian law with a primary listing on Euronext Brussels (Euronext: ABI) and with
secondary listings on the Mexico Stock Exchange (MEXBOL: ANB) and the Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE: ANH)
(I1SIN: BE0974293251) and with American Depositary Shares ("ADS’s”) listed on the New York Stock Exchange. As a Belgian company with
primary listing on Euronext Brussels, Anheuser-Busch InBev adhered in 2019 to the principles and provisions of the Belgian Corporate
Governance Code, published in March 2009 (www.corpor: overnancecommittee be) {"the 2009 Comorate Governance Code™), taking into
account its specific status as a multinational group with secondary listings in Mexico and Johannesburg and with ADS’s listed in New York.

In line with AB InBev's specific shareholding structure and the global nature of its operations, the company has departed in 2019 from the
following principles of the 2009 Corporate Govemnance Code:

Principie 5.3./1 (Appendix D) of the 2609 Corporate Governarice Code: “the Board should set up a nomination committee composed
of a majority of independent non-executive directors”: The Board of Directors appeints the chairman and members of the Nomination
Committee from among the directors. As the committee is composed exclusively of non-executive directors who are independent of
management and free from any business relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment, the Board
considers that the composition of this committee achieves the Code’s aim.

Principle 7.7. of the 2009 Corporate Governance Code: “Non-executive directors should not be entitled to performance-related
remuneration such as bonuses, stock-related, long-term incentive schemes, fringe benefits or pension benefits”: The remuneration
of the Board members in 2019 was composed of a fixed fee and a number of restricted stock units correspoending to a fixed monetary vaiue,
which makes it simple, transparent and easy for sharehaiders to understand,

The company's long-term incentive plan for directors deviated from the 2009 Corporate Governance Code in 2019 as it provided for share-
based payments to non-executive directors. The successful strategy and sustainable development of the company for over a decade
demonstrates that the compensation of directors, which included a number of restricted stock units coresponding to a fixed monetary vaiue,
does ensure that the independence of the Board members in their role of guidance and control of the company is praserved, and that the
directors’ interests remain fully aligned with the long-term interests of the shareholders. In particular, the vesting period of 5 years should
foster a sustainable and long-term commitment to pursue the company's best interests.

The annual award of restricted stock units was approved by the annual shareholders’ meeting in April 2019 and replaced the grant of stock
options t6 which the Directors previously were entitied. This shift from stock options to restricted stock units is aligned with the recommendation
of the 2020 Belgian Corporate Governance Code which favors compensation of non-executive board members in shares.

As from 1 January 2020, AB InBev adheres to the 2020 Belgian Corporate Governance Code. Any deviation to such code will be reported in
the 2020 Corporate Govemnance Statement.

1.2. New York Stock Exchange Listing

Further to the New York Stock Exchange listing of American Depositary Shares ("ADS's") representing ordinary shares of AB InBev, the New
York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance rules for Foreign Private Issuers are applicable to the company. AB InBev has also registered
under the US Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As a result, it is also subject to the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and to
certain US Securities laws and regulations relating to corporate govermance.

1.3. Specific Corporate Governance initiatives

1.3.1. Fostering ethical conduct

The Board of Directors of AB InBev encourages management to promote, adhere to and maintain the highest standards of ethical behavior
and transparency. Therefore, ethical rules have been established and are reinforced by internal codes and policies. This fosters responsible
business conduct by all employees.

AB InBev's Code of Business Cenduct sets out the ethical standards to which all employees are expected to adhere. It requires employees
to comply with all laws, to disclose any relevant conflicts of interests, to act at all times in the best interests of the company and to conduct ali
their dealings in an honest and ethical manner. The Code of Business Conduct alsc covers the confidentiality of information, limits on the
acceptance of gifts or entertainment, and the appropriate use of the company’s property. The Code of Business Conduct is supplemented by
several other policies, including the Global Anti-Corruption, Anti-Harassment, Human Rights and Conflict of Interest Policies which define
employees’ responsibilities and expected behavior, and provide governance for interactions with third parties. For example, the Global Anti-
Corruption Policy states clearly that AB inBev's employees are strictly prohibited from, either directly or indirectly, offering, promising,
authorizing or giving anything of value to any individual with the aim of improperly obtaining or retaining business or influencing business or
govemnmental decision-making in connection with AB InBev's commaercial activities. AB InBev has also implemented a data privacy compliance
program.

In line with this commitment to integrity, AB InBev has implemented a whistle-blowing system by means of a Compliance Helpline that provides
employees with simple and secure ways to confidentially and, if so desired, anonymously, report activities that violate the Code of Business
Conduct based on a clear policy and applicable legislation.
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1.3.2. Demonstrating commitment to shareholder communication

AB InBev is committed to creating value for its shareholders. The company encourages its shareholders to take an active interest in the
company. in support of this objective, it provides quality information, in a timely fashion, through a variety of communication tools. These
include annual reports, half-yearly reports, quarterly statements, financial results announcements, briefings, and a section that is dedicated to

investors on the AB InBev websile (www ab-inbev.comfinvestors. html).

AB InBev recognizes that a commitment to disclosure builds trust and confidence with sharehoclders and the public in general. The company
adopted a Disclosure Manual to demonstrate its commitment to best practices in transparency. This manual is designed to ensure that there
is full, consistent and timely disclosure of company activities.

1.3.3. Upholding shareholder rights

Prior to the annual shareholders’ meeting, shareholders are invited to submit any questions they have for the Chairman or the CEO for
discussion during the meeting.

The agenda for the shareholders’ meeting and all related documents are also posted on the AB InBev website at least 30 days in advance of
any sharehoiders' meeting. Shareholders have the right to vote on various resolutions related to company matters. If they are unable to attend
a meeting, they can submit their votes by mail or appoint a proxy. Minutes of the meetings and results of the votes are posted on the AB InBev

website shortly after the meeting {www.ab-inbev.com/investors/corporate-govemance/shareholder-meetings html).

1.3.4. Preventing the abuse of inside information

The company’s Code of Dealing is applicable to all members of the Board of Directors and to all employees. The Code of Dealing aims to
prevent the abuse of inside information, especially in periods leading up te an announcement of financial results or leading up o price-sensitive
events or decisions.

The Code of Dealing prohibits dealing in the company's securities during any closed period, e.g. a period of 30 days preceding any results
announcement of the company. In addition, before dealing in any securities of the company, the members of the Board cf Directors and
members of senior management must obtain clearance from a Clearance Committee.

Caompliance with the Code of Dealing is reinforced and monitored through the company's Compliance Program.

In accordance with EU Regulation 596/2014 on market abuse (MARY), the company establishes lists of insiders when required. In addition,
pursuant to the same regulation, (i) members of the Executive Committee ("ExCom”} and (ii) members of the Board of Directors notify their
trades (above a 5,000 Euro yearly threshold) to the company and to the Belgian Financial Services and Markets Authority (FSMA), which
publishes these notifications on its website.

1.3.5. Corporate Social Responsibility

AB InBev's Dream is bringing peopie together for a better world. Corporate Social Responsibility and sustainability are central to the company’'s
cutture and embedded in the way it does business.

We are building a company to last, brewing beer and building brands that will continue to bring people together for the next 100 years and
beyond.

In accordance with article 3:6, §4 and article 3:32, §2 of the Belgian Code of Companies and Associations {the "Belgian Companies Code”),
which implement Directive 2014/95/EU of 22 October 2014 amending Direclive 2013/34/EU as regards disclosure of non-financial and diversity
information by certain large undertakings and groups, AB InBev has included in this Annual Report a non-financial statement reporting on
corporate social responsibility matters.

1.3.6. Diversity

The company strives to make AB InBev a community where everyone is included and respected. The company believes that a diverse team
improves the quality of decision-making, and ultimately improves overall performance.

Diversity and inclusion is a global priority for AB InBev's Senior Leadership Team, as they are important enablers of the success of the
company and its people. The company believes that its greatest strength is its diverse team of people and that its people deserve to feel
comfortable being their authentic selves at work every day, regardless of gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation or other characteristics that
make our colleagues unique. A diverse and inclusive workforce enables the company to better understand its equally diverse consumers and
stakeholders. This has resutted in AB InBev’s decision to launch a new Global Diversity & Inclusion policy in November 2018 as part of the
company’'s Global Code of Business Conduct. The Global Diversity & Inclusion policy provides additional guideiines for cultivating and
maintaining a diverse and inclusive culture. In addition, we launched our first Global Parental Standard in 2018 and updated our Giobal Policies
on Anti-Harassment, Anti-Discrimination and Human Rights in 2019, which also contribute to a more diverse and inclusive environment.

While all of the company’s geographic zones are covered under the global policy, in order to acknowledge that there is no one-size-fits-all
approach to diversity and inclusion, each of the zones has the flexibility to adapt the policy locally to include more information relevant to their
local markets. In line with its culture, AB InBev is committed to track progress on diversity and inclusion. VWe measure colleague sentiment
about diversity and inclusion in the company’s annual engagement survey.

AB InBev is proud to have an employee base of over 100 nationalities across the business, with 30 nationalities represented on the Senior
Leadership Team (SLT) and the senior management levet below. There is cne woman out of 17 members on the SLT (compared to zero last
year) and a slight increase in women in the senior management level below. AB InBev continues working on further improving all aspects of
diversity of its senior management team, with a focus on building a diverse talent pipeline, considering the respective skills, education,
experience and background. Reference is made to section 4 of this Corporate Govemance Statement for a short biegraphy of each of the
members of the SLT, including their qualifications and background.

The process for nominating and selecting candidates for the Board of Directors is described in the Corporate Governance Charter of Anheuser-
Busch InBev. The company aims to have a balanced and diverse Board primarily considering, among other things, the respective skills,
education, experience and background. Currently, five out of 15 Board members are women (compared to two out of 15 |ast year). Reference
is made to section 2.1 of this Comporate Governance Statement for a short biegraphy of each of the members of the Board of Directors,
including their qualifications and background, as well as for further information an the applicable Belgian legal gender diversity requirements.
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2. The Board of Directors

2.1. Structure and composition

The Board of Directors currently consists of 15 members, all of whom are non-executives.

The roles and responsibilities of the Board, its composition, structure and organization are described in detail in Anheuser-Busch InBev's
Corporate Govemnance Charter. This Corporate Governance Charter includes the criteria that directors must satisfy to qualify as independent
directors.

Unless the shareholders’ meeting decides on a shorter term, directors (other than the Restricted Share Directors) are appoirted for a maximum
term of four years, which is renewable. In accordance with article 19.4 (b) of our Articles of Association, Restricted Share Directors are
appointed for renewable terms ending at the next ordinary shareholders’ meeting following their appointment.

The appointment and renewal of directors (i) is based on a recommendation of the Nomination Committee, taking into account the rules
regarding the composition of the Board that are set out in the Articles of Association {(e.g., rules regarding number of independent directors
and directors appointed upon proposal of the AB InBev Reference Shareholder and the Restricted Shareholders), and (i) is subject to approval
by the shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is composed as follows:

® three directors shall be independent directors appointed by the shareholders’ meeting upon proposal by the Board; and

® s0 long as the Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev (the "Reference Sharehelder') and/or any of ils Affiliates, any of their respective
Successors or Successors’ Affiliates own, in aggregate, more than 30% of shares with voting rights in the share capital of the company,
nine directors shall be appointed by the shareholders’ meeting upon proposal by the Reference Shareholder and/or any of its Affiliates,
any of their respective Successors or Successors’ Affiliates; and

® 5o long as the holders of Restricted Shares (the “Restricted Shareholders”) {fogether with their Affiliates, any of their respective Successors
and/or Successors' Affiliates) own in aggregate:

o more than 13.5% of the Shares with voling rights in the share capital of the company, three directors will be appointed by the
shareholders’ meeting upon proposal by the Restricted Shareholders (each such director a "Restricted Share Director’y;

o more than 9% but not more than 13.5% of the Shares with voting rights in the share capital of the company, two Restricted Share
Directors will be appointed:;

o more than 4.5% but not more than 9% of the Shares with voting rights in the share capital of the company, one Restricted Share
Diractor will be appeointed; and

o 4.5% or less than 4 5% of the Shares with voting rights in e shaie capilal uf the company, they will no longer have the right to
propose any candidate for appointment as a member of the Board and no Restricted Share Directars will be appointed.

The Arlicles of Assaciation set out detailed rules regarding the calculation of the company's share capital owned by the Reference Shareholder
and the Restricted Sharehsiders for the purpose of determining directors’ nomination rights. Affiliates and Successors have the meaning set
out in the Articles of Association.

The composition of the Board will be balanced primarily considering the respective skills, education, experience and background of each of
the Board members.

According to the Belgian Companies Code, at least one third of the directors will have to be women. As a newly listed company having
securities admitted to trade on Euronext Brussels on 11 October 2018, AB InBev will need to comply with this gender diversity requirement
as from 1 January 2022. The company is currently already compliant with the requirement. Following the appaintment of Ms. Sabine Chalmers,
Ms. Xiaozhi Liu and Ms. Cecilia Sicupira as Board members by the annual shareholders’ meeting of 24 April 2019, the number of women on
our Board increased from two to five members (out of a total of 15 Board members). AB InBev will continue its efforts towards fostering gender
diversity on its Board in the coming years.

At the annual shareholders’ meeting held on 24 April 2019, the mandate of Mr. Olivier Goudet, independent director and Chairperson of the
Board, and the mandates of Messrs. Stéfan Descheemaeker, Alexandre Behring and Carlos Sicupira ended. Ms. Xiaozhi Liu was appointed
as a new independent director for a term of 4 years. Likewise, Ms. Sabine Chalmers, Mr. Claudio Garcia and Ms. Cecilia Sicupira were
appointed as new members of the Board upon proposal of the AB InBev Reference Shareholder for a term of 4 years. Mr. Martin J. Barrington
succeeded to Mr. Goudet as Chairperson of the Board.

In addition, the mandates of all three Restricted Share Directors, i.e. Messrs. Martin J. Barrington, William F. Gifford and Alejandro Santo
Domingo, ended at the annual shareholders’ meeting in April 2019. In accordance with articie 19.4 (b) of our Aricles of Association, their
mandates were renewed for a one year term ending at the upcoming annual shareholders' meeting to be held on 29 April 2020.

172



AB INBEV ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The gcomposition of Anheuser-Busch InBev's Board of Directors at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Date of Current
birth Term Term

Nationality Function started expires

Independent Directors

Xiaozhi Liu “"w1—§§é‘,mj_ Non-Executive Independent director 2019 2023
German

Michele Burns °1958, Non-Executive Independent director 2016 2020
American

Elio Leoni Sceti °19686, Non-Executive Independent director 2016 2020
ltalian

Directors upen proposal of the AB InBev Reference Sharehoider

Maria Asuncion °1963, Non-Executive, Non-lndependerﬁ—&};ector 2018 2020

Aramburuzabala Mexican

Paul Cornet de Ways Ruart °1968, Non-Executive director, nominated by the hoiders of 2018 2020
Belgian class A Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Sabine Chalmers °1965, Non-Executive director, neminated by the holders of 2019 2023
American class A Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Grégoire de Spoelberch °1866, Non-Executive director, nominated by the holders of 2018 2020
Belgian class A Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Alexandre Van Damme °1962, Non-Executive director, nominated by the holders of 2018 2020
Belgian class A Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Claudio Garcia °1968, Non-Executive director, nominated by the holders of 2019 2023
Brazilian class B Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Paulo Lemann °1968, Non-Executive director, nominated by the holders of 2018 2020
Brazilian class B Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Cecilia Sicupira °1981, Non-Executive director, nominated by the holders of 2019 2023
Brazilian class B Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Marcel Herrmann Telles “1850, Naon-Executive director, nominated by the holders of 2018 2020
Brazilian class B Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev certificates

Directors upon proposal of the Restricted Shareholders (Restricted Share Directors)

]ﬁﬁ‘iﬁm&fﬁarringtun ‘;i 953, Non-Executive director, nominated by Altria ) V?;('ling ) 2020
American
William F. Gifford °1970, Non-Executive director, nominated by Altria 2019 2020
American
Alejandro Santo Dominge *1977, Non-Executive director, nominated by Bevco 2019 2020
Colombian

Ms. Aramburuzabala is a non-executive member of the Board. Born in 1963, she is a citizen of Mexico and holds a degree in Accounting
fram ITAM (Instituto Tecnoldgico Autdnoma de Mexico). She has served as CEQ of Tresalia Capital since 1996. She is currently the
chairperson of the Boards of Directors of Tresalia Capital, KIO Networks, Abilia and Red Universalia. She is alsa a member of the Advisory
Board of Grupo Modelo and was formerly a member of the Grupe Modelo Board of Directors, and is currently on the Boards of Consejo
Mexicano de Negocios and El Universal, Compadia Perodistica Nacional and is an Advisory Board member of ITAM School of Business.

Mr. Barrington is a representative of the Restricted Shareholders. Born in 1953, he is an American citizen and graduated from The College
of Saint Rose with a Bachelor's Degree in History, and from Albany Law School of Union University with a Juris Doctorate Degree. He is the
retired Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of Altria Group. Puring his 25 years at Altria Group, he served in numercus legal and
business roles for Altria and its companies. These include Vice Chairman of Altria Group; Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative
Officer of Altria Group: Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Philip Moris Intemational (a separate public company spun-off from
Altria Group in 2008); and Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Philip Morris USA. Before joining Altria, Mr. Barrington practiced faw
in both the government and private sectors.

Ms. Burns is an independent member of the Board. Born in 1958, she is an American citizen and graduated Summa Cum Laude from the
University of Georgia with a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration and a Master's Degree in Accountancy. Ms. Burns was the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Mercer LLC from 2006 until 2012, She currently serves on the Boards of Directors of The Goldman
Sachs Group, where she chairs the Compensation Committee, Cisco Systems, where she chairs the Finance Committee, Etsy and Circle
Online Financial, a private company. From 2003 until 2013, she served as a director of Wai-Mart Stores. From 2014 until 2018, she served
on the Board of Alexion Pharmaceuticals. She curently serves on the Advisory Council of the Stanford Center on Longevity at Stanford
University. Ms. Burns began her career in 1981 at Arthur Andersen, where she became a partner in 1891. In 1999, she joined Delta Air Lines,
assuming the role of Chief Financial Officer from 2000 to 2004. From 2004 to 20086, Ms. Bums served as Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Restructuring Officer of Mirant Corporation, an independent power producer. From March 2006 until September 2006, Ms. Burns served as
the Chief Financial Officer of Marsh and McLennan Companies.

173



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Ms. Chalmers is a representative of the main shareholders (nominated by Eugénie Patri Sébastien S.A., the holder of the Class A Stichting
certificates). Born in 1965, Ms. Chalmers is an American citizen and holds a bachelor’s degree in Law from the London Schoal of Econemics
and is qualified to practice law in England and New York State. Ms. Chalmers is the General Counsel of BT Group plc and serves gn the
Board of Directors and Audit & Finance Committee of Coty Inc. Prior to joining BT, she was the Chief Legal and Corporate Affairs Officer &
Secretary to the Board of Directors of AB InBev, a role she held from 2005 to 2017. Ms. Chalmers joined AB InBev after 12 years with Diageo
plc where she held a number of senior legal positions including as General Counsel of the Latin American and North American businesses.
Prior to Diageo plc, she was an associate at the law firm of Lovell White Durrant in London, specializing in mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Cornet de Ways Ruart is a representative of the main shareholders (nominated by Eugénie Patri Sébastien S.A., the holder of the Class
A Stichting certificates). Born in 1968, he is a Belgian citizen and holds a Master’s Degree as a Commercial Engineer fram the Catholic
University of Louvain and an MBA from the University of Chicago. He has attended the Master Brewer program at the Catholic University of
Louvain. From 2006 to 2011, he worked at Yahoo! and was in charge of Corporate Development for Europe before taking on additional
responsibilities as Senior Financial Director for Audience and Chief of Staff. Prior to joining Yahos!, Mr. Cormet was Director of Strategy for
Crange UK and spent seven years with McKinsey & Company in London and Palo Alto, California. He is also a non-executive director of EPS,
Rayvax, Adrien Invest, Floridienne S .A. and several privately held companies.

Mr. Garcia is a representative of the main shareholders {nominated by BRC S.a.R.L,, the holder of the class B Stichting certificates). Born in
Brazil in 1968, he is a Brazilian citizen and is a graduate from Universidade Estadual do Rio de Janeiro, Brazil with a B.A_ in Economics. Mr.
Garcia interned at Companhia Cervejaria Brahma in 1981 and was employed as a Management Trainee in February 1993. From 1993 until
2001, Mr. Garcia worked in several positions in finance, mainly in the area of corporate budgeting. In 2001, he started the first Shared Service
Center for Ambev and in 2003 he became the head of both the Technology and Shared Services operations. Mr. Garcia participated in all
M&A integration projects from 1999 until 2018. In 2005, he was appeinted Chief Information and Shared Service Officer for Inbev (following
the combination of Ambev and Interbrew) in Leuven, Belgium. From 2006 to 2014, Mr. Garcia combined the functions of Chief People and
Technology Officer. From 2014 to January 2018, Mr. Garcia was the Chief People Officer of Anheuser-Busch InBev. Mr. Garcia is a board
member of Lojas Americanas, the Garcia Family Foundation, Chairman of the Telles Foundation gnd a Trustee at the Chapin School in New
York City.

Mr. Gifford is a representative of the Restricted Shareholders. Born in the United States in 1970, he is an American citizen and graduated
from Virginia Commonwealth University with a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy. He serves as Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of
Altria Group. In this role, he is responsible for overseeing Altria's core tobacco businesses, the sales and distribution business and the Finance
and Procurement Functions. He also oversees the financial services business of Philip Morris Capital Corporation. Prior to his current position,
Mr. Gifford was Senior Vice President, Strategy & Business Development. Since joining Philip Morris USA in 1994, he has served in numerous
leadership roles in Finance, Marketing Information & Consumer Research and as President and Chief Executive Officer of Philip Morris USA.
Prior to that, he was Vice President and Treasurer for Altna where he led various functions including Risk Management, Treasury
Management, Benefits Investments, Corporate Finance and Corporate Financial Planning & Analysis. Prior to joining Philip Morris USA, Mr.
Gifford worked at the public accounting firm of Coopers & Lybrand, which currently is known as PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Mr. Lemann is a representative of the main shareholders {nominated by BRC S.4.R.L., the halder of the class B Stichting certificates). Born
in Brazil in 1968, he is a Brazilian citizen and graduated from Facuidade Candido Mendes in Rio de Janeiro, Brazil with a B.A. in Economics.
Mr. Lemann interned at PriceWaterhouse in 1989 and was employed as an Analyst at Andersen Consulting from 1990 to 1991. Mr. Lemann
also perfomed equity analysis while at Banco Marka and Dynamo Asset Management (both in Rio de Janeiro). From 1897 to 2004, he
developed the hedge fund investment greup at Tinicum Inc., a New York-based investment office that advised the Synergy Fund of Funds,
where he served as Portfolio Manager. Mr. Lemann is a Founding Partner at Vectis Partners and is a board member of Lojas Americanas,
Lemann Foundation and Lone Pine Capital.

Mr. Leoni Sceti is an independent member of the Board. Barn in 1966, he is an ftalian citizen who lives in the UK. He graduated Magna Cum
Laude in Economics from LUISS in Rome, where he passed the Dottore Commercialista post-graduate bar exam. Mr. Leoni Sceti has over
30 years' experience in the fast-moving consumer goods and media sectors. He is Chief Crafter & Chairman of The Craflory, a global
investment house for purpose-driven challenger brands in FMCG. Mr. Leoni Sceti is Chairman of London-based LSG holdings and an early
stage investor in Media & Tech, with over 25 companies in his pertfolio. He is also an independent member of the Board at cocoa and
chocolate leader Bary Callebaut. Elio’s roles in the non-profit space include being a Trustee and Counsellor at One Young World (young
leaders from over 190 countries), and an advisor UK board member at Room to Read (promoting literacy and gender equality in education,
globally). His previous roles included: CEO of Iglo Group - whose brands are Birds Eye, Findus & Iglo - until May 2015, when the company
was sold to Nomad Foods; Global CEO of EMI Music from 2008 te 2010; and - prior to EMI - an international career in marketing and senior
leadership roles at Procter & Gamble and Reckitt Benckiser, where he later was CMO, global head of Innovation and then head of the
European operations.

Dr. Liu is an independent member of the Board. Born in 1956 in China, she is 2 German citizen and is the founder and CEO of ASL Automobile
Science & Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. since 2009 and is an independent director of Auteliv {(NYSE) and Johnson Matthey Plc. Previously,
she held various senior executive positions, including Chairman & CEO of Neotek (China), Vice-Chairman and CEQ of Fuyac Glass Graup,
Chairman and CEO of General Motors Taiwan, Directar of concept vehicle for Buick Park Avenue and Cadillac, Vehicle Electronics-Control
and Software Integration for GM North America, CTO and Chief Engineer of General Motors Greater China Region, and Representative
Managing Director of Delphi Automative in Shanghai China. Prior to 1997, she was responsible for Delphi Packard China JV Development,
Sales & Marketing as well as New Business Deveiopment. Besides these executive roles, Dr. Liu also served as an independent director of
GAEG (SGX) from 2009 to 2011 and an independent director of Fuyao Glass Group (SSE) from 2013 to 2019. Dr. Liu has rich professional
experience covering the areas of general management of enterprises, P&L, technology development, marketing & sales, mergers &
acquisitions, including in the United States, Europe and China at global Top 500 companies and Chinese blue-chip private enterprises. She
eamed a Ph.D_in Chemical Engineering, a master's degree of Electrical Engineering al the University of Erlangen/Nuremberg Germany and
a bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering at Xian Jiao Tong University in Xian China. She also attended the Dartmouth Tuck School of
Business for Executives.
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Mr. Santo Dominge is a representative of the Restricted Shareholders. Born in 1977, he is a Colombian citizen and obtained a B.A. in History
from Harvard College. He is a Senior Managing Directer at Quadrant Capital Advisors, Inc. in New York City. He was a member of the Board
of Directors of SABMiller Plg, where he was also Vice-Chairman of SABMiller Pl; for Latin America. Mr. Santo Domingo is Chairman of the
Board of Bavaria S.A. in Colombia. He is Chairman of the Board of Valorem, a company which manages a diverse portfolio of industrial &
media assets in Latin America. Mr. Santo Domingo is also a director of JDE (Jacobs Douwe Egberis), ContourGlobal plc, LifeTime, inc.,
Florida Crystals, the world's largest sugar refiner, Caracol TV, Colombia’'s leading broadcaster, £l Espectador, a leading Colombian Daily,
and Cine Colombia, Colombia's leading film distribution and movie theatre company. in the non-profit sector, he is Chair of the Wildlife
Conservation Society and Fundacion Maric Santo Domingo. He is alsoc a Member of the Board of Trustees of The Metropolitan Museum of
Art, a member of the Board of Channel Thirteen/WWNET (PBS), a member of the Board of DKMS, a foundation dedicated to finding donors for
leukemia patients, and he is a member of the Board of Fundacion Pies Descalzos. He is a member of Harvard University’s Global Advisory
Council (GAC) Mr. Sante Domingo is a member of the Board of Trustees of the Mount Sinai Health System.

Ms. Sicupira is a representative of the main shareholders {(nominated by BRC S.4.R L., the holder of the class B Stichting certificates). Born
in 1981, she is a Brazilian citizen and is a graduate from the American University of Paris with a bachelor's degree in International Business
Administration and of Harvard Business School's Owner/President Management {OPM) program. Ms. Sicupira currently serves on the board
of Lojas Americanas S.A (BOVESPA: LAME4), where she is member of the Finance and People Committees, and of Ambev S.A (BOVESPA:
ABEV3). She previously served on the board of Restaurant Brands International (NYSE: QSR) and of 850 Carlos Empreendimentos S.A.
(BOVESPA: SCAR3). Ms. Sicupira began her career in 2004 as an analyst within Goldman Sachs' Investment Banking Division covering Latin
America. Today she is a director and partner of LTS Investments.

Mr. de Spoelberch is a representative of the main shareholders (nominated by Eugénie Patri Sébastien S.A., the holder of the Class A
Stichting certificates). Born in 1966, he is a Belgian citizen and holds an MBA from INSEAD. Mr. de Spoelberch is an active private equity
shareholder and his recent activities include shared Chief Executive Officer responsibilities for Lunch Garden, the leading Belgian self-service
restaurant chain. He is a member of the board of several family-owned companies, such as Eugénie Patri Sébastien S.A., Verinvest and
Cobehold (Cobepa). He is also an administrator of the Baillet-Latour Fund, a foundation that encourages social, cultural, artistic, technical,
sporting, educational and philanthropic achievements.

Mr. Telles is a representative of the main shareholders (nominated by BRC S.a.R L., the holder of the class B Stichting certificates). Born in
1950, he is a Brazilian citizen and hoids a degree in Economics from Universidade Federal de Ric de Janeirc and attended the
Owners/Presidents Management Program at Harvard Business School. He was Chief Executive Officer of Brahma and Ambev and was a
member of the Board of Directors of Ambev. He served as member of the Board of Directors of H.J. Heinz Company and the Kraft Heinz
Company and now serves as member of the Board of associates of Insper. He is co-founder and Board member of Fundagao Estudar, a non-
profit organization that provides scholarships for Brazilians and a founder and Chairman of Ismart, a non-profit organization that provides
scholarships to low-income students. He is also an ambassador for Endeavor, an international non-profit organization that supports
entrepreneurs in developing markets.

Mr. Van Damme is a representative of the main shareholders (nominated by Eugénie Patri Sébastien S.A., the holder of the Class A Stichting
certificates). Born in 1962, he is a Belgian citizen and graduated from Sclvay Business School, Brussels. Mr. Van Damme jeined the beer
industry early in his career and held various operational positions within Interbrew until 1991, including Head of Corporate Planning and
Strategy. He has managed several private venture holding companies and is currently a director of several family-owned companies such as
Patri S.A. {(Luxembourg), Restaurant Brands International (formerly Burger King Worldwide Holdings) and the Kraft Heinz Company.
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2.2. Functioning

In 2019, the Board of Anheuser-Busch inBev held 10 meelings. Several of the meetings were held in the geographical Zones in which the
company has operations. On these occasions, the Board was provided with a comprehensive briefing of the relevant geographical Zone and
market. These briefings included an overview of performance, key challenges facing the market and the steps being taken to address the
challenges. Several of these visits also provided the Board members with the opportunity to meet with employees, trainees, consumers,
customers and other stakeholders.

Major Board agenda items included the long-range plan; achievement of targets; sales figures and brand health; reperting and budget;
consolidated results; strategic direction; culture and people, including diversity & inclusion and management succession planning; new and
ongoing investment; capital market transactions; financial profile; transformation initiatives; external growth and acquisitions; marketing
strategy; consumer insights; corporate social responsibility and sustainability as well as discussions on govemance and Board succession
planning. The average attendance rate at Board meetings in 2019 was 97%.

In 2019, the Board has been assisted by four Committees: the Audit Committee, the Finance Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As per the date of this report, the composition of the Committees is as follows:

Audit Nomination Finance Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Maria Asuncion Aramburuzabala
Martin J. Barrington Member Member
Michele Burns Chair Member Member
Sabine Chalmers
Paul Cornet de Ways Ruart Member
Grégoire de Spoeiberch Member
Claudio Garcia Member
William F. Gifford Member
Paulo Lemann Member
Xiaozhi Liu Member
Alejandro Santo Domingo
Elio Leoni Sceti Member Member
Cecilia Sicupira Member
Marcel Herrmann Telles Chair Chalr
Alexandre Van Damme Member Chair

Audit Committee

In accordance with the requirements of the Belgian Companies Code, the Audit Committee is composed exclusively of non-executive Board
members and at least one of its members qualifies as an independent director under Belgian law. In addition, Ms. Burns has extensive
experience in accounting and audit matters. Reference is made to section 2.1 for a short biography and an overview of her qualifications and
experience.

A majority of the voting members of the Audit Committee are independent directors as defined in the company's Corporate Govemance
Charter and all of them are independent as defined in Rule 10A-3(b)(1 }ii) under the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

In 2019, the Audit Committee met nine times. During its meetings, the Commiltee reviewed the financial statements of the company, the
annuai report, half-yearly and quarterly statements, as well as related results announcements. The Committee also considered issues arising
from internal audits conducted by the Internal Audit department and the implementation of the company's Compliance Program. Obligations
under Sarbanes Oxley, the review of the independence and appointment of the external auditor and a quarterly status of significant litigation
were some of the other important topics on the agenda of the Committee. The members of the Commitiee attended all meetings except for
Ms. Michele Bums who was absent at one meeting.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee met four times in 2019. Committee discussions included treasury updates and averall risk management strategy
including but net limited to risks related to commodities, interest rates, currencies and liquidity, hedging policies, the debt profile and capital
structure of the group. pensions and dividends. The members of the Committee attended ail meetings except for Ms. Michele Bums who was
absent at one meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Nemination Committee’s principal role is to guide the Board succession process. The Cemmittee identifies persons qualified to become
Board members and recommends director candidates for nemination by the Board and appeintment by the shareholders’ meeting.

The Nomination Committee met three times in 2019. Discussions included the nomination of directors for appointment or renewal,
management targets, the global management trainee program and succession planning for key executive functions. The members of the
Committee attended all meetings.
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Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the requirements of the Belgian Companies Code, the Remuneration Committee is composed exclusively of non-executive
Board members and a majority of its members, i.e. Ms Michele Burns and Mr Elio Leoni Sceti, qualify as independent directors under Belgian
law.

The Remuneration Committee’s principal role is to guide the Board on decisions relating to the remuneration policies for the Board, the CEO,
the Executive Committee (ExCom) and the Senior Leadership Team (SLT} and on individual remuneration packages of directors, the CEQ
and members of the ExCom and members of the SLT.

The Remuneration Committee met five times in 2019. Discussions included achievement of targets, Executive and Board compensation,
Executive shares, restricted stock units and options schemes, Long Term Incenlive grants to directors, new compensation models and special
incentives. The members of the Committee attended all meetings except for Ms. Michele Burns who was absent at one meeting.

2.3. Evaluation of the Board and its committees

For each financial year, the Board performs an evaluation of its performance at the initiative of the Chairman. The evaluation constitutes a
separate agenda item for a physical meeting of the Board. Discussions take place in executive session in the absence of management. A
third party may act as facilitator.

As part of this evaluation process, each director is requested to comment on and evaluate the following topics:

s effectiveness of Board and committee operations (e.g. checking that important issues are suitably prepared and discussed, time available
for discussion of important policy matters, checking availability and adequacy of pre-read, etc.);

* the qualifications and responsibilities of individual directers (e.g. actual contribution of each director, the director's presence at the
meetings and his/her involvement in discussions, impact of changes to the director’s other relevant commitments outside the company).

» effectiveness of oversight of management and interaction with management;
®* composition and size of the Board and committees. Examples of relevant criteria that are considered include:

o director independence: an affirmative determination as to the independence in accordance with the independence criteria published
in the Corporate Governance Charter.

o other commitments of directors: the outside Board commitments of each director enhance experience and perspective of directors,
but will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to ensure that each director can devote proper atiention to the fulfilment of his oversight
responsibilities.

o disqualifying circumstances: certain circumstances may constitute a disqualification for membership on the Board (e.g. Board
membership of a major supplier, customer or competitor of the company, membership of a federal or regional government).
Circumstances will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to ensure that directors are not conflicted.

o skills and previous contributions: the company expects that all directors prepare for, atlend and participate actively and constructively
in alt meetings; exercise their business judgment in good faith; focus their efforts on ensuring that the company’s business is conducted
s0 as to further the interests of the shareholders; and become and remain well informed about the company, relevant business and
economic trends and about the principles and practices of sound Corporate Governance.

Following review and discussion of the responses, the Chairman of the Board may table proposais to enhance the performance or
effectiveness of the functioning of the Board. Advice can be requested from a third-party expert.

The evaluation of the Audit Committee is a re-occurring agenda item for the Committee and is performed about ohce a year. This evaluation
is discussed at a Committee meeting and includes assessment of its planning going forward, the appropriateness of the time allocated to its
various areas of responsibility, its composition and any areas for improvement. Any major action points resulting therefrom are reported to the
Board.

2.4. Certain transactions and other contractual relationships

There are no transactions or other contractual relationships to be reported between the company and its Board members that gave rise to
canflicting interests as defined in the Belgian Companies code.

The company is prohibited from making loans to directors, whether for the purpose of exercising options or for any other purpose.
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3. Chief Executive Officer and Executive Management

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is entrusted by the Board with responsibility for the day-to-day management of the company. The CEO
has direct operational responsibility for the entire company. The CEQ leads an Executive Committee (ExCom) which comprises the CEQ, the
Chief Financial & Technology Officer, the Chief Peopie & Transformation Officer and the Chief Legal & Corporate Affairs Officer.

The ExCom was established with effect as from 1 January 2019 and is the successor 1o the former Executive Board of Management. It reports
to the CEQ and works with the Board on matters such as corporate governance, general management of our company and the implementation
of corporate strategy as defined by our Board. The ExCom performs such other duties as may be assigned to it from time to time by the CEQ
or the Board.

As per 1 January 2020, our Executive Committee consisted of the following members (7@

Carlos Brito CEO David Almeida Chief People & Transformation
Officer
Felipe Dutra Chief Financial & Technology Officer John Blood Chief Legal & Corporate Affairs

Officer and Corporate Secretary

(1) David Kamenetzky, former Chief Strategy & External Affairs Officer, was a member of the ExCom untii 30 June 2319
(2) David Almeida, Chief People & Transformation Officer, became a member of the ExCom on 1 July 2018,

The company announced on 6 February 2020 that, with effect as from 29 April 2020, Fernando Tennenbaum will succeed Felipe Dutra as the
company’s Chief Financial Officer and member of the ExCom, It was also anngunced that David Almeida will become Chief Strategy &
Technology Officer with effect as from 29 April 2020. Dawvid Almeida will continue to be a member of the ExCaom.

Accordingly, as of 29 April 2020, the Executive Committee will be comprised of the Chief Executive Officer, Carlos Brito, the Chief Financial
Officer, Fernando Tennenbaum, the Chief Strategy & Technology Officer, David Almeida, and the Chief Legal & Corporate Affairs Officer,
John Blood.
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4. Senior Leadership Team

The Senior Leadership Team (“SLT") was established with effect as from 1 January 2019. The SLT reports to the Chief Executive Officer and
consists of the members of the ExCom, all other functional Chiefs and Zone Presidents, including the Chief Executive Officer of Ambev and
the Chief Executive Officer of Bud APAC, who report into the Board of Directors of Ambev and Bud APAC respectively.

The SLT has an advisory role to the Board and the ExCom and drives the commercial and operational agenda, reflecting the strategy set out
by the Board. In addition, the SLT performs such duties as may be assigned to it from time to time by the CEQ, ExCom or the Board.

As per 1 January 2020, our Senior Leadership Team consisted of the following members :

Carlos Brito — CEQ

Members of the ExCom {other than the CEQ) Zone presidents

Chief People &

David Almeida Transformation Officer Jan Craps Asia Pacific (APAC)
John Blood Chief Legal & Corporale Affairs Michel Doukeris North America
Officer and Corporate Secretary
: Chief Financial & . " .

F

elipe Dutra Technology Officer Jean Jereissati South America

Qther Functional Chiefs Carlos Lishoa Middle Americas

Katherine M. Barrett General Counsel Ricardo Moreira Africa
Pedro Earp Chief Marketing & Jason Warner Europe

ZX Ventures Officer

Chief Non-Alcohal

Lucas Herscovici Beverages Officer

Peter Kraemer Chief Supply Officer

i Chief Sustainability &
Tony Milikin Procurement Officer
Pablo Panizza Chief Owned-Retail Officer
Ricardo Tadeu Chief Sales Officer

(1) The company announced on & February 2020 that, with effect as from 29 April 2020, (1} Fernando Tennenbaum will succeed Felipe Dutra as the company’'s
Chief Financial Qfficer, (i) David Almeida will become Chief Strategy & Technology Officer, and (jii) Nelson Jamel will become the company's Chief People
Officer.

Carlos Brito is AB InBev's CEOQ. Born in 1960, he is a Brazilian citizen and received a Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the
Universidade Federal do Rio de Janeiro and an MBA from Stanford University Graduate School of Business. Mr. Brito joined Ambev in 1989
where he held roles in Finance, Operations, and Sales, before being appointed Chief Executive Officer in January 2004. He was appointed
Zone President North America at InBev in January 2005 and Chief Executive Officer in December 2005. He is a member of the board of
direciors of Ambev. He is also an Advisory Council Member of the Stanford Graduate School of Business and serves on the Advisory Board
of the Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management.

David Almeida is AB InBev's Chief People & Transformation Officer. Born in 1976, Mr. Almeida is a dual citizen of the U.S. and Brazil and
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the University of Pennsylvania. Most recently, he served as Chief Integration Officer and Chief
Sales Officer ad interim having previously held the positions of Vice President, U.S. Sales and of Vice President, Finance for the North
American organization. Prior to that, he served as InBev's head of mergers and acquisitions, where he led the combination with Anheuser-
Busch in 2008 and subsequent integration activities in the U.S. Before joining the group in 1998, he worked at Salomon Brothers in New York
as a financial analyst in the Investment Banking division.

Katharine Barrett is AB InBev's General Counsel. Bom in 1970, Ms. Barrett is a U.5. citizen and holds a bachelor's degree in Business
Administration from Saint Louis University and a Juris Doctorate degree from the University of Arizona. Ms. Barrett joined Anheuser-Busch
in 2000 as a fitigation attorney in the Legal Department. She most recently served as Vice President, U.S. General Counsel & Labor Relations,
where she was responsible for overseeing all legal issues in the U.S. including commercial, litigation and regulatory matters and labor retations.
Prior to joining the company, Ms. Barrett worked in private practice at law firms in Nevada and Missouri.

John Blood is AB InBev's Chief Legal & Corporate Affairs Officer and Company Secretary. Born in 1967, Mr. Blood is a U.S. citizen and holds
a bachelor's degree from Amherst College and a JD degree from the University of Michigan Law School. Mr. Blood joined AB inBev in 2009
as Vice President Legal, Commercial and M&A. Most recently Mr. Blood was AB InBev's General Counsel. Prior to the latter role, he was
Zone Vice President Legal & Corporate Affairs in North America where he has led the legal and corporate affairs agenda for the United States
and Canada. Prior to joining the company, Mr. Blood worked on the legal team in Diageo's North American business and was in private
practice at a law firm in New York City before that.
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Jan Craps is AB InBev's Zone President Asia Pacific since 1 January 2019 and CEO and Executive Director of Budweiser Brewing Company
APAC since 8 May 2019. Born in 1977, Mr. Craps is @ Belgian citizen and obtained a Degree in Business Engineering from KU Brussels and
a Master's Degree in Business Engineering from KU Leuven, Belgium. Mr. Craps was an associate consultant with McKinsey & Company
before joining Interbrew in 2002. He acquired a range of international experiences in a number of senior marketing, sales and logistics
executive positions in France and Beigium. In 2011, he relocated to Canada where he was appointed Head of Sales for Canada followed by
his appointment as President and CEQ of L abatt Breweries of Canada in 2014. Untit 31 December 2018, he held the position of Zone President
Asia Pacific South.

Michel Doukeris is AB inBev's Zone President North America since 1 January 2018. Born in 1973, he is a Brazilian citizen and holds a
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Federal University of Santa Catarina in Brazil and a Master's Degree in Marketing from Fundagao
Getulio Vargas, also in Brazil. He has also completed post-graduate programs in Marketing and Marketing Strategy from the Kellogg School
of Management and Wharton Business School in the United States. Mr. Doukeris joined Ambev in 1996 and held sales positions of increasing
responsibility before becoming Vice President, Soft Drinks for AB InBev's Latin America North Zone in 2008. He was appointed President, AB
InBev China in January 2010 and Zone President, Asia Pacific in January 2013. In January 2017, Mr. Doukeris became Chief Sales Officer.

Felipe Dutra is AR InBev's Chiel Financial and Technology Officer. Bomn in 1965, Mr. Dutra is a Brazilian citizen and holds a Degree in
Economics from Candidoc Mendes and an MBA in Contralling from Universidade de Sao Paulo. He joined Ambev in 1890 from Aracruz
Celulose, a major Brazilian manufacturer of pulp and paper. At Ambev, he held various positions in Treasury and Finance before being
appointed General Manager of one of AB InBev's subsidiaries. Mr. Dutra was appointed Ambev's Chief Financial Officer in 1998 and Chief
Financial Officer in January 2005. In 2014, Mr. Dutra became AB inBev's Chief Financial and Technology Officer. He is also a member of the
board of directors of Ambev and of the advisory board of Grupo Modelo and was formerly a member of the Grupo Modelo board of directors.

Pedro Earp is AB InBev's Chief Marketing & ZX Ventures Officer since 1 January 2019. Born in 1877, he is a Brazilian citizen and holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Financial Economics from the London School of Ecenomics. Mr. Earp joined Ambev in 2000 as a Glabal
Management Trainee in the Latin America North Zone. In 2002, he became responsible for the Zone's M&A team and in 2005 he moved to
inBev's global headquarters in Leuven, Belgium to become Global Director, M&A. Later, he was appointed Vice President, Strategic Planning
in Canada in 2006, Global Vice President, Insights and Innovation in 2007, Global Vice President, M&A in 2009 and Vice President, Marketing
for the Latin America North Zone in 2013. He was appointed Chief Disruptive Growth Officer of AB InBev in February 2015 and held such role
until 31 December 2018

Lucas Herscovici is AB InBev's Chief Non-Alcohol Beverages Officer since 1 January 2018. Born in 1977, he is an Argentinean citizen and
received a Degree in Industrial Engineering from Instituto Tecnolégico de Buenos Aires. Lucas joined the group in 2002 as a Global
Management Trainee in Latin America South Zone and has built his career in Markeling and Sales. After working in Argentina in several
commercial roles, he became head of innovation for global brands and later Global Marketing Director of Stella Artois in 2008. In 2011 he was
responsible for opening the “Beer Garage', AB InBev's Globa! digital innovation office, based out of Palo Alto, California. In 2012, he jeined
the North America Zone to become VP Digitai Marketing and in 2014 he was appointed VP Consumer Connections for USA. In 2017, he was
appointed Global Marketing VP of Insights, Innovation and Consumer Connections and held such role until 31 December 2018.

Jean Jereigsati Neto is AB InBev’s Zone President South America and CEQ of Ambev. Born in 1974, he is a Brazilian citizen and received
a Degree in Business Administration from Fundagao Getdlio Vargas (FGV) and an Fxecutive Education at Insead and Wharton. Mr. Jereissati
joined Ambev in 1998 and held various positions in Sales and Trade Markeling prior to becoming CEO of Cerveceria Nacional Dominicana,
in 2013, making a successful integration with CND. In 2015, he joined Asia and Pacific North Zone to become Business Unit President for
China and in 2017 he was appointed Zone President of the Zone, leading one of the most complex and fast-growing business. Most recently,
Mr Jereissati held the role of Business Unit President for Brazil.

Peter Kraemer is AB InBev's Chief Supply Cfficer. Born in 1965, he is a U.S. citizen. A fifth-generation Brewmaster and native of St. Louis,
Mr. Kraemer holds a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering from Purdue University and a Master's degree in Business Administration
from St. Louis University. He joined Anheuser-Busch 30 years ago and has held various brewing positions over the years, including Group
Director of Brewing and Resident Brewmaster of the St. Louis brewery. In 2008, Mr. Kraemer became Vice President, Supply, for AB InBev's
North America Zone, leading all brewery operations, guaiity assurance, raw materiais and product innovation responsibilities. He was
appointed Chief Supply Officer of AB inBev in March 2016.

Carlos Lisboa is AB InBev's Zane President Middle Americas since 1 January 2019. Born in 1969, Mr. Lisboa is a Brazilian citizen and
received a Degree in Business Administration from the Catholic University of Pernambuco and a Marketing specialization from FESP, both in
Brazil. Mr. Lisboa joined Ambev in 1993 and has built his career in Marketing and Sales. He was responsibie for building the Skol brand in
Brazil in 2001 and after that became Marketing Vice President for AB InBev's Latin American North Zone. Mr. Lisboa then led the International
Business Unit in AB InBev's Latin America South Zone for two years prior to becoming Business Unit President for Canada. In 2015, he was
appointed Marketing Vice President for AB InBev's Glebal Brands. Most recently, Mr. Lisboa held the role of Zone President Latin America
South until 31 December 2018.

Tony Mitikin is AB InBev's Chief Procurerent and Sustainability Officer. Mr. Milikir joined AB InBev in May, 2009 and is globally responsible
for Procurement, Sustainability, Vertical Operations and Value Creation. Born in 1961, Mr. Milikin is a U.S. citizen, He is responsible for $35B+
in purchases and working capital annually. Mr. Milikin manages our Vertical Operations consisting of 70+ facilities and over 8,000 employees
and is a strategic partner to our Supply Organization. AB InBev's Value Creation uses circular economy opportunities to create businesses
from our waste and underutilized assets. Mr. Milikin holds an undergraduate Finance Degree from the University of Florida and an MBA from
Texas Christian University. Mr. Milikin joined AB InBev from MWV, where he was Senior Vice President, Supply Chain and Chief Purchasing
Officer. Prior to joining MWV, he held various purchasing, transportation and supply positions with increasing responsibilities at Monsanto and
Alcon Laberatories.

Ricardo Moreira is AB InBev's Zone President Africa since 1 January 2019. Born in 1971, he is a Portuguese citizen and received a Degree
in Mechanical Engineering from Rio de Janeire Federal University in Brazil and a specialisation in Management from University of Chicago in
the U.S. Mr. Moreira joined Ambev in 1995 and held various positions in the Safes and Finance organisations prior to becoming Regianal
Sales Director in 2001. He subsequently held positions as Vice President Logistics & Procurement for Latin America North, Business Unit
President for Hispanic Latin America (HILA) and Vice President Soft Drinks Latin America North. In 2013, Mr. Moreira moved to Mexico to
head AB InBev's Sales, Marketing and Distribution organisations and lead the commercial integration of Grupo Modelo. Mest recently, Mr.
Moreira heid the role of Zone President Latin America COPEC until 31 December 2018.
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Pablo Panizza is AB InBev's Chief Owned-Relail Officer since 1 January 2019. Born in 1975, he is an Argentinean citizen and holds a degree
in Industrial Engineering from Universidad de Buenos Aires. Mr. Panizza manages our Direct to Consumer business, coordinating cross-
market initiatives, sharing best practices and shaping its strategy. He joined our company in 2000 as a Global Management Trainee in South
America Zone and has spent almost two decades developing a career in the commercial area. After holding senior roles in Argentina and
Global Headquarters, he led our business in Chile and Paraguay. He most recently served as Business Unit President for Argentina and
Uruguay.

Ricardo Tadeu is AB inBev's Chief Sales Officer since 1 January 2019. Born in 1976, he is a Brazilian citizen, and received a law degree
from the Universidade Candido Mendes in Brazil and a Master of Laws from Harvard Law School in Cambridge, Massachusetts. He is also
Six Sigma Black Belt cerlified. He joined Ambev in 1995 and has held various roles across the Commercial area. He was appointed Business
Unit President for the operations in Hispanic Latin America in 2005, and served as Business Unit President, Brazil from 2008 to 2012. He
served as Zone President, Mexico from 2013 until his appointment as Zone President Africa upon completion of the Combination in 2016. Mr.
Tadeu held the role as Zone President Africa until 31 December 2018.

Jason Warner is AB InBev's Zone President Europe since 1 January 2019. Born in 1973, he is a dual British and U.S. citizen and received a
BSc Eng Hons Industrial Business Studies degree from DeMontfort University in the United Kingdom. Prior to his current rote, he was Business
Unit President for North Europe between 2015 and 2018. He joined AB InBev in July 2009 as Global VP Budweiser, based in New York,
before moving info a dual role of Global VP Budweiser and Marketing VP. He has also held Global VP roles for Corona as well as Innovation
and Renowvation. Prior to joining AB InBev, he held varicus positions at The Coca-Cola Company and Nestlé.

5. Internal Control and Risk Management Systems

The Board of Directors and the ExCom, assisted by the SLT, were responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls
and risk management systems during the reporting period. Intermal control is the process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
achievemnent of objectives related to effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Risk management is the process designed to identify potential events that may affect the company and to manage risks
to be within its risk appetite.

Without prejudice to the responsibilities of the Board as a whole, the Audit Committee oversees financial and business risk management and
discusses the process by which management assesses and manages the company’s exposure to those risks and the steps taken to monitor
and control such exposure.

The company’s major risk factors and uncertainties are described in the Risks and Uncertainties section of the Management report in AB
InBev's annual report.

The company has established and operates its internal control and risk management systems based on guidelines issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway Commission ("*COSO"). The internal control system is based upen COSO’s Internal Control—
Integrated Framework of 2013 and its risk rnanagement system is based on COSO’s Enterprise Risk Management Framewaork of 2017.

Financial reporting

The ExCom, assisted by the SLT, was responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting during
the reporting period. The company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). Intemal centrols over financial reporting include those written policies and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of recards that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of company
assets;

® provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with IFRS;

¢ provide reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorization of management and
directors of the company; and

® provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting includes the assessment of the relevant risks, the identification and monitoring of key controls and
actions taken to correct deficiencies as identified. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Senior management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2019. As
indicated above, management based this assessment on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in “Intemal
Control — Integrated Framework” issued by COSO in May 2013. The assessment included an evaluation of the design of the company’s
internal control over financial reporting and testing of its operational effectiveness. Based on this assessment, it was determined that, as of
31 December 2019, the company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee reviewed managernent's assessment. The review related among other things to ensuring
that there are no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over finangial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information, and to the
existence of any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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In addition, as a result of the listing of Anheuser-Busch InBev on the New York Stock Exchange, the company must adhere to Section 404 of
the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. As a consequence, the company is required to provide on a yearly basis a management report on the
effectiveness of the company's internal control over financial reporting, as described in the Section and the rules implementing such act.
Management's report and the Statutory Auditor's related opinion regarding the relevant financial year, will be included in the company’s Annual
Report on Form 20-F for such year, which is required to be filed with the US Securities and Exchange Commission.

internal Audit

The company has a professional and independent internal audit (risk management) department. The appointment of the Head of internal audit
is reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews internal audit's risk assessment and annual audit plan and regularly receives
internal audit reports for review and discussion.

Internal control deficiencies identified by internal audit are communicated in a timely manner to management and periodic follow-up is
performed to ensure corrective action has been taken.

Compliance

AB InBev has an Ethics & Compliance Program which fosters a culture of ethics, integrity and iawful behavior. This pregram includes a Code
of Business Conduct and the Anti-Coerruption Policy, which are available on the company’s website and intranet. The Ethics & Compliance
Program further ensures compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the completion of a periodic certification by management of
compliance with the Code of Business Conduct,

A set of internal contrels and & data analytics tool have been implemented and are periodically assessed at the Global and Local Compliance
Committees and the Audit Committee.

The Global Ethics & Compliance Committee, chaired by the company's Global Vice President, Ethics & Compiiance. assesses regulatory and
ethical compliance risks for the company from a global perspective and provides strategic direction for the activities of the compliance function.
On a quarterly basis, the Gtobal Ethics & Compliance Committee reviews the operation of the Compliance Program and follows-up an reports
submitted through the company’'s Compliance Helpline (whistle-blowing platform). In addition to the Global Ethics & Compliance Committee,
each Zone has its own Local Ethics & Compliance Commitiee, which addresses local compliance matiers.

The Audit Committee reviews the operation of the Ethics & Compliance Program and the results of any compliance reviews or reports
submitted through the company's global Compliance Helpline. On a regular basis, the Audit Committee also reviews the significant legal,
compliance and regulatory matters that may have a material effect on the financial statements or the company’s business, including material
notices to or inquiries received from governmental agencies.
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6. Shareholders’ structure

6.1. Shareholders’ structure

The following table shows the shareholders' structure of Anheuser-Busch InBev as at 31 December 2019 based on (i) transparency
deciarations made by shareholders who are compelled to disclose their shareholdings pursuant te the Belgian law of 2 May 2007 on the
notification of significant sharehaldings and the Articles of Association of the company, {ii) notifications made by such shareholders to the
company on a voluntary basis prior to 15 December 2019 for the purpose of updating the above information, and (iii) information included in
public filings with the US Securities and Exchange Commission,

Major shareholders Number % of voting
of Shares rights

Holders of Ordinary Shares

Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev, a stichting incorporated under Dutch faw 663,074,832 33.84%
(the “Reference Shareholder”)

EPS Participations Sarl, a company incorporated under Luxembourg law, affiliated to EPS, 131,898,152 6.73%
its parent company

EPS SA, a company incorporated under Luxembourg law, affiliated to the Reference 99,999 0.01%
Shareholder that it jointly controls with BRC

BRC Sarl, a company incorporated under Luxembourg law, affiliated to the Reference 37,598,146 1.92%
Shareholder that it jointly controls with EPS

Rayvax Société d’'Investissements SA, a company incorporated under Belgian law 24,158 0.00%
Sebastien Helding SA, a company incorporated under Belgian law, affiliated to Rayvax, 10 0.00%
its parent company

Fonds Verhelst SPRL, a company with a social purpose incorporated under Belgian law o] 0.00%
Fonds Voorzitter Verhelst SPRL, a company with a social purpose incorporated under 6,807,665 0.36%
Belgian law, affiliated to Fonds Verhelst SPRL with social purpose, that controls it

Stichting Fonds InBev-Baillet Latour, a stichting incorporated under Dutch law o] 0.00%
Fonds Baillet Latour SC, a company incorporated under Belgian law, affiliated to Stichting 5,485,415 0.28%

Fonds InBev-Baillet Latour under Dutch law, that controls it

MHT Benefit Holding Company Ltd, a company incorporated under the law of the 4,005,303 0.20%
Bahamas, acting in concert with Marcel Herrmann Telles within the meaning of Article 3, §2
of the Takeover Law

LTS Trading Company LLC, a company incorporated under Delaware law, acting in concert 4,468 0.00%
with Marcel Hemmann Telles, Jorge Pauto Lemann and Carlos Alberto Sicupira within the
meaning of Article 3, §2 of the Takeover Law

Olia 2 AG, a company incorporated under Liechtenstein law, acting in concert with Jorge 259,000 0.01%
Paulo Lemann within the meaning of Article 3, §2 of the Takeover Law

Helders of Restricted Shares

Altria Group Inc. @ 185,115,417 9.45%
Bevco Lux Sarl @ 96,862,718 4.94%

(1) Holding percentages are calculated on the basis of the total number of shares in issue, excluding treasury shares (1,959,379,126). As at 31 December 2019, there
were 2,019,241 973 shares in issue ingluding 59 862,847 crdinary shares held in treasury by AB InBev and certain of its subsidiaries.

(2) in addition to the Restricted Shares listed above, Altia Group Inc. announced in its Schedule 130 beneficial ownership report on 11 October 2016 that. following
completion of the business combination with SAB, it purchased 11,941,937 Ordinary Shares in the company. Finally, Altria further increased its position of Ordinary
Shares in the company o0 12,341 937, as disciosed in the Schedule 13D beneficial ownership report filed by Stichting dated 1 November 2016, implying an aggregate
ownership of 10.08% based on the number of shares with volting rights as at 3t December 2019,

(3) In addition to the Restricted Shares listed above, Beveo Lux Sarl announced in a nolification made on 17 January 2017 in accordance with the Belgian law of 2 May
2007 on the notification of significant shareholdings, that it purchased 4,215,794 Ordinary Shares in the company. BEVCO Lux Sarl disclosed to us that it increased
its position of Ordinary Shares in the company to an aggregate of 6,000,000 Ordinary Shares, resulting in an aggregate ewnership of 5.25% based on the number of
shares with voting rights as at 31 December 2019.

The first thirteen entities mentioned in the table act in concert (it being understood that (i) the first ten entities act in concert within the meaning
of article 3, §1, 13° of the Belgian law of 2 May 2007 on the disclosure of significant shareholdings in issuers whose securities are admitted
to trading on a regulated market and containing various provisions, implementing into Belgian law Directive 2004/109/CE, and {ii) the eleventh,
twelfth and thirteenth entities act in concert with the first ten entities within the meaning of article 3, §2 of the Belgian law of 1 April 2007 on
public takeover bids) and hold, as per (i) the most recent notifications received by AB InBev and the FSMA in accordance with article 6 of the
Belgian law of 2 May 2007 on the notification of significant shareholdings and (i) notifications to the company made on a veluntary basis prior
to 15 December 2019, in aggregate, 849,447 148 Ordinary Shares, representing 43.35% of the voting rights attached to the shares outstanding
as of 31 December 2019 excluding treasury shares.
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6.2. Shareholders’ arrangements

Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev (the “Reference Shareholder”) has entered into shareholders’ agreements with {a) BRC, EPS, EPS
Participations, Rayvax Société d’Investissements SA (Rayvax), (b) Fonds Baillet Latour SC and Fonds Voorzitter Verhelst SPRL with a social
purpose, and {c) the largest holders of restricted shares in the company (the Restricted Shareholders).

a. Reference Shareholder’s agreement

In connection with the combination of Interbrew with Ambev in 2004, BRC, EPS, Rayvax and the Reference Shareholder entered into a
shareholders’ agreement on 2 March 2004 which provided for BRC and EPS to hold their interests in the old Anheuser-Busch InBev through
the Reference Shareholder {except for approximately 132 million shares held directly or indirectly by EPS and approximately 38 million shares
held directly by BRC based on the most recent shareholding disclosure received by the cormpany). The shareholders’ agreement was amended
and restated on 9 September 2009. On 18 December 2013, EPS contributed to EPS Participations its certificates in the Reference Shareholder
and the shares it held in the old Anheuser-Busch InBev except for 100,000 shares. immediately thereafter, EPS Participations joined the
cancert constituted by BRC, EPS, Rayvax and the Refecence Shareholder and adhered to the shareholders’ agreement. On 18 December
2014, the Reference Shareholder, EPS, EPS Participations, BRC and Rayvax entered into a new shareholders’ agreement that replaced the
previous shareholders’ agreement of 2009. On 11 April 2016, the parties thereto entered into an amended and restated new shareholders’
agreement (the “2016 Shareholders’ Agreement”).

The 2016 Sharehoiders’ Agreement addresses, among other things, certain matters relating to the governance and management of both AB
InBev and the Reference Shareholder, as well as (i) the transfer of the Reference Shareholder certificates, and (i} the de-certification and re-
certification pracess for the company’s shares {the "Shares™) and the circumstances in which the Shares held by the Reference Shareholder
may be de-certified and/or pledged at the request of BRC, EFS and EPS Participations.

The 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement provides for restrictions on the ability of BRC and EPS/EPS Participations to transfer their Reference
Shareholder certificates.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement, BRC and EPS/EPS Participations jointly and equally exercise ¢ontrol over the
Reference Shareholder and the Shares held by the Reference Shareholder. The Reference Shareholder is managed by an eight-member
board of directors and each of BRC and EPS/EPS Participations have the right to appoint four directors to the Reference Shareholder board
of directors. Subject to certain exceptions, at least seven of the eight Reference Sharehoider directors must be present or represented in order
to constitute a quorum of the Reference Sharehelder board, and any action to be taken by the Reference Shareholder board of directors will,
subject to certain qualified majority conditions, require the approval of a majority of the directors present or represented, including at least two
directors appointed by BRC and two directors appointed by EPS/EPS Participations. Subject to certain exceptions, all decisions of the
Reference Shareholder with respect to the Shares it holds, including how such Shares will be voted at shareholders’ meetings of AB inBev
{Shareholders’ Meetings), will be made by the Reference Shareholder board of directors.

The 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement requires the Reference Shareholder board of directars to meet prior to each shareholders’ meeting to
determine how the Shares held by the Reference Shareholder are to be voted.

The 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement requires EPS, EP'S Participations, BRC and Rayvax, as well as any other holder of certificates issued by
the Reference Sharehoider, to vote their Shares in the same manner as the Shares held by the Reference Shareholder. The parties agree to
effect any free transfers of their Shares in an orderly manner of disposal that does not disrupt the market for the Shares and in accordance
with any conditions established by the company to ensure such orderly disposal. in addition, under the 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement, EPS,
EPS Participations and BRC agree not to acquire any shares of Ambev’s capital stock, subject to limited exceptions.

Pursuant to the 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement, the Reference Shareholder board of directors will propose to the shareholders’ meeting nine
candidates for appointment to the Board, among which each of BRC and EPS/EPS Participations will have the right to nominate four
candidates, and one candidate will be nominated by the Reference Shareholder board of directors.

The 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement will remain in effect for an initiat term until 27 August 2034. It will be automatically renewed for successive
terms of ten years each unless, not later than two years prior to the expiration of the initial or any successive ten-year term, either party to the
2016 Sharehclders’ Agreement natifies the other of its intention to terminate the 2016 Shareholders’ Agreement.

b. Voting agreement between the Reference Shareholder and the foundations

in addition, the Reference Shareholder has entered into a voting agreement with Fonds Baillet Latour SPRL with a social purpose (now Fonds
Baillet Latour SC) and Fonds Voorzitter Verhelst SPRL with a social purpose. This agreement provides for consultations between the three
bodies before any shareholders’ meetings to decide how they will exercise the voting rights attached te their Shares. Consensus is required
for all iterns that are submitted to the approval of any shareholders’ meetings. If the parties fail to reach a consensus, Fonds Baillet Latour SC
and Fonds Voorzitter Verhelst SPRL with a social purpose will vote their Shares in the same manner as the Reference Shareholder. The
voting agreement is valid until 1 November 2034.

c. Voting agreement between the Reference Shareholder and Restricted Shareholders

On 8 October 2016, the Reference Shareholder and each holder of restricted shares (such hoiders being the Restricted Shareholders) holding
more than 1% of the company’s total share capital, being Altria Group inc. and Bevco LTD, have entered into a voting agreement, to which
the company is also a party, under which notably:

* the Reference Shareholder is required to exercise the voting rights attached to its Ordinary Shares to give effect to the directors’
appointment principles set out in articles 19 and 20 of the Articles of Association of the company;

* gach Restricted Shareholder is required to exercise the voting rights attached to its Ordinary Shares and Restricted Shares, as applicable,
to give effect to the directors’ appointment principles set out in articles 19 and 20 of the Articles of Association; and

® cach Restricted Shareholder is required not to exercise the voting nights attached to their Ordinary Shares and Restricted Shares, as
applicable, in favor of any resolutions which would be proposed to modify the rights attached to Restricted Shares, unless such resolution
has been approved by a qualified maijority of the holders of a1 ieast 75% of the Restricted Shareholder Voting Shares (as defined in the
Articles of Association).
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7. ltems to be disclosed pursuant to Article 34 of the
Belgian Royal Decree of 14 November 2007

According to article 34 of the Belgian Royal Decree of 14 November 2007, Anheuser-Busch InBev hereby discloses the following items:

7.1. Capital structure and authorizations granted to the Board

The company’'s share capital is divided in two categories of shares: all shares are ordinary shares (the "Ordinary Shares™), except for
325,999 817 restricted shares (the “Restricted Shares”). Ordinary shares and Restricted Shares have the same rights except as set out in the
Articles of Association. Restricted Shares shall always be in registered form and shalil not be listed or admitted to trading on any stock market.

Anheuser-Busch InBev may increase or decrease its share capital with the specific approval of a shareholders’ meeting. The shareholders
may alsc authorize the Board of Directors to increase the share capital. Such authorization must be limited in time and amount. In either case,
the shareholders’ approval or authorization must satisfy the quorum and majority requirements applicable to amendments to the Articles of
Association. At the annual shareholders’ meeting of 26 April 2017, the sharehoiders authorized the Board of Directors to increase the share
capital of AB InBev to an amount not to exceed 3% of the total number of shares issued and outstanding on 26 April 2017 {i.e. 2,019,241,973).
This authorization has been granted for five years. It can be used for several purposes, including when the sound management of the
company's business or the need to react to appropriate business opportunities calls for a restructuring, an acquisition {whether private or
public) of securities or assets in cne or more companies or, generally, any other appropriate increase of the company's capital.

AB InBev’s Board of Directors has been authorized by the shareholders' meeting to acquire, on or cutside the stock exchange, AB InBev
shares up to maximum 20% of the issued shares for 2 unitary price which will not be lower than 1 Euro and not higher than 20% above the
highest closing price in the last 20 trading days preceding the transaction. This authorization is valid for 5 years from 28 September 2016.

7.2. Voting rights and transferability of shares and shareholders’
arrangements

Voting rights, quorum and majority requirements
Each share entitles the holder to one vote.

Generally, there is no quorum requirement for a shareholders’ meeting and decisions will be taken by a simple majority vote of shares present
or represented. However, certain matters will require a larger majority andfor a quorum. These include the foilowing:

i. any amendment to the Artictes of Association (except the amendments fo the corporate purpose or the transformation of the legal form of
the company), including inter alia, reductions or increases of the share capital of the company (except for capital increases decided by
the Board pursuant to the authorised capital) or any resclution relating to a merger or demerger of the company require the presence in
person or by proxy of shareholders holding an aggregate of at least 50% of the issued share capital, and the approval of a qualified
majority of at least 75% of the votes cast at the meeting (without taking abstentions into account);

ii. any authorisation to repurchase or dispose of Shares requires a quorum of shareholders holding an aggregate of at least 50% of the share
capital and approval by a qualified majority of at least 75% of the votes cast at the meeting (without taking abstentions into account);

jil. any modification of the purpcse of the company requires a quorum of sharehoclders holding an aggregate of at least 50% of the share
capital and approval by a qualified majority of at least 80% of the votes cast at the meeting (without taking abstentions into account) ;

iv. resolutions relating to the modification of the rights attached tc a particular class of shares will require the presence in person or by proxy
of shareholders holding an aggregate of at least 50% of the issued share capital in each class of shares and the approval of a qualified
majority of at least 75% of the votes cast at the meeting (without taking abstentions into account) in each class of shares, (in each of the
cases (i), (i), (iii} and (iv), if a quorum is not present, a second meeting must be convened. At the second meeting, the quorum requirement
does not apply. However, the qualified majority requirement of 75% or 80%, as the case may be, continues to apply); and

v. any acquisition or disposal of tangible assets by the company for an amount higher than the value of one third of the company’s
consolidated total assets as reported in its most recent audited consolidated financial statements requires the approval cof a qualified
majority of at least 75% of the votes cast at the meeting {without taking abstentions into account), but there is ne minimum quorum
requirement.

As an additional rule, in the event of (i} a contribution in kind to the company with assets owned by any person or entity which is required to
file a fransparency declaration pursuant to applicable Belgian law or a subsidiary (within the meaning of article 1:15 of the Belgian Companies
Code) of such person or entity, or (i) a merger of the company with such a person or entity or a subsidiary of such person or entity, then such
person or entity and its subsidiaries shall not be entitled to vote on the resclution submitted to the shareholders’ meeting to approve such
contribution in kind or merger.
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Transferability of shares
Ordinary Shares are freely transferable.

As far as Restricted Shares are concemed, no Restricted Shareholder is able, in each case directly or indirectly, to transfer, sell, contribute,
offer, grant any option on, otherwise dispose of, pledge, charge, assign, morigage, grant any lien or any security interest on, enter into any
certification or cepository arrangement or enter into any form of hedging arrangement with respect to, any of its Restricted Shares or any
interests therein or any rights relating thereto, or enter into any contract or other agreement to do any of the foregoing, for a period of five
years from 10 October 2016, except in the specific instances set out in the Articles of Association in connection with transactions with Affiliates
and Sugccessors or in relation with Pledges. Each of the terms Affiliates, Successors and Pledge is defined in the Articles of Association.

Conversion
Voluntary conversion

Each Restricted Shareholder will have the right 1o convert all or part of its holding of Restricted Shares into Ordinary Shares at its election (i}
at any time after 10 October 2021, and (ii) in some limited other instances, including immediately prior to, but then solely for the purpose of
facilitating, or at any time after entering into an agreement or arrangement to effect any permitted transfer, as set out in article 7.3.b (it} of the
Articles of Association of the company.

Automatic conversion

The Restricted Shares shalt autormatically convert into Ordinary Shares in the situations set out in article 7 6. of the Articles of Association,

ie.:

i. upon any transfer, sale, contribution or other disposal, except as set out in article 7.6 (a) of the Articles of Association in connection with
transactions with Affiliates and Successors or in relation with Pledges;

ii. immediately prior to the closing of a successful public takeover bid for all shares of the company or the completion of a merger of Anheuser-
Busch InBev as acquiring or disappearing company, in circumstances where the shareholders directly or indirectly, controlling or
exercising directly or indirectly joint control over AB InBev immediately prior to such takeover bid or merger will not directly or indirectly
contral, or exercise joint control over. AB InBev or the surviving entity following such takeover bid or merger; or

iil. upon the announcement of a squeeze-out bid for the outstanding shares of the company, in accordance with article 7:82 of the Belgian
Companies Cede.

Shareholders arrangements

Please refer to seclion 6 above.

7.3. Significant agreements or securities of Anheuser-Busch InBev that
may be impacted by a change of control on the company

1. USD 9,000,000,000 (originalty USD 13,000,000,000) Senior Facilities Agreement

In accordance with Article 556 of the 2009 Belgian Companies Code, the shareholders meeting of the old Anheuser-Busch InBev
SA/NV (the "Company”) approved on 27 April 2010, (i} Clause 17 {(Mandatory Prepayment) of the USD 13.000,000,000 Senior Facilities
Agreement dated 26 February 2010 entered into by, amongst others, the Company and Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. as
original borrowers, the oniginal guarantors and original lenders listed therein, Bank of America Securities Limited, Banco Santander,
S.A., Barclays Capitai, Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, Fortis Bank SA/NV, ING Bank NV, Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A., J.P. Morgan
PLC, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Lid, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, Société Générale Corporate and Investment Banking, and The
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, LTD. as mandated lead arrangers and bookrunners and Fortis Bank SA/NV as agent and issuing bank
(as amended and/or amended and restated from time to time) (the “2010 Senior Facilities Agreement”} and (ii) any other provision of
the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement granting rights to third parties which could affect the Company’s assets or could impose an
obligation on the Company where in each case the exercise of those rights is dependent on the launch of a public take-over bid over
the shares of the Company or on a “Change of Control” (as defined in the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement). Pursuant to the 2010
Senior Facilities Agreement (a) “Change of Control” means “any person or group of persons acting in cancert (in each case other than
Stichting InBev or any existing direct or indirect certificate holder or certificate holders of Stichting InBev or any person or group of
persons acting in concert with any such persons) gaining Control of the Company, (b} “acting in concert” means “a group of persons
who, pursuant to an agreement or understanding (whether formal or informal), actively co-operate, through the acquisition directly or
indirectly of shares in the Company by any of them, either directly or indirectly, to obtain Controf of the Company” and (c) “Control”
means, in respect of the Company, the “direct or indirect ownership of more than 50 per cent of the share capital or similar rights of
ownership of the Company or the power o direct the mariagement and the policies of the Company whether through the ownership of
share capital, contract or otherwise” .

Clause 17 of the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement grants, in essence, to any lender under the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement, upon
a Change of Control over the Company, the right (i) not to fund any loan or letter of credit (other than a roliaver loan meeting certain
conditions) and {ii) (by not less than 30 days written notice) to cancel its undrawn commitments and require repayment of its
participations in the loans or letters of credit, together with accrued interest thereon, and all other amounts owed to such lender under
the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement (and certain related documents).

The 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement was amended on 25 July 2014 and extended on 20 August 2013. It has been amended and
restated on 28 August 2015 (the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement as amended and restated being the “Amended and Restated 2010
Senior Facilities Agreement') so as to increase the total commitments from USD 8,000,000,000 to USD 9,000,000,000 and o extend
its term with 5 years from the date of its restatement with the possibility 1o extend the term by a further two years at the option of the
Company.

As a result of the amendment and restatement of the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement, the shareholders’ meeting of the old Anheuser-
Busch InBev of 27 April 2016 has approved, in accordance with Article 556 of the Belgian Companies Code, (i) Clause 17 (Mandatory
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Prepayment) of the Amended and Restated 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement and {ii) any other provision of the Amended and Restated
2010 Senior Facilities Agreement granting rights to third parties which could affect the company’s assets or could impose an obligation
on the Company where in each case the exercise of those rights is dependent on the launch of a public take-over bid over the shares
of the company or on a “Change of Control”. The definition of the terms “Change of Control”, “acting in concert” and "Control” remained
unchanged in the Amended and Restated 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement.

The Amended and Restated 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement has been transferred to the company as a result of the merger between
Anheuser-Busch InBev (formerly "Newbelco™) and the old AB InBev, that took place on 10 October 2016 in the framework of the
combination with SAB.

On 3 October 2017, the maturity date of the Amendeg and Restated 2010 Senicr Facilities Agreement was extended to August 2022.

As of 31 December 2019, no drawdowns were outstanding under the Amended and Restated 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement.

EMTN Program

In accordance with article 556 of the 2009 Beigian Companies Code, the shareholders’ meeting of the old Anheuser-Busch InBev
approved on 24 April 2013 (i) Condition 7.5. of the Terms & Conditions (Redemption at the Option of the Noteholders (Change of Control
Put)) of the 15,000,000,000 Euro updated Euro Medium Term Note Program dated 16 May 2012 of Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV and
Brandbrew SA (the “Issuers™) and Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, acting as Arranger, which may be applicable in the case of Notes
issued under the Program {the "EMTN Program”}, (ii) any other provision in the EMTN Program granting rights tc third parties which
could affect the company's assets or could impose an obligation on the company where in each case the exercise of those rights is
dependent on the occurrence of a “Change of Control” (as defined in the Terms & Conditions of the EMTN Program). Pursuant to the
EMTN Program, (a) "Change of Controi” means “any person or group of persons acting in concert {in each case other than Stichting
Anheuser-Busch InBev or any exisling direct or indirect certificate holder or certificate holders of Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev)
gaining Control of the company provided that a change of confrof shail not be deemed to have occurred if alf or substantiaily all of the
shareholders of the relevant person or group of persons are, or immediately prior to the event which would otherwise have constituted
a change of control were, the shareholders of the company with the same (or substantially the same) pro rata interests in the share
caprtal of the relevant person or group of persons as such shareholders have, or as the case may be, had, in the share capital of the
company”, (b) “acting in concert” means “a group of persons who, pursuant to an agreement or understanding (whether formal or
informal), actively cooperate, through the acquisition directly or indirectly of shares in the company by any of them, either directly or
indirectly, to obtain Control of the company”, and {c} “Control” means the “direct or indirect ownership of more than 50 per cent of the
share capital or similar rights of ownership of the company or the power to direct the management and the policies of the company
whether through the ownership of share capital, contract or otherwise”.

if a Change of Gontrol Put is specified in the applicable Final Terms of the concerned notes, Conditicn 7.5. of the Terms & Conditions
of the EMTN Programme grants, to any helder of such notes, in essence, the right to request the redemption of his notes at the
redemption amount specified in the Final Terms of the notes, together, if appropriate, with interest accrued, upon the occurrence of a
Change of Control and a related downgrade of the notes to sub-investment grade.

The change of control provision above is included in the Final Terms of:

& the 750,000,000 Euro 7.375% Notes due 2013 (Redeemed on 30 January 2013}, the 600,000,000 Euro 8.625% Notes due 2017
(Redeemed on 9 December 2016) and the 550,000,000 GBP 9.75% Notes due 2024, each issued by the company in January
2009,

® the 750,000,000 Euro 8.57% Notes due 2014, issued by the company in February 2009 (Redeemed on 27 February 2014);

* the 50,000,000 Euro FRN Notes that bear an interest at a floating rate of 3 month EURIBOR plus 3.90 %, issued by the company
in April 2009 (Redeemed on 9 April 2014);

® the 600,000,000 CHF 4.50% Notes due 2014 (Redeemed on 11 June 2014), issued by Brandbrew SA in June 2009 (with a
guarantee by the company);

# the 250,000,000 Euro 5.75% Notes due 2015 (Redeerned on 22 June 2315) and the 750,000,000 GBP 6.50% Notes due 2017
(Redeemed in June 2017), each issued by the company in June 2009; and

® the 750,000,000 Euro 4% Notes due 2018 (Redeemed in April 2018}, issued by the company in April 2010.

The series of Notes referred to in the above paragraph were issued pursuant to the 10,000,000,000 Eurg initial Euro Medium Term Note
Programme dated 16 January 2009 or the 15,000,000,000 Euro updated Eurc Medium Term Note Programme dated 24 February 2010
(as applicable). The relevant change of control provisions conlained in the Final Terms of such series of Notes were submitted to, and
approved by, the shareholders meetings of the old Anheuser-Busch InBev held on 28 April 2009 and 27 April 2010, respectively.

There is no change of control clause included in the Final Terms of any series of Notes issued pursuant to the EMTN Programme by the
company and/or Brandbrew SA after April 2010,

As a result of the update of the EMTN Programme on 22 August 2013 the Terms & Conditions of the updated EMTN Programme no
longer provide for a Redemption at the option of the Noteholders (Change of Control Put).

In May 2016, the old Anheuser-Busch InBev invited Notehotders of certain outstanding series of Notes issued under the EMTN
Programme prior to 2016 (the "Notes") to consider certain amendments to the terms and conditions applicable to those Notes (the
"Participation Solicitation"). The Parlicipation Solicitation was undertaken to avoid any suggestion that the combination with SAB could
be interpreted as a cessation of business (or a threat to do so), winding up or dissolution of the old Anheuser-Busch InBev.

Meetings of the Notehoiders of each series of the Notes were held on 1 June 2016 at which Noteholders voted in favour of the
Participation Solicitation for each of the relevant series of Notes. Amended and restated final terms for each series of the Notes reflecting
the amended terms and conditions, were signed by the old Anheuser-Busch InBev and the subsidiary guarantors named therein on 1
June 2016.

The EMTN Program has been transferred to the company as a result of the merger between Anheuser-Busch InBev (formerly
“Newbelco”) and the old AB InBev, that took ptace on 10 October 2016 in the framework of the combination with SAB.

187



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

US Dollar Notes

In accordance with articke 556 of the 2009 Belgian Companies Code, the shareholders meeting of the old Anheuser-Busch InBev
approved on 26 April 2011 (i) the Change of Control Clause of the USD 3,250,000,000 Notes issued on 29 and 26 March 2010, consisting
of USD 1,000,000,000 2.50 % Notes due 2013 (Exchanged for Registered Notes in an exchange offer that closed on 2 September 2010
and redeemed on 26 March 2013), USD 750,000,000 3.625 % Notes due 2015 (Exchanged for Registered Notes in an exchange offer
that closed on 2 September 2010 and redeemed on 15 Aprii 2015), USD 1,000,000,000 5.00 % Notes due 2020 (Exchanged for
Registered Notes in an exchange offer that closed on 2 September 2010) and USD 500,000,000 Fleating Rate Notes due 2013
(Exchanged for Registered Notes in an exchange offer that closed on 2 September 2010 and redeemed on 26 March 2013) (the
“Unregistered Notes issued in March 20107, (i) the Change of Contrel Clause of the USD 3,250,000,000 Registered Notes issued in
September 2010, consisting of USD 1,000,000,000 2.50 % Notes due 2013 (Redeemed on 26 March 2013), USD 750,000,000 3.625
% Notes due 2015 (Redeemed on 15 Aprii 2015), USD 1,000,000,000 5.00 % Notes due 2020 (Redeemed on 6 June 2018) and USD
600,000,000 Floating Rate Notes due 2013 (Redeemed on 26 March 2013) and offered in exchange for correspending amounts of the
corresponding Unregistered Notes issued in March 2010, in accordance with a US Form F-4 Registration Statement pursuant to an
exchange offer launched by Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. in the U.S. on 5 August 2010 and expired on 2 September 2010
(the “Registered Notes issued in September 20180, (iii) the Change of Control Clause of the USD 8,000,000,000 Registered Notes
issued in March 2011, consisting of USD 1,250,000,000 7.20% Notes due 2014 (Redeemed on 20 June 2011), USD 2,500,000,000
7.75% Notes due 2019 (Redeemed on 19 March 2018) and USD 1,250,000,000 8.20% Notes due 2039, USD 1,550,000,000 5.375 %
Notes due 2014 (Redeemed on 15 November 2014), USD 1,000,000,000 6.875 % Notes due 2019 (Redeemed on 15 November 2013)
and USD 450,000,000 8.00 % Notes due 2039 and offered in exchange for corresponding amounts of the corresponding Unregistered
Notes issued in January 2009 and of the correspending Unregistered Notes issued in May 2009, in accordance with a US Farm F-4
Registration Statement pursuant to an exchange offer launched by Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. in the U.S. on 11 February
2011 and expired on 14 March 2011 (the "Registered Nofes issued in March 2011”), whereby each of the Unregistered Notes issued in
March 2010, the Registered Notes issued in September 2010 and the Registered Notes issued in March 2011 were issued by Anheuser-
Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. with an unconditional and irevocable guarantee as to payment of principal and interest from the old
Anheuser-Busch InBev, and (iv) any other provision applicable to the Unregistered Notes issued in March 2010, the Registered Notes
issued in September 2010 and the Registered Notes issued in March 2011 granting rights to third parties which could affect the
company’'s assets or could impose an obligation on the company where in each case the exercise of those rights is dependent on the
taunch of a public take-over bid over the shares of the company or on a “Change of Control” (as defined in the Offering Memorandum
with respect to the Unregistered Notes, as the case may be, and in the Registration Statement with respect to the Registered Notes).
Pursuant to the Offering Memarandum and Registration Statement (a) “Change of Confrol” means “any persorn or group of persons
acting in concert (in each case other than Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev or any existing direct or indirect certificate holder or certificate
holders of Stichting Anheuser-Busch InBev) gaining Control of the company provided that a change of control shall not be deemed to
have occurred if all or substantiaily alt of the shareholders of the relevant person or group of persons are, or immediately prior to the
event which would otherwise have constituted a change of control were, the shareholders of the company with the same {or substantially
the same) pro rata interests in the share capital of the relevant person or group of persons as such shareholders have, or as the case
may be, had, in the share capital of the company”, (b) “Acting in concert” means “a group of persons who, pursuant to an agreement or
understanding (whether formal or inforrnal), actively cooperate, through the acquisition directly or indirectly of shares in the company by
any of them, either directly or indirectly, to obtain Control of the company”, and (c) "Control” means the “direct or indirect ownership of
mare than 50 per cent of the share capital or sirmilar rights of ownership of the company or the power to direct the management and the
policies of the company whether through the ownership of share capital, contract or otherwise”.

The Change of Control ¢lause grants to any Noteholder, in essence, the right to request the redemption of his Notes at a repurchase
price in cash of 101% of their principal amount (plus interest accrued) upon the occurrence of a Change of Control and a reiated
downgrade in the Notes to sub-investment grade.

A similar change of control provision was approved by the shareholders’ meeting of the old Anheuser-Busch InBev on 28 April 2009 with
respect to:

* the USD 5,000,000,000 Notes, consisting of USD 1,250,000,000 7.20% Notes due 2014 (Exchanged for Registered Notes in an
exchange offer that closed on 14 March 2011 and redeemed on 20 June 2011), USD 2,500,000,000 7.75% Notes due 2019
(Exchanged for Registered Notes in an exchange offer that closed on 14 March 2G11) and USD 1,250,000,000 8.20% Notes due
2039 (Exchanged for Registered Notes in an exchange offer that closed on 14 March 2011), each issued in January 2009 by
Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. with an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee as to payment of principal and interest

from Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV (the “Unregistered Notes issued in January 2009").

A similar change of control provision was approved by the shareholders’ meeting of the old Anheuser-Busch InBew on 27 April 2010
with respect to:

. the USD 3,000,000,000 Notes issued in May 2008, consisting of USD 1,550,000,000 5.375 % Notes due 2014 (Exchanged for
Registered Notes in an exchange offer that closed on 14 March 2011 and redeemed on 15 November 2014}, USD 1,000,000,000
6.875 % Notes due 2019 (Redeemed on 15 November 2013) and USD 450,000,000 8.00 % Notes due 2039 (the "Unreqistered
Notes issued in May 2009") each issued by Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. with an unconditional and irrevocable
guarantee as to payment of principal and interest from the old Anheuser-Busch InBev.

*  the USD 5,500,000,000 Notes igsued in Qctober 2089, consisting of USD 1,500,000,000 3.00 % Notes due 2012 (Exchanged for
Registered Notes in an exchange offer that ciosed on 05 February 2010 and redeemed on 15 Qctober 2012), USD 1,250,000,000
4.125 % Notes due 2015 (Exchanged for Registered Notes in an exchange offer thaf ciosed on 5 February 2010 and redeemed
on 15 January 2015), USD 2,250,000,000 5 375 % Notes due 2020 (redeemed on 23 April 2018) and USD 500,000,000 6.375 %
Notes due 2040 (the “Unregistered Notes issued in October 2009") each issued by Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide inc. with
an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee as to payment of principal and interest from the old Anheuser-Busch InBev.

* the USD 5,500,000,000 Registered Notes issyed in Febryary 2010, consisting of USD 1,500,000,000 3 % Notes due 2012
(Redeemed on 15 October 2012), USD 1,250,000,000 4.125 % Notes due 2015 {Redeemed on 15 January 2015), USD
2,250,000,000 5.375 % MNotes due 2020 and USD 500,000,000 6.375 % Notes due 2040 and offered in exchange for
corresponding amounts of the comresponding Unregistered Notes issued in October 2009, in accordance with a US Form F-4
Registration Statement pursuant to an exchange offer launched by Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. in the US on 8 January
2010 and expired on 5 February 2010 (the “Registered Notes issued in February 2010") each issued by Anheuser-Busch InBev
Worldwide inc. with an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee as to payment of principal and interest from the old Anheuser-
Busch InBev.
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The US Dollar Notes have been transferred to the company as a result of the merger between Anheuser-Busch InBev (formerly
“Newbelco”) and the old AB InBev, which tock place on 10 October 2016 in the framework of the combination with SAB.

4. Notes issued under Anheuser-Busch InBev’s Shelf Registration Statement fited on Form F-3.

For the sake of completeness, there is no Change of Control Clause applicable to outstanding Notes issued under Anheuser-Busch
InBev's Shelf Registration Statement filed on Form F-3 {with an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee as to payment of principal and
interest from Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NWV).

8. Remuneration

8.1. Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy applies to the directors, the CEO and the other members of the ExCom. References to the Senior Leadership Team
{SL.T) are purely for information purposes.

In relation to the financial years starting as frem 1 January 2020, it applies subject to its approval by the annual shareholders’ meeting to be
held on 29 April 2020.

8.1.1. Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members appointed by the Board, all of whom are non-executive directors. Currently, the
Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee is a representative of the Reference Shareholder and the two other members meet the
requirements of independence as established by the Belgian Companies and Associations Code and the 2020 Belgian Corporate Governance
Code. The CEO and the Chief Pecple Officer are invited to the meetings of the Remuneratiocn Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets four times a year, and maore often if required, and is convened by its chairperson or at the request of at
least two of its members.

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to guide the Board with respect to all its decisions relating to the remuneration policies
for the Board, the CEOQ, the ExCom and the SLT, and on their individual remuneration packages. it ensures that the CEO and members of
the ExCom and SL.T are incentivized to achieve, and are compensated for, exceptional performance. It also ensures the maintenance and
continuous improvement of the company’s compensation framework, which applies to all employees. The compensation framework is based
on meritocracy and a sense of ownership with a view to aligning the interests of employees with the interests of shareholders. The
Remuneration Committee takes into account the compensation of the employees when preparing the remuneration policy applicable to the
directors, the CEO and the other members of the ExCom and SLT.

The Board approves the company and individual annual targets of the CEO and the members of the ExCom and SLT, and the Remuneration
Committee assesses the target achievement and corresponding annual and long-term incentives of the CEQO and the other members of the
ExCom and SLT.

The Remuneration Committee prepares the remuneration policy and the remuneration report.

In exceptional circumstances, the company may temporarily derogate from the remuneration policy. These exceptional circumstances cover
situations in which the derogation is necessary to serve the long-term interests and sustainability of the company as a whole or to assure its
viability. Such derogation requires the approval of both the Remuneration Cammittee and the Board of Directors. The remuneration report
relating to the relevant financial year will include information on any derogation, including its justification.

The detailed composition, functioning and specific responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set forth in its terms of reference, which
are part of the company’s Corporate Governance Charter.

As noted above, the Remuneration Committee is composed exclusively of non-execulive directors and a majority of its members qualify as
independent directors. This helps to prevent conflicts of interest regarding the establishment, amendments and implementation of the
remuneration policy in relation to the CEO and ExCom members. The CEQ and the Chief People Officer do not take part in any discussions
or deliberations of the Remuneration Committee related to their remuneration. The Remuneration Committee can hold in camera sessions
without management being present whenever it deems appropriate to do so.

In addition, the power to approve the remuneration peolicy, prior to its submission to the shareholders’ meeting, and the determination of the
remuneration of the CEO and the ExCom and SLT members is vested with the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee. No member of the ExCom is at the same time a member of the Board of Directors. As regards the remuneration of the directors,
all decisions are adopted by the shareholders’ meeting.

8.1.2. Remuneration policy of the directors

a. Remuneration governance

The Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration for directors, including the Chairperson and the directors sitting on one or more
of the Beard comnmittees. In so doing, it benchmarks from time to time directors’ remuneration against peer companies, as the case may be,
with the assistance of an independent consulting firm. These recommendations are subject to approval by the Board and, subsequently, by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting.

In addition, the Board sets and revises, from time to time, the rules and level of compensation for directors carrying out a special mandate
and the rules for reimbursement of direclors’ business-related out-of-pocket expenses.

The shareholders’ meeting may from time to time revise the directors’ remuneration upon recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
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b. Structure of the remuneration

The remuneration of the directors consists of a fixed cash fee component and a share-based component censisting of an award of Restricted
Stock Units {described below), which makes Board remuneration simple, transparent and easy for shareholders to understand. Remuneration
is commensurate to the time committed by the directors to the Board and its various committees, and is set by the shareholders’ meeting upon
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. In addition, the remuneration is designed to attract and retain talented directors. The award
of Restricted Stock Units further aligns the interests of the directors with the sustainable value-creation objectives of the company.

Former LTt stock nption plan

Until 31 December 2018, the company had a long-term incentive (LTI) stock option plan for directors. All LTI grants te directors were in the
form of stock options an existing shares with the following features:

® an exercise price equal to the market price of the share at the time of granting;
® a maximum lifetime of 10 years and an exercise period that starts after five years; and

®* the LTI stock options cliff vest after five years. Unvested LTI stock options are subject to forfeiture provisions in the event that the
direclorship is not renewed upon the expiry of its term or is terminated in the course of its term, both due to a breach of duty by the director.

This LTI stock option plan was replaced in 2019 with the RSU Plan described below.
RSU Plan

As from 2019, the share-based component of the directors’ remuneration is paid under the form of Restricted Stock Units. Under this plan,
which was approved by the company's annual shareholders' meeting on 24 April 2019, the company may grant Restricted Steck Units
corresponding to a fixed value in euro to the members of its Board, as part of the fixed remuneration for the exercise of their duties. The
granting and vesting of the Restricted Stock Units are not subject to performance criteria. The RSU Plan therefore qualifies as fixed
remuneration, as recommended by the 2020 Belgian Corporate Governance Code.

Such Restricted Stock Units vest after five years and, upon vesting, entitle their holders to one AB InBev share per Restricted Stock Unit
{subject to any applicable withholdings).

Contrary to the soft law recommendation of the 2020 Belgian Corporate Governance Code, the shares delivered to directors upon vesting of
the Restricted Stock Units are not subject to a lock-up of three years after the date of the delivery and one year after the date of departure of
the relevant director. However, the five-year vesting period of the Restricted Stock Units fosters a sustainable and long-term commitment of
the directors to shareholder value creation that addresses the goal of the 2020 Belgian Corporate Governance Code.

c. Other

The company is prohibited from making loans to directors, whether for the purpose of exercising options or for any other purpose (except for
routine advances for business-related expenses in accordance with the company’s rules for reimbursement of expenses).

The company does not provide pensions, medical benefits or other benefit programs to directors.

8.1.3. Remuneration policy of the ExCom

The company’s remuneration policy for executives is designed to support its high-performance culture and the creation of ieng-term
sustainable value for its shareholders. The goal of the policy is to reward executives with market-leading compensation, which is conditional
upon both the overall success of the company and individual performance. It promotes alignment with shareholders’ interests by strongly
encouraging executive ownership of shares in the company and enables the company to attract and retain the best talent at global levels.

Base salaries are aligned with mid-market levels. Additional short- and long-term incentives are linked to challenging shert- and long-term
performance targets, and the investment of part or all of any variable compensation earned in company shares is encouraged.

The Board determines the maximum amount for the funding of the variable remuneration pool prior to the start of a performance year and the
allocation is made in accordance with criteria determined by the Board upon recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.

All criteria and the duration of the vesting periods are aligned with the relevant time horizon of the company and set to foster a sustainable
and long-term commitment to sharehoider value creation. Criteria and objectives are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and the Board
to ensure they are aligned with the company’s business objective and strategic ambition.

The targets for each of the performance KPls and business and perscnal objectives are set and assessed by the Board based on a pre-
determined performance matrix, upon recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. A weighted performance score is franslated intc a
payout curve which has a threshold and a cap. The threshold is set at the minimum acceptable level of performance ta trigger the performance
part of the bonus.

The Board may revise the level of remuneration and approve a revised remuneration policy upon recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, subject to the approval of the shareholders’ meeting where required {see sections 8.1.1 and 8.1.2 above).
A.  Components of executive remuneration
Executive remuneration generally consists of (a) a fixed base salary, (b) variable performance-related compensation (benus), (c) long-term
incentive stock options, (d) long-term Restricted Stock Units, (e) pension schemes and (f) other components.

a. Base salary

To ensure alignment with market practice, executives’ base salaries are reviewed overall against benchmarks. These benchmarks are
collected by internationally recognized compensation consultants, in relevant industries and geographies. For benchmarking, a custom sample
of global peer companies (Peer Group) is used when avaitable. The Peer Group currently includes, for example, Apple, Coca-Cola Company,
Procter & Gamble, IBM, Cracle, Diageo and PepsiCo. The Peer Group may be revised from time to time by the Remuneration Committee, it
being understood that the Peer Group will remain consistent with the company's activities.
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If Peer Group data are not available for a given role, Fortune 100 companies’ data are used.

Executives' base salaries are intended to be aligned with mid-market levels for the appropriate market. Mid-market means that, for a similar
job in the market, 50% of companies in that market pay more and 50% of companies pay less. Executives’ total compensation is intended to
be 10% above the third quartile.

b. Variable performance-related compensation — Share-based compensation plan

Variable performance-related compensation is key to the company’s compensation system and is aimed at rewarding executives’ short- and
long-term performance.

The target variable compensation is expressed as a percentage of the market reference salary applicable to the executive. The on-target
bonus percentage theoretically amounts to maximum 200% of the market reference salary for members of the ExCom and 340% for the CEQ.
An additional incentive of 20% on a bonus amount may be awarded by the Remuneration Committee in the case of overachievement or other
exceptional circumstances.

The effeclive payout of variable compensation is directly comelated with performance; i.e., linked to the achievement of total company,
business unit and individual targets, all of which are based on performance metrics.

Company and business unit targets focus on achieving a balance of top line growth and cash flow generation.

Below a hurdle of achievement for tolal company and business unittargets, no variable compensation is eamed irrespective of persenal target
achievement.

In addition, the final individual bonus payout percentage also depends on each executive’s personal achievement of their individual
performance targets. Individual performance targets of the CEO and the ExCom members may consist of financial and non-financial targets
such as sustainability and other elements of corporate social responsibility, corporate reputation and compliance/ethics-related targets. Typical
performance measures in this area can relate to employee engagement, talent pipeline, better world goals, opinion leader favorability towards
the company, compliance, etc., and are linked directly to the achievement of strategic objectives to drive the sustainability of the financial
performance.

Target achievemenl is assessed by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of accounting and financial data.

The variable compensation is usually paid annually in arrears after the publication of the company's full year results, in or around March of
the relevant year. Exceptionally, the variable compensation may be paid out semi-annually at the discretion of the Board. In such case, the
first half of the variable compensation is paid shorily after publication of the half year results and the second half of the variable compensation
is paid after publication of the full year results.

Executives receive their variable compensation in cash but are encouraged to invest some (60%) or all of its value in company shares
(Voluntary Shares).

Voluntary Shares are:

® existing ordinary shares;

* entitled to dividends paid as from the date of grant;

* with respect to bonuses for the financial year 2020 onwards, subject to a lock-up period of three years for half of them and five years for
the other half'; and

* granted at market price, to which a discount is applied. With respect tc bonuses for the financial year 2020 onwards, the discount amounts
to maximum 20%?2. The discount is delivered in the form of Restricted Stock Units, subject to specific restrictions or forfeiture provisions
in the event of termination of service (Discounted Shares).

As an additional reward, Executives who invest in Voluntary Shares also receive a company shares match of three matching shares for each
voluntary share invested up to a limited total percentage of each executive’s variable compensation. These matching shares are also delivered
in the form of Restricted Stock Units (Matching Shares).

With respect to bonuses for the financial year 2020 onwards, half of the Restricted Stock Units relating to the Matching Shares and the
Discounted Shares vest over a three-year period, while the other half vest over a five-year period®. No performance conditions apply to the
vesting of the Restricted Stock Units. However, Restricted Stock Units will only be granted under the doubte condition that the executive:

* has eamed a variable compensation, which is subject to the successful achievement of total company, business unit and individual

performance targets {performance condition); and

* has agreed to reinvest all or part of his/her variable compensation in company shares, which are subject to a lock-up as indicated above
(ownership condition).

In the event of termination of service before the vesting date of the Restricted Stock Units, forfeiture rules apply.

! With respect to bonuses for the financial years 2019 and before, all voluntary shares must be held for a five-year period.

2 With respect to bonuses for the financial years 2019 and before, the discount was 10%.

3 With respect to bonuses for the financial years 2019 and before, the Restricted Stock Units relating to the Matching Shares and the Discounted Shares vest over
a five-year period.
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In accordance with the authorization granted in the company’s bylaws, this variable compensation system partly deviates from article 520ter
of the Belgian Companies Code, which has become article 7:91 of the Belgian Companies and Associations Code, as it allows:

1.

for the variable remuneration to be paid out based on the achievement of annual targets without staggering its grant or payment over a
three-year period. However, as indicated above, executives are encouraged to invest some or all of their variable compensation in
company Voluntary Shares. Such voluntary investment also leads to a grant of Matching Shares in the form of Restricted Stock Units, of
which half of them vest over a three-year period and haff of them vest over a five-year period, ensuring sustainable long-term
performance’ ;

and

. for the Voluntary Shares granted under the share-based compensation plan to vest at their grant, instead of applying a vesting period of

minimum three years. Nonetheless, half of the Voluntary Shares are subject to a three-year lock-up period and half of them are subject to
a five-year lock-up period?.

c. Long-term incentives

Annual long-term incentives

Members of our senior management may be eligible for an annual long-term incentive paid out in stock options or other share-related
instruments such as Restricted Stock Units, depending on management’s assessment of the beneficiary’s performance and future potential.

Long-term incentive stock options have the following features:

an exercise price equal to the market price of the share at the time of grant;

a maximum lifetime of 10 years and an exercise period that staris after five years;

upon exercise, each option entitles the option holder to purchase one share; and

the options cliff vest after five years. in the event of termination of service before the vesting date, forfeiture rules will apply.

Long-term Restricted Stock Units have the following features:

a grant value determined on the basis of the market price of the share at the time of grant;
upon vesting, each Restricted Stock Unit entitles its holder to acquire one share; and

half of the Restricted Stock Units cliff vest over a three-year period and the other half cliff vest over a five-year period. In the event of
termination of service before the vesting date, specific forfeiture rules will apply.

Grants made as from financial year 2020 will primarily take the form of Restricted Stock Units.

txceptional long-term incentives

Options or Restricted Stack Units may be granted from time to time to members of senior management of the company:

who have made a significant contribution to the success of the company; or

* wha have made a significant contribution in relation to acquisitions and/or the achievement of integration benefits; or

to incentivize and retain senior leaders who are considered to be instrumental in achieving the company’s ambitious short or long-term
growth agenda.

Vesting of such options or Restricted Stock Unils may be subject to achievement of performance conditions which will be related to the
objectives of such exceptional grants.

Grants made as from financial year 2020 will primarily take the form of Restricted Stock Units.

By way of example, the following exceptional long-term incentive plans are currently in place:

1.

2020 Incentive Plan: options can be granted to selected members of the senior management of the company, who are considered to
be instrumental in helping the company to achieve its ambitious growth target.

Each option gives the grantee the right to purchase one existing share. An exercise price is set at an amount equal to the market price
of the share at the time of grant. The options have a duration of 10 years as from granting and vest after five years. The options only
become exercisable provided a performance test is met by the company. This performance test is based on a net revenue amount
which must be achieved by 2022 at the latest.

integration Incentive Plan: options can be granted to selected members of the senior management of the company considering the
significant contribution that these employees can make to the success of the company and the achievement of integration benefits.

Each option gives the grantee the right to purchase one existing AB InBev share. The exercise price of the options is set at an amount
equal to the market price of the share at the time of grant. The options have a duration of 10 years from grant and vest on 1 January
2022 and only become exercisable provided a performance test is met by the company by 31 December 2021 at the latest. This
performance test is based on an EBITDA compounded annual growth rate target and may be complemented by additional country or
zone specific or function specific targets. Specific forfeiture rules apply if the employee leaves the company before the performance test
achievement or vesting date.

' With respect to bonuses for the financial years 2019 and before, a five-year vesting period applies to the Restricted Stock Units relating to the Matching Shares
and the Discournted Shares.
2 With respect to bonuses for the financial years 2019 and before, a five-year vesting pericd applies to Voluntary Shares.
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incentive Plan for SAB employees: options can be granted to employees of former SAB. The grant results from the commitment that
the company has made under the terms of the combination with SAB that it would, for at least one year, preserve the terms and
conditions for employment of all employees that remain with the group.

Each optien gives the grantee the right to purchase one existing AB InBev share. The exercise price of the options is set al an amount
equal to the market price of the share at the time of grant. The options have a duration of 10 years as from granting and vest after three
years. Specific forfeiture rules apply if the employee leaves the company before the vesting date.

Long Run Stock Options Incentive Plan: options can be granted to selected members of the company’s senior management to
incentivize and retain senior leaders who are considered to be instrumental in achieving the company's ambitious long-term growth
agenda over the next 10 years. Each optian gives the grantee the right to purchase one existing share. The exercise price of the options
is set at the closing share price on the day preceding the grant date. The options have a duration of 15 years as from granting and, in
principle, vest after 5 or 10 years. The options only become exercisable provided a performance test is met by Anheuser-Busch InBev.
This performance test is based on an organic EBITDA compounded annual growth rate target. Specific forfeiture rules apply if the
empioyee leaves the company before the performance test achievement or vesting date.

d. Recurring specific long-term Restricted Stock Unit programs

Anheuser-Busch InBev has in place four recurring specific long-term Restricted Stock Unit programs:

1.

A program allowing for the offer of Restricted Stock Units to certain members of the company’s senior management in certain specific
circumstances. Such grants are made at the discretion of the CEO, e.g. as a special retention incentive or to compensate for
assignments of expatriates in certain limited countries.

The Restricted Stock Units vest after five years and in the event of termination of service before the vesting date, forfeiture rules apply.

A program allowing for the excepticnal offer of Restricted Stock Units to certain members of senior management at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee as a long-term retention incentive for key managers of the company.

Members of senior management eligible to receive a grant under the program receive two series of Restricted Stock Units. The first half
of the Restricted Stock Units vest after five years. The second haif of the Restricted Stock Units vest after 10 years. As a variant under
this program, the Restricted Stock Units may be granted with a shorter vesting period of 2.5 to three years for the first half and five years
for the second half of the Restricted Stock Units. In the event of termination of service before the vesting date, forfeiture rules apply. As
of 2017, instead of Restricted Stock Units, stock options may also be granted under the program with similar vesting and forfeiture rules.

A program allowing certain employees to purchase company shares at a discount aimed as a long-term retention incentive for (i) high-
potential employees of the company, who are at a mid-manager level (People bet share purchase program) or (ii) newly hired
employees. The voluntary investment in company shares leads to the grant of three matching shares for each share invested or, as the
case may be, a number of matching shares corresponding to a fixed monetary value that depends on seniarity level. The matching
shares are granted in the form of Restricted Stock Units which vest after five years. In the event of termination before the vesting date,
forfeiture rules apply. Since 2016, instead of Restricted Stock Units, stock options may also be granted under this program with similar
vesting and forfeiture rules.

A program allowing for the offer of performance-based Restricted Stock Units (Performance RSUs) to certain members of the company’s
senior management. Upon vesting, each Performance RSU gives the executive the right to receive one existing AB InBev share. The
Performance RSUs can have a vesting period of five or ten years. The shares resulting from the vesting of the Performance RSUs will
only be delivered provided a performance test is met by the company. Forfeiture rules apply if the employee leaves the company before
the vesting date or if the performance test is not achieved by a certain date. These Performance RSUs are subject to an organic EBITDA
compounded annual growth rate target set by the Board. Other performance test criteria may be used for future grants, but they will
remain in line with the company’s high-performance cuiture and the creation of long-term sustainable value for its shareholders.

e. Exchange of share ownership program

From time to time, certain members of Ambev's senior management are transferred to AB InBev and vice versa. In order to encourage
management mobility and ensure that the interests of these managers are fully aligned with AB InBev's interests, the Board has approved a
program that aims at facilitating the exchange by these managers of their Ambev shares into AB InBev shares.

Under the program, the Ambev shares can be exchanged for AB InBev shares based on the average share price of both the Ambev and the
AB InBev shares on the date the exchange is requested. A discount of 16 66% is granted in exchange for a five-year lock-up period for the
shares and provided that the manager remains in service during this period. The discounted shares are forfeited in the event of termination of
service before the end of the five-year lock-up period.
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f. Programs for maintaining consistency of benefits granted and for encouraging global mobility of executives

Two programs which are aimed at maintaining consistency of benefits granted to executives and at encouraging the international mability of
executives while complying with all legal and tax obligations are in place:

1. The Exchange program: under this program the vesting and transferability restrictions of the Series A options granted under the
November 2008 Exceptional Option Grant and of the optians granted under the April 2009 Exceptional Option Grant could be released.
e.g. for executives who moved to the United States. These execulives were then offered the possibility to exchange their options for
ordinary AB InBev shares that remain locked up until 31 December 2018 (five years longer than the original lock-up period). Since the
Series A options granted under the November 2008 Exceptional Option Grant and the options granted under the April 2009 Exceptional
Option Grant vested on 1 January 2014, the Exchange program is no longer relevant for these options. Instead, the Exchange program
has now become applicable to the Series B options granted under the November 2008 Exceptional Option Grant. Under the extended
program, executives who are relocated, £.9. 1o the United States, can be offered the possibility 1o exchange their Series B oplions for
ordinary Anheuser-Busch shares that, in principle, remain locked up until 31 December 2023 (five years longer than the original lock-up
period). As a variant to this program, the Board also approved the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee to allow the early
release of the vesting conditions of the Senes B options granted under the November 2008 Exceptional Option Grant for executives who
are relocated, e.g. to the United States. The shares that result from the exercise of the options must, in principle, remain blocked until 31
December 2023 -

2. The Dividend waiver program: where applicable, the dividend protection feature of the outstanding options owned by executives who
move to the United States is being cancelled. In order to compensate for the economic loss which results from this cancellation, a number
of new options is granted to these executives with a value equal to this economic loss. The new options have a strike price equal to the
share price on the day preceding the grant date of the options. All other terms and conditions, in particular with respect to vesting, exercise
limitations and forfefture rules of the new options are identical to the outstanding options for which the dividend protection feature is
cancelied. As a consequence, the grant of these new options does not result in the grant of any additionat economic benefit to the
executives concerned.

There is atso a possible early release of vesting conditions of unvested stock options or Restricted Stock Units which are vesting within six
months of the executives' relocation. The shares that result from the early exercise of the options or the early vesting of the Restricted Stock
Units must remain biocked until the end of the initial vesting period.

g. Pension schemes

Our executives participate in Anheuser-Busch InBev's pension schemes in either the United States, Belgium or their home country. These
schemes are in line with predominant market practices in the respective countries. They may be defined benefit plans or defined contribution
plans.

The CEO participates in a defined contribution plan.

h. Other benefits

The company is prohibited from making loans to members of the ExCom or SLT, whether for the purpose of exercising options or for any
other purpose (except for routine advances for business-related expenses in accerdance with the company's rules for reimbursement of
expenses).

Executives and their family are eligible to participate in the Empioyer's Executive benefit plans {including medical and hospitalization, death
and disability plans) in effect from time to time, in line with the predominant market practices.

B. Minimum threshold of shares to be held

The Board has set a minimum threshold of shares of the company to be held at any time by the CEO to two years of base salary (gross) and
by the ather members of the ExCam to one year of base salary (gross). Newly appointed ExCom members have three years to reach such
threshold following the date of their appointment.

C. Main contractual terms and conditions of employment of members of the ExCom

The terms and conditions of employment of the members of the ExCom are included in individual employment agreements which are
concluded for an indefinite pericd of time. Executives are also required to comply with the company’s policies and codes such as the Code of
Business Conduct and Code of Dealing and are subject to exclusivity, confidentiality and non-cormnpete obligations under their employment
agreements.

The agreement typically provides that the executive's eligibility for payment of variable compensation is determined exclusively on the basis
of the achievement of company and individual targets set by the company. The specific conditions and modalities of the variable compensation
are fixed separately by the company and approved by the Remuneration Committee.

The termination arrangements for the ExCom members provide for a termination indemnity of 12 months of remuneration, including variable
compensation, in the event of termination without cause. The variable compensation for purposes of the termination indemnity shall be
calculated as the average of the variable compensation paid to the executive for the last two years of employment prior to the year of
termination. In addition. if the company decides to impose upon the executive a non-compete restriction of 12 months, the executive shall be
entitled to receive an additional indemnity of six months.

B. Reclaim of variable remuneration

The company’s share-based compensation and long-term incentive plans contain a malus provision for all grants made since March 2019.
Such provision provides that the stock options and/or Restricted Stock Units granted to an executive will avtomatically expire and become null
and void in the scenario where the executive is found by the Global Ethics and Compliance Committee to be (i) responsibie for 2 material
breach of the company's Code of Business Conduct; or (i} subject to a materiai adverse court or administrative decision, in each case in the
pericd before the exercise of the stock options or vesting of the Restricted Stock Units.
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8.2. Remuneration report

This remuneration report must be read together with the remuneration policy which, to the extent necessary, should be regarded as forming
part of this remuneration report.

8.2.1. Remuneration report relating to directors
A. General overview

a. Cash remuneration

The shareholders' meeting held on 24 April 2019 resolved that, as from 2019 onwards, the fixed annual fee of the directors amounts to EUR
75,000, except for the chairperson of the Board and the chairperson of the Audit Committee whose annual fixed fees amount respectively to
EUR 255,000 and EUR 127,500.

In addition, a fixed annual retainer applied as follows: (a) EUR 28,000 for the chairperson of the Audit Committee, (b) EUR 14,000 for the
other members of the Audit Committee, {c) EUR 14,000 for each of the chairpersons of the Finance Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, and (d) EUR 7,000 to each of the other members of the Finance Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, it being understood that the amounts of the retainers set out above are cumulative in the case of participation
of a director in several committees.

b. Share-based remuneration
Former LTI stock opticn plan

Until 31 December 2018, the company had an LTI stock option plan for directors (see section 8.1.2, b Former LTI Stock Cption Plan), which
was replaced in 2018 with the RSU Plan described below.

R5U Plan

At the company’s annual shareholders’ meeting held on 24 April 2019, it was resolved that the share-based portion of the remuneration of the
girectors of the company for the exercise of their mandate during the financial year 2018 (paid in 2019) and any subsequent years be granted
under the form of Restricted Stock Units corresponding to a fixed gross value per year of (i) EUR 550,000 for the chairperson of the Board,
(i) EUR 350,000 for the chairperson of the Audit Committee and (i) EUR 200,000 for the other directors (see above section 8.1.2. b) RSU
Plan).

Such Restricted Stock Units vest after five years. Each director is entitled to receive a number of Restricted Stock Units corresponding to the
amount to which such director is entitled divided by the closing price of the shares of the company on Euronext Brussels on the day preceding
the annual shareholders’ meeting approving the accounts of the financial year to which the remuneration in Restricted Stock Units relates.
Upon vesting, each vested Restricted Stock Unit entitlies its holder to one AB InBev share (subject to any applicable withholdings). These
Restricted Stock Units replaced the stock options to which the directors were previously entitled.

The granting and vesting of the Restricted Stock Units are not subject to performance criteria. Therefore, the RSU Plan for the directors
qualifies as fixed remuneration.
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B. Individual director remuneration

Individual director remuneration for 2019 is presented in the table below. All amounts presented are gross amounts expressed in Euro before
deduction of withholding tax.

Number of Number of

Board Annual fee Fees for Restricted

meetings for Board Committee Stock Units

attended meetings meetings Total fee granted %

Maria Asuncion Aramburuzabala 10 75,000 0 75,000 2,505
Martin J. Barrington & ® 10 195,000 18,667 213,667 1,558
Alexandre Behring " 2 25,000 2,333 27,333 2,505
Michele Burnsg 8 127,500 39,667 167,167 4,384
Sabine Chalmers @ 7 50,000 4] 50,000 0
Paul Cornet de Ways Ruart 10 75,000 4,667 79,667 2,505
Stéfan Descheemaeker 3 25,000 2,333 27,333 2,505
Grégoire de Spoelberch 10 75,000 7,000 82,000 2,505
Claudio Garcia @ 7 50,000 4,667 54,667 0
William F. Gifford @ 9 1] 4] 0 0
Olivier Goudet (" 3 85,000 9,333 54,333 6,890
Paulo Lemann 10 75,000 7,000 82,000 2,505
Xiaozhi Liu @ 7 50,000 9,333 59,333 ]
Alejandro Santo Domingo 9 75,000 0 75,000 2,505
Elio Leoni Sceti 10 75,000 21,000 96,000 2,505
Carlos Alberto da Veiga Sicupira ¥ 3 25,000 2,333 27.333 2.505
Cecilia Sicupirg @ 7 50,000 4 667 54,667 0
Marcel Herrmann Telles 10 75,000 28,000 103,000 2.505
Alexandre Van Damme 10 75,000 21,000 96,000 2.505

_All directors as a group \282500 1820000 1,464,500 _A0.387

{1) Member of the Board of Directors until 24 April 2018

(2) Member of the Board of Directors since 24 Apni 2019

{3) Mr Barrington waived his entitlement to any type of remuneration, including share-based remuneralion, relating to the exercise of his mandate up to the date of his
ratirement as CEC of Altria on 18 May 2018. Mr Barrington's annual remuneration was prorated for the exercise of his mandate during the remainder of 2018, which
impacted the share based remuneration he received in 2019 based on the 2018 calendar vear. Mr Gifford has waived his entitlement to any type of remuneration, including
share-based remuneration, relating to the exercise of tis mandate in 2019 and before.

(4) Chairman of the Board of Directors since 24 April 2019.

(5) No Restricted Stock Units granted to directors vested in 2019
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C. Options owned by directors

The table below sets forth, for each of the company’s current directors, the number of LTI stock options they owned as of 31 December
2019

LTI 26 1. TH25 LTi 24 L7123 LTi 22

25 April 26 April 27 April 29 Apri 30 April

Grant date 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

24 April 25 April 26 April 28 April 2% April

2028 2027 2026 2025 2024
Maria Asuncion Aramburuzabala 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 60,000
Martin J. Barrington @ 0 V] 0 1] 0 0
Sabine Chalmers # 0 o 0 0 ] 0
Michele Bumns 25,500 25,500 25,500 0 0 76,500
Paul Cornet de Ways Ruart 15 000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000
Grégoire de Spoelberch 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000
Claudio Garcia ®® 0 0 0 0 0 0
Wiilliam F. Gifford @ 4] o} 0 0 0 0
Paulo Lemann 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 60,000
Xiaozhi Liu @ 0 o] 0 0 0 0
Alejandro Santo Domingo 15,000 15,000 ¢ 0 0 30,000
Elio Leoni Sceti 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 60,000
Cecilia Sicupira # 0 o] 0 0 0 0
Marcel Telles 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000
Alexandre Van Damme 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000

Strike price (Euro) B84.47 104.50 113.25 11310  80.83

{1} At the annual shareholders’ meeting of 30 April 2014, all outstanding LT! warrants were converted into LT! stock options, i.e. the right to purchase existing ordinary
shares instead of the right to subscribe 1o newly issued shares. All other terms and conditions of the outstanding LTI warrants remained unchanged. 'n 2019, no LTI
stock options listed in the above table were exarcised by directors. No LTI stock options were granted to Directors in 2019.

{2) Mr Bamington warved his entilement to any type of remuneration, including long-term incentive stock options, relating to the exercise of his mandate up to the date of
his retirement as CEO of Altnia on 18 May 2018. Mr Barrington's annual remuneration was prorated for the exercise of his mandate during the remainder of 2018, Mr
Gifford has waived his entitlement te any type of remuneration, mcluding long-term incentive stock options. relating to the exercise of his mandaie in 2019 and before

{3} Member of the Beard of Directors since 24 April 2019

{4} Claudio Garcia and Sabine Chalmers do not hold stock options under the company’'s LTI Stock Options Plan for directors, However, they do still hold certain stock
options that were awarded to them in the past in their capacity as executives of the company

D. Restricted Stock Units owned by directors

The table below sets forth, for each of the company’s cumrent directors, the number of Restricted Stock Units they owned as of 31 December
2019:

Number of Restricted
Stock Units ewned
Grant Date 24 April 2019
Vesting Date 24 April 2024
Maria Asuncion Aramburuzabala 2,505
Martin J. Barrington 1,658
Michele Burns 4,384
Sabine Chalmers 13 0
Paul Comet de Ways Ruart 2,505
Grégoire de Spoelberch 2,505
Claudio Garcia M 0
William F. Gifford 2 [¢]
Paulo Lemann 2,505
Xiaozhi Liu 8]
Alejandro Santo Domingo 2,505
Elio Leoni Sceti 2,505
Cecilia Sicupira " 0
Marcel Herrmann Telles 2,505
Alexandre Van Damme 2,505
All directors as a group L ... 25982

{1) Member of the Board of Directors since 24 April 2019,

{2) Mr Gifford has waived his entitlement to any type of remuneration, including share-based remuneration, relating to the exercise of his mandate in 2019 and before.

{3} Claudio Garcia and Sabine Chalmers do not hold restricted stock wnits under the company's RSU Plan for directors. However, they do still hold certain Restricted Stock
Units that were awarded to them in the past in their capacity as executives of the company.
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8.2.2. Remuneration report relating to the ExCom

Except as provided otherwise, the information in this section relates to the ExCom as at 31 December 2019.

A. Compoenents of executive remuneration

Executive remuneration generally consists of (a} a fixed base salary, (b) variable perfarmance-related compensation {(bonus}, (c} long-term
incentive stock options, (d) long-term Restricted Stock Units, (e) pension schemes (f) other components. All amounts shown below are gross
amounts before deduction of withholding taxes and social security.

In addition, the Board has set up a minimum threshold of shares to be held by the CEO and by the other members of the ExCom, as indicated
in the Remuneration Policy.

a. Base salary

In 2019, based on his employment contract, the CEQ earned a fixed annual salary of ELUR 1.46 million (USD 1.64 million), while the other
members of the ExCom earned an aggregate annual base salary of EUR 2.27 miillion (USD 2.55 million}.

b. Variable performance-related compensation - Share-based compensation plan

For 2019, based on the company’s target achievement during the year 2019 and the executives’ individual target achievement, the total bonus
for the ExCom, including the CEOQ, effectively amounted to approximately 137% of their 2019 base salary. For the CEOQ, the total borus
effectively amounted to approximately 179% of his 2019 base salary.

As indicated in the remuneration policy (see above section 8.1), executives receive their bonus in cash but are encouraged to invest some or
all of its value in Voluntary Shares. For bonuses related to financial year 2019, such voluntary investment led to a 10% discount and a company
shares match of three Matching Shares for each share voluntarily invested up to a limited total percentage of each executive's variable
compensation.

The effective payout of variable compensation was directly correlated with performance, i.e. linked to the achievement of total company,
business unit and individual targets, all of which are based on perfoermance metrics.

Company and business unit targets focus on achieving a balance of top line growth and cash flow generation.

Below a hurdle of achievement for total company and business unit targets, no variable compensation is earned irrespective of personal target
achievermnent.

The targets for each of the performance KPls and business and personal objectives are set and assessed by the Board, upon recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee. A weighted performance score is translated into a payout curve which has a threshold and a cap. The
threshold is set at the minimum acceptable level of performance to trigger the performance part of the bonus.

Vanabie compensat,on for performance in 2018 — paid in March 2019

For the year 2018, the CEQ earned a bonus of EUR 0.73 million {USD 0.84 million). The other members ot the tormer Executive Board of
Management earned aggregate variable compensation of EUR 4.20 mitlion (USD 4.81 million).

The amount of variable compensation is based on the company's performance during the year 2018 and the executives’ individual target
achievement. Any variable compensation was paid in March 2019.

The following table sets forth information regarding the number of the company’s shares voluntarily acquired and Matching Shares granted in
March 2019 (variable compensation awarded for performance in 2018) to the CEO and the other members of the ExCom as at 31 December
2019 under the Share-based compensation plan. The Matching Shares were granted in the form of Restricted Stock Units and vest after five
years, on 4 March 2024.

Name Veluntary Shares acquired Matching Shares granted
Carlos Brito - CEQ 5,230 21,320
David Almeida 1,467 5,016
John Blood 738 3,057
Felipe Dutra 1,823 7,433

In addition, David Kamenetzky, who left the ExCom on 30 Juty 2018, acquired 1,527 Voluntary Shares and received 6,319 Matching Shares
in March 2019.
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Variable compensation for performance in 2019

For the year 2019, the CEO earned a bonus of EUR 2.61 million (USD 2.93 million). The other members of the ExCom earned aggregate
variable compensation of EUR 2.49 million Eurc {(USD 2.80 million}.

The amount of bonus is based on the company's performance during the year 2019 and the executives’ individual target achievement. A first
instalment of the bonus was paid in July 2019 (variable compensation awarded related to the first half of 2019) and any remainder of the
variable compensation for the year 2019 will be paid in March 2020

The following table sets forth information regarding the number of the company’s shares voluntarily acquired and Matching Shares granted in
July 2019 to the CEOQ and the other members of the ExCom as at 31 December 2019 related to the first half of 2019 under the Share-based
compensation plan. The Matching Shares were granted in the form of Restricted Stock Units and vest after five years, on 29 July 2024,

Name Voluntary Shares acquired Matching Shares granted
Carlos Brito — CEO 15,244 61,422
David Almeida 2452 11,069
John Blood 1,348 6,469
Felipe Dutra 5,407 22,030

¢. Long-term incentive stock options
Annual long-term incentive stock options

On 25 January 2019, 88,864, 33,853, 126,979, and 84,633 long-term stock opticns (having an exercise price of EUR 65.70) were granted to
respectively each of David Almeida, John Blood, Felipe Dutra and David Kamenetzky (who was a member of the ExCom until 30 June 2019).
Additionally, 100,961 and 67,307 long-term stock options (having an exercise price of EUR 71.87) were granted on 2 December 2019 to
respectively each of David Almeida and John Blood.

Exceptional long-term incentives

In 2019, no grants were made under the company's exceptional long-term incentive plans (as described section 8.1.3.A.c).

d. Recurring Specific long-term Restricted Stock Unit programs
In 2019, no grants were made to members of the ExCom under the company's recurring specific long-term Restricted Stock Unit programs
{as described in section 8.1.3.A.d.).

e. Exchange of share ownership program

In 2019, no member of the ExCom participated in the company’s exchange of share cwnership program {as described in section 8.1.3 A.e).

f. Programs for maintaining consistency of benefits granted and for encouraging global mobility of executives
In 2018, no member of the ExCom participated in any of the company's programs for maintaining consistency of benefits granted and for
encouraging global mobility of executives (as described in section 8.1.3.A.f).

g. Pension schemes

Our executives participate in Anheuser-Busch inBev’s pension schemes in either the US, Belgium or their home country. These schemes are
in ling with predominant market practices in the respective countries. They may be defined benefit plans or defined contribution plans.

The CEQ participates in a defined contribution plan. No annual contributions were due by the company under his plan in 2019. The
contributions for the other members of the ExCom amounted to approximately USD 0.20 million in aggregate in 2019.

h. Other benefits
Executives are also entitled to disability, life, medical (including vision and dental) and Group Variable Universal Life (GVUL) insurance and
perquisites that are competitive with market practices, the costs of which together amecunted in 2019 to approximately USD 0.04 million for
the CEQ and approximately USD 0.09 million in aggregate for the other members of the ExCom.
B. Main contractual terms and conditions of employment of members of the Executive Committee (ExComy) in 2019
See section 8.1.3.C for a description of the main contractual terms and conditions of employment of members of the ExCom.
David Kamenetzky (former Chief Strategy & External Affairs Officer) resigned effective on 30 June 2019.

Carlos Brito was appointed to serve as the CEQ starting as of 1 March 2006. in the event of termination of his employment other than on the
grounds of serious cause, the CEO is entitled to a termination indemnity of 12 months of remuneration, including variable compensation as
described above.

C. Reclaim of variable remuneration

Malus provisions have been included in the share-based compensation and leng-term incentive plans relating Lo grants made in 2019 (see
section 8.1.3. D.). No variable remuneration was reclaimed in 2019.
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D. Options owned by members of the ExCom

The table below sets forth the number of LTI stock options owned by the members of cur ExCom as of 31 December 2019 under the 2009
LTI stock opticn plan (see section 8.2.2. A_, c).

LTi options LTI options LTI options LT! options LTI options LTI options LTI options

Grant date 18 Dec 2009 30 Nov 2010 30 Nov 2011 30 Nov 2012 02 Dec 2013 01 Dec 2014 01 Dec 2015
Expiry date 17 Dec 2019 29 Nov 2020 29 Nov 2021 29 Nov 2022 01 Dec 2023 30 Nov 2024 30 Nov 2025
ExComt 0 57,829 336,713 672,835 440,931 276,102 24,564
Strike price
(EUR) - 35.90 o 742.41 44.00 66.56 o 75.15 o 9145 121.95
LTI options LTI options LTI options LTI options LTI options LTI options
Grant date 22 Dec 2015 01 Dec 2016 20 Jan 2017 22 Jan 2018 25 Jan 2019 02 Dec 2019
Expiry date 21Dec2025  30Nov2025 19Jan2027  21Jan 2028 24 Jan 2029 (1 Dec 2029
ExCGom!" 611,565 18,635 551,276 594,936 249,696 168,268
Strike price
{EUR) 7 113.00 98.04 , 98.85 7 94.36 B5.70 71.87

(1) The fallowing options were exercised in 2019:
a. Caros Brito exercised 190,984 LTI options of 18 December 2009 with a strike price of EUR 35.90 and 273,365 LTI opfions of 30 November 2010 with a strike
price of EUR 42 41,
b. Felipe Dutra exercised £3,297 L T! options of 18 December 2008 with a strike price of EUR 35,90, 76,288 LTI eptions of 30 November 2010 with a stnke price of
EUR 42 41 and 100,836 LTI options of 30 November 2011 with a strike price of EUR 44.00.
€. John Blood exercised 5,005 LTI options of 18 December 2009 with a strike price of EUR 35.90.

The table below sets forth the number of options granted under the November 2008 Exceptiona! Option Grant owned by the members of the
ExCom as of 31 December 2019",

November 2008 November 2008 November 2008 November 2008

November 2008 November 2008 Exceptional Exceptional Exceptional Exceptional

Exceptional Exceptional Grant options Grant options Grant options Grant options

Grant options Grant options Series A ~ Series B — Series B — Series B -

Series A Series B Dividend Waiver Dividend Waiver Dividend Waiver Dividend Waiver

09 08 11 13

Grant date 25 Nov 2008 25 Nov 2008 1 Dec 2009 1 Dec 2009 11 July 2011 31 May 2013

Expiry date 24 Nov 2018 24 Nov 2023 24 Nov 2018 24 Nov 2023 24 Nov 2023 24 Nowv 2023

ExCom'? 0 1,626,679 0 1,260,596 0 1]

Strike price

€wr) M0 0% _ L Bw s s

(1) The Series A stock options have a duration of 10 years as from granting and vested on 1 January 2014. The Series B stock options have a duration of 15 years as
from granting and vested on 1 January 2019 The exercise of the stock optiens is subject, among other things, to the condiion that the company meets a performance
test. This performance test, which was met, required the net deb/EBITDA, as defined {adjusted for exceptional itemns) ratio to fall below 2.5 before 31 December 2013
Forferture rules apply in the event of termination of employment.

(2) The foliowing options were exercised in 2019:

a. in January 2019, Felipe Dutra exercised 542,226 options of 25 November 2008 with a strike price of EUR 10.32 and 343 884 options of 1 December 2009 with a
strike price of EUR 33.24;
b In August 2019, David Aimeida exercised 361 484 options of 25 November 2008 with a strike price of EUR 10.32.
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The table below sets forth the number of options granted under the 2020 Incentive Plan owned by the members of the ExCom as of
31 December 2019 (see section 8.2.2. A ¢).

2020 incentive Stock Options

Grant date 22 December 2015
Expiry date L _ 22 December 2025
ExCom 47,823
Strike price (EUR) 113.00

The table below sets forth the number of options granted under the Integration Incentive Plan owned by the members of the ExCom as of 31
December 2019 (see section 8.2.2. A, c).

Integration Incentive Stock Options

Grant date 5 May 2017
_Expiry date ) o ) S o - 31 December 2026
ExCom 261,706
Strike price (EUR) _ 108.10

The table below sets forth the number of options granted under the Long Run Stock Options Incentive Plan owned by the members of the
ExCom as of 31 December 2019 {see section 8.2.2. A, ¢).

Long Run Stock Options Long Run Stock Options

incentive Plan Incentive Plan

Grant date 1 December 2017 18 May 2018
_Expirydate 31 December 2032 31 December 2032
ExCom 2,002,504 1,708,044
_Strike price (EUR} 96.70 80.34
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Registered
trademarks

The following brands are registered trademarks of Anheus-
er-Busch InBev SA/NV or one of its affiliated companies:

Global brands:

Budwesser, Stella Artois and Corona

International brands:

Castle, Beck's, Leffe, Hoegaarden and Michelob Ultra

Local brands:

10 Barrel, 100% renewatle electricity, Agulla, Alexander Keith's,
Alta Palla, Ama, Andes, Antarctica, Archibald, Atlas Golden
Light, Atorn Brands, Babe, Bagbier, Balboa, Bathtub Gin, Barnilito,
Bass, BBC La Cotidiana, Be a King, Beck's Ice, Becker, Belle-Vue,
Belgian Beer Café, Best Damn, Birra del Borgo, Blasfermia, Blue
Girl. Blue Paint, Boddingtons, Bohermia, Bon & Viv, Boxing Cat,
Brahma, Breckenndge, Brutal Fruit, Bud 0.0, Bud 66, Bud Light,
Bud Light Seltzer, Budweiser Copper Lager, Budweiser Harvest
Reserve, Busch, Busch Light, Cafn, Camden Town, Camden Hells,
Carlton, Carling Black Label, Cass, Castle Lite, Castle Lite Cold
Lock, Chernigivske, Club, Club Colombia, Colorado, Colorado
Ribeirdo Lager, Corona Cero, Corona Extra, Corona This Is Living,
Coronita, Crew Republic, Cristal, Cubarnisto, Cucapa, Cusgueha,
Cutwater, Devils Backbone, Diebels, Diekireh, Drinkworks Home
Bar, Eagle Lager, Elysian, Estrella, Estrella Jalisco, Flying Fish
Chill, Four Peaks, Franziskaner, Ginette, Ginsber, Golden Road,
Goose Island, Great Northern, Guarang Antarctica, Haake-Beck,
Hartin, Hartun Cristal, Hasserdder, Hertog Jan, Herteg Jan 00,
HIBall, Hoegaarden Resée, Impala, Jinling, Jntongguan, Juhus,
Jupiler, Jupiler 0.0, Kaiba, Karbach, Kilimanjaro, King of Beers,
Klinskoye, Kokanee, Koembrewcha, Kwak, Labatt, Lakeport, La
Legit ma, Land Srark Lager, La Virger, Leffe Royale, Leffe 0.0,
Leon, Liberty, Lowenorau, Lucky, Mackescn, Magnifica, Malta,
Maverick Drinks, Master of Malt, Mexicall, Michelob Ultra Pure
Gold, Michelob Ultra Lime Cactus, Mike's Hard, Mike's Hard
Sparkling Water, Mill Street, Modelo, Modelo Especial, Montejo,
Mountain Series, Natty Daddy, Natural Light, Natural Light
Seltzer. Negra Modelo, Norte, Nossa, O'Doul's, OB, Oland,
Cld Blue Last, Pacefa, Pacifico, Patagonia, Patagoria Hoppy
Lager, Patricia, Pilsen, Prlsen Callao, Pilsener, Pirate Life, Poker,
Pony Malta Plus, Presidente, Pure Blonde, Pure Draught,
Quilmes, RateBeer, Redd’s Apple, Ritas, Rogan, Safari, Salva
Vida, Saturday Session, Sedrin, Shikang, Shock Top, Sibirskaya
Korona, Skol, Skol Beats GT, Skol Puro Malte, SmartBarley,
Spaten, Stanley Park, Stella Artois Buy A Lady A Drink, Stella
Artois Midnight Lager, Stella Artois Seltzer, Sunbru, T, Temple
Brewery, Tjuana, Tolstiak, Tnpel Karemeliet, Tropical, Vieux
Ternps, ViIctona, Victoria Bitter, Wals, Whitbread, Wicked Weed,
Yantar, Zalva, ZX Ventures.

The following brand is a

registered trademark:

- PerfectDraft’ co-owned with Koninklke Philips NV.
- Clean Waves: co-owned with Parley LLC
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Figures in million USD 2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019
unless stated otherwise reported reported reference reported reference restated® restated® reported
base' base?
Volumes (million his) | 459 457 502 500 616 605 560 561
Revenue 47063 43,604 46,928 45517 53,842 54859 53.041 52,329
Norrralized EBITDA 18,542 16,838 18145 16,753 19.633 21695 21732 21078
EBITDA 18,465 17057 - 16.360 .- 21,085 21038 20.755
Normalized profit from operations 15,208 13768 14,882 13,276 15,520 17069 17107 16.421
Normalizec prof t attributable to 8.865 8,513 - 4,853 - 7392 6,248 8086
equity nolders of Anneuser-Busch
InBevy
Profit attrioutable to eguty noloers of 9.216 8273 .- 1241 - 7990 4370 971
Anheuser-Buscn [nBev
Net financial debt 42135 42185 -- 107953 - 106,492 104,242 95,542
Casn flow frarm operating actnaties 14144 1421 -- ono - 14920 14381 13,396
Normalized earnings per snare (USD) 543 5.20 -- 283 - 375 36 4.08
Dividend per snare (USD) 352 395 - 385 - 433 205 202
Dividend per share (euro) 3.00 360 - 360 - 360 1.80 180
Payout ratio % 64.8 760 -- 1360 - 156 649 435
woighted average nurmber of 1634 1.638 - 1717 -- 1971 1975 1984
ordingry snares (rrilion shares) 1
Share price hugn (surQ} 9489 12420 -- 960 - lilsxie] 96 70 azn
Srare orice low (euro) 65914 8772 -- 213 -- 9288 56.84 56.32
Year-end snare once (euro) 9386 14 40 -- 100,55 - 9313 5770 2N
Market capitahzation (™ilhon USD) 183167 200,302 -- 213993 -- 225,531 133,404 164,936
| Maret capializaton {millon eured | 150,867 182,983 - 203010 - 188,052 116,510 146,819 |

The 2015 Retererce Rase arc 2018 segment repor: ng exc wde the resy 15 of the SABMIer bus ness so d since the comb nal or was comp eted, P aarg he jor: veriore
stakes ' M1 erCoors ard C? Snow ana the saie of the Seron ., Gro sch ana Meartme brarcs ara associate bus rosses in ltayy, the Nether aras, the U< arg rierrat ongly
The 2015 Re‘erence 2ast ard 2016 segment report rg a so exg Jae the resu s 0 ke CET Busingss and the stake r Dste. Theresults of the &8 Ausrass w be reporteg as
Resy s “rom aiscort rued operal Ors” ard the resuits of Jstel wl be reported as share of resuits of assoc ates ort ke respectve sales are completea
2 The dfere~ces between re 2016 Re‘erence oase and the 2016 ncome statertent as Recorted represent the ef‘ec: of tre cormp mator w itk SA3 The crofit casn * ow ana
ba ance sheet are presenteg as Reportes i 2016 The ros. ts 0f the CEF 3u$ ness were reportog a5 "Resut's from g scont.nues operanors” urul the comp el or o the cis-
posal sFa took place on 31 Varck 2017 “reresuits ©f Dste were reportea as share of results of assoc ates unt tre comp et or o the sa'e that occurred or 12 Apr i 2017 arg
aczordrgly are excludes ‘rom ~grmalized CBIT a~d TRITZA Turt-grmore the comcany stooped conszl datirg CCBA £ s const dated  ~arzal stateme-ts 3s from trg
comp elor of the CC3A dsposa or 4 Ociober 2017
3 Tre2C77 and 2018 rosulis Pave oeer restates toreflect tre cact of () tne new Zrganizat onal siructure trat pecare effectve as ¢ T deraary 200 ang s cormposed of five
‘egiors North Amer 23 M dale Armencas Soutn Amer ca TMIA and Asia Pacif £) (0 tne retrasoective doehcat or of 1P IRSIE Leases thas oezame effectve as of ' Leruaary
7019 and reclaced tre or o lease acco.nt ng recuremests 3nd rtroguced SN €ant chanaes (o lessae acrur =g 25 removed The dissinet on netwegs cpery’ ~g and
*marce leases a~d reae rea 3 lossec “o recogr 2o 2 F grt-of-Lse assot arg 3 ease l2olity arg a depreciatior crarge elated o tre gnt-ofiUse assets and ar interost oxperse
ar e lease haoltes, ang () tre €13581° cat on 2f tre results of trg Austeal 20 cperations 3s © seantieucd CoCat 075 N accorcare w ok 11 RS 5 Non-current Assets Hele ‘or
Sa e ara rscort roec Uperal ons "o Sweng tre arrourcemeart or 19 Loy 2019 of the agreemert 1o g ves: CUB w0 Asar
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ADDENDUM TO THE ANNUAL REPORT OF 27 FEBRUARY 2020
TO REFLECT THE REVISED DIVIDEND PROPOSAL

On 14 April 2020, the company announced that it revised its proposal to pay a final 2019 dividend of
EUR 1.00 per share previously announced on 27 February 2020, to a proposal to pay a final 2019
dividend of EUR 0.50 per share, and rescheduled the ordinary and extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
that was to be held on 29 April 2020 to 3 June 2020, in accordance with the Belgian royal decree n°4
of 9 April 2020.

As a conseguence:

0] the reference to the ordinary and extracrdinary sharehciders’ meeting to be held on 29 April
2020 in the Annual Report is superseded by the rescheduled meeting to be held on 3 June
2020;

{in) the reference to the final proposed dividend of 1.00 euro per share in note 23 Changes in

equity and earnings in the Annual Report is superseded by a final proposed dividend of
0.50 euro per share to be approved at the rescheduled meeting tc be held on 3 June 2020;
and

{iii} the excerpt from the AB InBev NV separate (non-consolidated) financial statements
prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP provided on page 165 of the Annual Report
dated 27 February 2020 is superseded by the table below:

Abbreviated non-consolidated balance sheet

Million euro 2019 2018

ASSETS

Non-current assets

INtANGIDIE ASSEIS ... .. . oo s e e e e e e e 586 597

Property, plant and equipment ... ... ... oo 58 39

Financialassets .. ... ... ... .. [T 117 894 115 156
118 538 115 791

CUTPBNL ASSOLS ..o oiiiiiiirire e teeraranre s e e e araeas e r s e e cabnaaarnatrens 26 225 38 067

Total ASSelS ... e e e 144 763 153 858

EQUITY AND LIABILITSES

Equity
Issued capital............ .o e 1239 1239
Share premium ... .. ... PSP TU PR 13 186 13 186
Legalreserve.. ... .o i 124 124
Reserves not avaiiable for distribution ... ... ... 4 386 3 595
Reserves avaitable for distribution ... S PP 33 008 33 009
Profit carried forward......... . . 19 661 12 604
71 605 63 757
Provigsions and deferred taxes ... i e e scc v e 42 46
Non-current labilities ..o s 53 257 63 758
Current liabilities. ... e e 19 858 26 287
Tota! equity and liabilitios ................cccco i 144 763 153 858
Abbreviated non-consolidated income statement
Million eurg 2018 2018
Operating income........... ... . ... U U P PO U EP 1318 1369
Operating expenses .................. ... ... e e e {1255} (995)
Operating restt ..o 63 374
Financial resul ... . s 10 342 2482
Result for the year available for apprepriation ... 10 405 2856
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The below UK subsidiaries have sought and received a parental guarantee from AB InBev SA/NV under Sections 4794,
394A-C and 448A-C of the UK Companies Act 2006 which has allowed them to be exempt from filing subsidiary audited
financial statements.

Unaudited financial statements will be filed with the UK Companies House in the course of 2019 except for dormant
companies which are exempt from preparing or filing financial statements.

Company Name Registered Number

AB Inbev Africa Holdings |l Limited 09930929

AB Inbev Africa Holdings Limited 04982553

AB Inbev Africa Investments Limited 04117358

AB Inbev America Heldings Limited 08922107

AB Inbev Asia Holdings Limited 05891508

AB Inbev Australia Holdings Limited 08926994

AB Inbev Australia Investment Holdings Limited 11642354
Ab Inbev Brewing Company (Apac) Limited 11990465

Ab Inbev Brewing Company Holdings (Apac) Limited 11990255
AB Inbev Capital UK Limited 07466437

AB Inbev Corporate Services Limited 08575040

AB Inbev Finance SA Limited 08924308

AB Inbev Finance South Africa Limited 11666154

AB Inbev Finance South African Holdings Limited 11641110
AB Inbev Global Business Services Limited 08685907

AB Inbev Harmony Holdings Limited 07906062

AB Inbev Harmony Limited 08296561

AB Inbev Heldings Europe Limited 04763363

AB Inbev Holdings Limited 04185128

AB Inbev HoldingMSl?BGO

AB Inbev Horizon Limited 06
AB Inbev International Brands Limited 05511455

AB Inbev Investment Holding Company Limited 11640882
AB Inbev Investments Holdings Company 2 Limited 11642142
AB Inbev SAF Limited 07780722

AB Inbev SI Limited 08924644

AB Inbev Southern Capital Limited 07816628

AB Inbev Southern Investments Holding Limited 11654135
AB inbev Southern Investments Limited 05820066

AB Inbev UK Finance Company Limited 09492207

AB inbev UK Investment Company Limited 09452211

ABI Australia Beverage Holding Ltd 10394356

ABI Australa Holding {Uk) Limited 11955024

ABI Australia Investment Ltd 10395165

ABI Euro Finance Services 2 Limited 12322767

ABI Eurp Finance Services Limited 10535822

AB1 Mexico Holding | Unlimited 10506521

ABI Mexico Holding il Limited 10517930

ABI SAB Group Holding Limited 03528416

AB| Southern Holding Ltd 10394354

ABI Southern Investment Ltd 10394347

ABI UK Holding 1 Limited 10377840

ABI UK Holding 2 Limited 10414368

AFC Finance Limited {in Liquidation) 09852512

ALE Finance Services 2 Limited 11954953

ALE Finance Services Limited 10379985

Anglemaster Limited 00072114

Anheuser-Busch Europe Limited 02399274

BFC Finance Limited 09852426

Bourse du Vin Limited 00042015
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Brewman Group Limited 005456912

Carlton and United Breweries Holdings (UK) Limited 07543569
DFC Finance Limited {in Liquidation) 09852407
Dreamgarme Limited 01960627

East West Oriental Brewing Company Limited 00027959
FBG Brewery Holdings UK Limited 02565926

FBG Holdings (UK} Limited 02037446

FBG International Limited 00028707

FBG Treasury (UK) Limited 02129189

Foster's Brands Limited 06425007

HFC Finance Limited 09852273

Kangaroo Ridge Wines Europe Limited 00040742
Nimbuspath Ltd 04290399

Pirate Life (Europe) Limited 10376567

SAB Asia Capital LLP 0C365431

SAB Austrzlia Beverage Holdings LLP OC369103

SAB Financing Southern LLP OC369350

SAB Limited 03640804

The Wine Exchange Limited 00071565

Tibsco Limited 00036973
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